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INTERIM REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMISSION
ON COMMUNISM, SUBVERSIVE ACTIVITIES
AND RELATED MATTERS WITHIN THE COM-
MONWEALTH.

This is a report to your honorable bodies of the investiga-
tion and study of this Commission into the activities of
the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of
America as they were concerned with Communism.

The charge that this Union was Communist-dominated
pre-dates World War 11.

The UE had withdrawn from the CIO when it was ap-
parent that the national trade-union organization was about
to expel it as a unit whose leaders had pledged their primary
loyalty to a foreign power. It was subsequently expelled
by the CIO in 1949, and the resolution effecting the ex-
pulsion is cited elsewhere in this report.

A Congressional Sub-Committee on Education and Labor
in December, 1948, following an investigation, found

The hold of the Communists on America’s electrical industry is the
hold of Soviet Russia. It is Communism in action now. It is not an
historical danger, it is a present danger.

The Communist Party has gained a strong foothold in one of the nation’s
most strategic industries, the electrical industry. It dominates the
largest labor union in that industry,— the United Electrical, Radio and
Machine Workers of America. It has seized control of its national office,
the executive board, the paid staff, the union newspapers, and a number
of its district councils and locals.

The Atomic Energy Commission found in 1948 that the
leaders of the UE did not meet such security requirements
as would assure the loyalty to the United States of those
persons who exercise administrative, negotiating or disci-
plinary authority over bargaining units of atomic energy
workers. It then withdrew and withheld recognition, and
still does, from the UE in any government or privately
owned plant that has been engaged in work for the AEC.

Clje Commontoealtj) of

Foreword.
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The history of that action is set forth more fully in another
section of this report.

An ecclesiastical leader, Bishop Edmund F. Gibbons of
the Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Albany, addressed a
message to the members of his diocese on April 25, 1950,
in which he set forth:

However, the Church is ever alert to evil influences that, by clever
propaganda, treachery and deceit, influence the thinking and decisions of
some unions. The most flagrant example of this evil is the United Elec-
trical Radio and Machine Workers of America, commonly called UE,
Only after the most painstaking study and mindful of the serious nature
of the charge, our Most Reverend Bishop and the priests of the Diocese
of Albany declare the United Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of
America to be Communist controlled and Communist dominated. It no
longer functions as a free trade union, but is merely an adjunct of the
Communist Party. It is, therefore, an enemy of God and the Catholic
Church. In view of this fact, it becomes a matter of conscience NOT TO
SUPPORT THIS ORGANIZATION IN ANY ENDEAVOR WHAT-
SOEVER.

During our investigation, Rev. Francis J. McDonnell,
now Director of the Catholic Labor Schools for the Arch-
diocese of Boston, at the time of an election at the Allis
Chalmers plant in Hyde Park, March 10, 1955, issued a
statement in which was included:

I very definitely and clearly told the men who came to see me that in
conscience they could not vote for the UE because of its long history of
being Communist-dominated. I further told this group that they had
the obligation, even at great sacrifice, not to support or aid in any way
the UE, for in so doing they were aiding the Communist cause and its
work in our country.

The late Hon. Maurice J. Tobin, former Governor of this
Commonwealth, and later United States Secretary of Labor,
while a Cabinet member, addressing a convention of the
lUE-CIO on September 19, 1951, declared

You came into being in a vigorous and mighty protest against the
Communist domination that characterized the UE. And I might say the
same leadership is still to be found heading the UE. The formation of
your union was, first of all, a patriotic gesture. It was a desire to shake
loose the grip which some of the Communists held upon this great na-

tion’s electrical industry.
It was, secondly, a gesture of revulsion a sign that your membership
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was fed up and sick and tired of the twisting and dodging and the lying
that characterized the Communist leadership of the old TIE. And, again,
I will say the same leadership is found at the head of the UE at this
present hour.

The UE leadership is the same on the date of this report.
The present United States Secretary of Labor, James B.

Mitchell, made known his stand on the UE in a press re-
lease dated October 29, 1954. President Fitzgerald had
wired him asking that his union be heard at open hearings
in a matter involving the lamp industry. In Secretary
Mitchell’s reply to Mr. Fitzgerald’s letter the following was
included:

Your telegram which appeared in part in the New York edition of the
Daily Worker contains gross inaccuracies. ... In view of the fact that
the union which you represent was found by the 1949 convention of the
CIO to be Communist-dominated and was expelled from the CIO by
vote of the convention, I am content to rely on the advice on this matter
of the two unions which represented the Electrical Unions in the prelimi-
nary hearing, namely, the lUE-CIO and the IBEW-AF of L.

A review of sworn testimony given before a number of
Senate and House national investigating committees reveals
numerous instances in which members and ex-members of
the UE have detailed the names and acts of UE leaders,
pointedly illustrating the Communist domination of the UE.

The investigation of this Commission necessitated re-
search which revealed the above. The Commission felt
that due weight should be given to the investigation and
judgments of responsible bodies and individuals. But its
obligation was to conduct an independent investigation and
assessment of the UE’s policy and action in Massachusetts.
It summoned before it the responsible officers and employees
who were subject to subpoena in this Commonwealth. This
included the general president of the International Union,
Albert J. Fitzgerald, the president of District Two, Paul J.
Seymour, and every available international representative
and field organizer. Great weight was given in our findings
to the sworn statements and the evasions of these witnesses.

The complete evidence before this Commission revealed
the exact pattern by which the UE had come under effective
Communist Party control a pattern repeated in the
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IFLWU and in other cases. The pattern can be described
as follows;

I. Securing Communist domination at the top.
2. Placing willing, pliable and subservient non-Communist front men in

positions of seeming authority.
3. Spot-placing active Communists in a limited number of key posts

down the line.
4. The use of union newspapers and other means of communication for

Communist purposes.
The use of the union name to back and further Communist propaganda

and Communist causes.
6. The drawing of union funds for Communist purposes.
7. A vicious crack-down on any one who raises the issue of Communism

within the union.

Communist domination is impossible unless the rank and
file permit it to continue. As in other cases, we have found
the UE rank and file apathetic in exercising their democratic
rights and duties as union members. There was before this
Commission evidence of one Massachusetts UE local of
1,200 members. Attendance was so poor that a motion
was carried to permit a quorum of 25 as being sufficient
to constitute a valid meeting. There were sufficient Com-
munist Party members and fellow travelers in the local to
have absolute control of meetings, offices and committees.
And they exercised control. This apathy is regrettable.
Would that union members appreciate that their betrayal
succeeds because of their indifference!

In the light of our complete investigation and study, the
Commission arrived at definite findings.

Background.

The United Electric, Radio and Machine Workers of
America came into formal existence in a convention at
Fort Wayne, Indiana, in September, 1936. James B. Carey
was elected its first president. Julius Emspak became its
secretary-treasurer and James Matles attained the position
of Director of Organization. Both Mr. Matles and Mr.
Emspak have long and repeatedly been identified as promi-
nent and influential members of the Communist Party.
They have retained their positions and power in the UE
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to date. James Carey was ousted as president at the 1941
convention of the union and was replaced by Albert J.
Fitzgerald of Lynn, Massachusetts. Mr. Fitzgerald has
since uninterruptedly continued in the same office. On
formation, the UE became affiliated with the Committee of
Industrial Organization. Its original name was the United
Electrical and Radio Workers of America. At its second
annual convention in Philadelphia in 1937 the present name
was adopted.

The issue of Communist domination of the UE arose
early in its existence, ft sharply became a matter of great
concern to government agencies interested in national se-
curity and loyal American members of the union itself.
The electrical industry is vital to national safety. The out-
break of world hostilities sharpened the concern.

A division within the UE became apparent prior to the
entry of the United States into World War If. The issue
was Communism. Matles and Emspak were pronouncedly
promoters of the Communist line. James Carey was op-
posed to their pronouncements. A review of the UE News
of that period reveals the conflict. Julius Emspak was the
UE News editor; James Carey was the author of one of the
paper’s columns. Editor Emspak supported the Communist
line of neutrality up to June 22, 1941, when Hitler invaded
Russia; President Carey opposed it. Editor Emspak had
been a supporter of the Hitler-Stalin pact; President Carey
opposed it. Editor Emspak had been opposed to aid for
Britain and the allies; President Carey had advocated such
aid.

James Matles, as Director of Organization, had carefully
selected his field staff. They numbered many well-trained
Communists who had spread their influence among the
workers throughout the industry. The lines were clearly
drawn for a battle for leadership at the seventh annual con-
vention of the UE in 1941. Communist weight and influence
were thrown against Mr. Carey. He was defeated for
president and Albert J. Fitzgerald succeeded him. Fitz-
gerald was then and still is satisfactory to the Communists.

The conflict simmered until 1949. The UE continued as
an affiliate of the CIO. The demand by labor itself to
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clean its bouse of Communists grew. The CIO was on the
march to do its own cleaning. Cognizant of what the result
would be, the UE withdrew in 1949 before it could be ousted.
The CIO, nevertheless, carried out its intentions, and its
Eleventh National Constitutional Convention on November
2, 1949, formally expelled the UE as the “the Communist
Party masquerading as a labor union.” The resolution for
expulsion is included elsewhere in this report.

At its peak, the UE claimed a total membership of 550,000.
At its twentieth convention in Cleveland in September,
1955, a financial report would indicate that it today claims
a membership of approximately 150,000. This demonstrates
that its present membership is at the lowest point since
the early formative days, nearly twenty years ago.

Commissions Findings

This Commission reports these specific findings as the
result of its investigation and study of United Electric:

1. Communist influences and policies dominate the na-
tional organization, controlled by Albert Fitzgerald, Julius
Emspak and James Matles.

2. President Albert J. Fitzgerald has never been a mem-
ber of the Communist Party, but he recognizes its influence
and has stalwartly stifled any opposition to it.

3. President Paul Seymour of District Two has never
been a member of the Communist Party. He has recog-
nized and nurtured the influence of Communists about him;
he has knowingly appointed members of the Communist
Part}' to positions of influence in District Two; be has never
objected to being surrounded by Communists; he has made
no determined effort to combat the Communist influences
that exist in both the national headquarters or the district
over which he presides.

4. The grip of Communism is kept firm by the inter-
national representatives and field organizers who are heartily
responsive to their Communist superiors.

The analysis set forth hereafter in this report, we believe,
demonstrates the basis for these findings.



1956.] - No. 450.HOUSE 13

Albert J. Fitzgerald.
International President of the UE.

Albert J. Fitzgerald was born on September 21, 1906.
He is resident of Lynn, Massachusetts.

It would be hard to arrive at an intellectual judgment
that President Albert J. Fitzgerald is both honest and
intelligent. “There are none so blind as those who will
not see.” Mr. Fitzgerald has been president of this union
since 1941. He avers no knowledge of Communism in the
union, or Communist Party members as union officers.
This union has been investigated and charged with Com-
munism for years. The record trumpets its presence. There
can be no conclusion but that his “blindness” is wilful.
And it lends credence to previous statements and judg-
ments that have been drawn on Mr. Fitzgerald. Several
we quote.

The following appears on page 187 of the book, “Men
Without Faces,” in the chapter entitled “Red Web in
Labor,” by Louis Francis Budenz:

In September, 1941, when the UE held its convention, the Reds worked
out a scheme to take advantage of one large local union’s dissatisfaction
with some of Carey’s inner-union policies. Hitler had by then attacked
Soviet Russia, so the Communists were prepared to continue Carey in
office if he would agree to go along with them in the future. This he
wrathfully declined to do. The Reds then picked as their man Albert J.
Fitzgerald, chief representative of the dissatisfied local, although he was
not a member of the party. The Comrades’ report on Fitzgerald noted
that he liked “long week-ends;” they promised themselves that if he
would play along with them they would make him president of the UE
and give him as many long week-ends as he liked. The union of his
forces and those influenced by the Reds supplied enough votes to win,
and Fitzgerald was elected. Since then, Fitzgerald has been in policy
accord withEmspak and Matles. Now in 1950 he joined them in leaving
the CIO.

There appears on page 659 of the hearing before the
Committee on Un-American Activities, House of Repre-
sentatives, dated August 9, 1949, an exhibit of the testi-
mony of J. B. Matthews before the House Education and
Labor Subcommittee, September 29, 1948, as follows;
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The consensus of opinion on Albert J. Fitzgerald among those who have
studied the Communist Party leadership of the IJERMWA is that he is
a willing stooge for the Emspak-Matles Communist machine.

At the present time Fitzgerald is in the forefront of the Wallace third
party movement, a movement which is now engaging the principal
energies of the Communist Party.

Fitzgerald has been affiliated with the following Communist-front or-
ganizations called subversive by the Attorney General’s office:

American Slav Congress, sent greetings, program, August 6, 1944.
Greek American Council, signer of open letter on Greece, the

Bulletin, January, 1946, page 1.
National Citizens Political Action Committee, committee mem

ber, folder.
National Committee to Abolish the Poll Tax, sponsor, PM, May

12, 1944, page 3.
National Committee to Combat Anti-Semitism, sponsor, news re-

lease, May 24, 1944.
National Wallace for President Committee, co-chairman, news re-

lease, March 23, 1948.

On the occasion when a Bridgeport, Connecticut, local
of the UE expelled twenty-six members of the local because
of their Communist Party affiliations, and the local was
immediately and illegally expelled by the Executive Com-
mittee of the national organization (which is referred to in
more detail in another portion of this report), the action of
Mr. Fitzgerald is worthy of comment. It is contained in
an answer of Joseph Jullianelle, Business Agent of the
Bridgeport local to Congressman Thomas in a hearing before
the Un-American Activities Committee of the National
House of Representatives in Washington on July 24, 1947,
at page 169:

Mr. Jullianelle. But please let me say this, Mr. Thomas, that at
a General Electric local conference in New York City about a month ago,
the president of the union told Mr. Berescik and myself that for what
we had done and mind you, what we had done, we took 26 members,
on whom we had ample proof to satisfy us, and we can satisfy others,
were Communists and fellow travelers and expelled them ■— but for that,
for what we had done we would never be excused, and if we got down on
bended knee before the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers
of America for the rest of our lives we could not be excused for what we
had done.

There appears in a document entitled ‘ ‘ State Department
Information Center Program,” issued after a hearing by



1956.] HOUSE No. 450. 15

the Permanent Sub-Committee on Investigations of the
Committee of Government Operations of the United States
Senate in March, 1953, Exhibit 29, an article entitled “The
Philadelphia Payoff,” by James A. Wechsler, taken from
the “Progressive,” dated September, 1948.

The article dealt with the 1948 founding convention of the
Progressive Party at Philadelphia and the part that Com-
munists played in that convention. It discussed the parts
played in the convention by Vito Marcantonio, Lee Press-
man and John Abt, and added;

Without rehearsing all the gory details, it can be stated categorically
that the Marcantonio-Pressman-Abt combine ran things as they pleased.
Dissenters were handled with professional roughness by Albert J. Fitz-
gerald, the pink-cheeked president of the Electrical Workers Union, who
has been taking orders from Communists so long that his reflexes are
automatic.

This Commission, on July 25, 1955, fded an Interim Re-
port of its investigation of the International Fur and Leather
Workers Union and its finding of facts that the TFLWU was
Communist-dominated. The close affiliation and devotion
of Mr. Fitzgerald to the IFLWU was revealed in that in-
vestigation by a review of the conventions of the IFLWU.
Mr. Fitzgerald was a co-operative speaker at conventions
of the Fur and Leather Workers, and was a champion of
the policies proclaimed by that body.

The position of Mr. Fitzgerald in the case of Irving Potash
is interesting enough to recount. Mr. Potash was a vice
president and one of the leading figures for years in the
IFLWU. He was one of the eleven leaders of the Com-
munist Party who were tried and convicted in New York
for violation of the Smith Act. At the conclusion of his
prison sentence, he submitted to extradition rather than
stand trial on further indictment in this country. The posi-
tion of Mr. Fitzgerald in the Potash case is recounted in
the Daily Worker (the official Communist organ in this
country) in its issue of August 25, 1952. Portions of the
news item of that date are quoted below:

The witchhunting imprisonment of Irving Potash under the notorious
Smith Act has aroused the conscience of fur and leather workers through-
out the world. Now serving a five year term with other leaders of the



HOUSE No. 450. [Jan.16

Communist Party on stoolpigeon testimony of “force and violence,”
Potash has been known to fur and leather workers for his militancy in
behalf of labor’s rights and decency.

. . . American labor leaders who
have pledged continued fight for Potash’s removal from Jail are Harry
Bridges, West Coast trade union leader; Albert J. Fitzgerald, president
of the United Electrical Radio and Machine Workers.

In findings made on December 14, 1948, by a Committee
on Education and Labor of the National House of Repre-
sentatives there appears:

The overwhelming evidence . . . further showed that the international
president, Albert Fitzgerald, collaborated with the other international
officers in maintaining the substantial control of the Communist Party
over the policy of the Union.

A review of all the evidence which has unfolded itself
leads to no other conclusion than that Mr. Fitzgerald has
been a willing tool of his Communist associates. He has
been fully cognizant that the organizers, under Matlss,
have been preponderantly members of the Communist
Party. He has never been a member of the Communist
Party and must have appreciated that he is far more valu-
able to the Communists as a willing stooge than a party
member. He has substituted his principles for his position.
It is for that reason that he has been for the past eight years
satisfactory to the Communists as president of the UE.

There is quoted below the sworn testimony of President
before this Commission on

Q. [By Mr. Bebsnahan.] What
gerald.

is your name? A. Albert J. Fitz-

aid? A. 9 Raddin’s Grove Avenue,Q. Where do you five, Mr. Fitzger
Lynn, Massachusetts.

Q. What is your occupation? A. I am President of the United Elec-
trical Workers.

Q. You are here represented by different counsel than Mr. Rosenberg?
A. Well, I have with me our general counsel, but I associate myself also
with Mr. Rosenberg.

Mr. Scribner. We are Joint counsel in this proceeding
Mr. Bresnahan. Will counsel identify himself for the record?
Mr. Scribner. My name is David Scribner, 11 East 51st Street, New

York. I am general counsel for Mr. Fitzgerald. Associated with me is
Mr. Allan Rosenberg.

Fitzgerald at a public hearin
August 3, 1955:
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Q. You were a witness before us on December 8, 1953? A. At my
own request, yes, sir.

Q. At your own request. When you requested your appearance there
was immediately arranged for you a hearing at which you testified?
A. That is true.

Q. And at that time you were asked about the position of the UE and
the Communist Party and Communists in the union? A. I don’t recol-
lect that as being the exact way.

Q. I’m going to ask you as President to tell us what the position is
of the UE on the matter of Communism A. We have no position.

Q. Then what is your own personal position on the matter of Com-
munism? A. I have no personal position.

Q. You have no brief for Communism or against it? A. I have ik
brief for it; I have no brief against it.

Q. You are neutral? A. Well, that is what you say

Q. No, no. Are you neutral on it? A. Well, I don’t know why I’m
being asked my personal opinions, Mr. Chairman. I don’t want to get
into a philosophical discussion with your counsel, but I am.here under a
subpoena

The Chairman. Are you for or a;
The Witness. I would say I v

ainst Communism as such?
as against Communism, generally

speaking
Q. Then what would you tell uf

against? A. Well, I prefer our form
about Communism that you are
of government.

Q. And what is preferable in our form of government that Communism
does not represent? A. I’m not an expert on Communism, and I’m in
no position to tell you about it.

Q. You have been questioned a long while about it. A. God knows
that is true.

Q. And your union has? A. I wouldn’t say our union has. The officers
and members of our union have.

Q. What national officers that you know of have been questioned about
their Communism? A. Oh, I would
Mr. Matles.

ay the director of our organization

Q. Who else? A. The secretary-tr sasurer, Mr. Emspak
Q. And who else? A. The district

have about nine districts. All the
tioned before the various committee

president, Mr. Seymour. Well, we
district presidents have been ques-

i and before grand juries, and no
ainst any of them.court action has ever been brought

Q. Now has the president
Rep. Randall. Now wait a mini

right. Hasn’t there been some court
,te. I think that may not be quite
action against Emspak?

The Witness. Yes. I’m sorry,
was found not guilty by the Supreme

There was some court action. He
Court. That was for contempt.

Rep. Randall. Wasn’t there some contempt action against Matles
somewhere along the line?
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The Witness. Not as a result of these proceedings, these hearings.
Counsel just informed me that Mr. Matles at one time was cited for con-
tempt of Congress but was acquitted by the District Court in Washing-
ton, found not guilty on that charge.

Q. Now have you questioned your officers as to whether or not they
were members of the Communist Party? A. No, I have not questioned
them. I’m aware of the fact that each one of them since 1949, I think it
is, has fded an affidavit with the National Labor Relations Board stating
that they were not members of the Communist Party.

Q. Have you endeavored to secure any information as to whether or
not Mr. Matles was everra member of the CommunistParty? A. I think
I read a report of a statement made by Assistant Attorney General
Mclnerney before a Senate Committee where he said that the officers of
the UE had been thoroughly investigated and there is no evidence of
any Communist affiliations. And I’m prepared to take the Assistant
Attorney General’s word for that.

Q. I asked you had you ever questioned them? A. I have never ques-
tioned them. They have volunteered the information to me on several
occasions that these charges are a lot of bunk.

Q. Is it the national position of the UE that it is all right to be an
officer of the UE and a member of the Communist Party? A. It is the
national position of the UE that the members of our organization have a
right to elect anyone to office whom they wish.

Q. And therefore is it the national policy of the UE that a member
of the Communist party has a right to be a national officer? A. The
membership will determine that by their votes.

Rep. Randall. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Rep. Randall.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] There has been a lot of talk here about the

democracy of the Electrical Workers Union. Do you think that the fellow
working down in the mills thinks it is right for the officers or an officer
of the UE to be a member of the Communist Party, Mr. Fitzgerald?
A. I would say that the average fellow working down in the mill would

ifficer to be a member of the Com-not think it would be all right for
munist Party.

an c

I don’t think so either.Q. I wouldn’t think so either. A.
Q. Let me ask this. Does the average person down in the mill get

to know whether or not a person is a member of the Communist Party
before he votes on these people? A. My goodness, if he doesn’t read
the reports in the newspapers and the statements issued by the various
other unions competing in our field he would be a strange creature in-
deed. I’m sure they know everyone that has been accused of it. I just
have the feeling that they just don’t believe it. They don’t believe it,
and despite all of the pressures brought to bear against them they still
don’t believe that that is true.

Q. What does the union do to foster their belief that it isn’t true?
A. Well, we conduct ourselves as a good American organization. We
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spend the great majority of our time in close contact with them. We keep
them aware of every move that we make and we permit them to make
all the decisions.

Q. You also publish a paper, do you not? A. Yes, we d'
Q. You back up the members of this union that are called before

investigating committees, do you not? A. Whenever we think that it
is aimed at the union.

Q. Has there ever been a time when you haven’t backed them up?
A. Well, we have a pretty firm position that we are opposed to this
kind of investigation. I don’t want to try to hide that. I was against
the formation of this commission. I don’t believe in the work that it is
doing. The CIO, the labor movement in general, feels the same way.
They have passed resolution after resolution at their conventions, calling
for the abolishment of the Un-American Activities Committees, the
McCarthy Committee. President Roosevelt was against it when he was
in office; President Truman was against it when he was in office; and
President Eisenhower has already made a statement to the effect that
witnesses before these committees should have the right to confront
their accusers. So I make no apologies for the fact that we oppose these
kind of investigations.

Q. I’m still going to pursue my thought here. You in your union
periodical have consistently backed up Emspak and Matles, have you
not? A. That is true. We feel that Emspak and Matles would not have
been under attack unless for their work in this union. A fellow named
Emspak or a fellow named Matles or Fitzgerald is nobody unless they
have connections with the union.

Q. You see that the workers get this particular paper of yours, di
you not? A. Oh, yes.

Q. By and large, you have supported these various persons that have
been under fire by an investigating committee, haven’t you? A. Yes.
We have, as I said, opposed these investigations. Other unions have done
the same thing. We have intervened in civil liberties cases and other
unions have intervened. We are not unique in that respect. The CIO
does it too.

Q. Even though you do not think that the worker down in the mills
or in the factories that you represent wants a Communist as an officer of
the union? A. Ido not think that the average worker in the shops in
this country wants a Communist as an officer of the union. But, further
than that, I think it is up to them to determine that, not for me to deter-
mine for them.

Q. Even though you agree that they do not want a Communist as an
ifficer of the union, you have done nothing to try to find out whether or

not the various persons that are officers of the union aren’t Communists,
have you? A. I don’t think that at this date in the game I have to do
it because it is impossible under the law for a person to be a Communist
and an officer of this union.

Mr. Beesnahan. Could I follow out your idea there?
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Q, [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What happens when members of a local
try to kick out Communists in their local when it goes down to that

stage in the UE? A. I don’t understand your question.
Q. As I understood it, you said that the members of the locals don’t

want Communists in them? A. I said they did not want them as officers,
my personal opinion.

Q. All right. If they want to get rid of them, what does the national
body do about it? A. They can get rid of anybody they want so long
as they comply with the national constitution.

Q. I want to call your particular attention to what happened in 1947.
A. Mr. Chairman, I would rather Counsel not stand on top of my

shoulder while he is questioning me.
Q. I won’tassault you, but I’m going to conduct it my way. A. I’m

more afraid of the other way. You might get me angry and I might do
something. Will counsel please keep a respectful distance?

I’m going to stand on the other sideQ. I’m going to do it my way
a discussion with Mr. Seymour, andof you. A. I had occasion to have
it that Mr. Bresnahan gave him dur-he acquainted me with the treatmer

ing executive hearing
are you talking aboutThe Chairman. Pardon me. Vi

rtive committee hearing told meThe Witness. Mr. Seymour in
fist, he pointed his finger,that your counsel stood over him ar

t think any court in the landlorhe threw papers in front of him. I
•ing to allow counsel to jump dow tness’ throat

.zgerald, a record of the meeting ofFiO. I’m going to show you, Mr
Electrical, Radio & Machinethe General Executive Board of t I

1 11, 1947, in New York, and I0Workers of America on February

want to read it.

the new members of the Gen-t Fitzgerald int ic

ii Executive Board.
1 informed the Board that an emer-
ucal 203, General Electric, Bridgeport,

General President Fit
ncy situation has arisen in I

President Paul Seymour to make aConn,, and called upon Vice
at

A. Well, it would be very difficultDo you remember that occasion?
for me to remember all the detail
minutes.

that far back. I suppose it is in the

Q. Let me continue

“Vice-President Seymour reported that Brother Emspak had re-
ceived a letter from Joseph Julianelle, Business Agent of IJERMW A
Local 203, dated February 4th, 1947, which he read as follows:

‘Mr. Julius Emspak, Secy-Treasurer, UERMWA, Int’l Office,
11 East 51st Street, New York 22, New York.

Dear Brother Emspak: You are informed of the expulsion
for cause of members of our Local listed on the attached sheet.
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Please remove same from your mailing lists and do not replace them
on it at our cost unless so advised by the undersigned.

Fraternally yours,
UERMWA, Local 203.

(Signed) Joseph Julianelle,
Business Agent.’

Do you recall the incident now? A
Q. Let me read further.

Yes, I think I d

“Vice-President Seymour indicated a list of twenty-six UE mem-
bers in good standing with their addresses which was attached to
Julianelle’s letter and which was a list of those expelled.

Vice-President Seymour then read a letter from Julianelle as busi-
ness agent of the UERMWA Local 203 to Oliver Arsenault, a UE
member in good standing at General Electric, Bridgeport, dated
February 4, 1947, which read follow

‘Oliver Arsenault, 1236 P< •broke Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut.
In accordance with member

body Sunday February 2, 194
cial meeting of this
formed of your ex-

n atil

pulsion as a member of our L
The power to expel has beei

•cal.
. vested in the hands of our officers by

f those attending the meeting onan overwhelming majority
the motion, “That this r p empower the officers of the

icordance with the National CIO
>n and By-Laws, a Communist or

to suspend or expel, in
Policy and our Local Constit
member who supports the doc ne of Cor

Effective at once, there >u have no membership rights and
m our check-off list.will be removed automatically

I JuLIANELLIr

Business Agent

UERMWA Local 20?

Do the incident? A, I iliar with the cn

Q. [Reading.]
“Vice-President Seymour re

five expelled members in good
rted that each of the other twenty-
anding received identical letters,
read another letter from Julianelle
ary 4, 1947;

st

Vice-President Seymour the
to Oliver Arsenault, dated Feb in

‘Enclosed is a money order in the amount of 11.50 which is a re-
fund of dues deducted from youi
your expulsion from Local 203,
taken at a special meeting of th

February 4, 1947, due to
UERMWA per membership action
is body, Sunday, February 2, 1947.

Joseph Julianelle, Business Agent.
UERMWA, Local 203.’

An identical letter was receiv
xpelled members in good stand

sd by each of the other twenty-five

tandi



HOUSE No. 450. [Jan.22

Vice-President Seymour then read a telegram sent by General
President Fitzgerald to Michael Berescik and Joseph Julianelle, in
their capacity as officers of UERMWA, Local 203, dated February
5, 1947, which read as follows:

Michael Berescik, President, and Joseph Julianelle, Business
Agent, Local 203 UEE-CIO, 600 Hallett Street, Bridgeport, Conn.

You are hereby directed to cease at once the unconstitutional ex-
pulsion of members of Local 203 and to withdraw and revoke im-
mediately all expulsions you have issued in violation of the Inter-
national Constitution of the UE. The International Office of this
Union has taken steps this morning to protect the jobs and contract
rights of members threatened by your arbitrary and unconstitutional
actions.

Albert J. Fitzgerald,
General President, UE-CIO.’

(Signed)

don’t recall every detail. I’m fa-you recall that? A. I probably
ar enough to talk about it.

Do
milii

[Reading.]Q
read excerpts from Bridgeport pa-“Vice-President Seymour then

pers to the effect that the officers of Local 203 threatened further
expulsions of UE members in good-standing at General Electric
Bridgeport in the same manner in which the 26 UE members in good-
standing had been expelled.

Vice-President Seymour then referred to a number of petitions
and read the text which appeared at the top of these petitions re-
ceived by General President Fitzgerald from UE members in good
standing at General Electric Bridgeport. The text read as follows:

‘To Albert J. Fitzgerald, International President, United Electri-
cal, Radio & Machine Workers of America, CIO, 11 East 51 si
Street, New York, N. Y.

The officers of Local Union 203 are arbitrarily expelling good-
standing members of the union, in open violation of our international
constitution

Members are being deprived of their membership rights and their
jobs are being endangered.

We urge that you intervene immediately to protect the member-
ship, jobs and contract rights of our member

Vice-President Seymour also recorded that a UE member in good
standing at the General Electric Bridgeport plant had been elected
Chairman of her Division but had been denied her seat on the
Executive Board because of her political beliefs.

Vice-President Seymour read the following Sections from the
International Constitution:



19, HOUSE No. 450.56.] 23

Preamble.
‘We, the Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers (UE), realize

that the struggle to better our working and living conditions is in
vain unless we are united to protect ourselves collectively against
the organized forces of the employers.

Realizing that the old craft form of trade union organization is
unable to defend effectively the interests and improve the conditions
of the wage earners, WE, THE ELECTRICAL, RADIO AND
MACHINE WORKERS (UE) form an organization which unites
all workers in our industry on an industrial basis, and rank and file
control, regardless of craft, age, sex, nationality, race, creed or
political beliefs, and pursue at all times a policy of aggressive struggle
to improve our conditions.

We pledge ourselves to labor unitedly for the principles herein set
forth, to perpetuate our union and work concertedly with other labor
organizations to bring about a higher standard of living of workers.’

‘Section A. All persons whose normal occupation is in the
Electrical, Radio and Machine Industry, and in conformity with
Article (3) “Jurisdiction” are eligible for membership to the
UNITED ELECTRICAL, RADIO AND MACHINE WORK-
ERS OF AMERICA (UE), regardless of skill, age, sex, nationality,
color, religious or political belief or affiliation.’

‘Section A. Each member at initiation shall pledge himself to
support the Constitution of the United Electrical, Radio and Ma-

chine Workers of America (UE) and obey all lawful orders of the
General Executive Board, in addition to the obligation required by
the local union of which he becomes a member.

Section B. If a member of this union commits an offense against
the Constitution and By-Laws or the general good and welfare of
his local union, or of the International union, he shall be given an

impartial trial by his local union as provided in the By-Laws of said
local union. The offense for which he is charged is to be presented
in writing to his local union by the member making the charges,
who at the time must be a member in good standing of the United
Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of America (UE). A copy
of said charges is to be given to the member under charges by the local
recording secretary. , Either plaintiff or defendant shall have the
right to appeal to the District Council (not sub-district), which
District Council shall have the power to select from its body a

Committee to investigate the facts and hold hearings as deemed
necessary. A decision of the District Council shall be rendered to

1Hide J. Membership

4 Hide S- Duties and Privileges of Membership
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Appellant within ninety (90) days of receipt of appeal. Appeals can
further be taken to the General Executive Board of the United
Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America (UE) and from
that body to the ensuing Convention. The decision of the local shall

until otherwise decided by a higher body
Vice-President Seymour also referred to Article 29, relating t

Installation of Officers and obligation of UE members.
Vice-President Seymour then called attention to Local 203’s Con-

stitution as amended and accepted in 1944. He stated that the
Preamble of the Local Constitution was identical with the Inter-
national Constitution and then referred to other sections of theLocal
Constitution which were applicable to the situation in Bridgeport.

Discussion then followed.
Motion made, seconded and arried to accept report

to revoke the charter of Local 203
ational Constitution because of the
il 203 and those working with them

Motion made and seconded
under Article 10 of the Inter]
activities of the officers of Loc
in violation of the International Constitution (Preamble; Article 4;
Article 24 and Article 29) and in violation of the Constitution of
Local 203 as amended and accepted in 1944 (Preamble; Article 4,
Membership; Article 6, Duties of President; Article 8, Duties of
Recording Secretary; Article 12, Duties of Business Agent; Article
13, Duties of Sergeant-at-Arms; Article 14, Executive Board; Arti-
cle 15, Representation; Article 17, Meetings; Article 18, Revenue;
Article 23, Suspension; Article 24, Misdemeanors and Penalties;
Article 25, Appeals and Grievances; Article 28, Nominations and
Elections; Article 30, Rules Governing Debate); and, after due
notice of such action, full opportunity to be heard with respect to
such revocation will be afforded by the General Executive Board at
its next regular meeting in March, 1947, upon written request to the
General President of the UE made within fifteen days after date of
such notice. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion made and seconded that the General Executive Board
lesignate International Representative Albert L. Smith to work to-
gether with District Council #2 . . . its officers and with the mem-
bership in the General Electric plant at Bridgeport, Connecticut,
in order to protect the membership rights, contract rights and jobs
of all UE members at that plant, and to take the necessary steps to
insure an effective administration of the affairs of UE at such plant.
International Representative Smith shall be subject to the direction
of the General Executive Board and to the General Officers between
meetings of the General Executive Board. Motion carried unani-
mously. ”

And it goes on from there. When a local decided it didn’t want Com-
munists, what happens to it? A. You want to know if I was familiar
with this?
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Q. Yes. A. This is something
eight years ago, and I think there if
that period of time. So there may
I can’t think of at the present time
recall it to the best of my ability.

; that happened back in 1947, some
i a lot of things go across the table in
be some omissions or something that
but I will give you the situation as I
There was an election campaign for

local union officers going on in that local union. There were two slates
of people running for office. The administration slate expelled the slate
that was opposing them from membership in the local union, as I under-
stand it, without a trial, without any charges being preferred against
them; but just simply said that they were Communists and therefore
they were expelled from the local union. These 25 or 26 people felt they
were deprived of their rights under the local constitution and under the
national constitution.

The Chairman. Were they given a hearing, sir?
The Witness. No, they were not given a hearing, not as I recall.
Q. They were discharged as a result of a motion, “That this member-

ship empower the officers of the local to suspend or expel, in accordance
with the National CIO Policy and our Local Constitution and By-Laws,
a Communist or member who supports the doctrine of Communism.”
Was that motion upheld? A. Can I complete wffiat 1 was starting to
say?

The Chairman. Yes
The Witness. As I understand it, these people were not given a

trial. It might possibly have come up at a membership meeting.

[Witness confers with counsel.]

The Witness. Not with respect to any individuals but just a blanket
business at a membership meeting. These people appealed to the Gen-
eral Executive Board because they thought they were being discriminated
against under the Constitution, and they felt that they were being de-
prived of their rights to run for Local Union office.

The Chairman. Did they deny they were Communists
The Witness. As I recall, some did deny it.
The Chairman. Before whom did they deny it?
The Witness. As I recall it, we received some letters from some of

them saying, “I have been expelled because I was a Communist. I
never have been a Communist, this that and the other thing.”

The Chairman. Did you give them a hearing or some board give
them a hearing?

The Witness. Our executive board gave these people a hearing.
First let me make it clear.

The Chairman. I asked about a hearing previously and you said
there was no hearing.

The; Witness. I thought you meant did the local union give them a
hearing before they expelled them.

The Chairman, I want to know if any board gave them a hearir
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The Witness. Yes. Our executive board gave them a hearing.
First, under our Constitution, no one could be discriminated against be-
cause of race, color, religion, sex, political beliefs or anything else, and it
would have been illegal for any local union to expel people because of
political beliefs.

Q. That includes Communism, is that right? I think that is what the
Chair is interested in, because he was a member of the Communist Party.
A. That certainly does include that. At the time that this took place
it would have been illegal under the CIO Constitution to expel any one
of them because of that. In 1947 the CIO did not have any provision
barring Communists in its Constitution. It may have passed a resolution
or two here and there deploring Communism or something like that. But
it did not have any provision in its Constitution then barring Communists
from holding office or from being members of the organization. We gave
this group a hearing and we reversed the decision of the local union in
accordance with the Constitution of our organization. We had the feel-
ing then, and we still have, that these people were being deprived of an
opportunity to be elected to office just because the people who were in
office wanted to remain firmly entrenched, and that is one of the reasons
why we were opposed to these provisions barring Communists, because
we think it gives an administration of the union a grip over their own
positions and makes it almost impossible for someone to aspire to the
office that they hold. In other words, I could see if one of my associates
here decided to run against me, I could start a smear campaign to the
effect that he was a Communist and say therefore he could not run for
office.

Q. Mr. Fitzgerald, I think what you have just said is what we have
been trying to determine. You in this instance when a local tried to
discharge its own Communists, the hold from above was such that they
couldn’t do it. Isn’t that what you said? A. I said that when a local
union tried to expel people without a trial, who they alleged to be Com-
munists, our General Executive Board, in accordance with its Constitu-
tion, said they could not do it. This local union then had a right to
appeal to the General Executive Board, to a National Convention, which
would have local union representatives all over the country, and their
decision would be final.

Q. That is, in order for a local union to get rid of its own officers or
members, it would have gone all the way through to the National Coun-
cil, is that right? A. Under our Constitution

Q. Is that right or not? A. Can I explain it to you?
Q. You can answer that question. A. I won’t take over a minute.
Q. Go ahead. A. A local union has a right to vote people out of

office for any reason whatsoever. If they want to vote them out of office
because they are a Communist, it is perfectly all right to me. They have
done it, I suppose, a million times over, but they cannot say to’them
that you cannot run for office because you are a Communist.
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Q. Do you know of one single instance in the UE whenever anybody
was expelled from the UE, either a member or an officer, because of his
Communism? A. I don’t know of any instances, frankly, where we ex-
pelled any people from this organization who didn’t first leave it.

Q. All right. The local that tried to expel some in 1947 down in
Connecticut were not successful in the expulsion, that is right, isn’t it?
A. They were not successful in barring people from being candidates for
office.

Q. They were not successful in suspending or expelling a person be-
cause he was a Communist or member who supported the doctrine of
Communism in that instance, were they? A. Remember, Mr. Chair-
man, the Business Agent of that local was the person who said they were
Communists.

Q. They were not expelled eventually, were they? A. No, they cer-
tainly were not expelled.

Q. Now let me show you another illustration. You know Cliff
McAvoy? A. Yes, I know Cliff McAvoy.

Q. Do you know whether or not Cliff McAvoy was a member of the
Communist Party? A. I have no personal knowledge of that.

Q. Did you ever make any inquiry as to whether he was or not?
A. I don’t remember. I haven’t seen Cliff for a long time, but I think
he has said to me also on occasions that these charges of Communism
against him were brought about because of his activities in the CIO
Council in New York and that they were not true.

Q. Well now, did any local ever object to having Cliff McAvoy, be
cause, of his Communism, be a representative? A. Yes.

Q. OftheUE? A. Yes,
Q. And what happened then? A. We kept Cliff McAvoy on
Q. You kept him on. Was there a protest made to you
The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, what was this McAvoy’s job with the

union?
Q. Let me read you from the minutes of the District Council No. 2

meeting at the YMCA in Springfield, Massachusetts, January 15, 1949.
Under “New Business”:

“The question was raised as to Brother McAvoy’s status. The
delegates were informed that McAvoy was being assigned by the
International Union to assist District 2 Locals with their legislative
action.

Fred Kelley, Local 201, made a motion that ‘the International
withdraw the appointment of Clifford McAvoy’ as legislative agent
in District 2 on the basis that he believed the major party representa-
tives would be prejudiced against McAvoy because of his activity
for Henry Wallace, and for that reason McAvoy would not be able
to do an effective job.

President Fitzgerald pointed out that just as the District Council
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has certain prerogatives in the selection of people to work on the
District pay-roll, free from interference from the International, the
International expects the same consideration from the District when
it hires people on the staff. He pointed out our ‘no discrimination ’

clause in the Constitution and stated it would be unbecoming for
this Council to reject employment to any person because of his
political beliefs or because of the political party he happened to
support.

President Fitzgerald pointed out that Cliff McAvoy is personally
acceptable to House Leader John McCormack and the Chairman of
the House Labor Committee and can work with all types of legis-
lators, both Democrats and Republicans, and get along fine with
them without being questioned as to his political stand. He asked
for the same consideration from the Council toward McAvoy as he
gets from these people. President Fitzgerald said there are thou-
sands of members in this District who are entitled to capable legis-
lative representation in New England, and that therefore, Cliff
McAvoy is being assigned by the International Union to work in
New England, and will work with the Locals in New England who
want his assistance. He urged the delegates not to pass the motion,
which would badly prejudice McAvoy’s work here.”

Then, following that, let me read you a letter on the stationery of the
United Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of America, 376 Main
Street, Indian Orchard, Mass., Local 288, signed by J. Emery LaPierre,
President of Local 288

Mr. John Jekot, Van Norn
Street, Springfield, Mass.

'.an Union President, 172 Chestnut

3 following resolution was approved
if Local 288:

Dear Brother Jekot: Th
and passed by the Membership c

President Fitzgerald at the District
Id told the assembled delegates in a

Whereas. Our International
ting at Sprin

ad Cliff McAvoy as legislative agentdictatorial tone that he would
for District Council #2 whether we liked it or not, and,

Whereas, The same Cliff McAvoy thought more of the Progressive
Party than he did of labor when he asked for a leave of absence
from his job as legislative agent for the UE in Washington to work
for the interests of the Progressive Party

Therefore, Be it resolved (1) that the Membership of Local 288
go on record denouncing the dictatorial stand taken by our Inter-
national President, Fitzgerald, on the legislative issues at the Dis-
trict #2 Council and (2) the Membership of Local 288 go on record
opposing Cliff McAvoy, or any other person, who has the interest
of the Labor Movement second to the Progressive Party, or any other
party, and should he be appointed, Local 288 will not work with
him on anv legislative matters in this state but will continue to work
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on legislative problems concerning labor in this state through the
Western Mass. CIO Council which has done such a splendid job in
the Springfield area.”

I call your attention to the fact that Cliff McAvoy has been named as a
member of the Communist Party before a Congressional Committee.
Was it a fact that Communism was raised and you still insisted nationally
he represent the National when locals who were in the district didn’t
want him on account of his Communism? A. I think you can see we
have moved a little away from the Communist Party now and we are
getting into the Progressive Party. The letter you read -was on account of
McAvoy was unacceptable in that particular local because of his activi-
ties with the Progressive Party. Now you will also not’ce that it con-
tained in that report that I had said that McAvoy would be avadable to
work with those locals who wanted him. In other words, if a local did
not want McAvoy wmrking with them, that local did not have to have
McAvoy working with them. It was necessary for a local to first call
upon McAvoy to do some work for them. He interfered in no way, shape
or manner, and I think I ought to make it evident to the members of the
Commission at this particular time that at this period when the split
began to come around in our organization and the lUE was in the forma-
tive stages, it obviously got to, it seems to me, make the question of the
union itself and the lUE, in view' of the line of questioning on the part
of the counsel here, germane when it comes to talking about this investi-
gation, at least as far as I’m concerned, because I’m being questioned
about things that concern the union as a whole and also things now that
concern this rival organization.

Let me say in conclusion to your question on that, if it was a question
- because it seemed to me that you just read a few7 documents and said,
Isn’t that right” McAvoy, like the rest of the people whom I have

been permitted to observe for the last twr o days in this room who have
been accused by a lot of people as being Communists or members of
Communist front organizations, he like the rest of them has had no
opportunity to confront and to cross-examine those people who are mak-
ing these statements against him. And I certainly am not going to take
the word of someone out in Pennsylvania who signed an affidavit saying
that he knows someone who is a Communist. The affidavit, in the first

wasn’t made before anyone. It wplace, isn’t worth a dime because it
just made before a Notary Public.

He took an oath. I’m not going to
legal argument of the thing, but he
You haven’t had him before this

Rep. Randall. Wait a minute,
listen to this. I can’t get into the
simply went to a Notary Public.
Commission.

mid have answered Yes or No, thatYour man was under oath. He c
it was or wasn’t.

The Witness. I think it is a complete turnabout of the way things
are done in this country. If a man makes an oath saying something
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about you, are you obliged to prove that he is wrong or is he obliged to
prove that he is telling the truth about you? It seems to reverse things.
You don’t have to prove your innocence in this country. Someone has to
prove your guilt.

Q. (By Rep. Randall.) Let me ask you this question. I’m going
back on my same train of thought here, namely, the statement you made
that in your opinion the rank and file member of your union did not
want anybody who was a Communist as an officer of the union. What
have you done since you were here last before us with reference to Com-
munism among the officers or members of your union in that period?
A. As I said, sir, I don’t have to do anything about officers of this union
who are Communists, because to my knowledge there are no officers of
this union that are Communists.

Q. But have never asked one person if he was a Communist, have
you? A. No, I haven’t. I haven’t asked them anything about their
religious, racial or political background. They may have told me some-
thing.

Q. Even though you know that the rank and file of your membership
does not want men if they are Communists as officers of the union, is
that right? A. Well, my goodness, sir, they must not believe they are
Communists if they elect them. They must not believe that they are
Communists. I don’t think it is a contradiction. I think if I publicly
announced today that I was a Communist I would be thrown out of
office by my membership. I honestly think that. The truth of the
matter is that they don’t believe these accusations against us. They
can’t see anything in our acts or conduct that would be proof enough to
them.

Q. Even though there has been all this criticism of the United Elec-
trical Union and there has been plenty of it as being Communist
dominated, you, since you have been here before a year and a half ago,
have done nothing in that period of time to combat Communism in any
sense of the word in your union? A. Because I don’t think it exists
there.

Q. But you have never bothered to try to find out? A. There are
affidavits on file. Let me tell you that every person who holds office in
the local union, in any union in this country that has complied with the
Taft-Hartley Law, those people have to sign non-Communist affidavits,
and they have been investigated dozens of times by the Department of
Justice, and there is no evidence anywhere that any of these officers have
falsified those affidavits.

The Chairman. As President of your Union have you lifted a finger
to attempt to destroy Communism or to find out if any of the officers
were Communists? Have you done that?

The Witness. Let me say this to you, that —at least it is my opinion
I have devoted the last twenty some odd years of my life to bring

about a situation in this country among working people whereby Com-
munism couldn’t even gain a foothold.
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The Chairman. I’m talking about since you were here last before
this Commission have you lifted a finger to attempt to defeat any signs
of Communism in New England?

The Witness. My goodness, that is not my job. I have got a union
to administer.

The Chairman. You say that is not your job. You testified here
before relative to the sale of certain literature to members of your union?

The Witness. Yes.
The Chairman. Since that time have you lifted a finger to stop the

sale of literature at cost price which spread the Communist doctrine
among members of your union? Have you attempted to stop that
practice?

The Witness. We probably have a difference of opinion as to what
is spreading Communist doctrine. I don’t think that literature that we
made available was spreading the Communist doctrine. And if you will
remember corVectly, I said at the last session that if Mr. Philbrick I
was sincere wanted to make his book available at cost, we would have
made it available.

The Chairman. I will ask counsel, what about that literature in con
nection with which this gentleman spoke to us under oath?

Mr. Bresnahan. There has been no change, as far as I can see, in
any of the periodicals of the UE at any time, and it is consistent with
the policy of the Communist Party and the Daily Worker.

The Chairman. Rep. Randall.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] I don’t know if we asked you last time,

I’m going to ask you now, are you a member of the Communist Party':
A. lam not.

Q. Have you ever been a member? A. I have never been a member.
Q. You have listened to these people almost without exception take

refuge behind the Twelfth Article of our Constitution? A. That is
right, I have.

Q. Let me ask you this. Have you any intention of trying to find
out what this situation is among your people as a result of this hearing?
A. Let me say this in response to your question. To the best of my
knowledge, I haven’t seen in any public print anywhere or any of the
releases by this Commission, that there is any evidence whatsoever that
lam or have ever been a Communist Party member. So with the knowl-
edge that you have no information on that, because I certainly would
have been identified at some of these hearings if you had, I feel free to
answer that question without any fear. Now I’m taking a little bit of a
chance. You may bring someone in, but I will have to risk my neck.
But I told you the last time that I couldn’t, knowing the man as I do,
take the word of a fellow like Teto that Tormey or any of the people here
are members of the Communist Party. Still they know that he has been
here and named them and they have a right to be fearful on that kind of
thing. I think if they were in my position they probably would not
hesitate one minute to answer your questions, but it is just because they
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are afraid of these people that Supreme Court Justice Douglas referred
to as faceless witnesses or accusers. They have a right to be afraid of
that kind of people. The Twelfth Amendment is for the protection of
the innocent as well as the guilty. That has been said over and over again
by every court in the land.

Q. That is absolutely right, but I asked you another question. I
asked you as a result of listening to these people here in this room taking
refuge behind the Twelfth Amendment, whether as a result of that you,
as the responsible President of the Union, are going to do anything
about investigating those various persons? A. There can be no ques-
tion about it. I will talk to them. I will get a story from them that they
are probably fearful to give to you. I will talk to them about it; I will
find out about it. We are constantly checking into the people who work
for us.

Q. But you haven’t found out about any of these others who have
been down at the hearings in Washington, any of the other members of
your union who have been called and taken refuge behind the Fifth
Amendment? A. But the Department of Justice says there is no evi-
dence against them.

Q. You are going to answer my question now. You tell me that as a
result of hearing this testimony today you are going to check with each
one of these people. I’m just saying this. The ones who have been be-
fore the Congressional Committee down in Washington and have taken
refuge behind the Fifth Amendment down there, you haven’t checked
on them, have you? A. Frankly I used it there myself.

Q. I’m going to ask my question again because you haven’t answered
it. A. I want to answer your questions.

Q. You haven’t checked on those people, have you? A. I have dis-
cussed it with them, I have talked with them, and they have assured me
they are not members of the Communist Party.

Q. But you never asked one of them if they were a member of the
Communist Party. A. I frankly say I don’t make it a practice going
around asking people, ‘‘Are you a Communist?” Now some of them come
to me and they say they are not Communists.

Q. But you testified here today under oath that you never asked any
of them whether they were Communists. A. I certainly do not go
around asking people if they are Communists. lam interested in the
work these people are doing for the organization. I am interested in
their record in this union.

Q. Are you more interested in their work, sir, than you are in the
welfare of the rank and file down in the shops? A. Oh, listen, they are
closer to the rank and file than I am.

Q. I don’t doubt that. A. They are. They work with them day
in and day out. lam certainly interested in the welfare of the rank and
file, and if I thought any of these people were doing anything that was
injuring the welfare of the working people, I would see to it that they
were no longer on the payroll.
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Q. But you wouldn’t check with them to see whether or not they
were members of the Communist Party? A. I haven’t asked them their
religion or anything else eithe

Q. Mr. Fitzgerald, if you should discover that a man was a member
of the Communist Party who was an official of your union or a worker
of your union, a man who has a possibility of getting increased benefits
for your workers, would you criticize him openly or cause him to be
dismissed from the union as long as ho could get benefits for your workers?

A. If I had absolute knowledge that a member of our staff in the state
of Massachusetts was a member of the Communist Party, he would be
in violation of the law in this state and I would tell him that he could no
longer work on our payroll. I may disagree with the law, but it happens
to be the law in Massachusetts that you cannot be a Communist. If I
had absolute proof when I say abi
would stand up and take their chanct
their point —if it was proven thef
wouldn’t work on our payroll.

olute proof, I mean witnesses who
3 under cross-examination to prove
3 people were Communists, they

The Chairman. Now that you have said that, what have you done
in order to ascertain whether or not any of your officers or members are
Communists'

Commission has indicated to me
because if they were I think you

The Witness. To some degree th
that these people are not Communist
would have referred the proceedings

you done yourself to ascertain
of your union is or is not a Com-
oct that they might be?

The Chairman. But what have
whether or not any officer or member
munist once you have been led to susj

The Witness. Well, first, to put it very bluntly to you, lam not a
Communist. I am a trade union leader. My time is fully occupied
servicing the members of this organization and their economic needs. I
think there are a sufficient number of law enforcement agencies to ferret
anyone out who is in violation of the law, whether it be Communists or
any ism or any law in this state.

The Chairman. You want to go on record that you as a responsible
union leader have done nothing in that respect?

The Witness. I didn’t say that
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] What you are saying is this. You are saying
I’m not going to do anything. You have got to prove it beyond a rea-

sonable doubt whatsoever. I will listen to nothing short of a fellow being
sent to jail by the Supreme Court of the United States.” Isn’t that
what you are saying? A. The accusation today is thrown around so
loosely, and it is so easy for commissions like yours to get witnesses to

highest reputation for truthfulness,
Carey in the lUE, he will label all

say the least that haven’t got th
that I hesitate —• for instance, Jin
our people as Communists. Now
that as evidence?

loes that mean that I have to take

Q. He has been before us, sir,
A. Oh, yes, he has.

and I don’t believe he lias said that
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Q. I sat here and listened to him. A. You should read their publi-
cations as closely as you do ours.

The Chairman. Under oath he didn’t label all of your members as
Communists.

Rep. Randall. None of them
The Witness. Take a person like Teto. I made a statement about

him under oath the last time that you people had me before you at my
request. Take the Harry Bridges trial out on the West Coast where
there were some eight witnesses who got on the stand and swore that
they collected dues from him, that they saw his membership card, that
they attended meetings with him. Men, you know, of that type where
the judge has to come out and find that they are liars, that they were not
telling the truth and found Bridges not guilty. The only way that
Bridges was found not guilty, the only way the judge knew these people
were liars, was that Bridges had the opportunity to cross-examine his
accusers. We don’t have that before this Commission. I tell you it has
been thrown around so loosely, particularly in this union by our enemies.
We had a spy network in Schenectady, according to Senator McCarthy.
Jandreau and Mascianti were the names. They got the secrets from the
shop stewards and sent them to us and we sent them over to Russia,
according to articles in the Saturday Evening Post. Overnight Jandreau
decides to build a new house in Schenectady. And he is pure. Well, if
Jandreau was a Communist when he was with us, he is a Communist
today with them. I just don’t fall for that kind of accusations.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] When you say that they are your ene-
mies, do you think the fact that you call them your enemies might make
you look into whether or not there is some truth in them? For instance,
Maurice Tobin was Secretary of Labor here. Was he out to break the UE
or was he out to break Communist domination in the UE? A. Well, it
is unfortunate you didn’t ask Don Tormey for a copy of the letter that
Maurice sent him thanking him for helping him in his campaign. Never-
theless he did appear at a meeting, a Secretary of Labor, a member of a
Cabinet of the United States appeared at a plaque gate meeting at Pitts-
field, Massachusetts, and got on a soapbox and said he was out to destroy
this union. He did that.

Rep. Randall. He did it because he thought it was Communist
dominated, didn’t he?

The Witness. I don’t know whether he thought it was Communist
dominated or anti-Democratic.

Q. Let’s see what the present Secretary of Labor, James B. Mitchell,
said to you in a press release on October 29, 1954, when you had sent
him a letter or a telegram dated October 21, asking for certain things
and asking him to call an open hearing. Here is his reply;

“On September 27th, almost a month before your October 21st
telegram, James B. Carey, of the lUE, asked me if I would initiate
proceedings to open hearings, under the Walsh-Healey Act, for the
lamp industry. You must be aware, etc.
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Your telegram which appeared in part in the New York edition of
the Daily Worker contains gross inaccuracies. As is widely known,
learners’ permits have not been issued nor have any been in effect
in the lamp industry for seven years. In view of the fact that the
union which you represent was found by the 1949 convention of the
CIO to be Communist dominated and was expelled from the CIO
by vote of the convention, I am content to rely on the advice on this
matter of the two unions which represented the Electrical Unions in
the preliminary hearing: namely the lEU-CIO and the IBEW-
AF of L.

(Signed) James B. Mitchell,
Secretary of Labor.

Do you think he is out to be a particular union buster against you or is
he content A. Let me tell you what happens to us. When we go
to Washington we have a pretty good relationship down there

Q. I just asked you is he a union buster? A. I wouldn’t necessarily
say that he was a union builder.

Rep. Randall. What you are really saying is that everybody that
ays anything about the UE being Communist dominated in any sense,

you put it off as somebody who is trying to break your particular union.
The Witness. Anyone who says anything about my union being

Communist dominated and doesn’t show me the proof, I will not believe
it because I think it is a lie. You have made the statement there about
a letter that I received from Secretary of Labor Mitchell in connection
with the hearings in the lamp industry. I want the record to show that
our union was invited to participate in those hearings, that our repre-
sentatives went to Washington, they were treated very respectfully by
the committee that was there and made an excellent contribution toward
those hearings. Our union did participate in it and were accepted as a
bona fide trade union there.

Q. Let’s see what happened up in Springfield where you say people
are against you. A letter of Bishop Gibbons of Albany, speaking on the
condition of labor in the Albany diocese. The quotation from it is;

“However, the Church is ever alert to evil influences that, by
clever propaganda treachery and deceit, influence the thinking and
decisions of some unions. The most flagrant example of this evil is
the United Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of America,
commonly called UE. Only after the most painstaking study and
mindful of the serious nature of the charge, our Most Reverend
Bishop and the priests of the Diocese of Albany declare the United
Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of America to be communist
controlled and communist dominated. It no longer functions as a
free trade union, but it is merely an adjunct of the Communist
Party. It is, therefore, an enemy of God and the Catholic Church.
In view of this fact, it becomes a matter of conscience NOT TO
SUPPORT THIS ORGANIZATION IN ANY ENDEAVOR
WHATSOEVER.”
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Now that having been issued, was the Bishop of the Diocese of Albany
a union buster, particularly to bust the UE? A. I think he was. Let
me add further to that. It is in line with the whole policy of this union
that it can’t be dominated by anyone. We think that the Bishop, and,
incidentally, he was basing his information on his knowledge of Jandreau
in Local 301 of the lUE at present. We think he was interfering with
the internal affairs of this union. We don’t think that he had investi-
gated it. We think that he took what Carey’s outfit told him as gospel
truth, and it was not so. I think the Bishop made a terrible mistake, and
I wrote him a letter telling him so.

Q. So he is out as a union buster and not to combat Communism, he
made that statement in your opinion as President of the UE, is thatright?
A. My opinion is that whenever religious organizations, political organ-
izations or governmental organizations interfere with the internal affairs
of the trade union, it can serve no other purpose than to weaken and
destroy that union.

ar idea of Albany. Let me readQ. Let’s see. Now we have got
you a news release of 1/24/55-M.:

“N. C. W. C. News Service (Di
to Attack that Priests int

nestic) Catholic Paper responds

reeked in Union Matters.
,C.W.( News Service

The Milwaukee Herald-Citizen, news-Milwaukee,Wis., Jan. 24
paper of this archdiocese, has responded with a front-page editorial
to a charge that clergymen ‘interfered’ in a union matter recently.

The charge was made by Albert J. Fitzgerald, president of the in-
dependent Farm Equipment United Electrical Worker’s Union
(FE-UE).

Speaking to a group of 65 labor leaders of the UE district council
11, Mr. Fitzgerald denounced clergymen who ‘interfered with the
internal affairs of the union.’

There was good reason to believe his attack was prompted by the
action of several priests who spoke from their pulpits in opposition
to the UE-FE in a national labor relations board bargaining agency
electionrecently.

The priests said that the Union was communist-dominated. It
was defeated in the election, held at the International Harvester’s
Company’sFarmall Works at Rock Island, 111., by the CIO United
Automobile Workers’ union.

The UE-FE was thrown out of the CIO in 1949 on the groundi
that it was communist dominated.

Mr. Fitzgerald said he was not attacking any church, but was
criticizing ‘certain clergymen who have interfered with the internal
affairs of the union.’

He denied the red domination charges, and said that if a clergy-
man attacks the UE union, ‘he’s a union buster and nothing else.’
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Mr. Fitzgerald urged that the UE members ' take the offensive
and point out to them (clergymen) that the only result of their
interference can be to split their own organization and the labor
movement.’

If the union keeps silent about the assertions, ‘we’re admitting
our guilt,’ he said, declaring that the UE is not dominated by any
political party— ‘be it communist, fascist, Democratic or Republi-
can.’

The Herald-Citizen, in its editorial signed by Father Franklyn J.
Kennedy, editorial manager, said: ‘Mr. Fitzgerald . . . knows that
it’s a priest’s job to encourage
the communist cause.

his parishioners not to aid and abet

‘As an American, he should
not interested in having their
communist party.’”

know by this time that workers are
union serve as a cat’s paw for the

ad you that, Mr. Fitzgerald, is it a
fact that Secretary of Labor Tobin, Secretary of Labor Mitchell, the
Bishop of Albany, those priests in Milwaukee, this Commission, the
House Un-American Activities Committee, the Internal Security Com-
mittee, are all your enemies, just to break and bust the UE without any
background of probable communist domination, which your union mem-
bers, when they are called upon, instead of declaring themselves, invoke
the Fifth Amendment? A. Well, I’m not going to answer in such a
loud tone as the counsel for this committee used on me. I will try to
keep my voice down and hold my temper. You read a speech that I
made in Milwaukee and it is in the record, and I am glad that you read
it because I think that was one of my better speeches since I have been
in this business. On my way to Milwaukee, I picked up a magazine. I
don’t know whether it was United States News or Business Week, and I
was reading where a priest in Schenectady, named Fr. Lamano, took
complete credit for organizing the ousting of the UE in Schenectady.
I said in that speech not to answer this sort of thing would be an admission
of guilt. What I meant was that his charges against us were not true,
that I considered it outside interference and that I thought that kind of
activity was union busting. Now you people may not be aware of it.
There is an organization in this country known as Association of Catholic
Trade Unionists. I sat here this morning and heard accusations made
that there are Communist Party meetings held prior to union meetings
to discuss how to act on certain things that are brought up at the union
meeting and how to inject their point of view. The witnesses I think on
that used the Twelfth Amendment. I haven’t the slightest doubt in the
world that members of the Communist Party get together prior to trade
union meetings to try to exert their influence on particular things that
are coming up. lam against it and I fight against them doing it. Rut
also this organization or this Association of Catholic Trade Unionists,

I have read you that. Having re
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who have members in the various unions throughout the country, they
also meet prior to membership meetings of the local unions to try to get
their point of view across to those meetings. I oppose them and I fight
them just as vigorously as I do anybody else. As for your committee,
as for the House Un-American Activities Committee, as for the Internal
Security Committee, well, all I can say is Thank God those things seem
to be on the wane in this country. I think that in the years to come
and this is not casting any aspersions on the members of the committee.
I have been treated very fairly every time I have been here, given every
opportunity to speak my piece and say what I wanted to say I think
in the years to come we will be almost as ashamed in this country of what
has gone on, with the Congressional-Legislative committees in recent
years, as we are ashamed today of the witch hunts in Salem and the
Sacco-Venzetti case and a lot of other things that have happened in this
country. I think we will always be ashamed of the kind of things that
have happened in the last six or seven years in this country. We don’t
have to do this in America to destroy Communism. I think we have got
the ability and the resources and everything else to make this the greatest
kind of a land there is to live in and once we do that no one will turn to
any kind of an ism. I think we have the kind of ability to do that and
we ought to be directing our attention in this direction rather than sitting
around on this kind of thing that can only serve to destroy the American
people.

Q. Can you account for what a strange thing it is that all these offi-
cials, these committees, these commissions, have centered their attention
on you? A. Well, I have often wondered why. I never thought we
were that important.

Q. But it must be that you had better clean your own house. A. I
think that my house is just as clean as this Commission’s house.

Q. [By the Chairman.] What have you done to find out whether it
is clean or not? A. I work 365 days a year on it. I travel from one end
of this country to the other. lam in and out of local unions. lam in
constant association with the members and the staff of this association,
and as far as I’m concerned there is no union in this country any cleaner.

Q. You spoke of the fact that you had heard the testimony this
morning relative to the matter of the Communist meeting preceding or
following or at the time of the union meeting. Have you any knowledge
of such a Communist meeting? A. I didn’t know there was testimony
to that effect this morning. I understand there was a statement to that
effect.

Q. There were questions asked about it.
Mr. Bkesnahan. It was a reading of sworn testimony before a

Congressional Committee.
Q. I asked you have you any knowledge of such a meeting? A. I

have no knowledge of it. If I had I would expose it.
Q, Is this the first time you have heard about it? A. Oh, no. I

hear that constantly.
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Q. Well, having heard it constantly, what have you done to find out
about it? A. I have checked into it and have found it not to be true.

Q. How have you checked into it? A. Talked with individuals, met
with people.

Q. Have you asked them point blank whether or not there have been
such meetings? A. In some instances when it has been raised, I have
asked them point blank.

Q. What individuals have you so asked? A. Oh, it would take in
hundreds throughout the country.

Q. How about the local people? A. I couldn’t say that I have had
any discussion with anyone here about it.

Q. You have not had any discussion? A. No. In fact, this is the
first I heard about it today.

Q. You say now this is the first time you have heard about it? A. In
this locality.

Q. In this locality? A. Yes, sir,
Q. Did you check in on the local situation as to whether or not there

was any foundation for such? A. I certainly will.
Q. You will? A. Yes, sir, I will
Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Now having been here in December of

1953, you, Mr. Fitzgerald, President of the International union, resident
of Massachusetts, tell us here on August 3rd, 1955, that following today
you will check in, your union having been expelled after you withdrew in
1949 or 1950, some six years ago. Is that the extent of your investigation
of Communist domination or infiltration in the local district of Massa-
chusetts? A. I deny your allegations of Communist domination in the
locals or in the district or in the national union.

Q. Speaking of Massachusetts, you just told the Chairman, in an-
swer to a question as a result of what you heard here today and yesterday,
you will check into it, using the future tense. I have no further questions
of this witness. A. Let me say this in answer to the statement that was
just made. Obviously we are coming to a late hour of the day. I want
to make it clear that neither the counsel of this Commission, or any
members of the Commission for that matter, pay dues to our union.
Since you do not pay dues, you are not going to run the affairs of the
union and you are not going to direct my work. I have listened here for
two days. In fact, I think that a great injustice was done. I too was
subpoenaed last Saturday night at six o’clock. The subpoena was dated
the 28th of July. I was served Saturday evening. Naturally the follow-
ing day was Sunday and I couldn’t get ahold of our counsel, because we
try not to make them work too many Sundays. Yesterday morning I
asked permission of counsel for this committee to stay in my hotel in
the Parker House, informed them I would be available on fifteen minutes’
notice, that I wanted to confer with my counsel. Counsel for this com-
mittee insisted he wanted me here. I spent all yesterday morning walk-
ing up and down the corridor. I was told in the afternoon that there was
a likelihood that I would not be called. So I didn’t have to be here
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yesterday afternoon. I spent all day here today too, and I waited until
2;30 or so before I was called. Maybe you couldn’t have arranged your
work any other way, but I do think that a person who has business to
attend to should have been given a little bit more consideration by coun-
sel of this commission. I can’t help but say that in my opinion —it is
only my opinion —we have got a repetition this year of 1953. I said in
1953 that I thought the reason this union was being investigated then was
because we had filed a petition in the Lynn plant of the General Electric
Company. It just so happens that three or four days before the sub-
poenas were issued to members of our organization staff in this district,
we had filed another petition for an election in the Lynn plant of the
General Electric Company. And I think that rather than try to ferret
out Communism in this state, that this committee, knowingly or unknow-
ingly I don’t say that you think that that is being done it is being
timedso as to influence a collective bargaining election in the Lynn plant
of General Electric.

Rep. Tynan. Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Rep. Tynan
Rep. Tynan. I have just listened to the dissertation of the gentle-

man, and I can assure him that I haven’t the slightest idea of what is
going on down in Lynn. But to get back to the problem we have here,
I’m sorry that we have inconvenienced you, but I believe you may have
inconvenienced us more than we have inconvenienced you. Getting back
to this statement that Bishop Gibbons made up in New York, did you
ever go and see what basis he had to make a statement such as that?

The Witness. Let me put it to you in answer to your question. I
think you are approaching this thing as you are approaching this whole
investigation. Don’t you think he should have come to me before he
made those accusations? He certainly didn’t do it.

Rep. Tynan. Don’t you think when he didn’t do it that in the in-
terests of your union and in the interests of other people involved that
you should have found out the basis of it?

The Witness. I sent him a letter and I didn’t even get the courtesy
of a reply.

Rep. Tynan. Why didn’t you go and see him then
The Witness. Because I felt that a person who prejudges someone,

any man who prejudges another man, I am not going knocking on his
door. I think that what he did was contrary to his priestly duties. He
certainly could have conducted an investigation of his own before he had
issued those leaflets about something he knew nothing about.
Rep. Tynan. You are the type who has to get hit on the head before

he knows there is a robber in the house.
The Witness. I’m not going to say what type I think you are
Rep. Tynan. I don’t care what you think about me.
The Witness. I don’t care what you think lam either.
Rep. Tynan. I can sit over there and not be afraid to answer

questions.
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The Chairman. Let’s stay on the subject. Have you any further
questions.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Let me read you a letter and ask you why
do you think that the UE is such a particular target if there isn’t some-
thing to it? You were in collective bargaining in Allis-Chalmers this year.
Let me read you a letter by the Rev. Francis J. McDonnell.

The Catholic Labor Guild of Boston
March 10, 1955,

To the workers of Allis Chalmers.
It has been brought to my attention that a rumor is being circulated

throughout the Allis Chalmers plant in Hyde Park to the effect that
recently when consulted by a group of workers from that plant on
the propriety of supporting either the United Electrical Workers
(UE) or the lUE-CIO, that I refused to declare myself.

Such a statement is absolutely untrue. I very definitelyand clearly
told the men who came to see i
vote for the UE because of it
dominated. I further told this
even at a great sacrifice, not tc
for in so doing they were aidinj
in our country.

re that in conscience they could not
long history of being Communist-

group that they had the obligation,
support or aid in any way the UE,

; the Communist cause and its work

with labor unions for over fourteenI have been engaged in wort
years and I do not believe in priests interfering in the internal affairs
of unions. And though consulted many', many times in that period
by union members and officers, I can truthfully say that I have
never so interfered. I am making this Statement for two reasons,
first because of the false rumor and lie mentioned above and because,
secondly, this is a matter in which I cannot remain silent. A moral
issue is involved and people are to vote on a matter that concerns
common good and that relates to conscience. As a priest I cannot
permit people to think that Ido not oppose the UE. I do. I believe
it to be Communist dominated and a threat to the good of our
country.

It is my duty in this instance to tell people where I stand lest they
think that I do not have an opinion on this matter and that they
be guided by that.

I urge the workers of Allis-Chalmers to vote for a good, strong
American union, the lUE-CIO.

record straight and establish myHoping that this will set tl
position in the matter, I am

Sincerely
igned) Francis J. McDonnell

So to the entire CIO, the former Governor of this Commonwealth and
Secretary of Labor, Maurice Tobin, to the present Secretary of Labor,
Mr. Mitchell, to every commission or committee whose duty it has been
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to investigate Communism and who has leveled the finger at your organ-
ization, including this commission, to the Bishop of Albany, and now to
Fr. McDonnell add him to whom you call your enemies and union
busters.

The Chairman. Have you any general statement to make?
The Witness. Can I answer his question?
The Chairman. Ye
The Witness. I just don’t want to get into a discussion here on

matters that might lead me into religious conflict with clergymen through-
out this state. I certainly have the greatest respect in the world for the
calling of the clergyman; But let me say this in answer to your state-
ment there. To the best of my knowledge, none of them ever worked a
day of their life in the shops, and none of them know the problems of
working people, and I don’t see how thay can see what is the answer to
these problems.

Mr. Bresnahan. I move that the witness be dismissed
The Chairman. The witness is dismissed. Do you wish to make a

statement?
The Witness. I just want to say if the Commission had not sub-

poenaed me I would have probably sent you another telegram demand-
ing the right to appear here to defend the union. I like my union. I like
its democracy.

The Chairman. We would have certainly welcomed you here whether
or not we summoned you.

The Witness. I like my union. I am proud of its democracy. I
think it is a trade union patterned along the lines of the highest degree of
Americanism. Thank you very much.

The Chairman. You are excused, sir. Do you wish to sign for your
witness fee?

The Witness. I will donate that to the Commonwealth of Massa-
chusetts.

The Organizers and International Representatives.

Communist loyalty and not American trade-unionism
was established as the test for employment as a field organ-
izer or an international representative of the UE when James
Matles became its National Director of Organization. On
the creditable evidence this Commission has received, there
is no shadow of doubt but that Mr. Matles was then an
active and prominent member of the Communist Party.
There is nothing creditable before us to indicate that his
Communist loyalties have swerved or dimmed. There have
undoubtedly been organizers appointed who have not been
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members of the Party. But their services would be short-
lived if they interfered in any way with the dictates of the
Communist superiors.

We list below the organizers and international repre-
sentatives who appeared before us and availed themselves
of the benefits of the Twelfth Article. We have received
creditable evidence that all of them had been members of
the Communist Party.

Donald Charles Bollen, 177 Essex Street, Lynn, Mass.
William T. Murdock, 115 Parker Street, Newton, Mass,
GerardSteinberg, 22 Beckert Avenue, Revere, Mass.
Donald Tormey, 31 Vestry Street, Beverly, Mass.
Boris Block, 31 Vestry Street, Beverly, Mass.
Hugh J. Harley, Jr., Westminster, Vermont.
Adrian Leßlanc, 53 Eden Glen Road, Leominster, Mass.
Anthony Rodrigues, 2 Arch Street, New Bedford, Mass.
Douglas N. Perry, 289 Bolton Street, New Bedford, Mass
Charles A. Newell, 8 Fox Hill Road, Nahant, Mass.
Mary Carlson, Park Avenue, Scituate, Mass.
Nathaniel Shelman, 79 Washington Street, Peabody, Mass

We have received creditable evidence that the following
organizers have been members of the Communist Party,
have been at different times employed as UE field organizers
actively in Massachusetts, but have not been within this
jurisdiction available for summons during the life of this
Commission:

Martin William
David Bennett.

Albert Smith
Richard Linsley
Clifford McAvoy.

This Commission has summoned, during the current
year, every organizer of the UE whom it has been able to
find within the Commonwealth. Those who are here listed
as witnesses have all availed themselves of the privilege of
the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitution, or
the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution,
and refused to answer questions concerning Communist
affiliation. Only one organizer, whose name we purposely
do not list, denied Communist Party membership. We do
not believe he was ever a member of the Party. He is a
glaring exception.



HOUSE No. 450. [Jan.44

Communism does not flourish by mass membership. It
is the purposeful determination of the Party, to place its
members in key or dominating positions. The organizer
is uniquely positioned to effect the sinister purposes of the
Party. It is the organizer who has the authority to learn,
sift and promote attitudes, thinking and problems of officers
and members at local levels. That is his job. The duties
imposed upon him in the manual containing his instructions
include the following:

“In order to intelligently carry on an organizational drive you
must know what the workers are thinking of.”

“Discuss relation of legislative and political action to problems of
workers.”

“You can contact people about the shop during lunch hours, change
of shift, starting and quitting time, on transportation vehicles. Shop
gate contacting is important. Make it your business to be around
the shop as often as you can, especially at the beginning of the shift,
so that in time you are known to the workers.”

“Always carry literature with you UE News, pamphlets, other
material which you should leave with your contact to read after you
leave.”

“Only key and active people amongst the workers will organize
the shop. Find out who they are when visiting your contacts at the
shop gates or at home. Spend time with such key workers because
once you convince them they invariably will recruit entire groups.”

“The best and most active people you recruit should be members
of organizational shop committees. The committee should be en-
larged as organization develops, with representation if at all possible
from all, or, at least, key departments.”

“The Organizational committee is the predecessor of the shop
committee, which is the heart of the union in the shop. It is abso-
lutely essential therefore that the greatest attention be paid to this
committee.”

“Designate some one from the group who is interested, to be the
literature promoter.”

“Write leaflets in a simple and easily understood language.

In view of the directed duties, it is glaringly obvious that
a disciplined disciple of a foreign power should not be
trusted with them in an American trade union. But such,
we find, are duties that are entrusted to carefullv screened

Importance of Organizers.
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members of the Communist Party in the organizational
staff of the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers
of America.

We point out another significant fact concerning field
organizers. They are not required to file Taft-Hartley
affidavits. They are paid employees of the union, by virtue
of appointment, and subject only to the approval of the
Executive Board. They are the “trouble-shooters” of the
union. It is they who are dispatched to centers of dispute.
It is they who are truly “keys”, armed with authorized
instruments to enter all union portals, and empowered to
act, report back, and then execute fiats of their superiors.
They should not be Communists.

We recount here below the organizers and the identifying
data concerning them and the testimony they gave before
this Commission. There is omitted in this report the data
of Bollen, Nathaniel Shelman and Mary Carlson,
as this information was contained in the Interim Report of
the Commission filed June 8, 1955.

Donald Tormey.

Donald Tormey has a long and fiery record as a devoted
member of the Communist Party and a zealous advocate of
Communist principles. He was born April 3, 1910, in
South Ashburnham, Mass. He married Hazel Armington,
was divorced; and he then married Theodora Block on
March 7, 1942, at Providence, Rhode Island. His first
employment with the UE was as an organizer in 1941.
With the exception of army service in 1942-43, his employ-
ment in that union has been uninterrupted.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Tormey was an active member of the Communist
Party as far back as 1943. He attended meetings of the
Communist Party in New York in 1944. In September,
1944, he was a speaker at a meeting in the New England
Mutual Hall in Boston of the Communist Political Associa-
tion at which William Z. Foster, present head of the Com-
munist Party of the United States, was the principal speaker.
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He attended conventions of the Communist Political Asso-
ciation in Boston in July, 1945, and August, 1945. He
actively recruited members into the Communist Party and
advocated that the UE employ only Communist Party
members as organizers.

At the Massachusetts State CIO Convention in Decem-
ber, 1946, Mr. Tormey stoutly debated against the resolu-
tion to amend the State CIO Constitution to bar Com-
munists from holding office. When the Constitution was
thus amended, Tormey promptly exerted influence to get
the UE locals to withdraw from the CIO. On several occa-
sions his actions were farther to the left than the immediate
Communist Party program called for, and he was disciplined
by temporary suspension from the Party.

In June, 1947, he was prominent when William Z. Foster
was again the principal speaker at a Communist sponsored
meeting at the Boston City Club. In 1948 he became an
active member of the advisory board at the Boston head-
quarters of the Communist Party. On May 1, 1948, he
made a speech urging a generous collection at the Com-
munist Party May Day celebration at the Ritz Plaza Hotel
in Boston. He was a member of the Jet Branch and also
the Metals Branch of the Party in 1949 and 1950. He
became a member of the Independent Workers Order and
the Civil Rights Congress. He was a state officer and an
enthusiastic supporter of the Progressive Party from its
founding.

As a witness before the House Committee on Un-American
Activities on October 11, 1951, Mr. Tormey availed himself
of the privileges of the Fifth Amendment and refused to
answer any questions inquiring into his Communist Party
membership and activities.

Donald Tormey has been closely associated in the Com-
munist Party in Massachusetts with Ann Burlak, Fannie
Hartman, Otis Hood, Michael Russo, Nathaniel Mills,
Robert L. Goodwin, Richard Linsley, David Rosenberg,
Donald Bollen, Emanuel Blum, Mary Carlson and Charles
Newell.

It was with the evidence of this background that Mr.
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Tormey was subpoenaed as a witness before this Commis-
sion, and we are quoting from his testimony in public hearing
on August 2, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Donald H.
Tormey.

Q. Where do you live? A. 31 Vestry Street, Beverly.
Rep. Tynan. Just a minute. Sir, do you object to having your pic-

ture taken?
The Witness. Who is going to take it?
Rep. Tynan. These photographers.
The Witness. What newspapers do they represent
Rep. Tynan. I don’t know. Either you want to let them take it

or not.
The Witness. That depends on who they are
Mr. Bresnahan. In that event, I move no pictures be taken
The Witness. Let it be noted on the record that the Commission de-

cided, not me.
Rep. Tynan. Let nothing of the sort be on the record. That is your

decision.
Mr. Rosenberg. Excuse me. May I suggest the record show the

Chairman has left the commission hearing and that present are Repre-
sentatives Tynan and Sala?

Rep. Tynan. You may show that the Chairman left in answer to a
roll call in the Senate.

Q. I think we have so far your name and address. Have you always
been a resident of Massachusetts? A. Yes.

Q. Tell us when and where you were born and where you went to
school. A. I was born April 3, 1910, in South Ashburnham.

Q. And where did you go to school? A. I went through primary
school in Gardner and high school in Gardner. I attended business school
in Boston.

Q. When did you get your last formal scholastic education? A. 1931.
Q. Following that what has been your occupation? A. For several

years I was looking for a job during the depression. I had a lot of odd
jobs and finally wound up on the WPA.

Q. How long were you on the WPA and for what period of time.
A. Five or six years, from 1935 to 1941.

Q. In 1941 what gainful occupation did you follow? A. I came to
work for the UE.

Q. Whatwas your first appointment in the UE? A. It was in Boston.
Q. In what position? A. Organizer for the union.
Q. Who appointed you? A. I don’t really know. I negotiated. I

was asked to come to work for the UE in the spring of 1941.
Q. By whom? A. One of the organizers around that time, Linsley,

I guess it was.
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Q. Richard Linsley? A. Yes. I debated the question and finally
agreed to do it and gave notice around and came to work for them later
in the period. As I recall it, I got a letter from the national office when
I gave them the date I was ready to come to work. I don’t know who
signed it, but probably the director of organization.

Q. The director of organization when you came to work was whom
A. James Matles. There has never been any other.

Q. What official position did you have? A. The title of field or-
ganizer.

Q. And how long did you continue to be field organizer? A. Oh,
must be ten years.

Q. Are you still a field organizer? A. I have a different title.
Q. If you went to work in 1941, for ten years, approximately until

1951, you were a field organizer. Now, what other title did you get
after you ceased being officially a field organizer? A. International
representative.

Q. And when approximately were you appointed an International
representative? A. I think it was 1951.

Q. By whom were you appointed? A. I suppose the one who com-
municated with me in the letter was the general director of organization.

Q. Who was it? A. Of the executive board of the union.
Q. Who was the general director? A. The director of organization,

James Matles, and has been since 1937.
Q. What are the duties of an International representative? A. To

assist in the organization of shops, to aid in securing contracts, to help
in the improvement of working conditions and wages, to assist in the
maintenance of those conditions and for their additional improvement,
and to protect the union from its enemies.

Q. Now, what were the duties of a field organizer? A. The same
thing except on a narrower basis, geographically narrower.

Q. When you were a field organizer what was your geographical
basis? A. Mostly eastern Massachusetts.

Q. As International representative what is your geographical juris-
diction? A. New England.

Q. And from the time that you
in 1941 until today you have alwayi
for a year or so in the army.

were first employed by the UE back
i been in New England? A. Except

Q. When were you in the army? A. From late 1942 to late 1943

[Senator Bowkee enters hearing room

Mr. Rosenberg. May the record show that the Chairman has re
turned.

Mr. Beesnahan. The record will so show.
The Chairman. I wish the record to show the Chairman has re-

turned after responding to a roll call in the Senate.
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Mr. Bresnahan. At your departure the record showed it was for a
roll call.

Q. Now, Mr. Tormey, when you were appointed before I ask you
that, have you ever been asked by any official of the UE at any time
whether or not you have ever been a member of the Communist Party?
A. I wouldn’t answer a question like that.

Q. I cannot quite hear your answer. A. I wouldn’t answer a ques-
tion like that.

Q. What are your reasons for not answering? A. Because my pri-
vate conversations with other union people is none of the business of this
Commission.

Q. Is that the only reason you advance? A. That is sufficient for
now, as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Bresnahan. I ask the witness be ordered to answer that ques-
tion.

The Chairman. The witness is accordingly ordered to answer the
question.

The Witness. I refuse to do it.
Mr. Bresnahan. The record notes his refusal, and based only on

that, I suggest that is basis for contempt.
The Chairman. We will consider the contempt basis and the refusal

to answer in an executive session when we finish with the hearing.
Q. Now, Mr. Tormey, have you ever been a member of the Com-

munist Party? A. Well, as to that one, I will have to refer you to my
Constitution, which, by the way, you are sworn to uphold.

Q. Let there be no doubt of that, of my being sworn to uphold it.
A. Now, in this State it is a felony to be a Communist. You have
already named threepeople as having creditable evidence, your creditable
evidence, of being Communists; and part of the reason you gave is that
they associated with me. So, Article 25 of my Constitution, which you
are sworn to uphold, says, “No subject ”

Q. I reaffirm my swearing to uphold it. A. I merely remind you
of it.

Q. I thank you for the reminder. A. You’re welcome

“No subject ought, in any case, or in any time, to be declared
;uilty of treason or felony by the Legislature.”

now delinquent in your oathYou have already done it. You are

Article 24 says

Q. Thank you, Judge Tormey.
A. “Laws made to punish Dr actions done before the existence

of such laws, and which have not been declared crimes by preceding
laws, are unjust, oppressive and inconsistent with the fundamental
principles of a free government.”
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Nevertheless, you are trying to violate it and trying to get me to abet you.
The Chairman. Are you invoking a constitutional guaranty?
The Witness. I have already invoked two, and I will now talk about

a third and all the other Articles which are spattered with the blood of
my ancestors and maybe yours.

“No subject shall be held to answer for any crimes or offence,
until the same is fully and plainly, substantially and formally, de-
scribed to him.”

You have not done it.

furnish evidence against himself.’“Or be compelled to accuse or

I will not help you in your attempt
“Every subject shall have a right to produce all proofs that may

be favorable to him; to meet the witnesses against him face to face,
and to be fully heard in his defense by himself, or his counsel, at his
election. And no subject shall be arrested, imprisoned, despoiled,
or deprived of his property, immunities, or privileges, put out of the
protection of the law”

which this General Court is sworn to uphold
“.

. . exiled or deprived of his life, liberty or estate, but by the
judgment of his peers or the law of the land. And the Legislature
shall not make any law that shall subject any person to a capital or
infamous punishment, excepting for the government of the army and
navy, without trial by jury.”

And under the protection of those three articles of my Constitution, I
refuse to answer your question.

Q. That question was, have you ever been amember of the Communist
Party? Are you now a member of the Communist Party? A. Shall I
read all these to you again?

Q. Why, Judge Tormey, you are a witness here who asserts your
right apparently as a result of personal research you have made yourself.
You are assisted by counsel, and you will be the sole arbiter of how you
answer. Ido not propose to be that arbiter. I ask you I repeat the
question. Are you now a member of the Communist Party? A. Is it
legal to be a member of the Communist Party?

Mr. Bresnahan. I ask the witness be ordered to answer the question.
The Chairman. The witness is ordered to answer the question, not

to ask our counsel questions. A. Under the provisions of Articles 25,
24 and Article 12, which I just read, I refuse to answer. And if you have
any evidence to the contrary, I suggest you take it to the proper authori-
ties.

Mr. Bresnahan. May the last part of his answer be stricken from
the record?

The Witness. Why?
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The Chairman. Because it is not pertinent to your refusal. Your
refusal is based on the constitutional guarantees allowed to you, and you
have invoked them. These other remarks have nothing to do with it.

The Witness. Ido not doubt your right to ask questions, but I cer-
tainly wonder at your right to dictate the answers.

Mr. Bresnahan. Ido not dictate your answers
The Witness. You are striking out the answer.
The Chairman. That was just a wisecrack.
The Witness. Do you think it is a wisecrack to me?
The Chairman. That last one you just made certainly was and can-

not be considered in any other category. You answer the questions and
let’s get on with the hearing.

The Witness. I answered the question.
Q. Mr. Tormey, are you familiar with Communist Party policies?

A. What are they? You describe them to me and I will tell you whether
I am familiar with them.

Q. I loathe to disappoint you, but I will not describe them.
Mr. Bresnahan. I ask he be ordered to answer the question, is he

familiar with Communist Party policies. A. I cannot answer
The Chairman. Are you familiar with Communist Party Policies?
The Witness. I cannot answer a question which is not definite.

Name the policy, and I will tell you whether I am familiar with it or not.
I am not going to go fishing all over the world to judge what is or what
is not a Communist Party policy.

Q. Were you then familiar with the fact that when Hitler broke his
pact with Stalin, that the Communist Party policy changed radically and
it demanded the opening of a Second Front? A. That is what you say
the policy was.

Q. I ask you, are you familiar with that as being the policy? A. Was
that the policy?

Q. Yes. A. lam not familiar with it
Q. Are you familiar with the Daily Worker? A. Yes, lam
Q. What? A. Yes, indeed. Among hundreds of other newspapers,

I am familiar with the Daily Worker.
Q. lam just now referring you to the Daily Worker. A. lam sure

of it.
Q. Let me refer you to a couple of articles in the Daily Worker shortly

after the time Hitler marched on Stalin. Were you one of the labor
people in Massachusetts that called immediately for the opening of a
second front to assist the Soviet Union? A. That thing is almost

Q. Were you? A. Wait a minute. That is a year and a half after
the war started, not immediately a year and a half or nearly a year
and a half.

Q. When did the war start? A. Which one
Q. Which war are you talking about? A. I am talking about

World War 11.
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Q. When did that start? A. 1939.
Q. When did the United States get into it? A. Pearl Harbor,

December 6, 1941.
Q. At that time did you issue a declaration as a labor union leader

for the opening of a second front? A. I did not.
Q. You are sure of that? A. Yes.
Q. Did you in 1942? A. Now it is quite possible that in 1942, among

hundreds of other people, that I certainly did.
Q. Wait a minute. Let’s see some of the company of other people,

A. Go ahead.
Mr. Rosenberg. May we have the year, Mr. Bresnahan
Q. On August 6, 1942, were you one of the 50 Bay State union leaden

to call for the second front? A. Unions.
Q. Unions. Let me read you from the Daily Worker. A. Go ahead

Q. “Special to the Daily Worker, August 6, 1942,Boston, Ma
Calling for the immediate opening of the western front in Europe

which would ‘pave the way to a decisive victory in 1942’ more than
50 CIO and AFL unions here directed an appeal to President Roose-
velt. The appeal read;

‘Dear Mr. President: A grave danger confronts our country
ad the United Nations in our war survival. We feel that only the

opening of a second front on the European Continent now, co-
ordinating its efforts with the still existing powerful Soviet Army

can eliminate this danger, and can prevent a war of many years
with incalculable costs. Only the immediate opening of a second
front against Hitler can pave the way to a decisive victory in 1942.’”

Were you one of the signers? A. It is quite possible. I don’t recall it
but it is possible.

Q. Let me show you your name, “Donald Tormey, organize!
UERMWA” [indicating photostat], A. That is my name.

Q. Let me call your attention to some others that signed it and ast
you whether you knew Lawrence Parrish, Local 5?

The Chairman. Did you know Lawrence Parrish? A. Are you goin
to ask me all or iust some?

Q. What I desire to ask. A. Have you any evidence that Lawrence
Parrish is illegal?

Q. Do you know Lawrence Parrish? A. If you have any evidence
that any of these people may be illegal under your law, I am going to
refuse to answer under Articles 24, 25 and 12, and do so refuse.

Q. Do you refuse to answer that question as to Lawrence Parrish
A. Read him the answer.

Q, You are not going to make anything contingent upon whether I
know or have any evidence or anything.

Mr. Bresnahan. I ask he be ordered to answer the question whether
or not he knows Lawrence Parrish.
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The Chairman. Do you know Lawrence Parrish? That is the que
tion. You are ordered to answer it

The Witness. Based on the fear and it is a very real fear that
you or the Commission may very well have what you think is creditable
evidence against who knows who, I refuse to answer your question under
Articles 24, 25 and 12 of the Commonwealth Constitution, mine.

Q. Do you know Frank Siegel? A. Oh, yes. Sure, I do.
Q. Did you know Frank Siegel in the Communist Party? A. We

haven’t yet established, have we, that I was in the Communist Party?
Mr. Bbesnahan. May the witness be ordered to answer the question

did he know Frank Siegel in the Communist Party?
The Did you know Frank Siegel in the Communist

Party? You can answer Yes or No or refuse to answer.
The Witness. For many years Mr. Siegel was very active in the

CIO in the State for many years, and so was I. Most trade unionists in
this State who were active, you can take it for granted I have known
themfor the past 20 years. When you ask, do I know this or that in the
Communist Party, and fearing you may very well have what you think
is creditable evidence against such people, I have to refer you again to
my Constitution, Article 24, Article 25 and Article 12, which I do in
relation to this question, and I refuse to answer.

Q. Do you know George Markham? A. Yes, indeed
Q. Did you know George Markham in the Communist Party? A. I

give you the same answer as the one relating to Frank Siegel. He was in
the labor movement in this State for years and prominently identified
with newspapers before he entered the labor movement.

Q. Did you know Pilchard Linsley? A. Same Answer.
Q. Did you know Richard Linsley both in the UE and the Commu-

nist Party? A. I knew Richard Linsley very well. I consider him a close
friend, but to answer you as to whether I knew him in the Communist
Party when you have what you think is creditable evidence that he is

;d on Articles 24, 25, and 12,
A. Yes, I know him.

breaking the law, I refuse to answer
Q. Do you know Martin Williar
Q. Was he an organizer of the UE in Massachusetts? A. I won’t

e union, who worked for the union or
beyond the constitutional duties.
;ther or not Martin Williams was an
setts? A. I have no yes, he was

discuss wTho was a member of atr
what their duties were for the unior

Q. Do you refuse to discuss wh
organizer for the UE in Massachu:
an organizer for the union at the time in the 1946

Q. When he was an organizer for the UE and you knew him in Massa-
chusetts, did you know him as a member of the Communist Party?
A. Here again, he was a full time trade unionist in this State and I
knew most of them. But I am not answering any questions based on
any supposed membership in the Communist Party, because I don’t
know what evidence you have that he may be illegal or what illegal
thoughts he may be holding. So, under Articles 24, 25 and 12, I refuse to
answer your question in reference to Williams.
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Q. I now call your attention to the Daily Worker of May 7, 1942,
where the headline says, “New England CIO Leaders Tell Allies.” And
the story is a special to the Daily Worker, with date line Boston, Mass.,
May G:

“May Day greetings to trade unionists in England, the Soviet
Union, China, Australia, India and the Hitler-occupied countries
of Europe were signed and dispatched by 80 New England trade
union leaders representing ten CIO organizations.

‘We pledge,’ their international message said ‘that we shall con-
stantly strive that ourselves and our unions match the valor, sacri-
fice and energies of your peoples in this great war for freedom and
brotherhood, making possible the immediate opening of a Western
Front against Hitler and the wiping of Nazi and Japanese tyranny
from the face of the earth.’

The list of signers follows.
And I show you the name of “Donald Tormey, Field Organizer, United
Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers” [indicating photostat]. Were
you a signer of such a May Day greeting? A. I don’t recall signing it.
I have no doubt I signed it and I certainly am not ashamed of signing it.

Q. Now let’s see. Do you recall that I just asked about Richard
Linsley? A. Yes.

Q. And George Markham. And I call your attention to what appears
to be here another signer, Donald S. Bollen, Shop Steward, Local 5. You
have already mentioned Donald Bollen and our reference to him in our
report. A. I didn’t.

Q. You or counsel? A. That is right.
Q. You mentioned here today Donald Bollen and the fact we had

mentioned you in a report concerning him. A. I didn’t mention his
name.

Q. Then your counsel did. Do you know Donald Bollen? A. Yes,
indeed.

Q. Did you know him in the UE? A. Of course. He worked for
the UE.

Q. Do you know him as a member of the Communist Party? A.
Here, of course and if you are trying to build the record up as much as
possible I refer you, because of my fear that you may have what you
consider creditable evidence against him for illegal acts or thought, to
Article 24.

Q. I notice another signer, Lawrence W. Parrish, Shop Steward. Now
I call your attention to what appears “United Electrical Radio and Ma-
chine Workers Local 277, New Bedford, John Bandarra. Do you know
John Bandarra? A. Very well.

Q. Is he in the room today? A. He was in it this morning.
Q. He was summonsed. Did you know him in the Communist Party?

A. Here again, John organized the local union in New7 Bedford. I know
him well.
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Q. Did you ever A. But if you have any suspicion that may
lead to what you will describe as creditable evidence against him and
fail to produce the evidence, by the way he may be illegal or think
illegal thoughts or to have done something illegal, and this may endanger
me, I refer you to my Constitution, Articles 24, 25 and 12, which I have
read.

Q. You think by my using his name, I may cast some reflection and
your knowing him might be able to clear him? A. Clear him of what?

Q. You seem to indicate such. A. I read your previous report.
Q. That is your answer, you refuse to answer that you knew him in

the Communist Party? A. She has my answer [indicating stenographer].
Q. Now, Mr. Tormey, did you take a stand on the question of Greece,

Indonesia and Syria and the position that the United States at some
time took on those international questions? A. Well, you read it to
me, and I will tell you whether I did or not.

Q. Let me read you from the Daily Worker. A. What date?
Q. March 30, 1946. Before I read it, are you a subscriber to the

Daily Worker! A. lam on dozens of other papers and periodicals. I
have been a subscriber to the Daily Worker for several years, if it is any
of the business of this Commission to question what people read.

Q. Then your answer is you are a subscriber to the Daily Worker.9
A. Believe me, in the trade union we read every paper, including the
Daily Worker, to know what is going on from all sides.

Q. Have you noticed the affinity between the Daily Worker and the
UE? A. There is no such affinity between the Daily Worker and the
UE.

Q. No affinity? A. No more than between the UE and the others.
The UE gets less publicity in the Daily Worker than many others. If
you are going to read just those dates it mentioned the UE, I suggest
you bring them all out, add it up line by line and measure it.

Q. You say there is no affinity between the Daily Worker and the
UE? A. There is none.

Q. Do you read both the UE News and the Daily Worker? A. Yes.
Q. Have you noticed the almost similarity between the UE News

and the Daily Worker:' A. There is no such thing. It sends its news
releases to all newspapers, the New York Times, the Herald Tribune, the
Hearst papers. We do it in Boston too. Some print and some don’t.
The same is true of all. The Daily Worker, maybe to fill up space because
they can’t afford any reporter, prints generally the press releases of every
union. I have noticed that.

Q. Have you noticed how sympathetic how the Daily Worker and
almost the Daily Worker alone, follows the UE A. It isn’t so. Most
newspapers will print the release the way they get it except for some met-
ropolitan newspapers that put reporters on it and they don’t.

Q. Take the cartoonists. Is the cartoonist of the UE the same car-
toonist —• of the UE News as the Daily Worker, namely, Fred Wright?
A. He works for the Federated Press, and newspapers all over the coun-
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try, including labor papers, for many years subscribed to the daily labor
press in his cartoons. When he got smeared, they stopped using his stuff,
the same as they got rid of television stars, movie actors. It may well
be the Federated Press has less clients than they used to, but to thereby
intimate the relationship between the Daily Worker and the UE is other
than what is between all other newspapers, is misrepresenting it.

Q„ We are not inquiring into the Federated Press, with which I am
not familiar. Are you now intimating they have less clients than they
used to have? A. I assume they do for the same reason many a movie
star you don’t see in the movies because the Un-American Activities
Committee got him and the employers got afraid and fired him because
they couldn’t stand up to the pressure.

Q. Do I infer then from that, that government investigation into the
press causes the decline in the clientele of the press? A. Of course, al-

America as when Hitler, Mussolini
•cached that point. There is still

though we are no ways near afraid in
and Franco started. They haven’t
some resistanence.

Q, It is a fact that the number c members of the UE has declined
greatly through the past years? A. Well, of course, I hear this from a
rival union your agents associate with all the time, and it is true that
people in governmental positions who bring the power of the government
and newspapers and other people who have no business in the trade
union movement attempt to smear leaders or active people in the trade
union movement, then people are inclined to draw away. They don’t
want to get into the fight. But because the fight is so important, it is
important that other people continue the fight. And some of us are still
doing it.

Q. Do I understand by inference from what you say that the Feder-
ated Press if that was the name they have less clientele because
there has been an inquiry of Communists? A. I merely assumed it
because they smeared Fred Wright exactly as they smeared everybody
else who refused to give up his convictions under pressure.

Q. As an International representative, is it your feeling that Com-
munism has its proper place in American labor? A. You will have to
describe Communism to me. There are too many definitions. Which
one do you describe?

Q. I will describe Communism particularly as it is in tire United
States, that the Communist Party of the United States has been declared
a subversive organization by the Massachusetts Legislature. A sub-
versive organization is an organization which has for one of its purposes
the violent overthrow of the Government. That the United States
Government has described membership in the Communist Party as a
crime when the CommunistParty memberknew that one of the purposes of
Communism was the violent overthrow of the Government. Now, that
is my description. Now, do I understand that it is your position that
members of the Communist Party of the United States are good material
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for United States labor unions? A. I do not subscribe to the overthrow
force or violence and never did. I
iribe to the overthrow of the United
snce and always was. However, the
linistrative decision that you talked
way democratic countries in Europe

of the United States Government bv
am opposed to anyone who does subs
States Government by force and viol
laws that you mentioned and the adr
about, all this is not new. This is the
lost their freedorr

Q. Well then, do I understand A. And if the administration or
its of radicals, even Communists.its leaders cannot meet the argumc

logically from a platform or in writ! nd beat them at the argument

then it is a mistake, a mistake which Hitler did and Mussolini did and
Franco did and all of them are doing by outlawing them and saying,
“lour opinion we will not listen to. We automatically say you are
outlawed.”
lam opposed to that. If there is a force in the United States that be-
lieves in force and violence, they cannot get a single foothold if the thing
is brought in the open and argued logically.

Q. Is it a policy of your Union that a member of the Communist
Party of the United States should be an officer in your union? A. No,
sir. We have affirmative policies that every member of this union re-
gardless of his age, his sex, his nationality, his religion, his politics or his
color, has the same rights as every other member no more, no less.

Q. That includes members of the Communist Party? A. Includes
members of the UE who work in the industry.

Q. Is it a policy of the UE that a Communist is a proper person to be
an officer of the UE? A. A proper person? A lot of people get elected
to office who perhaps should not be in the union and in the State govern-
ment. However, because of the new restrictive laws, the Taft-Hartley
Law, where every union officer must sign an affidavit that he is not a
member of the Communist Party, then the policing of that law is not up
to a union or the leaders to dictate. And the head of any union who
wishes to eliminate some opponent of whatever policy he may have,
merely describes him as a Communist and says he is expelled and
thereby saves his job for years. That is not confined to policy decisions
in the labor movement.

The Chairman. Sir, are there any unions who prohibit their officers
from being Communists?

The Witness. Sure.
The Chairman. When you say unions, you don’t include the UE?
The Witness. Many have put it in the Constitution recently and

many have had it for years.
Q. It is not the policy of the UE? A. There are a lot of things that

are against the law and they do not put it in the Constitution. You have
the Donlon law in this State. If you have some evidence against the
officers of our union, you bring it to trial. We are not going to start
witch hunts. And all have signed affidavits.
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Q. That is what I want to know. Is this the policy of the UE? A
Not to have witch hunts, yes, indeed, as I understand it at least.

Q. The policy of the UE is that if its officers are Communists and
that is known to its members or to members of its executive board, they
are not to inform the government but are leaving the onus on the govern-
ment to go in and find them. Is that right? A. That is an “if” ques-
tion, and the policy is not that at all. The policy is to run our union to
the best of our ability protecting the members protecting the members,
that is what it is. And within the law. They all signed the affidavits.
You have the Donlon law and the trained personnel, theoretically, who
will investigate. But to make of our union a group of informers on their
fellowmen, that is the day I quit.

Q. Is it your position or the position of the UE —A. It is my posi-
tion

Q. Your position as a field organizer. It is your position that even
when you have, if you had knowledge that one of your officers was vio-
lating the law by filing an affidavit and the same time being a member of
the Communist Party, you have no obligation to assist the government,
but leave it up to the government to do all the policing. Is that right?
A. You think you have knowledge I am a Communist. All I say is,
take your evidence to the proper place. I will not be an informer. Further-
more, I have no knowledge of any officer of the UE anywhere who signed
an affidavit that he wasn’t a Communist that he is a Communist. I want
to make it clear there are no Communists in the leadership of the UE,
either in this state or nationally.

Q. Have you been a Communist since you were an organizer in the
UE? A. Now we get back to me. You probably have evidence you
think is creditable. You will not produce the evidence. Therefore it
becomes necessary in order to maintain free government, for people like
me to refer you to Articles 24, 25 and 12 of the Constitution of this
Commonwealth.

Q. lam going to specifically ask you, have you been an officer of the
Communist Party in Massachusetts? A. When? Haven’t you got
any dates?

Q. At any time? A. Since the Donlon Law?
Q. 1951. Have you been a member since the Donlon law in 1951?

A. You can ask all the questions and
Q. Have you been? A. lam answering it. Here again, I know you

think so. I even know you have testimony so. I know that. I know
that if I were to answer that question truthfully you wouldn’t believe me.
Nevertheless, because

Q. Let’s see some of the testimony. A. I know about it
Q. What testimony do you know about? A. But to answer the

question. I know more people in the state than you do probably. Arti-
cles 24, 25 and Article 12 protect me from this kind of inquisition, and|l
refuse to answer.



HOUSE1956. No. 450. 59

Q. Let me ask you then A. Go ahead.
Q. If you know some of the testimony, you have a right to know it.

A. Produce it; get it out here; get the witnesses. Let’s cross-examine
them.

Q. When you associated in the Communist Party with the three
people whom you named as having been associated with I think it
was Donald Bollen, Mary Carlson who is the other you mentioned?
A. You wrote the report. Don’t you remember?

Q. I know a lot about you. Were you associated in the Communist
Party with WilliamFoster, the head of the CommunistParty? A. Who?

Q. William Z. Foster. A. Mr. Bresnahan, whenever you ask me if
I was in the Communist Party or associated with somebody in the Com-
munist Party, I am going to refer you to my Constitutional rights, Article
24, Article 25 and Article 12, which you are sworn to uphold, may I
remind you.

Q. Well now, let me tell you some of the things that we have received
evidence of. A. You didn’t wait for my denial. You have already
written a report that I was.

Q. That you were a member of the Communist Party of Massachu-
setts, that you were a speaker at Communist Party meetings here at
which Ann Burlak was the chairman, at which William Z. Foster, the
present head of the Communist Party was a speaker; at which Louis
Budenz was a speaker, which were attended by Herbert Philbrick; that
you attended Communist conventions in Boston, in Worcester, in New
York; that you collected funds at May Day Communist Party celebra-
tions; that you were intimately associated with leaders of the Communist
Party in Massachusetts, including Ann Burlak, Otis Hood, Fannie Hart-
man, Mike Russo, Nat Mills, Robert Goodwin, Edwin Garfield, Ann
Garfield, David Rosenburg, Manuel Blum; that you attended labor
schools in New England under the auspices of the Communist Party
and that you organized Communist meetings of members and organizer
oftheUE— A. Well

Q. Is there any sentence or any portion of the statement I have just
made that is not true? A. Mr. Bresnahan, I have seen the evidence
that you just gave before. It is continually being passed out at the
shop gates in Massachusetts by the rival union from which your agent
got it.

Q. Is there anything A. Don’t you want me to complete m
answer?

Q. My question, is anything I have just said in that statement not
true? You can answer that question. A. Certainly I can, and I will.

Q. Go ahead. What was not true in that statement? A. Wait a

minute. The statement is full of untruths, but if I were to define what the
obvious untruths, the provable untruths are, you wouldn’t do anything
about that or call the perjurer who testified. You would take the ones
I didn’t say were untrue and wiggle a web around that.
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Q. What portions were untrue? A. So here again, I will have to
refer you to my Constitution, Articles 24, 25 and 12, which you are sworn
to uphold.

The Chairman. You thus do refuse to answer the question?
The Witness. I thought I made it very plain.
The Chairman. You didn’t say you refused to answer
The Witness. I refer you all to my Articles, by which I refuse to

answer your question, giving a reason and explanation before it.
Q. Then, as I understand it, the answer to that question is that you

refuse to answer, based on your constitutional rights? A. My answer
is in there [indicating stenographer]. I will give my answers. Please
don’t you give them.

Mr. Bbesnahan. I have no further questions
The Chairman. Any further questions by members of the Commis-

sion?
anent based on the questions and an-
or in writing at this time.

You are entitled to make a stat
swers given today, either verbally

I have a few things I would like to
This union, Mr. Bresnahan. for many

The Witness. Thank you, sir,
say about the union and about me.
years

Mr. Bresnahan. I want to call your attention now to the fact that
you are allowed to make a statement about any matters about which you
have been interrogated.

The Witness. You covered alc of territory

This union, Mr. Chairman, and it;
for many years and are now under
which the union does not hold, but
principles that made the record poss

5 representatives, including me, have
attack, not for the Communism to
for the record of the union and the
ible.

There is nobody in Massachusett with a valid claim to knowledge of
labor affairs in this state who does not know' that for nearly two decades
this union led every upward wage struggle in the production plants of
Massachusetts. It ivas this union which introduced to production plants,
to workers at the bench, company paid vacations, company paid holidays,
company paid shift premiums, company paid insurance and welfare plans,
rank and file stew'ard systems operating rank and file grievance proceed-
ings. We accompanied those benefits with the militant methods neces-
sary for their maintenance and their improvement. We could not have
accomplished what w'e did

Mr. Bresnahan. Mr. Chairman, I suggest that this has
The Witness. Mr. Chairman
Mr. Bresnahan. nothing to do with what he has been asked. We

are not against unions. We are against Communism
The Witness. We will talk about that
Mr. Bresnahan. any matter of Communism in your union, wre have

discussed.
The Witness. The victories of the unions would not have been pos-

sible for us except for other unions who w'ent before us. We have noth-
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ing but gratitude to the building trades and the miners and printers and
garment workers, teamsters and longshoremen. They showed us all the
possibilities.

No part of what we did was ever easy. But neither can anybody meas-
ure the sacrifices and suffering we avoided because men across the con-
tinent from Ludlow to Lawrence chose cracked skulls and frameups
rather than give up their union.

Neither could we have done what we did unless the union was rooted
in the basic rank and file principles that every member has the same
rights as every other regardless of sex or color or age or religion or politics.

Sex there is no union bargaining committee which does not con-
tinually meet some manager insisting on his right to pay women less than
men for equal work and often better.

Mr. Bresnahax. I ask if that is what he is going to talk on, he now
be excused.

The Witness. Don’t you want me to explain about the union? I
will cross it off and get to what you want.

Mr. Beesnahan. I move he now be dismissed as having consciously
and overtly violated what he should be talking about.

The Chairman. The witness is dismissed
Mr. Beesnahan. This is not a propaganda agency for or against

unions.
The Chairman. Will you call the next witne

The Witness. Is it in the record that they don’t want to listen
The Chairman. We are not listening to that. Call the next witnes:

William F. Murdock

William F. Murdock is at present a resident of 115 Parker
Street, Newton. He was born in Calais, Maine on May 11,
1908, and he attended school in Calais, Maine. He has
been a resident of Boston since 1926 and was married in
Franklin, New Hampshire, on November 26, 1937.

Mr, Murdock’s first association with the UE was in 1942.
At that time he was an employee of the Submarine Signal
Company. Fie joined UE Local 253 and was steward and
secretary in that local and held the latter office when he
left the Submarine Signal Company in 1947. During that
time he was a member of the Executive Board of District 2.
He then joined the staff of the UE as Research Director. In
1949 he was appointed Field Organizer and was so employed
up to the date of the public hearing before this Commission,
in which he was a witness on September 14, 1955.

The Commission has received creditable evidence of a
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long history of association of Mr. Murdock with the Com-
munist Party. He became a member of the Communist
Party in 1935. When the Communist Political Association
was established in 1944 he became active in that organiza-
tion. Upon dissolution of the Communist Political Associa-
tion, he again became active in the Communist Party. In
1946 he was president of the Industrial Branch of the
Communist Party in Boston; he was a member of the
Samuel Adams Board of Trustees and taught classes at
that school: he was Chairman of the Executive Board of
the Communist Party in Boston in 1947; he has been
active in securing subscribers to the Daily Worker; he was
an active worker at meetings at which William Z. Foster
spoke several times in Boston.

Mr. Murdock has an active library of the works of Marx,
Lenin, Stalin and Communist publications. His close asso-
ciates in the Communist Party have been Fannie Hartman,
Donald Tormey, Emanuel Blum, Daniel B. Schirmer, Otis
Hood, Ann Burlak and Edwin Garfield.

We are quoting below from Mr. Murdock’s sworn testi-
mony at a public hearing before this Commission on Septem-
ber 14, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. William F,
Murdock.

Q. And you live where, Mr. Murdock? A. 115 Parker Street, New-
ton, Massachusetts.

Q. And you are here accompanied by counsel? A. Yei
Mr. Bresnahan. And will counsel state his name and address for the

recorc

Mr. Rosenberg. Allan R. Rosenberg, 10 Tremont Street. Mr
Chairman, I have a motion in writing

Mr. Chairman. Yes, sir.
Mr. Rosenberg. —to present to the Commission. I have it hand

written.
The Chairman. Will you read your motion?
Mr. Rosenberg. Yes, sir.

“Now comes William Murdock and moves the Commission to
furnish him with a copy of the charges, if any, against him.”

That is the first motion. The second:

“Produce witnesses, if any, against him so that he may have the
opportunity confront and cross-examine them by himself or counsel
at his election.”
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The third:
“To furnish him with the creditable evidence, if any, upon which

the Commission proposes to make, if it does, any findings against him
so that he may have the opportunity to rebut such evidence.”

The fourth;

“The opportunity to produce
defense, if any defense be necesi

proofs favorable to him in his own
ary

Mr. Bresnahan. Mr. Chairman
counsel before and has been denied,
be denied.

similar motion has been made by
and I would move that this motion

The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, I have conferred with my colleagues,
and our vote accordingly is to deny this motion. It has been considered
before with relation to other witnesses. So will you proceed with the
question?

Q. Mr. Murdock, will you tell us where and when you were born?
A. I was born in Calais, Maine, on May 11, 1908.

Q. Would you give us the benefit of what your education has been?
A. High school.

Q. Where did you graduate from high school? A. Calais Academy
Q. In what year? A. 1925.
Q. Did you have any formal education since you left high school?

A. I took some additional school courses. I think they call it the
Lincoln School up at the YMCA.

Q. In Boston? A. That is correct
Q. Was that shortly after you finished your high school in Calais,

Maine? A. Four or five years. Several years.
Q. When did you come to Massachusetts and take up residence here?

A. 1926 or ’27.
Q. At some time in your career you became a member of the UE,

United Electrical, Radio & Machine Workers of America, is that right
A. That is right.

Q. Would you tell us when you became a member for the first time
of the UE? A. I think it was 1942, if my recollection is correct.

Q. And where were you employed at that time? A. lam reluctant
to name any employers or give the names of any companies or individuals
because of the perhaps unpleasant notoriety that may result therefrom.
I would ask if this is material to the course of this inquiry?

Mr. Bresnahan. To answer his question as counsel, I would say that
it is material and I would ask that he be ordered to answer the question.

The Witness. You understand, Mr. Chairman, that I deal in the
course of my employment with some employers and certainly would not
inadvertently bring their names into the press if I can avoid it.

Rep. Tynan. You are so ordered to answer the question, sir.

I submit this motion in writin

his Attorney.’
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The AVitness. I was employed at that time at the Submarine Signal
Company.

Q. And where was that? A. I iston

Q. Where in Boston? A. That is a little difficult to answer. It was
in a building on Atlantic Avenue.

Q. In what capacity were you employed? A. Electrical assembler,
I believe.

Q. At that time was the Submarine Signal doing defense work or
classified work? A. AArell, would you explain what you mean by classi-
fied wort

Q. You are an organizer of the UE? A. Yes.
Q. How long have you been an organizer? A. Four or five year
Q. Are you as an organizer of the UE familiar with what is known

as classified work? A. I know that there are several terms which mean
different things to different people.

Q. Well, as a union organizer, will you tell us what is classified work?
A. I’m sorry. I’m not qualified to speak for the United States Govern-
ment in what the}' term classified.

Q. AVhat were you assembling v ren you were an electrical assembler
mean by defense work, did the

ranch of the United States Govern-
for the Submarine Signal? A. If
company do some work for some I

Is that satisfactory?ment, to the best of my knowledge y
Q. That is satisfactory. AVhat lid you assemble as an electrical

assembler for the Submarine Signal?
The AA’itxess. Mr. Chairman, I don’t want to get in any difficulties

isified work. I don’t know even atwith this question of defense or cla
g done has been declassified
what were you assembling?

this late date the work that was beir
The Chairman. The question is
The Witness. If the Chairman will permit, I was assembling electri-

cal components. I would not want to go into the product or any such
matter because I don’t know at this time whether or not I am in the
clear for making such answers.

Q. The components that you wrere ivorking on, eventually when all
assembled, what was the unit that was produced? A. That is just what
I don’t want to go into, Mr. Chairman. I have agreed, in answer to a

question, that it was a product that was used by a branch of the United
States Government

Q. I think you used the term “classified.” Were such things classified?
Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, as I remember, he did not use the

word “classified,” if my recollection is correct. He said it was defense
wr ork

Mr. Bresnahan. I thought he just referred recently to what he
termed “classified

Q. I’m going to ask you is it what you understand as classified work?
A. I say I don’t know what you mean. I would say classified would
mean that it is work which is used by the United States Government, if
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that is good enough for you. I inadvertently used that phrase. I agreed
it was work used by the United States Government. I don’t know in
what area that work is now, and I am reluctant to make a statement or
answer questions which would inadvertently give information which I
should not.

Q. At least the word “classified” is not novel to you? A. Oh, no.
As I understand it, there are some four classes of them. I wouldn’t be
prepared to define them.

Q. How long did you work for the Submarine Signal? A. Somethin]
just short of five years, I should say.

Q. That would take you up to 1947, approximately, is that right
A. About that.

Q. Now during that time did you hold some positions within the UE?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

Q. Or office? A. I was elected departmental steward by the people
in my department. I was elected secretary of the local union.

Q. Steward was the first one? A. That is correct.
Q. Approximately when was it that you were elected steward and

how long did you hold that position? A. Well, it was shortly after I
was employed there. There was a whole group of us employed at the
same time. We were all working on it more or less in the same depart-
ment, and under the rules of the local, each group was entitled to have a
representation, and I was selected by the other workers.

Q. Would you give us the number of that local? A. The local
number was 2.53.

Q. For how long did you continue as department steward, approxi-
mately? A. Oh, a year, I would say, more or less. I think maybe a
little less.

Q. 'When for the first time were you elected secretary of Local 253?
A. I think about a year after that.

Q. Approximately 1943? A. That is correct.
Q. For how long did you continue as secretary? A. I was re-elected

annually at the annual union elections, I think, for the next three or four
years. I was still secretary when I left there.

Q. Now when you left in 1947 what next occupation did you follow?
A. You didn’t allow me to continue in answering the question. As
secretary I was also a member of the union’s executive board, the local
union’s executive board, and as such, as one of the officers, I was a mem-
ber of the negotiating committee and the grievance committee. I so
represented workers in that plant for the next few years.

I have one other recollection. Sometime during the following year or
two I was also elected a delegate to the District Council of the union,
and at one of the annual elections of officers of the District Council
we have them each year I was elected a member of the District Execu-
tive Board.



HOUSE No. 450. [Jan.66

Q. Will you place approximately that time? A. Maybe ’43 or ’44.
I think October of ’43.

Q. And at that time was Paul Seymour President of District 2?
A. Yes, he was.

Q. Was he President of District 2 the entire time that you held office
either in Local 253 or on the District Executive Board or the District
Council? A. He was President of the District Council at least from the
time that I was elected a member of the Executive Board. Before that
time I’m not prepared to state of my own knowledge, or with any as-
surance.

answer to the question what offices
3U were with the Submarine Signal?
If not, I held offices. This is ten
I may be a little loose in this, but
il of the Greater Boston Industrial

Q. Now have you completed your
you have held during the entire time y
A. If it is confined to the UE, yes.
years afterwards, Mr. Chairman, and
I was a delegate to the District Coun
Union Council, CIO. I was a member of the Executive Board of that
Council, and at some period I don’t just recollect which I was a
member of the State Council of the CIO. I think that about exhausts
the list.

Whereupon Rep. Sala entered the room.]

Q. Now then, I’m going to ask you what occupation did you follow
after you left the employ of the Submarine Signal in 1947. A. I think
it was December of 1946, to get the record straight on that. I was em-
ployed by the District Council to work for them.

Q. Now who employed you for that position? A. I would say the
District Executive Board.

Q. Of which Paul Seymour was the Chairman, was he? A. lie was
President of the District Council, and as such he was Chairman.

Q. When you were employed what position or title did you hold?
A. I may say, just to make sure there is a full explanation on this, any
employee has to be referred to the District Council Executive Board for
approval. They have the say on it. It is not solely Mr. Seymour’s say.
Subsequently the employment was referred, as is the usual course of events
in the union, to all of the delegates in the District Council, and it was
approved, I think almost unanimously or unanimously, if my memory
serves me right.

Q. Who individually referred your name to the District Council for
confirmation? A. I don’t get the question.

Q. Who originally did you talk with as a result of which your name
was submitted to the District Council? A. Beats me. I don’t under-
stand the question.

Q. Let me make it specific. Did you have talks or negotiations with
Paul Seymour, the District President, as to your employment? A. I
see what you mean. There had been considerable discussion in the Dis-
trict Council, and at the Council meetings, of employing in
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that capacity in the District office. There was a considerable amount of
discussion, and, as a matter of fact, it was raised at some District Council
meeting that we should have some individual in the employ of the Coun-
cil doing the work I was employed to do. I was interested in it and I
wrote a letter to Mr. Seymour which was referred to the District Council
Executive Board, and following a discussion I was employed.

Q. Your original overt act for employment was writing a letter to
Mr. Seymour as President? A. I would say Yes.

Q. What position were you appointed to by the District Council as a
result of that? A. The official title was Research Director.

Q. What does Research Director mean? A. If you ask me what
did it mean then, it meant doing about anything around the District
office that needed to be done. As a general category, it meant collecting
wage data, data on working conditions in the various shops in the in-
dustry, financial information, helping to prepare local negotiating com-
mittees for negotiating on wages, hours and working conditions with
their employers, collecting various economic data on legislation in which
the union was interested well, work of that kind. I mean you just
can’t pin it down. We had a small staff and everybody did what needed
to be done.

Q. That was out of the same office where Paul Seymour had an office
as President, is that right? A. Oh, yes. I wasn’t in his office. I had
an office of my own.

Q. In the same suite? A. That is correct
Q. How long were you employed in that capacity? A. Up until the

fall of 1949, I believe it was.

Q. Then in the fall of 1949 did you secure some new position with the
union? A. In the fall of ’49 I was officially changed over in my classifi-
cation I no longer did that type of work with the District office to
the title of Field Organizer of the International Union.

Q. To whom did you apply for the title of Field Organizer? A. It
wasn’t a question of applying. The type of work I was doing had changed.
I was doing a lot of work of servicing the locals. It was a period during
which all of the staff were wrorking under a considerable amount of pres-
sure. W7e made some changes in our organizational structure at that time
and after a month or two it was decided that I would be employed in the

International Union, but to continuecapacity of Field Organizer for the
under the District.

Organizer comes from the Interna-
-5 under the National office; that is

Q. The appointment as Field
tional Office? A. Yes. It come
correct.

Q. Who is the Director of Organizations? Or who would be the
superior in that department? A. You mean the hierarchy. The Di-
rector of Organization of the United Electrical Workers is James J.
Matles. He works with, and, I assume, under the direction of, the
President of the International Union. Any appointments or employ-
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ment, and so forth, are cleared through the National Executive Board of
the Union.

Q. Of which Albert J. Fitzgerald was the President? A. That is
correct.

Q. And James Emspak was the Director of Organization? A. Ex-
cuse me. It is Julius Emspak.

Q. And not Matles? A. You said JamesEmspak
Q. Who is the Director of Organization? A. James J. Matles.
O. I meant Matles instead of Emspak. Now are you still engaged as

an organizer, field organizer? A. I am.
Q. For the UE? A. That is right.
Q. Has your employment been continuous in that capacity from the

fall of 1949 up until today? A. It has.
Q. And how much of the ensuing tune from ’49 to ’55 has your occu-

pation kept you in District 2as a Field Organizer? A. Practically all
of it except on occasion I might go out of the district to a conference of
the National Office or convention.

Q. And District 2 includes Massachusetts? A. It does.
Q. And what other States? A. New England States.
Q. Now, Mr. Murdock, when you first joined the UE and were em-

ployed by the Submarine Signal, were you a member of the Communist
Party?

[Witness confers 'with counsel

A. I would decline to answer that question, Mr. Chairman,
Q. WT hen you say you would decline, I think you either do or you

don't. A. Under the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitu-
tion which provides that no individual is required to give evidence against
himself, and also, as I understand it
are made against any individual he ii

it provides that if any accusations
entitled to certain protections,
munist Party today?Q. Are you a member of the Cor

[Witness confers with counsel.

A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman
Q. Plas there been an instant from the time you were in the employ

of the UE in any capacity, from member to Field Organizer, up to and
including today that you have not been a member of the Communist
Party? A. Same answer.

Q. Were you a member of the Massachusetts Council for American-
Soviet Friendship here in Massachusetts? A. Member of what?

Q. Massachusetts Council for American-Soviet Friendship
[Witness confers with counsel.]

The Witness. Mr. Chairman, if I may, is that one of those organiza-
tions that is on the so-called Attorney General’s list? I’m a littlereluctant.

The Chairman. We will ask Counsel to again give the name of the
organization and see if you remember whether or not it is an organization
which you do now belong to or have belonged to.
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The Witness. I’m a little reluctant to go into these organization
businesses. I understand there are some three hundred or four hundred
on some kind of a list that somebody dreamed up down in Washington.
I don’t know whether this organization is on it, or whether it may be on
tomorrow, or whether any organization is on it, depending on who hap-
pens to be drawing up the list.

Q. It is a simple question. A. The way you put it it is simple. But
there are angles on this thing that one has to pause and consider.

The Chairman. Why don’t you consider it and give us an answer?
The Witness. What lam trying to put across here is I don’t want to

get myself in one of these “Who, me? Yes, you” situations. I would
like to know what the purpose of this question is and whether or not it is
going to get me in a bad spot later on.

Mr. Bresnahan. Whatever it may be, I would ask that he be ordered
to answer the question.

The Chairman. You are ordered to answer the question, sir. It 1
a simple question.

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, I understand there is a pending
request of counsel. I don’t know if it has been ruled on or acted on, as
to whether or not the organization which Mr. Bresnahan has named is
on the Attorney General’s list.

Mr. Bresnahan. I don’t believe it ii
The Chairman. He has stated he does not believe it ii

The Witness. Mr. Chairman, lam just reluctant as an individual,
and also as a representative of my union, to get involved in these organ-
izations. I don’t know who is drawing up lists or what organizations in
the future may be on the list. I may remind the Chairman that there
was a time in this Commonwealth when, for instance, such an organiza-
tion as perhaps the Holy Name Society might have been considered by
some people to have been subversive. And I will remind the Chairman
a hundred years ago in this

Rep. Tynan. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. We are well aware of all that
Mr. Bresnahan. I ask that he be ordered to answer the question
The Witness. In making this explanation, I want to point out one

of the reasons why I am reluctant to go into this.
The Chairman. Will you please give an answer?
The Witness. Same answer.
Q. The same answer as what? A. I decline to answer, on the grounds

of the Twelfth Article of the Constitution of Massachusetts.
Q. Well now, did you attend District conventions of the Communist

Party here in Boston in the year 1945?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Did you say Communist Party?
Q. Of the Communist Party. Specifically at the New England

Mutual Life Insurance Building? A. Same answer.
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Q. Were you on the District committee of the Communist Party at
the time the conventions were held? A. Same answer.

Q. Following the conventions A. Just a minute, Mr. Chairman.
[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman
Q. Were you in the late forties President of the Industrial Branch of

the CommunistParty here in Massachusetts?
[Witness confers with counsel

A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman
Q. Did you ever do any teaching? A. You mean as a regular

teacher?
Q. Yes. A. No, I never did any teaching in that respect
Q. Did you have any connection with the Samuel Adams School here

in Boston? A. As a teacher?
Q. Yes, as a teacher

[Witness confers with counsel
A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman

Q. That is, did you teach classes at the Samuel Adams School here in
Boston? A. Same answer.

Q. As late as 1952 were you a member of the Daily Worker Press
Club? A. The what?

Q. Daily Worker Press Club
[Witness confers with counsel

A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman
Q. Are you still a member of the Daily Worker Press Club?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Same answer, Mr. Chairman.
Q. Were you at one time chairman of the Executive Board of the

Communist Party of Boston? A. Same answer. Let me read you
some testimony that was given by Jack Davis before the Committee on
Un-American Activities of the House of Representatives on April 9,
1954, at a hearing.

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, I object to the introduction of the
testimony by a person not present for cross-examination, who was not
subject to cross-examination when testimony was given, with no oppor-
tunity for us to test the veracity of the witness, bias, prejudice, mental
balance or other interest of the witness whom Mr. Bresnahan proposes to
recount the testimon}' of. That is strictly hearsay testimony, and I
renew the motion, if such hearsay testimony not subject to cross-ex-
amination is now to be presented the witness himself be produced so that
we may have an opportunity to cross-examine.

Mr. Bresnahan. I move that that be denied, Mr. Chairman.
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The Chairman. Mr. Cashman,
Mr. Cashman. May I ask of counsel whether or not there is any

testimony contained in that record by the witness that is here present
this morning?

Mr. Bresnahan. By this witness?
Mr. Cashman. Yes.
Mr. Bresnahan. No. He is mentioned in it, and I’m going to ask

him to comment about it under oath.
Mr. Cashman. Well, I think that if you put the question as to

whether or not he knows that some one said something, I think then it is
admissible and he may answer any way he sees fit.

Mr. Bresnahan. I will follow your suggestion.

Q. Let me read to you testimony given by Jack Davis given on April 9,
1954, before the Committee on Un-American Activities of the House of
Representatives. This is a question by Mr. Tavenner, counsel for the
Committee.

“Mr. Tavenner. Let us now move over to District 2. Will you
tell the Committee, please, whether the meetings that were held
were of the same general character there as in District 3?

Mr. Davis. Yes. It was pretty much the same arrangement.
When District Council No. 2 held the conventions the staff meeting
was held and sometimes it was generally during a week-end
the UE staff Communist Party meeting was called and a party func-
tionary was generally present at the meeting, and the Communist
Party affairs as they applied to the UE were discussed.

Mr. Tavenner. How many such meetings did you attend of
District 2 as nearly as you can tell?

Mr. Davis. I would say that as far as I could recollect that I
attended at least six of these meetings, six of these UE staff meetings
of Communist Party meetings.

Mr. Tavenner. Will you give the names of all the members of
the official family of the UE who have attended Communist Party
meetings that you have referred to as staff members of District 2,
and I want you to include not only the names of those working in
Springfield but all other officials who attended those meetings.

Mr. Davis. Jack Simon, who at the time I was working in Dis-
trict 2 was an International Representative of UE. He was also the
same man who attended meetings in District No. 3. Nicholas
Tomasetti. He at one time was a member of the Connecticut Legis-
lature. Albert L. Smith, International Representative; C. Herbert
Salter, International Representative; Donald Tormey; a man by the
name of Red Block. I never knew his actual name, but he was known
to be the brother-in-law of Donald Tormey, UE organizer. Joseph
Marino; Leon Massa, Business Agent of the UE local in Holyoke of
the Worthington Machine Company plant; William Murdock, who
was a UE organizer and a research director for District 2 of UE.”
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I have read that to you, and I ask you, at council meetings or at con-
vention meetings for District 2, was it a practice during the week-ends
for such meetings of the UE staff Communist Party to meet and discuss
CommunistParty affairs as they applied to the UE? A. Mr. Chairman,
that is a long and fairly involved question.

Q. I will repeat it if you have any trouble. A. I think that Mr.
Davis is there speaking for himself. If he refers to the fact that we
had UE conventions in his district, it is indicative of the accuracy of the
rest of his quotations. He is completely wrong.

Q. You can cure the inaccuracies and you can speak for yourself.
I ask you was it a practice in District 2, when District 2 conventions
were being held, for the Communist Party members of the UE staff to
get together during the time of the convention and discuss Communist
Party affairs as they applied to the UE, and specifically as they applied
to the UE at that convention? Was that a practice? And you don’t have
to rely on Mr. Davis. You can speak for yourself.

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Well, Mr. Chairman, the question, it seems to me, assumes that
there were such meetings held, and it is on the unsupported testimony of
whatever his name is.

Q. We seek your testimony. A. I’m extremely reluctant to get into
these “Who? Me? Yes, you” questions. I would say for the record,
if Mr. Davis attended such meetings, he is speaking for himself and him-
self alone.

Q. But we want you to speak for yourself and yourself alone. A. My
answer to that is going to be if by that you seek to show that this union
or any of its locals was then or has ever been dominated by the Com-
munist Party, or, parenthetically, any other group, it is not true.

Q. Now do you say then that there were no such meetings held as I
have described? A. That is one of those trick questions.

Q. No, it isn’t a trick question. I resent that. That is a perfectly
plain question.

Mr. Bresnahan. I think he has opened it up, and I think he should
be ordered to answer that question.

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Mr. Chairman, my answer to that question of Mr. Bresnahan’s has
been that I consider it, by and large, on the strength of one reading of
the testimony that Mr. Bresnahan has given, that Mr. Davis is an un-
mitigated liar, that I am not going to put myself in the position of getting
again into that area of “Who? Me? Yes, you” with some of these trained
seals that the Un-American Activities Committee has had in front of
them; and I am going to decline to answer on specific questions like
that on the grounds of the Twelfth Amendment.

Q. Did you ever attend during the time of UE District 2 convention
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meetings of UE staff members of the Communist Party, at which Com-
munist Party affairs as they applied to the UE were discussed? And I’m
going to ask that he be ordered to answer that either Yes or No, or he
has the constitutional right to avail himself of his privileges. But with-
out any speeches.

The Chairman. Did you attend such meetin
The Witness. You are asking the questions; lam answering their

Don’t tell me how to answer them, please.
The Chairman. You may answer Yes or No or refuse to answer

There are three ways.

The Witness. I know. I heard the man. I’m certainly not going to
put myself in the position of answering these questions that he dreams up.

The Chairman. He is not dreaming up anything. All you have tc
Jo is give an answer. Did you attend the meeting?

The Witness. What meeting'

Q. Any meetings that I asked you about. A. I will again repeat
that in regard to that general tenor of Mr. Davis’ testimony and the
import of it, as I gathered from having it read, that he is an unmitigated
liar. Furthermore, as a result of his testimony, two workers in a shop
out in Springfield got fired.

Q. Do you say that he lied? Do you say here under oath that Mr.
Davis lied if he said such a thing as what I now read to you in answer to
this question:

“Let us now move over to District 2. Will you tell the Committee
whether the meetings that were held were of the same general char-
acter there as in District 3?

Mr. Davis. Yes. It was pretty much the same arrangement.
When District Council No. 2 held the conventions, the staff meeting
was held and sometimes it was generally during a week-end
the UE staff Communist Party meeting was called and a party func-
tionary was generally present at the meeting, and the Communist
Party affairs as they applied to the UE were discussed.”

Do you say he lied? A. I say that Davis is a liar.
Q. Do you say he lied when he made that specific answer? A. I say

that he was a liar when he made that specific answer, and I believe him
to be a liar right straight through. Furthermore, I believe him to be a
Judas that turned in those guys on the Worthington local.

Q. Do you know Albert L. Smith, International Representative?
[Witness confers with counsel

A. Pardon me for the interruption, Mr. Chairman, but it was a provoca
tive question.

Mr. Cashman. It was a provocative answer too.
The Witness. I’m sorry if I appear to be provoked, but you under-

stand this is a little new field for me.
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Mr. Chairman, in answer to the question whether I knew an Albert I
Smith, International Representative, I can say I knew an Albert L. Smith
who was an International Representative. I’m not prepared to answer
any further questions about individuals or anything of that nature. I’m a
little bit, as I said before, reluctant to subject any one, whether they were
colleagues of mine or personal friends or people with whom I deal, to the
notoriety that might result from that.

The Chairman. The answer to that question is Yes, then
The Witness. Yes, I did know an Albert L. Smith
Q. Did you ever attend any Communist Party meetings at which

Albert L. Smith was present as a member? A. I think I have adequately
covered my reasons in the record previously, Mr. Chairman, for declining
to answer such a question.

Q. Is Donald Tormey, aUE organizer in the same office, working out
of the same office that you do? A. No. Let me clear it up. He didn’t
work out of the same office as I do. He is not a field organizer. He is
International Representative. Ido know him, and he has been a friend
of mine for some years.

Q. Have you ever attended Communist Party meetings with Donald
Tormey? A. Well, I think I have adequately covered my reasons in
the record, Mr. Chairman, for declining to answer such a question.

Q. Did you write that leaflet? [lndicating.] A. Yes.
Q. You wrote that? A. Yes.
Q. Did you speak to Father McDonnell? A. No, I did not.
Rep. Tynan. Mr. Counsel, will you identify the leaflet?
The Chairman. In order that the Commission may know what you

have there, will you identify what the pamphlet is?
Mr. Bresnahan. Yes. I will read it

“UE organizers read this before you vote. Statement of Joe
Geraneo.”

And for the purposes of the record, this was issued during the time of an
election campaign at Allis-Chalmers, right? A. Well, I would prefer
not to have the name of the company appear in the record, Mr. Chair-
man. I can admit that it was in the course of an election campaign.

Q. At Allis-Chalmers. A. Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. I have asked the counsel to identify the document.
The Witness. My recollection is the name of the company does not

appear on the leaflet, and I don’t see how it would serve the purposes of
this Commission to have it appear on the record. According to my
original objection on companies here, I don’t see the reason for bringing
in the name of that company or any other company.

The Chairman. You just admitted a leaflet that he is about to
read. Now the Commission wants to hear it.

The Witness. I don’t see that it is material.
Rep. Tynan. Mr. Chairman, it isn’t important what the witness

conceives to be material.
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The Chairman. It is for the Commission to decide what is material
and not for you to judge.

Mr. Bhesnahan [reading]

“UE ORGANIZER READ THIS — BEFORE YOU VOTE
■ STATEMENT OF JOE GERANEO. You saw the lUE leaflet

this morning. To drag a priest into a union election to split the
workers on religious grounds is the lowest trick of all.

lUE GOT THIS STATEMENT BY LYING TO THIS PRIEST.
Last night Father McDonnell admitted that lUE had been to him
with a story that UE was misquoting him.

THIS WAS A DELIBERATE lUE LIE. BOTH FATHER
McDONNELL AND UE WERE FRAMED. Here are the facts.
Several days ago we heard rumors that lUE had been using Father
McDonnell’s name to win votes. An appointment was made for
Monday, March 7. I and others went to see him.

Father McDonnell said it was his own personal opinion, based on
what he had been told, that UE had some Communist officers and
had followed the Communist line on occasion. FATHER MADE
IT PLAIN THAT HE WAS ONLY SPEAKING FOR HIMSELF.
HE WAS NOT SPEAKING FOR THE CHURCH. HE SAID
IT WAS CHURCH POLICY NOT TO INTERFERE IN UNION
AFFAIRS.

FATHER McDONNELL ADMITTED HE HAD NEVER
CHECKED WITH ANY UE OFFICER, NEVER ATTENDED
A UE MEETING, AND NEVER GOT THE UE SIDE OF THE
STORY.

HE HAD NO PROOF THAT UE FOLLOWED THE COM-
MUNIST LINE. HE EVEN STATED THAT OFFICIAL
CHURCH POLICY HAD AGREED WITH UE POLICY
SPECIFICALLY IN OPPOSITION TO THE McCARRAN ACT.
FATHER McDONNELL STATED THERE WAS DOUBT IN
HIS MIND THAT UE DOES A VERY GOOD JOB FOR ITS
MEMBERS.

WE CAME CONVINCED THAT UE WAS THE UNION TO
VOTE FOR.

We agree with Father McDonnell: religion should not be mixed
with unionaffairs.

To bring religion into a union election is dirty business. It will
split workers on religious grounds. lam sorry lUE has done so.

lUE does it in a desperate, last-minute attempt to win votes. It
harms the union, harms the workers, and harms the church.

No right-thinking person will support them.
I call on every A-C worker to repudiate this foul deed by voting

UE Local 239.
VOTE UE FOR A DECENT UNION

Joseph Geraneo,

President.
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I would like to read into the record this letter by Rev. Francis J. Me
Donnell:

The Catholic Labor Guild of Boston
March 10, 1955.

To the workers of Allis-Chalmers.
It has been brought to my attention that a rumor is being circulated

throughout the Allis-Chalmers plant in Hyde Park to the effect that
recently when consulted by a group of workers from that plant on the
propriety of supporting either the United Electrical Workers Union
[UE] or the lUE-CIO, that I refused to declare myself.

Such a statement is absolutely untrue. I very definitely and clearly
told the men who came to see me that in conscience they could not vote
for the UE because of its long history of being Communist-dominated.
I further told this group that they had the obligation, even at great
sacrifice, not to support or aid in any way the UE, for in so doing they
were aiding the Communist cause and its work in our country.”
I read that much of the statement of Father McDonnell. I would be
very glad to read it all if you think it should be read.

The Chairman. Does that statement follow the other statement that
you read?

Mr. Beesnahan. Yes. This is dated March 10th
The Witness. What
Q. That is dated March 7th. A. Where is the date
Q. This came out the next day. When did it come out? A. Have

you got a calendar? I think it was March 10. This was not written the
next dav.

Q. Are they both issued on March 10th? A. If you want to defer
the exact dates.

Q. I would like to know what date the two pamphlets were passed
out at Allis-Chalmers. A. At the gates.

Q. When were they originally circulated? A. It isn’t quite so easy
as that.

Q. You go ahead. A. That is the leaflet that was put out by lUE
and which did contain a statement by Fr. McDonnell. Listening to you
read it, it is probably the same one.

Q. This is a letter of Fr. McDonnell. A. That was put out as a
leaflet by lUE-CIO at the plant gates of that company as the second
shift was going into the plant approximately the second shift starts at
ten minutes of four. They probably started it around 3.30.

Q. When was the UE pamphlet? A. This was put out about ten
minutes later, as soon as we learned that they were publicly putting that
thing out.

Q. Where was that mimeographed? A. I wrote it. I mimeographed
it.

Q. Where did you mimeograph it? A. Well, before we get into that,
what is the purpose of this particular inquiry? Is there anything wrong
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with this statement? Is there anything wrong with any statements made
in that leaflet? Isn’t that a good, sound position that no church or any-
body else should interfere in union elections?

Q. Where did you mimeograph that is the question? A. As a matter
of fact, I mimeographed it in my own house. If that is a question which
might lead to any speculation in anyone’s mind, I will tell you it is be-
cause I live but a short distance from the plant. It takes only fifteen
minutes to get there, and rather than work out of the intown office, I
worked out of there during the election. I don’t see that it is material.

Mr. Brbsnahan. I have no further questions to ask this witness.
The Witness. Just a minute, Mr. Chairman. This counsel brings

this leaflet or these two leaflets into this thing. I don’t know for what
purpose. It sort of leaves things at a dead end.

Q. If you -want to make a statement at the conclusion you may do
so. A. Let’s get into this leaflet business. I just want to explain it a
little bit.

Q. Go ahead. A. It was our understanding, we heard, that there
was talk among the lUE staff guys they were bringing some kind of a
statement, some kind of a statement of this Fr. McDonnell, as I recall,
into the election. My union and I personally are absolutely opposed to
bringing any questions of religious disputes or having interference by any
church or representative of such church in union elections for the reasons
we stated in that leaflet. It certainly is no place for them to be —-I
hesitate to use the word meddling, but that is exactly what it is. It
arouses and gives opportunity for religious bigots of whatever denomina-
tion to use it. And I certainly don’t think that what I said in that leaflet

and I assume full responsibility for it because I was in charge of that
campaign every word in that was told to me by the people involved
and every word in it was true. We heard that that kind of a thing was
going to be used and I personally would be the last one to bring such an
issue into a union election. One of the brothers talked to Fr. McDonnell
on the phone at eleven o’clock that night and was told that he had heard
that the lUE had come to him with stories that we were saying things
about him around the plant which were not true, and he confirmed that
he had given them this statement to use. At that time I sat down, on
the basis of the information furnished to me by the individuals that
talked to Fr. McDonnell, on the basis of the telephone conversation, and
wrote that leaflet. We did not issue that leaflet until the lUE came out
later that afternoon with it for the second shift. I would be the last one
in the world to introduce that kind of a subject into a union election. I
think it is indicative of the practices of the lUI

The Chairman. Did you yourself talk with the Reverend Father
McDonnell?

The Witness. I did not. Everything in there was told to me by
individuals who had talked to Father McDonnell. I had no reason to
doubt what they said. I think it is very bad business, if I may be per-
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mitted to say so, for counsel to introduce this type of thing, at a Commis-
sion hearing at this time and get us into that whole area of religious
bigotry that was in this country for many years and the last vestiges
have not been stamped out.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What do you think of our looking into
Communism in your union? Is that also bad business? A. Would you
like my opinion?

Q. Yes, I would like your opinion of that. Your opinion as an UE
organizer of the authority and the right of the Commonwealth of Massa-
chusetts to appoint a commission to investigate Communism. A. You
are getting ahead of me.

[Witness confers with counsel
The Witness. Understand, Mr. Chairman, he started that business

of “officially as an UE organizer.” I’m here as a citizen, and if the Great
and General Court in its wisdom, or lack of it, decides to set up such a
commission, I am not going to dispute their right to do it, although it has
been disputed, and I understand some eminent attorneys have questioned
the procedures and practices before this Commission.

Now, personally as a citizen and as a taxpayer, I think, if I may be
permitted, and with all due deference and respect to the august members
of this assembly, the time of the Commission and the money of the tax-
payers has been wasted.

The Chairman. That is your opinion.
Mr. Cashman. I am neither a member of the Senate nor of the

House, go anything you have said is in no way offensive to me.
The Witness. Are your disassociating yourself from members of

the House and Senate?
Mr. Cashman. By all means not.
The Witness. In view of what was reported in the papers yesterday

of something that was reported as being the last bastion of organized
crime.

The Chairman. Have the members of the Commission any other
questions of this witness?

Mr. Cashman. Yes.
The Witness. Will the gentlemen identifj'’ himself?
Mr. Cashman. lam George Cashman.
The Witness. How did you get on the Commission, if I may ask

when you say you are not a member of the Senate or House?
Mr. Cashman. lam a member of the Commission appointed by the

Governor.
Q. [By Mr. Cashman.] The document that is entitled “UE Organ-

izer” with the admonition, “Read this before you vote,” says thereon
“Father McDonnell stated there was no doubt in his mind that UE does
a very good job for its members.” Now you indicated that you have
never talked to Father McDonnell about his opinion with reference to
the UE? A. That is correct.
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Q. And that someone had told you that this is what he said. Now
the statement issued under date of March 10, 1955, over the signature
of the Rev. Francis J. McDonnell says, “I urge the workers of Allis-
Chalmers to vote for a good, strong American union, the lUE-CIO.”a good, strong American union, the lUE-CIO
And it also indicates with referenci
statement is absolutely untrue. “I
men who came to see me that in cc

to the first statement that such a
very definitely and clearly told the
iscience they could not vote for the
fing Communist dominated.” Now
a other, are they not, very noticeably

UE because of its long history of t
these statements are at odds with eac
and markedly? A. Not necessarily

Q. Was it possible that Father
fact that he was speaking for hin
A. Before we get into this any fu:

McDonnell and I appreciate the
self, according to his statement

rer, Mr. Cashman, I just want to
reiterate what I said previously, that I object as an individual and as a
UE organizer to this land of a thing being introduced publicly before
this Commission. I objected to the introduction of religion being brought
into that hearing and I think we ought to leave it at that. If you want
to go into the whys and wherefores, I would be very glad to do it.

Q. I’m not concerned with anything with reference to religion as it
pertains to these two documents. All I’m concerned with is the fact that
they are at odds with each other or may be. I’m not concerned with
who said it. I’m merely concerned with the fact that in one document
you attribute one thing to Father McDonnell and in a document over
his own signature there is something else that is indicated. A. I cannot
speak for Father McDonnell. I personally believe, as I said in that
leaflet, with all due deference to the position he holds, that he was taken
in by these birds, and while he may have made any statement, I believe
very likely, in view of my experience in this type of campaign with these
individuals, either that he was assisted, perhaps words put into his mouth
by them. But Ido know, and have no reason to doubt, because I was
told by individuals who had gone to see him whose word and opinion I
respect, that he had made the statement in regard to the UE doing a good
job for its members; and on behalf of the organization I certainly will
subscribe to that statement because that has been our intention, to do a
good job for our members economically, and I believe we have done it
with outstanding success.

Q. Let me ask you whether or not it isn’t a fact that the UE for some
considerable period of time has been indicated as being Communist dom-
inated? A. Oh, there have been such charges.

Q. Over a period of years? A. That is correct.
Q. Would you say that all of the individuals who have made these

charges in public particularly were irresponsible individuals? A. That
covers a lot of territory. I think that most of them did it for their own
reasons, whatever they may be. And I believe in many instances they
succeeded in taking a lot of innocent people with this type of propa-
ganda. I believe there have been charges made against this union and
other unions and other individuals and I will recall to you the last cam-
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paign when there was a gentleman going up and down this land saying
that the Democratic Party was the party of treason.

Q. I don’t want to embarrass the Democratic members of the Com-
mission. So we won’t go into that. If you want it for the record, I will
say that any individual who marched up and down the country and
attributed twenty years of treason to the Democratic Party is an irrespon-
sible and over enthusiastic individual, and I am a Republican. A. I
applaud you for that statement.

Q. You don’t have to applaud me. I have given you exactly what I
think. A. I think that type of statement by any individual shows the
low state of political morals today.

Q. Isn’t there a story there are three kinds of liars liars, damn
liars, and politicians? A. Being a research man, I heard liars, damn liars
and statisticians.

Q. Now over a period of years the charge that the UE was Communist
dominated has been made over and over again? A. Sure. It is abso-
lutely incorrect. Anybody that knows anything about our union should
know.

Q. Just let me ask the question, will you, please? Now are you at-
tempting to say to this Commission that the charges of Communist dom-
ination within the ranks of the UE is a plant by the lUE-CIO? A.
Plant?

Q. Yes. A. No, I wouldn’t say that
Q. Now the lUE-CIO on several occasions has leveled the charge of

Communist domination against the UE, has it not? A. Yes.
Q. And some years ago the UE was suspended and thrown out be-

cause of the alleged Communist domination within its ranks? A. That
is incorrect.

Q. You withdrew? You broke away yourselves? A. Are you talk-
ing about our severance of relations with the Congress of Industrial
Organizations?

Q. That is right. A. That is absolutely incorrect. We withdrew
Q. You withdrew? A. We withdrew by instruction of the delegates

to our convention in the year 1949, ■who instructed us, as I recall it
I’m going from memory now, Mr. Chairman that unless the CIO offi-
cers, executive board and associated unions ceased their raiding activities
on some of our locals and stopped using the per capita money that we
were paying to them, that we would withdraw from their outfit. I might
say that one of the reasons we were having difficulty with the executive
board and some of the others in the CIO was the fact that we took what
I consider a sound American position of refusing to permit our organiza-
tion to be used by any political party. We took the position that our
members have the right to make up their own minds who they will vote
for. That was union, state and national officers.

That gave rise to a considerable amount of friction within the organ-
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ization. We withdrew from that organization, Mr. Chairman, and
subsequently at their convention later on they said, “Well, we are kick-
ing them out because they are Communist dominated.” That is like the
guy who quit, and the foreman says, “You can’t quit. You’re fired.”

Q. It took place more or less at the same time? The UE was going
to be fired? A. I can’t subscribe to that statement.

Q. There was some talk about firing the UE out? A. None that I
know of at that time.

Q. You mean the Congress of Industrial Organizations was not con-
sidering, according to your knowledge, ousting the UE? A. I don’t
know what they were considering. But if my memory serves me right,
I don’t think there was at least any talk about us being kicked out at
that time. There may have been, but it is a long time ago. I know the
facts about whether we withdrew or were kicked out.

Mr. Brbsnahan. I believe the facts are they withdrew and the CIO
formally expelled them following.

Mr. Cashmav. I have no further questions
The Chairman. Are there any further questions on the part of the

members of the Commission? If not, I will inform the witness, as he
undoubtedly knows, he may make a statement either orally or in writing
for the purposes of the record, bearing solely on the questions asked of
him and the answers given. If you wish to make such a statement, you
may do so at this time.

The Witness. Well, to try to make it brief, Mr. Chairman, to sum-
marize it, this union and the entire organization and its operations have
never been dominated by any group. There have been plenty of them
who sought to influence and dominate our groups. I won’t go into who

as I knowr, and I have attended these
reetings, for some years, the members
ones who dominate it. They set the

or what at this time. But as far
conventions, conferences, council r
of this organization are the only
policies. Any inference or attemp to ascribe any other things than the
fact that we operate a union on sound democratic trade union principles
is untrue. We have, I think, by following the policies of listening to our
rank and file members, been operating in a most democratic fashion,
and I invite you or any members of this Commission to come down and
liscuss it on that field and see how wr e operate. Any implication tha

we do other than that is absolutely incorrect
Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] I would like to ask you again then, if that

is so, if you invite us to come down and find out I refer back to the
former question. At UE conventions of District 2 here in Massachusett
during the convention do members of the Communist Party of which
you are one, and being in the official family of the UE, hold meetings and
discuss Communist affairs as they apply to the UP

Mr. Rosenberg. I object to that question.
The Chairman. Will you reframe the question, Mr. Counsel
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Mr, Bresnahan. I think the question is simple.
The Witness. That is one of those three paragraph McCarthy ques-

tions.
The Chairman. You said “of which you are one.” Of the union

r the Communist Party? That was a little ambiguous.
Q. Let me ask you, since you are willing to discuss it. Let us discuss

it while you are up here. Tell us, is it a custom at UE conventions, at
District 2 here in Massachusetts, to have Communist Party members of
the official UE family meet and di;
to the UE? A. That is the kind

iuss Communist affairs as they apply
>f a question that implies that I have

knowledge of who the Communists are and where there are meetings held.
Q. Yes. A. I think we adequately covered that in my previous

testimony.

The Chairman. He said, is it a custom to hold such meetings? Now
is it or isn’t it

[Witness confers with counse
The Witness. Well, I don’t know how to answer that. He still is

trying to hook me on this type of question.
Q. I’m still trying to find information, and you have invited us down

to discuss it. Right here now I would be glad to discuss it. A. I didn’t
invite you down. I invited the members of this Commission down.

The Chairman. I will ask you now have you ever attended a Com-
munist meeting held at the time of any of your union meetings, whether
they are committee meetings or regional meetings, or any other meetings
of the union?

Witness confers with counsel.]

The Witness, I think I can only repeat, Mr. Chairman, at this time
that I think we adequately covered that during the course of my testimony.

The Chairman. Do you have knowledge of any such meeting?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

The Witness. I think I covered that. I don’t want to get into it.
Rep. Randall. I just got here. I would like to know the answer to

that.
The Chairman. Are you declining to answer in relying on a consti-

tutional guarantee?
The Witness. Yes. The same reasons that I gave earlier in my

testimony.
The Chairman. The member who came in hasn’t heard the earlier

part of your testimony. If you simply say
Mr. Bresnahan. He declines.
The Chairman. You decline because of a constitutional guarantee?
The Witness. You can read the statement I made on the part of

Davis there where I started out by saying he was a liar.
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Mr. Bresnahan. I think he has concluded his statement and I move
the witness be dismissed.

The Chairman. You are excused, and if you wish to sign a blank you
may secure a witness fee which will be sent to you.

Boris H. Block.
Boris Block was born in Boston on October 4, 1924,

attended the Boston schools and also the National Youth
Administration Trade School in Passamaquoddy, Maine,
in 1940. He was employed at the Hingham, Massachusetts,
shipyards of Bethlehem Steel in 1941, and in 1943 entered
the U. S. Army. He was honorably discharged in 1946.
He became employed as a field organizer in 1946 for the
UE until July 1947. He married Mildred Phillips at Wil-
liamstown, New York, on April 3, 1948. He worked in
machine shops in various cities, was a member and officer
of several UE locals, and again became a field organizer
for the UE in 1950. His sister married Donald Tormey in
1943. He is familiarly known as “Red” Block.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Boris Block was a member of the Communist Party when
he was a resident of Buffalo, New York, in 1947. He con-
tinued his membership when he moved to Pennsylvania
and back to Massachusetts. He became treasurer of Local
124 when he was a resident of Lancaster, Pennsylvania, in
1949, and his wife was an international organizer. They
were both members of the Communist Party.

We are quoting below from his sworn testimony in public
hearing on August 2, 1955, as follows:

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Boris H. Bloci
Q. Where do you live, Mr. Block? A. 31 Vestry Street, Beverly,

Mass.
Q. Are you related to the last witness, Mr. Tormey? A. Yes, I am.
Q. What relation are you? A. He is my brother-in-law.
Q. Did you marry his sister? A. He is married to my sister.
Q. And where were you born and brought up? A. Born and brought

up in the city of Boston.
Q. When were you born? A. October 4, 1924.
Q. What has been your education? A. Well, grade school, junior

high school, trade school.
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Q. What trade school? A. I attended the National Youth Adminis-
tration Trade School in Passamaquoddy.

Q. When was that? A. Late 1940 or 1941, I believe.
Q. What trade did you learn there? A. Machine shop and sheet

metal.
Q. When did you first enter employment? A. 1941
Q. By whom were you employed? A. The Bethlehem Steel Com-

pany.
Q. Where? A. Hingham Shipyards,
Q. When was that? A. To the best of my recollection that was

some time in 1941.
Q. And how long were you employed there? A. Oh, until 1943, I

believe it was.
Q. Were you married then? A. No, I was not
Q. Were you a member of a union down there. A. Yes, I was.
Q. What union? A. There was a company union there. I was a

member of the CIO Shipyard Workers that was conducting an organiza-
tional campaign there.

Q. Were you an officer of the Shipyard Workers? A. I was not.
Q. Or the other union, the company union? A. No.
Q. When you left the Bethlehem Steel in 1943 what did you do'

A. Went to work driving a truck.
Q. And when did you go in the service? A. I went in the service in

1943, the latter part of March, I believe.
Q. What branch of the service were you in? A. I was in a couple of

branches of the service. First, in the Tank Destroyers and in the Para-
chute Troops,

iu serve? A. I served in the United
ioharged honorably February 6, 1946.

Q. How long and where did y
States and in Europe, and was d

[Senator Bowker leaves theroom.]

Mr. Rosenberg. May the record show the Chairman has tempo-
rarily left the hearing?

Q. When you were discharged did you take up some occupation?
A. While I "was temporarily unemployed.

Q. For how long? A. Until the latter part of 1946 when I became
employed with the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of
America, UE.

Q. When is the latter part, November, December? A. I believe it
wag in October.

Q. October? A. Yc
Q. And when you entered the employ of the UE, what branch? What

was your title? A. I was a field organizer pro tem.
Q. And to whom did you apply for that job? A. Well, to the best of

my recollection I filled out an application and it was sent in to the general
offices of the union in New York City. And I assume it was approved
by all the members of the general executive board.
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Q. From whom did you secure the application? A. I secured it at
the UE District 2 office.

Q. Did Don Tormey have anything to do with your securing the
application? A. To the best of my recollection, no.

Q. Were you then living at where were you then living? A. At
106 Myrtle Street, Boston, Mass.

[Senator Bowkjbr re-enters the hearing room.]

Q. Where was Mr. Tormey living then? A. I just don’t recall
Q. And after you were appointed field organizer would you tell us

where you have been employed since the latter part of 1946? A. Well,
I was employed around the Boston area until 1947. I believe it was July,
1947, when I was released as a member of the staff.

Q, What did you do then? A. I went to Buffalo, New Yorl
Q. What did you do in Buffalo? A. Went to work at the Westing-

house plant.
Q. Were you a member of the UE then? A. Yes, sir
Q. As an organizer? A. Rank and file member.
Q. And how long were you in Buffalo? A. Well, until sometime in

1948.
Q. Yet the whole time you were there you were a rank and file mem-

ber of the UE? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did you hold any office up there in your local? A. No, sir.

A. Allentown, Pennsylvania.Q. In 1948 where did you go?
nwn, Pennsylvania, what was your
I was there I was unemployed,
unemployed there? A. I had some
m shop. I had three weeks employ-

Q. When you were in Allent
occupation. A. Most of the time

Q. Well, when did you become
temporary employment in a mout
ment in Bethlehem Steel.

Q. Did you secure any employment in Allentown where the UE was
operative. A. N

Q. Where did you next go from Allentown? A. Lancaster, Penn-
sylvania.

A. No,hops of some kindQ. Were you employed in machine
in Radio Corporation of America.

Yes, sir.Q. Was the UE in that plant? A
elong to then? A. UE Local 124.
local? A. I was.

Q. All right. What local did you 1
Q. Were you ever an officer of tf
Q. What office did you hold there A. Office of steward and treas-

urer.

Q. When was that? A. 1949, 1950,

Q. And after that? A. After that I returned to the Boston area
and became re-employed on the staff of the UE.

Q. In what capacity? A. The capacity of field organizer
Q. That would be in 1950? A. Well, I was re-employed the effective

date, I believe, was sometime around the middle of January, 1951.
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Q. Have you continued to be employed as a staff organizer on the
staff as an organizer since January of 1951? A. I have.

Q. And where is your present field of duty? A. Presently I am
working in the Lynn area, the North Shore area.

Q. And since 1951 have you worked in Massachusetts? A. Well, I
have been out of Massachusetts, but my home has been in Massachusetts.

Q. All right. Have you been a member of the Communist Party?
A. Well, I would just have to refer you to the Twelfth Article of the
Constitution of the Commonwealth as the basis for my refusal to answer
that question.

“No subject shall be held to answer for any crimes or offenses
until same is fully and plainly, substantially and formally described
to him, or be compelled to accuse or furnish evidence against him-
self. And every subject shall have a right to produce all proofs
that may be favorable to him; to meet the witnesses against him
face to face”

which opportunity has not beenafforded me.
“And to be fully heard in his defense by himself or his counsel at

his election. And no subject shall be arrested, imprisoned, despoiled
or deprived of his property, immunities or privileges, put out of the
protection of the law, exiled, or deprived of his fife, liberty or estate
but by the judgment of his peers or the law of the land. And the
legislature shall not make any law that shall subject any person to a
capital or infamous punishment, excepting for the government of
the army and navy, without trial by jury.”

Q. You are reading from what section? A. The Twelfth Article of
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Constitution.

Q. Are you now a member of the Communist Party? A. Well, do
you have any evidence that I am?

Q. I ask the witness be ordered to answer. A. I suggest, Mr.
Bresnahan, if this Commission has any evidence that I am a member of
the Communist Party, you confront me with the witnesses and allow me
the opportunity to cross-examine and to question them. Otherwise, I
am forced to give you this same answer as before.

Q. Not what you are forced to do. I ask he be ordered to answer
the question.

The Chairman. Do you refuse to answer and invoke the Constitu
tional guarantees?

The Witness. I refuse to answer on the basis of the Twelfth Article
of the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, because I
am not being afforded the protection of that Article.

Q. I ask you when you were married, Mr. Block? A. I was married
in 1947.

Q. And where? A. Buffalo, New York.
Q. What was your wife’s maiden name? A. Mildred Phillips.
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Q. Now, lam going to ask you were you a member of the Communist
Part}' when you were a resident of Buffalo, when you were a resident of
Pennsylvania, and when you were employed by the UE? A. I already
answered that question.

Q. I ask you that specifically. A. You asked me the question if I
had ever been a member of the Communist Party. I answered that
question. I assume

Q. Your answer embraces those times? A. I assume in reply to the
question at any time that the answer I gave you covers all that period of
time.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions of this witness.
The Chairman. Any further questions of this witness by members of

the Commission? We have no further questions.
You are entitled, sir, to make a statement relating solely to the

questions and answers put and given in this examination. You may
make it verbally or in writing at this time.

The Witness. I have a brief statement I would like to make
With a great deal of interest and I must admit it was a novel experi-

ence for me to be subpoenaed before such a commission. And some may
choose to call it coincidence if they so desire. lam not one of those
that this Commission and the members of this Commission have chosen
on two occasions to hold these particular kinds of inquiries prior to the
time when our union, the UE, was involved in a National Labor Rela-
tions Board election in Lynn, Mass. The Chairman of this Commission

The Chairman. Will you confine your statement to the questions
and answers given here today? They have nothing to do with any prior
action which may or may not have been taken by the Commission.

The Witness. I respectfully suggest, Mr. Chairman, what I am
about to say is germane to this inquiry, and I would appreciate the
opportunity to finish my piece.

The Chairman. You have the opportunity, but make it germane.
The Witness. It was with great interest that I picked up the Boston

press and saw a statement by the Chairman of this Commission where he
was quoted as saying he was going to investigate, and this Commission
was going to investigate the UE in Lynn.

As I said before, some may choose to call it coincidence that five days
prior to a NLRB election in 1953, this Committee saw fit to allow itself
to be used, knowingly or otherwise, as a sounding board for a union

Mr. Bresnahan. I ask if that is the tenor of his statement, that he
be now dismissed. That does not concern any questions which he has
been previously asked.

The Chairman. The witness is dismissed. We will take a five-
minuterecess.

[Short recess.]
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Hugh J. Harley, Jr.
Hugh J. Harley, Jr., was bom in Philadelphia, Pennsyl-

vania, in September, 1916. He is a graduate of Dartmouth
College and received a degree there of Bachelor of Business
Administration in 1937. He later studied in Geneva,
Switzerland, and was also employed there with the League
of Nations. He entered the employ of the UE as a field
organizer in 1940. Since that time he has been continu-
ously in the employ of the UE, and during the time of our
investigation was engaged in the duties of a field organizer
at different times in Massachusetts, Vermont and New
Hampshire.

This Commission received creditable evidence that Mr.
Harley was a member of the Communist Party and of the
Communist front organizations in the 1940’s when he was
a resident of Pittsburgh and Erie, Pennsylvania, in Bridge-
port, Connecticut and Rochester, New York. He was
assigned as a field organizer in District 2 of the UE in 1949
and has so continued to this date.

We quote from his sworn testimony at a public hearing
on August 3, 1955, as follows:

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Hugh J. Harley,
Jr.

Q. Now I think we got your name, and I’m not quite sure whether
I got your address. A. Post Office, Westminster, Vermont.

Q. What is your business or occupation? A. lam a field organizer
for the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, UE,

Q. Would you tell us when and where you were born and what your
education was? A. I was born in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in Sep-
tember, 191G. I went to the public schools in Philadelphia and around
Philadelphia. I went to high school in various places and graduated
from high school in 1933 in Lansdowne, Pennsylvania. I went to Dart-
mouth College and graduated from the Tuck School of Business Adminis-
tration in 1937.

Q. And what has been your activity since 1937? A. After I gradu-
ated from the Tuck School I got a scholarship to Geneva in Switzerland
in the Students International Union for three or four months. From
there I went to work with the International Labor Organization of the
League of Nations. I w'orked there until 1939 and came back to the
United States. I worked for a public relations firm in New York City for

time, a fairly short time. I belonged to the United Office and Profes-
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sional W orkers Union, CIO, at that time. Then I obtained employment
with the United Electrical Workers in the same capacity that I have today.
That was in early 1940,

Q. Your first employment wr
you mean?

a field organizer? A. What do

Q. For the UE? A. Yes.
Q. Have you continuously been

guess for a little while I had a title
a field organizer then since? A. I
4 International Representative.

Q. W hen was that? A. I don’t recall the dates. Probably around
1946 or 1947.

Q. Who appointed you as a field organizer originally? A. James I
Carey, the now President of the lUE-CIO, was the fellow with whom I
had my interview, and he recommended me to Mr. Matles, and Mr
Matles in his capacity as Director of Organization actually accepted the
application

Q. Where is your present field of activities in the UE? A. In Ver-
Mont and in Western Massachusetts. Primarily Vermont. Some in New
Hampshire,

Q. Since your appointment as field organizer, in what states have you
rrked and where have you had residence? A. Well, residence or where

have I lived.
Q. Both. A. I couldn’t say sitting right here where I had official

residence because I have moved a good bit. I have worked in Pennsyl-
vania

Q. Whereabouts in Pennsylvania? A. Have I worked?
Q. Yes. Or had a residence. A. Well, if you want, I suppose I will

start at the best of my recollection and go through the places. I started
working in Newark, New Jersey this is for the UE and from there
went to Pittsburg, Pennsylvania.

Q. When was that? A. 1940,

Q. Then you went to where? A. Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, in late
1940. And I went to Erie, Pennsylvania, somewhere, I suppose, around
1941, I stayed in Erie, Pennsylvania, until 1943, when I was transferred
to District 2, working around Pittsfield, North Adams and up into
Springfield, Vermont. In 1944 I was transferred to Bridgeport, Connec-
ticut. In 1945 I believe I was transferred to Rochester, New York. In
1948 I was transferred to Brooklyn, New York, temporarily to Baltimore,
Maryland, and in 1949 was transferred to District 2 again, Springfield,
Massachusetts. In 1951 I was transferred to my present assignment,
my main concentration in Vermont

Q. When you were appointed originally or given employment in the
UE, were you a member of the Communist Party? A. I have to refuse
to answer that on the grounds of the Twelfth Amendment to the Consti
tution of the Commonwealth

Q. Let me just interpret a little. There is no obligation on you. You
lon’t have to. You either do or you don’t. A. I’m sorry. That is a

bad way of speaking. I do.
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Q. Especially for a Dartmouth man. Our Chairman here is a Dart
mouth man.

The Chairman. I will excuse the gentleman because it is a mistake
I could make myself.

Q. Now let us go back. When you graduated from Dartmouth in
1937 and then you went to Geneva and went to school there or took some
courses there —is that as I understood you? A. Well, it was a seminar
run by a fellow named Sir Norman Angell, who was a British M.P., and
some Spanish fellow named Castelluego.

Q. What degree did you get from Dartmouth? A. Bachelor’s de
gree in Business Administration.

Q. When you were employed in Geneva following the seminar, do I
understand you then did some work for the United Nations, was it? A.
The United Nations was not quite born then. That was the League of
Nations.

Q. What work did you do there for the League of Nations? A. For
the International Labor Organization, not the League of Nations. The
International Labor Organization was a separate organization from the
League of Nations, and the LTnited States Government was a member of
it.

Q. And you worked in Switzerland how long? A. About two year

Mr. Rosenberg. Excuse me, Mr. Bresnahan. May the record show
that Representative Randall is present?

Mr. Bresnahan. For your information, Mr. Rosenberg, the stenog-
rapher notes on the record who of the Commission enter and leave the
room during hearings.

Q. When you were employed in Geneva, were you a member of the
Communist Party? A. Same answer as I gave to the question similar
to that which you asked me previously.

Q. That is, you decline to answer, invoking the Twelfth Article of
the Massachusetts Constitution, is that right? A. That is correct.

Q. So for the purposes of the record hereafter when you say you de-
cline to answer, does that declination include the Twelfth Article of the
Massachusetts Constitution? A. The two main subsections that I don’t
feel I have due process of law, and I don’t feel that I have to accuse
myself or bear witness against myself.

Q. It includes those sections, too? A. Ye
Q. Well now, were you a member of the Communist Party when you

were a student at Dartmouth College? A. Do you mind if to
my counsel?

Q. Any time you want to, you confer with your counsel
[Witness confers with counsel.]

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were a
student at Dartmouth College? A. My answer to all such questions has

to be the same
Q. Let me again correct you. A. Is the same, will be the same.
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Q. All rights. Now, Mr. Harley, your attorney here has been fur-
nished you by your employer, by the UE, is that right? A. I hope so.
I haven’t discussed any financial details with Mr. Rosenberg. He is
attorney for the UE District 2, and I went to him when I was subpoenaed.

Q. And you fully expect that your union will pay for your counsel fee
in the matter of investigation of your membership into the Communist
Party? A. Is that the investigation that is being conducted here?

Q. It is a part of it. A. Well, I thought the investigation was an
investigation as to whether the Communist Party dominated the UE.

Q. Have you an opinion on that? A. Have I any what?
Q. Opinion on that. A. A very definite opinion. I have had fifteen

years’ experience that it doesn’t, the Communist Party or any other
party.

Q. Has there been any time in your experience in those fifteen years
that you have not been a member of the Communist Party? A. I give
the same answer to that as to the previous similar questions.

Q. When you were employed as aUE organizer and moved to Pitts-
burg, were you a leader there in the Pittsburgh Youth Council, which was
an affiliate of the American Youth Congress?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. The same answer on that question
Q. Would you say, “I decline”? A. I’m sorry. I decline to answer
the question on the same grounds.

Q. Every time you say you decline, you have already told us for the
purpose of the record that that declination includes the privileges of the
Twelfth Article and several other articles of the Massachusetts Constitu-
tion. Did you, when you were in Erie —A. Is there evidence to that
effect, that I belong to what did you call it the World Youth Con-
gress or something?

Q. The Pittsburgh Youth Council, which was an affiliate of the Ameri-
can Youth Congress. A. I declined to answer that on my constitutional
grounds, but also because I think I could sit here for an hour and not be
able to answer it, Constitution or no Constitution.

Q. Then do you want your answer to be that you have no recollection
on it? A. No. I would prefer the other one. Maybe it is safer.

Q. I want you to decide. A. I prefer the other one. I would like
to answer the other way, but I’m afraid to.

Q. I think it probably is a great deal safer for you personally. Did
you become the Chairman of the American Youth Congress at meetings
held in Erie, Pennsylvania, when you were there? A. Chairman of the
American Youth Congress? Wasn’t James B. Carey a chairman or co-
chairman of that? I certainly wasn’t.

Q. Were you ever chairman of the American Youth Congress in Erie,
Pennsylvania? A. The same answer to that question, and for the same
primary reason, with the same supplementary reason.

Q. Now when you went to Bridgeport, Connecticut — A. You see,
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I have been a union organizer for fifteen years and that has been my
main concentration, and that is what I have been thinking of.

Q. Has Communism been an avocation? A. That is another one I
would like to answer, but I’m not going to answer on my constitutional
grounds.

Q. You avail yourself of those privileges? A. That is correct
Q. Now you are a college man, a Dartmouth man, and also you have

had benefit of education abroad. Do you have any feeling as to whether
or not you have an obligation to your government to assist a duly con-
stituted body in its investigation and study of Communism and sub-
versive activities? A. If I had any knowledge of subversive activities
or spying or sabotage or anything else like that against this government,
I would assist you or anybody else in finding it out. I have no such
knowledge.

Q. If you had any knowledge of Communism, which is the subject of
investigation, would you assist us?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I guess you will have to read back the question. The definitions of
Communism and the associations connected with Communism are so
broad that I have to refuse to answer that question on the grounds of
my constitutional rights. Once again I could go into an hour and a half
or two discussion but I prefer not to do it for fear that some statements,
innocent statements or otherwise that I might make could be used against
me. And that is the fundamental position that I have to take right
through this hearing because I consider that to be the purpose of this
hearing.

The Chairman. Do you say that, sir, because you are fearful that in
answering the question in that way as you just mentioned that you might
open the door to a further series of questions wherein you might find that
you would not be able to have recourse to your constitutional right?

The Witness. No, I don’t mean that. I mean the question in itself
involves in it present-day America well, at least the America of a
few months ago involves so many possible pitfalls for a person who is
brought up here for the purpose that I have been brought up here for,
that it would be stupid for that person to get himself involved in a lot of
things that he would love to say to you and to anybody that wanted to
listen. So I have to invoke my constitutional rights.

Rep. Randall. What purpose have you been brought up here for?
The Witness. Well, why have 1 been brought up?
Rep. Randall. You said that the purpose you were brought up here.
The Witness. Well, let me say the purpose that I feel is fundamental

to assist in the attack on our union. I don’t think that anybody cares
particularly about me, and generally I’m in Vermont and I doubt whether
I’m going to be any great threat to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
I don’t feel that I’m here for any personal reason. That is one reason
why I don’t object very much to having the union lawyer represent me.
I don’t think I’m here for anv fundamental mistakes I have committed
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against the United States. I have been an organizer for fifteen years.
That is why lam here. It could be added to a long list and published,
and a lot of accusations could be made to which I have certainly no in-
tention of being a party, thereby furnishing ammunition to enemies of
our union to attack me personally and to attack our union. That is why
I think I am up here, but I’m not sure.

Rep. Randall. I will tell you this. As far as I’m concerned, you
are not up here for that reason or any other reason. You are up here
because we think you have some information that you can give us with
reference to subversive activities.

The Witness. I have such information.
Rep. Randall. Then we would like to have it.
The Witness. I answered that question. Fundamentally I an-

swered that question that out of 15 years’ experience in this union I have
no such knowledge and I have positive knowledge to the contrary. I
have watched members of this union, regardless of what their political
associations or beliefs were, whether they were males or females, what
their religion was or anything else, operate this union themselves and
without any domination from Communists or non-Communists nor
political parties. And I can bring you hundreds of witnesses out of
pretty nearly any shop which I’m connected with who will sit here and
testify to the effect that nobody dominates their affairs, nobody but the
membership of the union itself.

Q. [By Rep. Randall.] You have said in your answer members of
the union, Communists and non-Communists, work together. How
many Communists do you have in this union? A. I have no idea.

Q. You have some? A. I have no idea. I mean that is the best
answer I can give you.

Q. But you have some? A. I don’t know that we have one.
Q. Why did you say Communists and non-Communists? A. Be-

cause over the years I know that members of this union, a union of
several hundred thousand members, the same as any other union in the
United States, has had Communists in its membership.

Q. If I’m not mistaken, a minute ago you also said you knew from
personal experience, talking with Communists and non-Communists.
A. I didn’t say talking with. I don’t think I said that.

Q. That is why I say maybe I’m wrong. A. I don’t think I made
it that explicit.

Q. But you know of no Communists in your union today

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I don’t know of any of my own personal knowledge. I have heard a

lot of allegations, I hear a lot of reports, I read newspaper stories. But I
actually know of no Communists in the union today.

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Yes, Mr. Counsel.
Mr. Rosenberg. There was an exchange between Rep. Randall and

the witness as to why the witness is here, the subject matter of the in-
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quiry. It very clearly states that the Commission shall announce at the
outset of the hearing the subject matter of the inquiry.

The Chairman. It is so stated on the summons, is it not, Mr. At-
torney?

Mr. Rosenberg. Is that the outset of the hearing? As far as I
know, there was no statement by the Commission at any time during
this hearing.

The Chairman. Will you read the summons the gentleman received?
Mr. Bresnahan. Well, I would be glad to do that.
Rep. Randall. Let me ask this. Is there any question in your

mind why this hearing is being held?
Mr. Rosenberg. No. I have a very good idea as to why this hearing

is being held but it is not my obligation to state my opinions. It is the
obligation of the committee. That has not been done. I call it respect-
fully to the attention of the witness.

The Chairman. If you wish to take an oath and testify you may do so.
Mr. Rosenberg. I’m not asking to testify. I’m simply calling at

tention as counsel of the witness the obligation of the Commission.
The Chairman. Will our counsel read the summon;

Mr. Bresnahan. “To appear before the Commission created by
Chapter 89, Resolves of 1953, to study and investigate Communism and
subversive activities in the Commonwealth.”

Mr. Rosenberg. I say, sir, that I don’t think that states the subject
matter of any inquiry except the words of the Resolve, which is a very
broad and general one and has no particular relationship to this witness
or this inquiry.

The Chairman. We think it has to do with this witness or any other
witness that we brought in. That is our opinion. Will you proceed?

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] As I get it, you eventually went to Bridge-
port, Connecticut. That was 1944 and 1945? A. That is right.

Q. That was the period when the Communist Party was apparently
dissolved and the Communist Political Association started. Did you
join and become an active member of the Bridgeport CommunistPolitical
Association in Bridgeport, Connecticut, in 1945? A. I invoke my con-
stitutional rights.

Q. Did you become a member of the State executive committee of
the Communist Political Association in Connecticut in 1945? A. I in-
voke my constitutional rights and I will on any similar questions.

Q. Decide your own testimony as it goes along. When you were in
the UOPWA, the United Office and Professional Workers of America,
what position did you have with that organization? A. Member.

Q. Only? A. Yes.
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were a

member of the United Office and Professional Workers of America? A.
I invoke my constitutional privilege.

Q. Now you moved from Bridgeport, Connecticut, up to Rochester
in 1947. As I recall, that was a period A. 1945, I think. I think I
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said about 1945 and stayed there until around 1947. It may have been
’46. ’45 or ’46.

Q. Well, did you become a member of the Communist Party in
Rochester, New York? A. You apparently aren’t ready to accept the
idea that I’m going to invoke my constitutional right on each one of
those questions.

Q. I’m going to specifically ask you, and you have the opportunity
of giving your answer for the record. A. My answer is the same.

Q. Now later you went to Brooklyn, New York, you told us. Is
that right? A. That is right.

Q. When you went to Brooklyn, New York, was your membership
transferred or did you become an active member of the Communist
Party in Brooklyn, New York? A. Same answer.

Q. And when you returned to Massachusetts and were in the employ
of District 2 in 1949, did you become an active member of the Communist
Party in Massachusetts? A. Same answer.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. Have members of the Commission any questions of

the witness at this time?
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] When you say you know no Communists

as such in the union today A. Personally I said it, that is correct.
In other words, of my own personal knowledge. Somebody says that
somebody is a Communist and I know that person and that person turns
out to be a Communist, I know that. But I know no Communist in the
UE today.

Q. I wasn’t here, but did they ask you whether you were a member
of the Communist Party? A. I don’t think anybody has asked me that.

Q. I would like to ask you as of today whether you are a member
of the Communist Party? A. No, I’m not.

Q. I know that you go back by days and by years. I’m not trying
to do that necessarily, but let us say in the first of this year were you a
member of the Communist Party? A. I have to refuse to answer that
question on my constitutional grounds for the very definite reason that
I don’t know what information is in the files of the Commission, whom
they want to bring forward as witnesses that lamor am not. I don’t
want to get myself involved in all kinds of possible actions because I have
seen it happen to some other people who I think certainly were not guilty
of any wrong-doing against this country or the Commonwealth of Massa-
chusetts or anybody else; and I don’t want it to happen to me. I think
I found out the Constitution gives me this privilege to protect myself
from what I could consider injustices.

Q. You say today you are not a Communist. What I’m interested in
is whether in the last few days when you knew you were coming here you
suddenly resigned from the Communist Party or something of that sort.
A. No. When I say that I’m not a Communist, that is an honest an-
swer and it is not quibbling about hours or minutes or days or anything
like that. I’m not here to answer a question like that at all. On the
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other hand, if somebody says, ‘Were you an hour ago or where you two
hours ago?’ and so forth. I would stop right at the first question, be-
cause I work in the union and members of the union ask me that ques-
tion. Very few of them do, but when they ask me that question I answer
that question and they are perfectly satisfied because on that statement
plus my record the average member of my union can judge me and judge
what I stand for and judge whether or not I am subversive or otherwise.
Unfortunately, that is the only position that I can take before this
Commission.

Q. [By Mr. Brbsnahan.] Could I just ask you this? Was an affi-
davit of Richard W. McClellan of Erie, Pennsylvania, ever called to your
attention?

[Witness confers with counsel.)

A. I invoke my constitutional privilege on that
Q. Now you want to know very stoutly here what some information

was. Let me read you an affidavit and ask you whether or not it is true.
State of Pennsylvania

County of Erie
I, Richard \V. McClellan, being duly sworn, depose and say
I. That I was President of Local 631, United Electrical Workers

if America, at the Erie Resistor Company.
2. I was elected to that office on or about January 17, 1943 and

held that office until my resignation in April, 1945. I was instru-
mental in affiliating the Erie Resistor Union with the UE-CIO. In
my work with the UE-CIO I became acquainted and worked closely
with Plugh Harley. Harley was an International organizer of UE.
Harley informed me that he was a member of the Communist Party
and showed me his dues book as such member. At the invitation of
Harley I attended meetings of the Communist cells in the city of
Erie. I attended a meeting in the summer of 1943 at a house located
on the southwest corner of 25th and Pennsylvania Avenue in the
second floor flat in the evening. This meeting was a meeting of the
General Electric cell of the Communist Party. At the meeting was
held a discussion of the party platform. Communist literature was
sold and Communist dues were collected. John Nelson, the present
President of Local 506, who was then also a shop steward at the
General Electric, was present at the meeting, took part in the dis-
cussion, bought Communist literature and paid party dues. I saw
him pay the dues to a woman who was in charge of the meeting and
acting as chairman.

(Signed) Richard W. McClellan
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 12th day of May, 1949.

Jgned) John W. English,
Notary Public,

(Seal)
My Commission expires April 27, 1953
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Are the statements contained in that affidavit true?
Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Just a minute. Will you present that as an exhibit?
Mr. Bresnahan. I’m just going to ask him if the statements in such

an affidavit are true
The Chairman. Let him answer his question and then you can

make a comment if you wish.
The Witness. I should answer that question, you mean?
The Chairman. Yes. He has asked you a question.

Witness confers with counsel.]
The Chairman. Are you prepared to answer the question
The Witness. Do you mind if I
Q. I’m first going to ask you tc

ments contained in what I read a
little way around until I get to the

nswer that question. Are the state-
!an affidavit true? A. May Igo a
answer to that question?

Mr. Bresnahan. I’m going to
responsively and then I’m going to

ask that he answer that question first
ask the Chair to let him explain,
an answer one way or the other andThe Chairman. I think you c

then give your explanation.
The Witness. Then my answ •r is that I invoke my constitutional

privilege and the explanation is this. Mr. McClellan was a fellow who
worked in the Erie Resistor Company and I assisted him in organizing
it. He became the President of the union and after he was President of
the union for a while the company fired him for irresponsible they
claimed irresponsible actions in that shop, stoppages and that sort of
thing. We took his case to arbitration and lost it and he lost his job,
and as a result he built up a very considerable resentment against the
union. That was around

The Chairman. You say you defended him?
The Witness. That is correct, on an arbitration case. In other

words, any member of this union who has a grievance for discharge has a
right to go before an arbitrator for him to decide whether the discharge
was correct or incorrect. In this case the arbitrator upheld the company.
I left Erie. That was early in my stay in Erie. I leftErie, and a couple
of years later, I think about 1949 what is the date of that?

Q. That is an affidavit subscribed to on May 12, 1949. A. In 1949
I was some place else far away from Erie certainly and I got word that
this particular paper had been passed out as a leaflet in front of the Gen-
eral Electric Company gates in Erie, Pennsylvania, as a plea for the
people in that shop to defeat this man John Nelson as President of that
union. It was part of election propaganda. The last time I saw Mc-
Clellan was I don’t know ’43 or sometime like that. The next
thing I knew, the leaflet was passed out in an attempt to defeat him.
This attempt to defeat him was part of the campaign of Carey to get
delegates to the UE convention so that he could try to put himself in as
President of the UE convention. The next thing I knew about this
affidavit, I was down in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, and I was working on
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an election campaign where the lUI
and I got into an argument with a
question. The next thing I knew,
American Activities Committee do
with whom I had this argument, a r

-CIO was campaigning in the plant,
fellow at the gates about the union
they had a hearing before the Un-
wn in Washington, and this fellow
Either stiff one, went down before the

committee and at a hearing like this he walked in with certainly no
knowledge of his own and handed that paper to the committee and they
read that into the record.

The Chairman. They handed what paper
The Witness. This affidavit which has been read here
Q. Then let me specifically ask you on the affidavit, did you ever go

to a Communist Party meeting with Richard W. McClellan in Erie,
Pennsylvania? A. I invoke my privileges. I tried to explain why by
recounting the circumstances of that paper. By the way, like I have
gone to a Notary Public and sworn

Q. There is no question before you? A. Can I explain why I refuse
to answer that question?

The Chairman. You have just invoked your privilege.
The Witness. Why I’m invoking it.
Mr. Bresnahan. He had made a very lengthy explanation.
The Witness. I have gone to a Notary Public and sworn before that

Notary Public that I wasn’t a member of the Communist Party, because
were claiming I was a Communist
taken the oath and sworn I wasn’t

in an election campaign where they
I have gone before a Notary Public,
a member of the Communist Party.

Mr. Bresnahan. May I ask the
the question responsively?

Chair to tell the witness to answer

The Chairman. The oath you took, was that to the effect that you
had never been a member of the Communist Party?

The Witness. At the time that the oath was taken. I have done it
several times over the last several years.

The Chairman. But you have never sworn an oath that you have
never been a member of the Communist Party?

The Witness. The oath was that I wasn’t a member of the Com-
munist Party at the time I took it. What I started to say was I could
have gone before that Notary Public and I could have lied and nobody
could have ever done anything to me.

The Chairman. Would you take an oath now that you have never
been a member of the Communist Party?

Mr. Bresnahan. I ask that he be ordered to answer that question.
The Chairman. What is the question?
Mr. Bresnahan. The question you just asked him. Would you take

an oath that you never were a member of the Communist Party?
The Witness. I invoke my constitutional privilege to the question.
The Chairman. Representative Randall.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] As I get the picture, on this affidavit that
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this fellow gave, you are claiming that the affidavit is not correct, is that
right?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. That is right. I have invoked my privilege on that. Let me answer
it a little bit.

Q. I will give you plenty of time. Let me see if I can straighten this
out in my mind. That statement was given under oath before a Notary
Public. Now we have it here and we say is this statement a correct
statement? You refuse to answer the question, invoking a constitutional
privilege. Now you also said that you have been before a Notary Public
at odd times in the past and have sworn that the statement was not cor-
rect or that you were not a member of the Communist Party. I’m not
sure you said you went before a Notary Public and swore that the state-
ment was not correct. A. No, it had nothing to do with the statement.

Q. But you went before a Notary and swore you were not a member
of the Communist Party. But the fact remains that we have that state-
ment that was made under oath and we have your refusal before us while
you are under oath to say whether or not that is a correct statement.
A. To show you how difficult it is for a person in my position to handle
that position. McClellan goes out to Ohio last year, and the Association
of Machinists AF of L, was trying to get the Monarch Machine plant,
and they put out that affidavit saying McClellan incidentally he be-
came an organizer for the lUE-CIO put out that affidavit with a
headline saying “Do you want McClellan, a person that self-admittedly
went to a Communist Party meeting to represent you in dealing in col-
lective bargaining?” The guy wh
the affidavit being used against him
about my legal rights and so forth,
to get myself into any kind of a lej

signed the affidavit wound up with
Now maybe I don’t know too much

I don’t want by talking a great deal
il trap

The Chairman. You have an attorney
The Witness. endangering mvself nendangering myself personally. But let us say that

I answered that question and dent
claimed I was a perjurer and they
me in court and that sort of thing
kind of thing. I can’t.

d it and I ended up where somebody
got McClellan in court and they got

I’m not taking my chances on that

The Chairman. At least thii ntleman admitted that he did go to
a Communist meeting, but you will not admit whether or not he told
the truth.

The Witness. I said that the IFM claimed that he admitted it
The Chairman. He says in an affidavit he went to a meeting and

aw certain people. Isn’t that true in the affidavit?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Let me ask you some more about people
who have testified about you under oath. Do you know Jack Davis?
A. Yes.
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Q. Let me read you what Jack Davis testified to on April 9, 1954, in
a hearing before the Un-American Activities Committee held in Albany,
NewYork.

[Jack Davis testifying.]

“When district council No. 2 held the conventions the staff was
called in, and sometime it was generally during the weekend
and sometime during the weekend, the UE staff Communist Party
meeting was called, and a party functionary was generally present
at the meeting, and the Communist Party affairs, as they applied to
the UE were discussed.

Q. Will you give the names of all the members of the official
family of UE who attended the Communist Party meetings that you
have just referred to of staff members in district No. 2, and I want
you to include here not only the names of those who were working
in Springfield but any other officials of UE who attended those
meetings. A. Jack Simon, who was at the time I was working in
district No. 2, was an international representative of the UE. He is
the same man who also attended meetings in district No. 3. Nicholas
Tomasetti, UE organizer, and at one time a member of the Con-
necticut State Legislature; Albert L. Smith, international repre-
sentative; C. Herbert Salter, international representative; Donald
Tormey; a man by the name of Red Block. 1 never knew his actual
first name, but he was known to be the brother-in-law of Donald
Tormey, UE organizer.

Q. You mean Block was a UE organizer? A. Yes. Charles
Rivers, international representative; Frank Parker, president of
Worthington Machinery Co. local of the UE at that plant in Holyoke;
Robert Mintz; Joseph Marino; Leon Massa, business agent of the
UE local in Holyoke of the Worthington Machinery Co. plant.
William Murdock was a UE organizer and a research director for
district No. 2 of the UE; Wilbur McNair, UE organizer; Clifford
McAvoy, UE organizer; Richard Linsley, international representa-
tive of the UE; Harry Fishman, UE organizer; Harold Conroy,
secretary of UE district council No. 2; Donald Bollen, UE organizer;
Walter Barry, international representative; Dave Bennett, UE or-
ganizer; Hugh Harley, UE organizer and UE international repre-
sentative at one time; Nate Shellman, UE organizer. Those are all
I can recall at this time.”

Now having read that to you, I’m going to specifically ask you when
there were conventions held in District 2 was there a practice of the UE
staff Communist Party meetings being called and a Communist Party
functionary generally present at the meeting, and were the Communist
Party affairs as they applied to the UE discussed? A. You are talking
in relation to that testiraonv?
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Q. I’m asking you. A. You just read some testimony. Are you
talking about that testimony there

Q. Yes, I am. I’m referring to particular question.

[The question is read.]

A. May I see the testimony?
Q. Surely. And that question

that time. A. I’m sorry. I have
to look at it.

is based on what Mr. Davis said at
never seen this before, so I will have

The Chairman. You take your time, sir

Witness reads testimony to himself.]

The Witness. Do you have the previous book with the beginning of
his testimony, of Davis’ testimony?

Q. Do I? I may have. A. This is a continuation of his testimony,
and it begins in the middle of his testimony.

Q. I’m merely asking you one question. It is substantially what he
testified to there, and I ask you whether or not that was the common
practice. A. Well, I would prefer

Q. Whatever you prefer, I ask that he be ordered to answer that
question. A. I started to say

Q. There is nothing ambiguous or confusing about it.
The Chairman. I think the question was perfectly clear, sir.
The Witness. Yes. What I wanted to say was I would prefer to

answer the question, having full knowledge of his train of testimony and
save everybody time. Anyhow I will invoke my privilege.

Q. Does the truth or falsity of that question depend on what Davis
may have said before or after this particular thing? A. No need of
arguing about it. I said that if it were there I would look at it and try
to give you the best ansiver I could, but eventually I think the question
would come around to the same thing and I would invoke my constitu-
tional privilege.

Q. So when you previously told us that you knew of no communism
in the UE, did you know when you answered that that Mr. Davis had
testified to what I read you there? A. I only had a general knowledge
of what Davis testified to at that hearing. I had no specific knowledge.

Q. Well, do you have knowledge that you attended Communist
Party meetings with the UE staff of District 2 and in attendance at the
meetings were yourself, Donald Tormey of District 2, Red Block of
District 2, William Murdock of District 2, Richard Linsley of District 2,
Nate Shellman of District 2; Donald Bollen of District 2? A. Haven’t
I already answered that question, sir?

Q. You haven’t answered that question. A. Well, I will answer it
the way I answered the previous ones.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions
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Q. [By the Chairman.] Didn’t you say before that you knew of
no Communists in the UE District 2, that you had talked to no Com-
munists? A. You mean ever in my past history? I never said that.
What I said was that I have no personal knowledge of any Communists
in District 2 of the UE at the present time.

Q. Well, did you have knowledge of whether or not in a District 2
meeting as described by our counsel there was a meeting within a meeting
of a Communist group in which the individuals named were present and
in which you were claimed to be present; and with a knowledge of such
a meeting within a meeting under Communist auspices as a Communist
meeting, would you not then know whether or not these individuals
whom you knew very well were Communists?

[Witness confers with counsel]

Q. Would you not then know whether or not they were Communists?
A. I have no knowledge of any meetings of UE District 2 ever being
involved with any political party, including the Communist Party.

Q. Then you know of no such meeting as described in the testimony
before the Un-American Activities Committee as read by our counsel and
as shown to you on a document? A. I invoke my privilege on that
question.

Mr. Bresnahan. I think he might be compelled to answer that now.
The Chairman. I think you have opened the doo:
Mr. Bresnahan. lam going to ask that he be ordered to answer the

question.
The Chairman. You are ordered to answer the question
Rep. Randall. I’m not sure I understand. As I understand it, you

have said that you made an answer a minute ago that you knew of no
discussions inside your union that involved any political party, including
the Communist Party, is that correct?

The Witness. No. What I said was that I know of no meetings of
UE District 2 which were involved in the Communist Party or con-
nected with the Communist Party. The meetings of UE District 2 have
always been attended and directed by the members of the UE regardless
of their political affiliations or anything else. In other words, the question
of political affiliation has never been an issue at the meetings of UE
District 2, to my knowledge.

Rep. Randall. You never knew
involved, as you said, political beliefs

in the union of any meeting that
, is that so?

The Witness. Political what?
either Communist or any other, isRep. Randall. Political parties,

that right?

The Witness. That is correct.
Rep. Randall. Then the question that they have been asking you

based on this —•

The Witness. If there was, it is a violation of the constitution of the
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union which says that the members will run the union and no political
party or no outside person or group or anyone should have any right to
run the affairs of the union.

Rep. Randall. I don’t think that is so at all
The Witness. You don’t think you know our constitution and prac-

tice?
Rep. Randall. I have no doubt of that. But what political party is

running the union, because some members talk of a political party within
the union or the union talks about some political party. That doesn’t
make sense. But never mind that. Let’s get back here to my primary
question. Now the question that our counsel asked you in essence was
whether or not you knew of any meeting as described in this report that
he read you in which Communism was discussed and Communism as it
affects the union was discussed. As I recall your answer, you refused to
answer. I mean you have answered “No” to one and you have refused
to answer the other, and essentially it is the same question.

The Witness. It is my decision that it is not the same question, and
I invoke my constitutional privilege, and I haven’t admitted any guilt to
anything that may be involved in this discussion, and I have retained that
constitutional privilege and invoked it.

Rep. Randall. I’m going to keep pursuing this. You say you know
of no meeting within the union in which any political

The Witness. I’m sorry. Say that question again.
Rep. Randall. I’m trying to paraphrase what you said. I’m try-

ing to get it down. You said, as I recall it, that you knew of no gathering
in the union in which political discussion took place with reference to
any political party, the Communist Party or any other. Now is that
right?

[Witness confers with counsel.

The Witness. I didn’t talk about any discussions or anything like
that. What I said was that the meetings of the union were meetings of
the union and not any meetings of any political party, Communist or
otherwise. That is what I said. To say that in over 15 years of my ex-
perience that Communism or the Republicans or the Democrats or Social-
ism or war or peace between Russia and the United States and all those
things were not discussed would obviously be untrue, and I would never
say it, because in the meetings the members discuss what they wish.

Rep. Randall. Now you are talking about union meetings?
The Witness. That is correct.
Rep. Randall. You are not talking about meetings of the executive

committee of the union, are you?

The Witness. I’m talking about all kinds of meetings of the union
right from the top to the bottom. That includes the national convention,
the executive meetings, the district meetings and the local meetings that
I know of.
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Rep. Randall. And yet you won’t answer whether or not there were
any meetings held as testified by Mr. Davis of groups within the union,
the Communist Party meetings that he talks about or staff members
within the union. You refuse to answer that, is that right?

The Witness. You see, I’m trying to answer all the questions as
well as I can so as to deny the implied accusation against this union that
it is dominated by the Communist Party. But I stop whenever I per-
sonally might endanger myself by my answer to the best of my ability.
Maybe by talking as I have and trying to help you people come up with
an honest and correct analysis of how this union actually is run, I might
get myself into a little trouble. I don’t want to. So I have to make a
distinction between saying about Davis’ testimony the same as I do on
McClellan’s. I’m not taking a chance on Davis saying one thing and
me saying an opposite thing and me perhaps not having done anything
wind up in jail. I read the newspapers and I read about people who have
been convicted and then the decision is reversed, and I just can’t for my
own personal health and safety and that of my family get involved in
that kind of a thing. I can’t and therefore won’t. That doesn’t mean
that I don’t want to co-operate as much as I can to tell you the truth,
because I know what the truth is.

Mr. Bresnahan. I wish you would tell it.
Rep. Randall. I’m not trying to trap you in any sense of the word.

Believe me when I say that. But if you really want to help us and help
the union, you might be able to by answering frankly and freely any
questions that we might have. You might be able to answer. It is no
secret that this union has been accused of Communist leanings for a long
period of time. I mean it would seem to me that a good union member
would like to dispel that if it wasn’t so.

The Witness. I’m trying to dispel the idea which, to my money, the
committee is assisting in, the general impression being put out by the
press with the help of this committee, with the lUE-CIO who would like
to make that impression, and trying to deny that it is true. Every time
I get a chance before this committee I want to deny it. Of course, my
own personal experience is all I can tell you.

Rep. Randall. You won't give us any evidence?
The Witness. I’m not going to give you any evidence that can be

used against me.
Rep. Randall. And really deny the truth of these rumors and ac-

cusations that have been made against you.
The Witness. I deny the truth that there is any Communist domi-

nation of the UE or ever has been. I know that the policies of the UE
are set by the membership. They have been set where they happen to
be the same on certain issues with the Communist Party, and I know
they have been set where they have been opposed to the Communist
Party; and the Communist Party hasn’t been the deciding factor. If
the Communist Party took one side and the union the other, it didn’t
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make any difference. The members of the union are the ones who made
the decision.

Rep. Randall. I want to know how you know thi
The Witness. Because I know at certain times what the general

policies of the Communist Party have been. I don’t know now, but in
years past I have known what the policies of the Communist Party have
been, I have known what the policies of the union have been and I have
sat in on meetings where the policies of the union have been decided,
and I know those policies have sometimes paralleled the policies of the
Communist Party. Let us take the question of housing or the question
of rent or peace, and the decision has never been up to any member of
the Communist Party. It has been decided by the people of the UE.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no more questions.
The Chairman. I’m going to ask this of the witness. You heard an

affidavit read here, and as to its truth you availed yourself of your con-
stitutional privilege. You have heard a record of some proceedings
before the Un-American Activities Committee read, and you have read
part of the printed record that was handed to you and which you took
some time to read. And previously you had stated that you knew of no
Communists in the meetings of the union. Then you said you knew of
no such meetings, as I understand it, where a Communist group met
within a union meeting of some sort, whether it was executive committee
or conference or a convention. But still when we ask you as to the truth
of this or the truth of the affidavit, you take your constitutional guar-
antees and refuse to answer. Now put yourself in our position. What
are we to presume by that? I would like to ask this question now.

The Witness. You should presume lam innocent until lam found
guilty of it.

The Chairman. Did you go to a meeting in which it was freely
acknowledged, as shown in the affidavit and in this testimony did
you go to a meeting at any time where there was a group discussing how
Communism and Communist tactics or doctrine could be worked out in
your union, could be put into practice in your union? Did you go to
any such meeting at any time?

The Witness. I invoke my constitutional rights,
The Chairman. All right.

Mr. Bresnahan. I move he be dismissed.
The Chairman. Any other questions? Now under our own rules

you are given an opportunity at this time, sir, of making a voluntary
statement, either verbally or in writing, to this Commission bearing only
on the questions and answers given before us; and if you wish to make
such a statement you may avail yourself of that opportunity. You are
under no compulsion to make it.

The Witness. Just a very short thin
The Chairman. And you must be held to these questions and an

swers.
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Witness. To the question of whether or not the The Communist
Party dominates this union, is that right? I mean fundamentally that is
the question. Am I allowed to make a statement on that?

The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, is that within the scope of the state
ment?

Mr. Bresnahan. The statement is on any matter on which he has
been interrogated. He has been interrogated on his membership and
also on whether or not there have been meetings such as were described
by Mr. Davis and by Mr. McClellan and in an affidavit and in testimony.

' Rep. Randall. That is not fair in this way, because I asked him
about Communism.

The Chairman. That question makes it a little broader. You may
proceed..

The Witness. I say that over the past four or five years there is ample
evidence that the membership of this union and certainly I don’t
think that anybody is accusing Well, there are four thousand of five
thousand members in the locals I serve I don’t think anybody is
accusing those four or five thousand members of being Communists or
anything else. The members of this union, in spite of the hearings held
before this Commission, before the Subversive Activities Committee,
time and time again, in spite of the fact of it being repeated over and over
again, voted to stay in this union, and they voted that way for two
fundamental reasons. One, they do not believe and they know from their
personal experience that if they go to a meeting and make a vote on a
strike or on contract settlement or they make the vote on whether or not
they are going to back a political candidate or they tell me as an organizer
to go fly a kite because they don’t agree with me, they are the ones who
make the basic decisions. From their own political experience they run
the union, and there is no machinery in this union for the Communist
Party or anybody else to run. When the PUE-CIO comes along and
says this union is Communist dominated, they are worried, you know
they are concerned. But when they judge by their own personal experi-
ence, they voted time and time again in Labor Board elections that
they would stay with this union, and fundamentally they wouldn’t leave
it because most of those members would never come near this union if
they actually believed that it was dominated by the Communist Party
or any other party. They want to run it themselves. They don’t want
it dominated by any party.

The Chairman. Is that your statement?
The Witness. Yes, sir.
Mr. Bresnahan. If the witness wishes to sign the voucher, a witness

fee will be sent.
The Witness. Do I tell you how much you owe me or do you tell me?
Mr. Bresnahan. You have been in attendance two days.
The Witness. Does that include the fact that I had to leave Vermont

Monday and get down here by ten o’clock Tuesday?
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Mr. Bresnahan. That is regulated by the statute, and you will get
what the statute says.

The Witness. Do I put down exactly what I had to do?
Mr. Bresnahan. No. You just sign your name.
The Witness. I would put down here that I had to stay Monday

night and Tuesday night.
The Chairman. We will have a one minute recess

[Short recesi

Charles A. Newell.
Charles Newell was a witness in Executive Session before

this Commission on March 22, 1955. He was notified at
that time that he was held under continuing subpoena and
instructed to appear before this Commission at a public
hearing on April 5, 1955. Prior to the date of the public
hearing, at the request of the UE attorney Allan R. Rosen-
berg who represented him, the public hearing was postponed
due to the engagement of Mr. Rosenberg. At that time,
Mr. Rosenberg agreed to produce the witness at a future
date. With knowledge of the subpoena, the UE transferred
Mr. Newell to field organization duties in California. After-
receiving notice, Mr. Newell failed to appear when called
as a witness on August 2, 1955. He was declared in default
on this subpoena.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Newell has been an active member of the Communist
Party. He was born on September 28, 1904 at Temple
Patrick, Ireland, on September 28, 1907. He immigrated
to this country in 1926 at New York and was naturalized
on January 12, 1940, at Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. He re-
ceived his education at Belfast, Ireland, attended Ventura
College, Washington, 1928-1929, and the University of
Washington at Seattle, Washington, 1929-1932. With
the exception of the time he was in the U. S. Army, he has
been employed by the UE since 1937.

Mr. Newell was an active member of the Communist
Party at Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, in 1942. The creditable
evidence we have received is that he has continued his
Communist affiliation to the date of our hearing. He has
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held office in various branches of the Party. His activities
have closely associated him with Nathaniel Mills, Robert
Goodwin and Donald Tormey.

We are quoting from his testimony at the Executive
hearing of this Commission on March 22, 1955:

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahak.] What is your name? A. Charles Newell.
Q. Where do you live, Mr. Newell? A. Nahant.
Q. What address in Nahant? A. 8 Fox Hill Road.
Q. Did you at any time live at 11 Emerald Road? A. Yes.
Q. But you moved to 8 Fox Hill Road? A. That is where the

subpoena was delivered, sir
Q. That is right. But having lived on Emerald Road in Nahant, and

having moved to Fox Hill Road, would you tell me where you were born,
Mr. Newell? A. I was born in Ireland.

Q. Whereabouts in Ireland? A. Temple Patrick. It is in county of
Antrim

Q. What is your full name, Mr. Newell? A. Charles Newel!
Q. Have you got any middle initials or names? A. Not now. I

dropped them at the time I became a citizen.
Q. What middle names or initials before did you have when you wer

a resident of Ireland? A. A. M.
Q. A. stands for what? A. Augustui

It was my grandfather’s nameQ. M. for what? A. Mussell
Q. And it was a surname? A.
Q. When did you come to this
Q. You were born when? A.

Yes
auntry? A. In 1926,
ieptember 28, 1907.

Q. And you were 19 years of age? A. Ye;
Q. What schooling did you have in Ireland? A. Well, I went through

what would be generally considered high school here.
Q. When you came here in 1926 where did you come to? A. I came

first of all to NewYork. I think we docked here in Boston, but I went on
down through the canal.

Q. 1926, you said. Where did you go after you got to New York?
A. Then I went to California.

Q. Did you go to school there? A. Yes, I did
Q. How far did you go through school? A. Well, I went to junior

college there for one year.
Q. What was the name of the college? A. Ventura Junior College
Q. Then did you go to any other college? A. I wonder if I could in-

terrupt you for a minute at this moment.
Q. You want to know what the purpose of this is? A. What are you

going to do? In connection with what?
Q. Well, we are interested in you as a person. First, we are interested

in the investigation I’m getting used to this because it is a new tack
everyone has asked
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Mr. Rosenberg. May I say, Mr. Bresnahan, I don’t suppose it is
any secret. I read the resolution to them and told them they could judge
the germaneness and the relevancy of the subject because the resolution
states that they can do so.

Q. Let me state it so there will be no ambiguity. This is a commission
that is created by the Legislature of Massachusetts to investigate Com-
munism and subversive activities and related matters in the Common-
wealth. You have come to our attention. We are interested in you first as
an individual, as to whether or not you have or have had any knowledge of
Communism as a party or as a member of the party, whether you have
belonged to any organizations that might be subversive, whether you have
belonged to or do belong to any union where you might have observed
Communism and subversive activity being carried on. So with that in
mind A Is that within the State of Massachusetts, I presume?

Q. What you have observed in the State of Massachusetts, yes. But
also if you ever have been a member of the Communist Party, either in
Ireland or in this country, why, we would like to have the benefit of your
experience in the Party. It is with that that I seek your background.
So far we have gone through, I think you said it was, Ventura Junior
College in California. Following that did you go to any other college?
A. Yes, I did. I finished at the University of Washington, in Seattle.

Q. What kind of course did you take there? A, Business adminis-
tration.

Q. Did you get a degree there? A. Yes, I did.
Q. What degree? A. 8.8.A., Bachelor of Business Administration
Q. When did you get the degree? A. Oh, that must have been in

1932.
Q. After ’32 what did you do then? A. Well, after ’32 I went to

work, held several jobs of short duration. They were pretty rough to get
back in those days. Then I got a little more permanent job. That was
in ’35 in the Mergenthaler Company. I got fired out of there after six or
nine months. We were trying to oiganize the place then. Then I went
to work for R. Holden Company. That was in New York. I worked there,
I think, six months or a year. It was quite a while ago. That brought us
up to around ’36 and the formation of the CIO was about to take place
at that time, and I went to the UE. Excuse me a second.

[Witness confers with counsel

Q. In 1936 you say you went to work for the UE? A. Yc
Q. Prior to that time had you had any experience in labor unions?

You said there was some place you were trying to organize. A. Yes.
Prior to that I was a member of the International Association of Ma-
chinists. That is when I was in Mergenthaler’s.

Q. Was the International Association of Machinists connected with
any national labor union like the AF of L? A. Yes, it was part of the
AF of L.
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Q. But you went with the UE in 1936. That was at the formation of
the CIO, you say? A. Yes.

Q. Now what position did you get? A. Well, I worked for a very
;hort time as a representative of one of the locals there, and then I was

sent out to Connecticut.
Q. As a representative of one of the locals where? A. In New York,

the local that I belonged to.
Q. Do you remember the local’s number? A. No, indeed, I don’t
Q. But it was in New York City? A. 434.
Q. That was in New York City? A. Ye
Q. Now then, you were sent out where? A. Connecticut
Q. Where did you work in Connecticut? A. Well, I worked in

Bridgeport as my headquarters.
Q. Was that as a representative? A. Yes, sir
Q. Is that what is commonly known as an organizer? A. Ye:
Q. How long were you in Bridgeport? A. Approximately a year.

Perhaps a little longer.
Q. Then from Bridgeport where did you go? A. I went to Pittsburgh.
Q. When were you in Pittsburgh? A. Well, that was the end of ’37

or the beginning of 1938.
Q. How long did you stay in Pittsburgh? A. Off and on, except for

achusetts.minor absences, until I came to Mai
Massachusetts? A. I didn’t comeQ. When did you come back to

back.
Q. But you landed on the boat

were on your way from Ireland? A
and went through the canal. You

That is right.
you graced our shores and attained
ssachusetts? A. About the middle

Q. When was the first time that
some permanence of residence in Me
of 1951.

Q. When you came to Massachusetts, where did you take up your
residence? A. In Nahant.

Q. Have you been a constant resident of Nahant, either first at
Emerald Road and now Fox Hill Road, since 1951? A. Yes.

Q. What is your position now? A. lam International Representa-
tive of the Electrical Workers.

Q. Where do your duties take you? A. Throughout New England.
Q. Now Mr. Newell, when you entered the employ of the UE in 1936

or ’37, were you a member of the Communist Party?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Sir, I decline to answer that question
Q. On what grounds? A. Under the Twelfth Article of the Consti-

tution of Massachusetts.
Q. From the time you entered the employ of the UE until today, has

there ever been an instant when you were not a member of the Communist
Party? A. Well now, that sounds like
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Q. It is a very clear question. If you have any ambiguity, I would
be glad to have it repeated.

[Witness confers with counsel.]
A. Well, I claim the Twelfth.

Sen. Powers. Is there any doubt in your mind about claiming the
Twelfth, Mr. Newell? I mean, is there some explanation you would like
to make of that last question?

[Witness confers with counsel.

The Witness. No, sir.
Q. [By Sen. Powers.] Your answer to that is you claim the privileges

of the Twelfth Amendment. You are a naturalized citizen of this coun-
try, are you not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you naturalized? What Federal Court? A. I don’t
know the number, but it was in Pittsburgh.

Q. I mean whereabouts. Pittsburgh Federal Court? A. Yes, sir.
Q. When were you naturalized? A. The latter part of ’39 or early

part of ’4O. I think it was ’4O.
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when srou5rou became a

naturalized citizen of this country?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I decline to answer on the basis of the Twelfth Article of the Consti-
tution of Massachusetts and the Fifth Amendment of the Bill of Rights.

Q. You know, I asked you a question whether or not you were a
member of the Communist Party when you raised your right hand and
swore off all allegiance to a foreign power, and your answer to that was
that you refused to answer on the grounds of your rights under the
Twelfth Amendment. You have no reservations about that answer?
You want that answer, Mr. Newell, to be upon the record? That is your
testimony under oath? Is that my understanding? A. Well, I don’t
know what point you are making.

Q. What point I’m making? As a naturalized citizen of the United
States, you do not want to answer as to whether or not you were a mem-
ber of the Communist Party when you became naturalized in the United
States. The point I’m making? What point do you think I want to
make? I’m asking you, is that your answer for the record? This may be
a laughing matter to you, but it is not to me. Is that your answer?
A. Excuse me a minute, sir.

[Witness consults with counsel.]

The Witness. Yes, sir, after consulting.
Q. After consulting with your attorney, the record will show that you

still want that to be your answer? A. Yes, sir.
Q. The answer being that you refuse to answer as to whether or not
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you were a Communist when, in the city of Pittsburgh in 1940, you be-
came a citizen of this country? And your answer is that you refuse to
answer on the ground that you are invoking the Twelfth Amendment?
A. And the Fifth.

Q. They are all the same. So there will be no misunderstanding, I
simply wanted to know whether you had any reservations about your
answer. And you have no reservation. That is your answer. Did you,
when you took the oath of allegiance to this country, really mean it?

If he wants to consult with you, Mr. Rosenberg, he can

Witness confers with cou

A. Yes, I did.
Q. All right. 0. K. You meant it. And you meant it that particular

time that you owed no allegiance to any foreign country? That in sub-
stance is the oath is it not, sir? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You moved back into Massachusetts, or you came to Massachu-
setts permanently what year, Mr. Newell?

Air. Bresnahan. Aliddle of 1951, he said
Q. Are you familiar with the laws pertaining to Communism and

subversive activity in this Commonwealth? A. No, sir.
Q. Do you know it is a crime to be a member of the Communist

Party as of November 17, 1951? A. Yes, sir, I have heard that.
Q. You know that? A. Yes, sir
Q. You know also that, or do you know, if Communism is no longer

under the laws of the Commonwealth to be a political philosophy, but is
a conspiracy against this country? Did you know that? A. I didn’t
know that the law defined it as such, no.

Q. Then would you be part of a conspiracy against the government of
the United States? You don’t have to hesitate in an answer like that,
do you, Mr. Newell? A. Yes, sir. Excuse me.

[Witness confers with counsel.)

A. I refuse to answer.

Q. I beg your pardon? A. I say I refuse to answer that on the
grounds

Q. Once again, the question as to whether or not you as a naturalized
citizen would enter into a conspiracy against the United States Govern-
ment, a government which you embraced, you refuse to answer that on the
grounds of the Twelfth Amendment and the Fifth? A. And the Fifth.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Were you a member of the armed forces of
the United States for some time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time? A. 1942 to 1946.
Q. When you were separated from the service of the United States

armed services, were you given an honorable discharge? A. Yes.
Q. When was it that you were separated from the services and where?

A. I think it was March.
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Q. March of what? A. 1946.
Q. And where were you separated? A. I can’t remember the name

of the camp. It was in Arkansas.
Q. What outfit had you been with? A. Air Corps
Q. Any particular Air Corps branch, regiment? A. Air Transport

Command.
Q. How did you go into the United States armed services and when?

A. I enlisted in the enlisted reserve.
Q. Where did you enlist and when? A. Ontario, California, in

1942.
Q. And you want to leave it there is no question you were in the Air

Corps of the United States Army from 1942 until March of 1946 when
you were separated from the service with an honorable discharge? No
question about that? A. No.

Q, You are sure of that now?
[Witness confers with counse

A. I was in the reserve for a period of time after that.
Sen. Powers. When were you actually separated from the United

States Air Force?
The Witness. As I said, in 1946, March, 1946.
Sen. Powers. Was that from active duty you were separated
The Witness. Yes.
Q. Have you been in uniform in active duty from 1942 to 1946

A. No, sir.
Q. Part of the time you were on inactive duty? A. Yes, sir
Q. When? A. 1943, early part of ’44, I believe.
Q. What were you doing then? A. I was an instructor, pilot in-

structor.
Q. Well, in the Air Force? A. Yes, sir.
Q. In uniform? A. Yes, we were in uniform, but we were civilian

instructors. They had this supplementary business of people who were
able to fly, and they took us into the enlisted reserve and then put us out
as instructors.

Q. [By Rep. Tynan.] Where did you get your flying experience?
A. I learned to fly in Latrobe, Pittsburgh, a little outside of Pittsburgh.

Q. What were your duties when you were on active duty? A. A pilot
Q. Air Transport pilot? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Ever touch in Russia? A. No, sir
Q. Where did you fly? A. Practically all domestic deliveries.
Q. Nothing Far-Eastern? A. I was on overseas order for the hum]

CBI, but the war ended first.
Q. You mean you had orders to go there but never actually reached

there? A. That is right.
Sen. Powers. Did you ask whether or not the witness was a member

if the Communist Party?
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Mr. Bresnahan. Yes.
Sen. Powers. What was his answer
Mr. Bresnahan. He availed himself of the constitutional privileges,
The Witness. I didn’t follow.
Mr. Bresnahan. Was there any instant from the time he joined the

forces of the UE until now that he was not a member of the Communist
Party, and he availed himself of the Twelfth.

Q. [By Sen. Powers.] You understand that there is no doubt in your
mind that Communism as described here by the Legislature of the Com-
monwealth is a conspiracy against this Government? There is no doubt
in your mind about that? That is the law of the Commonwealth. There
is no doubt in your mind right now, is there, Mr. Newell, as to the feeling
of Massachusetts towards Communism? You understand thoroughly
now that it is a crime, a conspiracy against this country? You are nodding
your head. In other words, you have a complete understanding that it is
a conspiracy? A. I understand that it is illegal and against the laws of
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Q. Are you now engaged in a conspiracy against the United States
Government? A. No, sir, I’m not.

Q. You are not a member of the Communist Party now? A. No.
Q. Were you a member of the CommunistParty yesterday? A. Are

you going off into some, you know, fishing expedition?
Q. Please don’t give me that, because the last three witnesses used the

same thing. In other words, you should follow up, as they said, and they
didn’t want to come fishing with us. We are not fishing, now, and I will
ask the questions and you answer them. If you don’t want to answer
them, you consult with your counsel. But you are there to answer ques-
tions, not to ask them. You have testified that you are not a member of
the Communist Party. Previously you refused to answer, is that right,
Mr. Counsel?

Mr. Bresnahan. Previously he refused to answer
Q. Now to my question you have answered that you are not now a

member of the Communist Party as of today. I want to know when you
ceased being a member of the Communist Party. Was it yesterday or
when? A. That is one of those questions, “Have you stopped beating
your wife? ”

Q. You just answer the question any way you want. You refused to
answer the question before, but now you answer it. A. I decline to
answer on the basis of the explanation previously given, the Twelfth
Article.

Q. So to you it is a question, when you are asked whether or not you
are a member of the Communist Party as of yesterday, you in your
opinion think that it is so unimportant that it is one of those when did
you stop beating your wife questions. Do I understand that? A. That
is your assumption, sir.

Q. Please straighten me out if my assumption is wrong, Mr. Newell.
I did not make the analogy. You made it. Now you straighten me out.
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I want to find out whether a naturalized citizen of this country feels that
way about it. Now straighten me out because that is in the record and

words in your mouth. This is what
r have you answer that for me.

you are under oath. I’m not putting
you testified to. Now I would like t<

Mr. Rosenberg. May I have the question

[The question is read

A. I decline to answer it on the ba
Sen. Powers. Having opened the

is of the Twelfth.
door, I suggest that the witness be

ordered to answer that question. He has testified that he is not. First
of all, he refused to answer the question as to whether or not he was a
member of the Communist Party as put to him by the counsel. Yet, as
to the question whether or not he is a member of the Communist Party
now, the witness has answered in the negative. Inasmuch as he has
volunteered the information, it is my opinion that the witness should be
ordered to answer this question
right, Mr. Counsel?

I think we should pursue it. Am I

Mr. Bresnahan. Well, he wa
the Communist Party today. He
he had resigned yesterday.

asked whether he was a member of
aid he was not. Then whether or not

Sen. Powers. Previously he refused to answer.
Mr. Bresnahan. Now he says he is not a member of the Communist

Party today. He refused to answer yesterday whether or not he was a
member. I think he has a right to refuse to answer that question. Am I
wrong on that?

Mr. Cashman. I think you are right
Sen. Powers. I have no more questions.
The Chairman. Rep. Randall.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] Who is your superior in the United Electrical

Union? A. The national officers of the union and the general executive
board, as provided for by the Constitution.

Q. Who particularly do you work under? Do you have some one
man that you report to? A. Generally the director of organization.

J. MatleQ. Who was that? A. James
fore investigating committees too,Q. Now Mr. Matles has been

has he not?

[Witness confers with counsel.]
A. I believe so. I have never attended an

Q. As I recall it, Mr. Matles has availed himself of the Fifth Amend-
ment before a Congressional investigating committee when asked whether
or not he was a member of the Communist Party. Is that so?

[Witness confers with counsel

A. It is quite likely that he does, but I just don’t know. I can’t recall
of any instance that he did. When appearing before Senator McCarthy
last time and I happened to read some excerpts of that, and when he
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appeared before McCarthy he presented to them, you know, an affidavit
that he was not a member of the Communist Party.

Q. Now who is the President of this union? A. Albert Fitzgerald.
Q. You have been with them a good many years. Who sent you up

here to Massachusetts? Mr. Matles? A. He gives the directions for
the changing of staff.

Q. Did Mr. Matles ever ask you whether or not you were a member
of the Communist Party?

[Witness confers with counsel
A. Sir, I decline to answer that on the grounds previously stated, the
Twelfth.

Q. Did Mr. Fitzgerald ever ask you that? A. I decline to answer
that on the grounds previously stated.

Q. Was that one of the requisites for getting the job, Mr. Newell?
A. I decline to answer that on the grounds previously stated.

Q. Now how many organizers does the HE have up in this area?
A. Well, I believe the Committee subpoenaed them all. Eight in
Massachusetts. Pardon me, seven.

Rep. Sala. Would you remember their names?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

The Witness. Yes, sir
Rep. Sala. Would you mind giving me the names as long as you say

that you remember them, that there are only seven?
The Witness. Boris Block, Don Tormey, Jacob Zerambi
Mr. Bresnahan. Where does he live?
The Witness. Lynn

Mr. Bresnahan. Do you know where in Lynn
The Witness. No, sir. Surfside Road, I believe. Bill Murdock

Tony Rodrigues, Doug Perry and Charles Newell.
Mr. Bresnahan. We have mentioned everybody we have got here

today except Gerard Steinberg and Alex Leith. Are they organizers?
The Witness. I should have mentioned Alex Leith
Mr. Bresnahan. How about Gerard Steinberg?
The Witness. He is really a publicity man. Steinberg is a District

Representative.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.] Mr. Newell, I wasn’t here, but I understand

we have had three of these gentlemen in here today before you. A. Yes,
iir.

Q. And I understand that they also refused to answer questions with
reference to being members of the Communist Paity? A. They did?

Q. That one of the requisites of getting a job as an organizer, you
refuse to answer questions availing yourself of the Fifth Amendment or
the Twelfth Article when asked about Communism?

[Witness confers with Counsel.!
A. I decline to answer that.
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Q. You decline to answer that question on the Twelfth Article, is
that right? A. Right, sir.

Q. Yet your President of the Union, Mr. Fitzgerald, has signed a
Taft-Hartley affidavit, hasn’t he? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you vote for Mr. Fitzgerald for President? I mean are you
one of the Internationa] Representatives that vote for Mr. Fitzgerald as
President? A. International Representatives don’t vote unless they are
delegates to the convention, elected by the locals to which they belong.

Q. What local do you belong to? A. 201.
Q. And where is that located? A. In Lynn.
Q. Do you represent part of the General Electric Company now

A. No, sir.
Q. You are still over in Lynn? A. We have hopes.
Q. And what is the name of the other union? A. lUI
Q. And the lUE has taken over the Lynn plant, isn’t that so, from

you people? A. That is correct.
Q. But you are still working under them? A. That is right
Q. How many people belong to your local now?
Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chainnan, if I may, I would like to object to

that question.
,

Rep. Randall. I will waive the question. I’m not interested as sucl
Let me ask this.

Q. You have a great many people in the local, or has it dwindled
down to a small number?

Mr. Rosenberg. I don’t know the point of your question, but I
would like to re-object. I don’t see what that has to do with the inquiry.

The Chairman. I don’t know what his next question is going to be
insist on it. What I’m after isRep. Randall. I’m not going t

something a little bit different.
invention that you had? A. No,Q. Were you a delegate to the last

sir.

Q. You were not? A. No, sir.
Q. When was the last convention? A. Yearly convention. Septem-

ber.

Q. Last September? A. Yes
Q. And Mr. Fitzgerald was re-elected then? A. Yes, sir
Rep. Randall. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. I would like to ask Mr. Newell just two questions.
Q. [By the Chairman.] The day before you became naturalized were

you then a member of the Communist Party? A. I decline to answer
that question on the grounds previously stated, the Twelfth and the
Fifth.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party the day after you
became naturalized? A. I decline to answer that question on the ground
previously stated, the Twelfth and the Fifth of the United States Con-
stitution.

The Chairman. Any other questions? Mr. Cashman
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Q. [By Mr. Cashman.] Mr. Newell, were you a member of the
Communist Party at any time when you were a member of the armed
forces, while you were in uniform or while you were a civilian teacher,
pilot teacher? A. I decline to answer that on the grounds previously
stated, the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitution and the
Fifth Article of the United States Constitution.

Q. Now were you ever present at any meeting or assembly where the
violent overthrow of this Governmentwas being discussed? A. I decline
to answer that on the grounds previously stated, the Twelfth and the
Fifth.

Q. Were you every present at any meeting or assembly where the
violent overthrow of this Government was being advocated? A. I
decline to answer that on the grounds previously stated, the Twelfth and
the Fifth.

Q. Whether or not you know that the underlying theme of Com-
munist activity is the violent overthrow of government as expounded by
Marx, Engels, Lenin and Stalin?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I don’t qualify as an expert in this field. I understand from the laws
of Massachusetts and the Federal laws, yes.

Q. I’m not asking you to qualify yourself as an expert. I merely ask
whether or not as a layman on whatever level and with whatever degree
A. Yes, I know it has been so classified.

Q. And whether or not you subscribe or whether you believe that the
classification has been a proper one? I’m not now inquiring essentially
into your beliefs. You don’t have to answer the question if you don’t
want to. A. I decline to answer on the grounds previously stated.

Q. Now whether or not you are aware that there has been directed
against the UE a comment from time to time and from various sources
that it was Communist dominated? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And whether or not that comment and the various sources that it
might have come from also came from individuals recognized on the
national scene as being outstanding and fellow American labor leaders?

[Witness confers with counsel.]
A. That is a matter of opinion.

Q. Whether or not, irrespective of the opinion, it has not been stated
that certain individuals, for example, Walter Reuther is a good, thoroughly
American labor leader? I’m not now talking about whether it is true.
I’m merely talking whether or not it has been said in various sources.
A. Walter Reuther is President of the UAW and also of the CIO. He
is a recognized leader of a national labor organization, yes, sir.

Q. And the same would apply with respect to Mr. Carey, or would it?
A. I feel that this is getting away from the area that has been defined.
I don’t want to get in a discussion here under the definition that the
attorney gave us at the beginning as to my opinions of the relative merits.
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Q. Let me make this suggestion to you, Mr. Newell, and specifically
to your counsel. The Supreme Court has held on many occasions that in
order to get at the kernel of the subject matter under investigation it may
be necessary under certain circumstances from time to time to ask ques-
tions of seeming irrelevancy, but the seeming irrelevancy was to develop
in substance a relevancy to the subject matter discussed. Now I submit
to you, sir, that the question of the opinions of various of the labor leaders
the recognized labor leaders on the national scene, with respect to the
activities of the UE, is not without relevancy. Do you agree, sir?
A. They have made those charges.

Q. I want to say in all fairness to you that, irrespective of whether
you agree, since in my judgment it is a relative question, I’m going to ask
it and you may deal with it as you see fit. A. They are nationally
recognized leaders of labor organizations; and they have, particularly
Mr. Carey, for purposes in my opinion of his own, made that charge.

Q. So that you are at odds or not in complete agreement with Mr.
Carey or with Mr. Reuther when they make charges of that nature against
UE, is that correct? I would like to get it for the record. A. No, sir.

Q. You are not in agreement? A. I think they have organizational
purposes in mind.

Q. And do you feel that the organizational purposes that they may
have in mind would run to the extent that they would label a union as
being subversive or Communist dominated unless there was at least a
scintilla of evidence to sustain their opinion?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. The answer is Yes,
Q. You think they would? A. I think they would without sub-

stantial evidence to that fact. Let me say the following, if I may, sir.
Q. Go ahead, sir. A. You are getting into a field which I don’t

think is germane, but since you have brought it up I would like to explain
that we have great pride in our union, that it is run on a rank-and-file
basis and that the decisions and directions of our labor organization are
good and honorable ones and are the best designed to serve the interest
of the members that they represent. Now let me illustrate what I mean.
Take, for instance, on one of the key issues around which a labor organi-
zation revolves.

We have a difference of opinion with Mr. Carey as to how that should
be conducted. He believes, in the event of a strike, or the call for a strike,
that the power to call that strike should be placed in the hands of a higher
body. For instance, in the case of the General Electric Company, in the
hands of the conference board or perhaps even delegated to the hands of
a smaller committee of the conference board, the negotiation committee,
while we believe that before any such action should be taken, that it
should be by a referendum vote of the rank-and-file members involved.
Now this goes through the whole structure of our organization. Now I
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cite this as one illustration where we are just at very strong odds with
Mr. Carey, and we believe that the purposes that he has in mind do not
serve the interests of the members.

Q. Now don’t you feel it is rather strange that a reasonably large
number of top flight officials connected with the UE have been labeled
by many individuals and by many sources who have achieved at least a
great reputation, whether their character is commensurate with it or not —

should be leveled against the UE
lent unions? A. Yes.

isn’t it strange that these charges
together with several other indepenc

Q. Do you feel as though there
respect to the charges that have been
to answer that on the grounds of the

is any validity on any level with
made? A. Sir, I’m going to decline
Twelfth.

Q. Do you feel as though there
infiltration? A. I decline to answei

is within the UE some Communist
that on the grounds of the Twelfth.

Q. Do you know of any Communist infiltration within the UE of
your own knowledge? A. I decline to answer that.

Q. Do you have any reason to feel, as a result of your contactual re-
lationship with the rank-and-file personnel of the UE, that some of them
may be under the influence of a foreign power? A. Sir, you are getting
out into a wide field. I decline to answer that on the grounds of the
’Twelfth.

Q. Now, look, you have a perfect right any time to invoke the con-
stitutional privilege, but I think you ought to be told and I think
perhaps your counsel will bear me out that you can’t invoke the
privilege frivolously. Now I’m not going to attribute any significance
to your statement, “Oh, you are getting out of the field; I decline to
answer”, because it is a non sequitur. A. Sir, your language is too
complicated for me.

Q. It is not too complicated for }rou. One doesn't follow the other.
Merely because you feel that it is out of your field doesn’t make it a
proper basis for invoking your privilege. You know what the basis is for
invoking the privilege, do you not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You certainly don’t want to invoke it frivolously? A. No, sir.
Q. And you certainly don’t want to invoke it perjuriously? A. You

have got me again.
Q. In invoking it, you don’t want to commit perjury, do you? A. Oh

no sir.
Q. I ask the question again perhaps rephrased, but in substance

the same. As a result of your relationship with the rank and file and with
the top-flight personnel of the UE, do you have any reason to believe
that they might be under the direction of a foreign inimical power?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Sir, I decline to answer that on the grounds of the privilege of the
Twelfth.

Q. At any time while you have been connected with the UE, have
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you ever known a Communist member of the UE? A. I decline to
answer that on the grounds of the Twelfth.

Q. Have you yourself ever had to take the Taft-Hartley affidavit?
A. No, sir.

Q. Of the individuals whose names you gave a few moments ago, the
seven names, are there any of those individuals who would have, by
virtue of their position, had to take an affidavit under the Taft-Hartley
Act? A. I don’t know of any of them that have. They may have.

Mr. Bkesnahait. I don’t believe any of them dc
Q. But you don’t know any of them, by your own knowledge, by virtue

of his position who would have to? A. Some of them may have at earlier
times. I don’t know.

Q. I would like to develop just one more thought, Mr. Chairman, and
I mil finish. Whether or not you believe that the function of the Union
and good unionism is limited only to what is “best for the worker” or
whether or not you feel that there is an Americanism proposition that is
paramount in the activities of the Union? A. I feel that a good healthy
trade union movement is not only good for the workers that they repre-
sent but good for America.

Q. Now let’s see. As a general proposition you subscribe to the
thought that what is good for labor is good for America, is that right?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Supposing, for example, that some of the laborers in a union or
some of the workers in a union were Communists. Would the activity
of the union to gain benefits for its workers not be impaired and sus-
ceptible of being impugned if it had a large number of Communists con-
nected with it?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Sir, I’m really not here to engage in theoretical discussions, and I
don’t believe under the terms of the investigation I should be required to.

Q. Well, I want to suggest to you that because our Chairman must
depart for another meeting lam not going to press it. But, so far as I’m

oncerned, at some later date I may press it. A. Yes, sir
The Chairman. Any further questions? Have you any further
Mr. Bresnahan. No,

ition I would like to ask this gentlRep. Randall. I have one que;
man.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have one question I would like to ask him. Where
is it you came from?

The Witness. Templepatrick
Mr. Bresnahan. Is that South or North
The Witness. That is the North. County Antrii
Rep. Randall. I would like to ask him this question. You may not

be able to answer it and you may not want to. But can you tell me how
it is that Mr. Fitzgerald, the President of the Union, comes in and an-
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swers all questions without availing himself of the Fifth Amendment or
the Twelfth Article, and yet the other members of the Union that we get
that come in before us all avail themselves of their constitutional privi-
leges?

Mr. Cashman. Rep. Randall, may I interject merely to get the
record straight? My distinct recollection of the Fitzgerald testimony
preceding him we had Mr. Carey come in, and Mr. Carey’s opening gun
to the Commission was that he would under no circumstances avail
himself of the Fifth Amendment. Counsel read the statement that Mr.
Carey made to Mr. Fitzgerald, asked Mr. Fitzgerald whether or not he
would make a similar statement, Mr. Fitzgerald said he would prefer to
deal with the individual questions as they came along. I don’t want the
record to indicate that Mr. Fitzgerald answered any and all questions
that were put to him.

Rep. Randall. Maybe my memory is faulty. I do not remember
that Mr. Fitzgerald availed himself of the Fifth Amendment at any time
in his testimony.

Mr. Cashman. That is true, that he didn’t
Rep. Randall. All right. Can you explain that?
The Witness. No, sir, I have no explanation.
Rep. Randall. Could it be because Mr. Fitzgerald has to sign the

Taft-Hartley affidavit for the union?
The Witness. I don’t know.
Rep. Randall. Would it be that you would have to have one person

sign that Taft-Hartley affidavit?
The Witness. I have no answer.
Rep. Randall. That is all.
The Chairman. Has he signed?
Mr. Bresnahan. If you sign where it says “Vendor”. I believe you

are instructing the witness to return under the same summons. It is
continued until April sth, Tuesday morning at ten o’clock, at Room 200,
State House.

The Chairman. Sir, do you wish to make a voluntary statement of
any kind at this time? You are entitled to it.

The Witness. No, sir,

The Chairman. I think we will adjourn until two o’clock.

Douglas Perry was born in Rockland, Maine, on May 24,
1925. After attending local schools he attended Oberlin
College in Ohio and received there the degree of Bachelor
of Arts in 1946. Following an eighteen-month service in
the Psychiatric Department of the Medical Corps of the
United States Army, he became a laborer at the Fairbanks-

Douglas N. Perry.
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Morse Company in St. Johnsbury, Vermont. He became
the business agent of the UE Local connected with that
plant. Shortly thereafter, in May 1948, he was appointed
a field organizer of the UE. He was still engaged in that
capacity when he appeared as a witness before this Com-
mission in a public hearing on August 3, 1955.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Perry was an active member of the Communist Party
in 1949. He solicited and sold subscriptions to the March
of Labor in 1951, and contributed money that year to the
Communist Party. He was active in the Progressive Party.
He was a member of the New England Citizens Concerned
for Peace, which this Commission reported upon as a Com-
munist-dominated organization in its Interim Report filed
June 8, 1955. He has been actively associated in Com-
munist activities with Elba Chase Nelson of New Hamp-
shire, Daniel Boone Schirmer, Joseph Figueredo, Mary
Figueredo, Emanuel Blum, Roy Rogerson, Nathaniel Mills
and Ann Burlak.

We quote from a transcript of his testimony at the public
hearing of this Commission, August 3, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Beesnahan.] What is your name? A. Douglas N.
Perry.

Q. Where do you live? A. 289 Bolton Street, New Bedford, Mass,
Q. Would you tell us where and when you were born and what your

education was? A. Rockland, Maine, May 24, 1925. I entered gram-
mar and high schools in that city and college at Oberlin College.

Q. When did you graduate from Oberlin and what degree did you get?
A. 1946. Bachelor of Arts.

Q. What did you do following your graduation? A. I went into the
United States Army.

Q. How long were you in the Army and what was your position in
the Army? A. I was in the Army for eighteen months, was in the Medi-
cal Corps, Psychiatric Department.

Q. Following your discharge, which should be in 1947— A. Correct.
Q. What were your duties of employment after that? A. I got a

job in the Fairbanks-Morse Company in Vermont. St. Johnsbury,
Vermont.

Q. How long did you work there? A. Several month;
Q. When did you leave that employment? A. I would say in the

spring of ’47.
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Q. And when you left that employment what occupation did you
follow? A. I became business agent of the local union in the plant.

Q. When you were an employee in the plant what was your position
A. What occupation did I have?

Q. Yes. A. General laborer.
Q. Was that when you joined the UE? A. Yes.
Q. When you went to work for Fairbanks-Morse? A. Yes.
Q. Can you place about the time you became business agent? A. It

was around the spring. Perhaps March or February.
Q. Of ’47? A. I would say Yes.
Q. How long did you continue to be business agent of that local in

Vermont? A. Between two and three months.
Q. Following that what was your next occupation? A. I became a

field organizer pro tern, I would say, for the United Electrical Workers.
Q. Can you place the month and year of that? A. Probably April

or May of 1947.
Q. And who appointed you that? A. Albert Smith
Q. Where did your duties take you following May of 1947? A.

Somersworth, New Hampshire.
Q. For how long were you in Somersworth, New Hampshire? A. I

would say for over a year. Perhaps a year and a half.
Q. That would take you to sometime in 1948, if you were appointed

in May of 1947. A year or a year and a half? A. I think I was in error
on that date. I think it was in 1948 I became assigned to the staff of the
UE. I think I was a year behind.

Q. That would be May of 1948 you became a field organizer? A
That is right.

Q. Then for a year or a year and a half your duties were in Somers-
worth, New Hampshire. What is the number of the local there? A.
There is no local there. It was an organizational campaign.

Q. Did you organize a local? A. No, I did not.
Q. After a year and a half you moved on from Somersworth, New

Hampshire, to where? A. I was assigned to the New Britain, Connecti-
cut, area.

Q. Can you tell us when about in 1949 that would have been and
how long you stayed there? A. I think it was around November of
1949. I ■was there about six months I would say.

Q. That would bring you up to April or May of 1950? A. Approxi
mutely.

Q. All right. Where did you go from there as a field organizer? A
Providence, Rhode Island.

Q. How long were you in Providence, Rhode Island? A. A matter
of a few weeks.

Q. From Providence, Rhode Island, what was the next way station?
A. Worcester.

Q. When did you first come to Worcester, Massachusetts, as a field
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organizer? A. I would say it was the end of May or the very first of
June, 1950.

Q. Could you tell us how long you stayed there? A. Until around
the first part of August of that year.

Q. Then you went where? A. New Bedford, Massachusetts.
Q. From August, 1950, how long wereyou in New Bedford? A. Well,

actually I have been there since that time except for brief assignments in
other parts of this district, New England.

Q. Do you vote? A. I certainly do, sir.
Q. Where are you a registered voter? A. New Bedford, Mass.
Q. Have you been a member of the Communist Party? A. I decline

to answer that question on the grounds of the Twelfth Article which I
intend to uphold by invoking it. I think that it has had enough discus-
sion so that I don’t have to read it. Those are the grounds on which I
refuse to answer that question.

Q. Are you now a member of the Communist Party? A. Same
answer.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were in
Somersworth, New Hampshire? A. Same answer.

Q. Were you associated in the Communist Party in Somersworth
New Hampshire, with Elba Chase Nelson? A. Same answer.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were in
New Britain, Connecticut? A. Same answer.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were in
the United States Army? A. Same answer.

Q. Is there any time as long as you have been an organizer for the
UE that you have not been a member of the Communist Party? A. And
you expect me to answer that Yes or No, sir? Isn’t that a rather double
barrelled question?

Q. Is it ambiguous to you? A. It is quite. It is when answered
Yes or No.

Q. Let me ask you this. Were you a member of the Communist
Party when you first became associated with the UE? A. I already
answered that question.

Q. You are still associated with the UE? A. That is right
Q. Has there been any time since you first became associated with the

UE until this instant that you have not been a member of the Communist
Party? A. Twelfth Article.

Mr. Bresnahax. I have no further questior
The Chairman. Any questions on the part of members of the Com-

mission? If there are no further questions, then, you understand that
you are entitled under our rules to make a statement, either written or
orally, bearing solely on the questions and answers to be voluntarily given,
and you are under no compulsion to make such statement. Do you wish
to make a statement?

The Witness. I just wish to say that I’m very proud of the organ!
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zation I work for and I’m proud to have been a small part of the accom-
plishments of this union, that I believe in its democratic procedures, and
I am very proud of its record and my part in that record. That is all I
have to say.

The Chairman. Call the next witness, Mr. Counsel.
Mr. Bresnahan. I call Raymond Austin. Before he is sworn, I

spoke to you concerning him this morning. He was summoned to be here
before. Due to Mr. Rosenberg’s necessity of going to Washington, he
has not had an executive hearing. He spoke to his counsel about that
this morning and he spoke to me and he would waive an executive hearing
rather than have two hearings.

Anthony Rodigues.

Anthony Rodrigues was born in Lisbon, Portugal, on
December 26, 1912. He came to the United States on
August; 7, 1920, at Providence, Rhode Island, and was
naturalized at Elizabeth, New Jersey, on April 26, 1943.
He married Antonia Eniont on October 30, 1937, at New
York City.

His first contact with the UE was with a local in Eliza-
beth, New Jersey, in 1944. After having served as financial
secretary, steward and business agent of that local he was
hired as a field organizer by James Matles in 1949. He has
continued in that capacity to date, and as been assigned
to New Bedford Local 277 since October, 1954.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
he first joined the Communist Party at Elizabeth, New
Jersey, in 1943. He continued his membership during the
existence of the Communist Political Association, and after
its disbanding again became active in the Communist
Party in 1945. He was active recruiting members in the
Communist Party. He succeeded in getting a great many
members of the UE to attend classes at the Walt Whitman
School of Social Science in New Jersey. This school was a
Communist-controlled institution similar to the Samuel
Adams School in Boston. It has been cited by the Attorney
General as Communist controlled. The “Worker” on
June 12, 1949, listed Rodrigues among the signers of a
telegram to Judge Medina protesting the jailing of Gates,
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Winston and Hall, who had been convicted as Communist
leaders under the Smith Act.

A e quote from the testimony of Mr. Rodrigues before
this Commission in public hearing on August 3, 1955, as
follows:

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Anthony Rod-
rigues.

Q. Where do you live? A. 510 St. George Avenue, Linden, New
Jersey.

Q. Do you have a present address in Massachusetts? A. Yes, I have
Q. What is your present address in Massachusetts? A. I can be

reached at a number of places. At 10 Tremont Street, Boston; at 41
Bedford Street, New Bedford, Massachusetts; 2 Arch Street, New
Bedford, Massachusetts. I can be reached at any one of those places.

Q. Is any one of those places a dwelling place? A. 2 Arch Street.
Q. Will you tell us when and where you were born? A. I was born

in Lisbon, Portugual, December 26, 1912.
Q. When did you come to this country? A. At the age of seven in

1920.
Q. What was the port of entry? A. Providence, Rhode Island, I

believe.
Q. Did your father and mother both come at that time? A. Ye
Q. Were they naturalized? A No, they weren’t.
Q. Never have been? A. No.
Q. Were you naturalized? A. Yes, sir.
Q. When and where wrere you

Jersey, in 1943.
naturalized? A. In Elizabeth, New

schooling was? A. I went to school
school. I left school during the sixth

Q. Will you give us what your
in Taunton, Massachusetts, public
grade and went to work. That was the extent of my formal schooling.
Whatever education I got later was by my own efforts on an informal
basis.

Q. Since you went to work what has been your occupation? A. I
worked in two textile plants in Pawtucket, Rhode Island. I don’t re-
member the name of one of them. The other is Jenks & Tamerick. I
believe that was the name. And I worked for a few weeks learning the
weaver’s trade at the Royal Weaving, Pawtucket, Rhode Island. I say
that. 1 believe actually I spent time there. I didn’t get paid for it.
I was learning the trade.

Q. When did you come originally to Massachusetts? A. Well, the
port of entry, as I said, in 1920, was Providence, but my family took up
residence in Taunton, Mass. Providence was merely the port of entry.
We did not live there for any period of time.

Q. When did you first become associated with the UE? A. In about
1944, somewhere around that time.
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Q. You were a resident of where when you became a member of thi
UE? A. Elizabeth, Now Jersey.

Q. What was your position with the UE in Elizabeth, New Jersey
A. I started to work for the Singer Manufacturing Company in 1929.

The Chairman. Will you wait one minute? I want the stenotypist
to record the fact that Rep. Rynan, the Vice-Chairman, is now present.

Mr. Bresnahan. And Rep. Randall has returned.
Q. You were at the Singer Sewing Machine Company in what year?

A. 1929. And there was no union organization in the plants and we had
very low wages and very poor working conditions and no security on the
job until the UE came around, and somewhere in the early forties began
to organize a drive. I became active in the unionization of the plant,
became a leader of the union, and eventually we won a National Labor
Relations Board election, went about the business of negotiating a con-
tract and I was a member of the negotiating committee.

Q. Approximately what year was that? A. Well, our first contract
with the Singer Manufacturing Company in Elizabeth was negotiated in
1945. An agreement was reached in 1945.

Q. "When then did you first join the UE? A. Probably in the early
part of 1944. I may be a little off.

Q. And were you an officer at any time during the formation of the UE,
your local? A. I was financial secretary, I was steward, I was chief
steward, I became business agent of the local, I was on the grievance
committee, I was a member of the negotiating committee. I may have
held other office.

Q. Was that substantially from 1944 until when in that local?
A. Until 1949.

Q. 'What was the number of that local? A. The number was 401.
Q. Then in 1945 did you leave that local? A. Yes, sir, I did.
Q. Where did you go then? A. I took a position as a field organizer

with a national organization, the UE
Q. Now from 1944 to 1949 were you a resident of Elizabeth, New

Jersey? A. linden is a town nearby.
Q. To whom did you apply or who hired you as a field organizer in

1949? A. The director of organization, James Matles.
Q. And what were your duties and where were your assignments after

1949? A. In New Jersey. The Metropolitan New York area. Mostly
in New Jersey in various parts of the state.

Q. When did you first come to Boston? A. Massachusetts in
October 1954, last year.

Q. Is that the first time you came to Boston or came to Massachu
setts? A. Well, I had been here on visits or pleasure trips.

Q. I mean as an official. A. As an official employee
Q. Were you assigned to the New Bedford local? A. That is right
Q. And that number is what again, please? 277, is it? A. 277
Q. And you still are assigned there? A. Yes, sir.
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<4 Now, Mr. Rodrigues, you joined the UE then for the first timearound 1943 is that right? Would you tell me again when you joined the
n rvu

f lSt time? A ' 1944' p°ssibly in the latter part of 1943.(v When you joined the UE were you a member of the Communist1 ,y ; ,A- 1 declme to answer that question and invoke my privilegeunder the Twelfth Article of the Constitution.
.

Q\J‘‘ 1945
,

Wef you still a resident of Elizabeth, New JerseyA. Either Elizabeth or Linden, which is a town nearby.
„ % Yhr tIK Commimist Party was dissolved and the CommunistPolitical Association was created, did you become a member of theCommunist Political Association? A. 1 decline to answer that quest!for the same reason that I gave previously, Twelfth Article of the Cc -

stitution.
Q. 4ou were telling us about the education you got at differ' tplaces. Were you in attendance at the Walt Whitman School of So alScience in New Jersey. A. I decline to answer that question for the a* lereason.
The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, what was the name of the school?Mr. Bresnahan. The Walt Whitman School of Social Science NewJersey. That is a school that has been cited and is on the AttorneyGeneral’s list.
Q. Now then, when you were around the New York area did you haveany connection with the Jefferson School for Social Science? A. I de-cline to answer the question for the same reason.
Q. Do you know Donald Tormey? A. Yes, sir, I do.
Q. Have you known him in tire Communist Party? A. I decline toanswer that question for the same reason.
Q. Are you now a member of the Commimist Party? A. No sirI am not.
Q. Were you a member(J. Were you a member of the Communist Party at any time in 1955?A. I decline to answer that question under the Twelfth Article of theConstitution.
Mi. Bresnahan. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. Are there any questions of this witness on the partof members of the Commission? There are no questions, apparently.I will inform the witness, as I have other witnesses, that at this momentyou aie entitled to make a statement either verbally or in writing bearingsolely on the questions asked and the answers given at this examination.Do you wish to make such a statement? You are under no compulsionto make it.
The Witness. Yes, sir. I want to make a brief statement. I said in

my testimony that I started to work for the Singer Company in Elizabethm 1929 and that there was no union there, and I said it is in the record
- that wages were low and that conditions were poor and that we organ-ized it. The UE came around and organized our plant, and I became a
member of the negotiating committee. We reached an agreement with
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the company in 1945 on our first contract, and I was a member of that
negotiating committee. We won for 5,500 Singer workers at that time
one and a quarter million dollars of back pay. In that contract we got
the company to adhere to the principle of equal pay for equal work.

The Chairman. Your union was the bargaining agent?
The Witness. The Electrical Workers, UE-CIO, at that particular

time. We wiped out the principle of sex discrimination against women
employees in that principal plant. One-third of the plant won increases
of 30 to 70 cents an hour. In the following four years we increased wages
by an average of 60 to 65 cents per hour.

The Chairman. What bearing has that on the questions and answers?
The Witness. Counsel questioned me in some detail on my activi-

ties in the union, the offices I held, and I think it is fitting that some of
the details be filled in.

The Chairman. What were your particular activities?
The Witness. I was an officer and I was a member of the negotiating

committee, and I’m trying to spell out some of the positive things that
we accomplished, the good we did for the American working men and
working women in that plant.

The Chairman. I think we are acquainted with your results in most
of your plants as to benefits. But what we are anxious to find out is
your own activity which you did yourself.

The Witness. Well, I helped negotiate these increases, these benefits
that we won in this plant and in the contract. I’m pretty proud of it
and I think it is a good accomplishment, and I would like the Committee
to know about it.

The Chairman. That was outside Massachusetts?
The Witness. That is correct. But I was questioned in respect to

my activities in the state of New Jersey.

The Chairman. I see. Do you wish to add anything to that
The Witness. Yes, sir. We also negotiated pension benefits for the

members of the union in that plant. We greatly improved the vacation
plan. For example, service requirements for two weeks’ vacations were
reduced from ten to five years in that first contract, and the workers won
certain paid holidays guaranteed by the union contract. We won hos-
pitalization, surgical and death benefits for the workers and their families
so they would have some measure of protection. At no time did I find
this union to be dominated by any outside group. I found that

The Chairman. By outside group would you include the Communist
Party?

The Witness. I include all groups
The Chairman. When you say dominated, do you mean that you

are not acquainted with any Communists within the organization?
The Witness. I mean that the members of the local run the affairs

of the union. They make all decisions. They make all of them on im-
portant questions such as whether to strike or whether to accept the
contract settlement, usually by secret ballot.
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The Chairman. Do you know whether or not any of those officers
were members of the Communist Party?

The Witness. I decline to answer that question.
The Chairman. You invoke your constitutional right
The Witness. That is right. The Twelfth Article.
The Chairman. Do you wish to add anything further to j our state

ment?
The Witness. No.
The Chairman. Any other question
Q. [By Rep. Tynan.] I just have a couple of questions. Did j'ou

ever attend the Samuel Adams School? A. I decline to answer that
question.

Q. Did j'ou ever attend Harvard University. A. I decline to answer
that question. That is on the record. You know what formal schooling
I had. Just read the record.

Q. I didn’t ask you what is in the record. I asked you a question
A. Well, you have the answer.

Q. Don’t tell me what is on the record. I will find out what is on
the record.

1 drian Leßlanc.

Adrian Leßlanc was bom in Lynn, Massachusetts, on
June 28, 1917, and was graduated from Lynn Classical
High School in 1934. He moved to Fitchburg, served in
the U. S. Army and entered she employ of the UE in 1945
as a field organizer. He was hired by Don Tormey for the
position after an interview with Paul Seymour. He had
previously been business agent of the UE local in Fitchburg.
He has not been in the employ of the UE since 1953.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Leßlanc joined the Communist Party in 1941 prior to
his army service. He was a delegate to Communist Party
Conventions in Boston in July and August, 1945. At that
time he was a member of the Executive Board of the Fitch-
burg Branch of the Party. He attended Marxist classes
under the auspices of the Communist Party in December,
1944, held at 352 Alain Street Fitchburg. He was in at-
tendance at a Lenin Memorial in Worcester in January,
1945. He participated in the founding convention of the
Progressive Party in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in July,
1948. He has been a subscriber to the Daily Worker.

In the Communist Party Mr. Leßlanc has been closely
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associated with Isadore Silverman, Otis Hood, Hugh De-
Gregory, Emanuel Blum, Nathaniel Mills and Jack Green.

We quote from his testimony before this Commission on
August 3, 1955, as follows;

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Adrian Leßlanc
Q. Where do you live, Mr. Leßlanc? A. 53 Eden Glen Road,

Leominster.
Q. Will you tell us where and when you were born and where you

went to school, Mr. Leßlanc? A. I was born in Lynn, Massachusetts,
6/28/17. I attended St. Jean the Baptist parochial school, Corbett
Junior High School, and two years at Lynn Classical High. That is the
extent of my education.

Q. When did you get through at Classical? A. ’34
Q. What has been your occupation since you left school in ’34?

A. I worked briefly as a milkman. I worked for the Hedstrom Union
Company in Fitchburg making baby carriages and bicycles. I spent close
to three years in the service.

Q. WHhat years were those? A. February of ’42 until October 23,
1944.

Q. After you got out of the service what did you do? A. I went
back to work at Hedstrom Union Company and worked there for a brief
time and finally went to work for the LIE.

Q. Now when did you go to work for the LIE? A. I would say early
’45.

Q. And in what capacity were you employed? A. For a brief time
I was a field organizer.

Q. Who appointed you as field organizer? A. I would say I was hired
by Don Tormey and interviewed by Paul Seymour. I believe Don
Tormey recommended me and I was interviewed by Paul Seymour.

Q. At the time you went to work for the UE what position did you
leave? A. I became business agent for local union in the Fitchburg
area.

Q. What plants were the members of the local union of which you
were a ihember employed in? A. They were employed in the General
Electric plant in Fitchburg, Independent Lock.

Q. Now when you went to work for them as a field organizer, how
long did you continue as a field organizer? A. Well, I don’t remember
exactly, but I continued as a field organizer until the Independent Lock
organizational campaign was over, at which time the people in that area
were in need of a business agent, for which job I applied and was duly
elected.

Q. How long totally had you been in the employ of the UE? A. ’4
until ’52 I was business agent for this local union.

Q. And since ’52 have you been in the employ of the UE at all
A. The last time I worked for the UE was in ’53.
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Q. Where did you work for them in ’53? A. ’53 or ’54, I’m not quite
sure

Q. Where did you work for them then? A. I worked as a field or-
ganizer in the Lynn GE campaign. After the Lynn campaign I was as-
signed to the It ilkes Barre-Scranton, Pennsylvania, area. From then I
worked for a brief time in York, Pennsylvania and left the union.

Q. When did you leave the union for the last time? A. I believe it
was in June of ’53.

Q. When you were appointed an organizer of the UE were you a
member of the Communist Party? A. I will have to invoke the Twelfth
Article of the Massachusetts Constitution.

Q. You either can or can’t. A. Ido invoke the Twelfth Article
Q. When you interviewed Don Tormey to secure the position, were

you a member of the Communist Party? A. I didn’t interview Don
Tormey. I refuse for the same reason. Don Tormey recommended me
for the job originally. I didn’t interview him.

Q. Did you know Don Tormey when lie recommended you? A. At
that time, yes.

Q. Did you know Don Tormey in the Communist Party? A. I re-
fuse for the same reason as before.

Q. At any time when you were a field organizer for the UE was there
an instant when you were not a member of the CommunistParty? A. I
refuse to answer. The same answer.

Q. Are you now a member of the Communist Party? A. No
Q. Have you been a member of the Communist Party since Novem-

ber of 1951? A. I will have to invoke the Twelfth Article of the Con-
stitution.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party in 1955? A. lin
voke the Twelfth Article of the Constitution.

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further question:

Rep. Tynan enters hearing room.]

The Chairman. Any further questions of this witness by members of
the Commission? If not, I will advise the witness that under our rules
you are at this moment entitled to make a statement.

The Witness. I have no statement to make.
The Chairman. Then you are excused. If you will sign the paper

entitling you to a witness fee, you will be excused.
Rep. Randall. Are you a member of this union
The Witness. No.
Rep. Randall. You are not a member of the union?
The Witness. No.
Rep. Randall. When did you get out of the union
The Witness. ’53.
Rep. Randall. What was the reason for it? Did you change job:

or change modes of living or what?
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The Witness. Well, I spent too much time traveling. I wanted to
be home with my family. The job involved a tremendous amount of
traveling and I wanted to be home with my family. It was very difficult
for me to maintain a home relationship.

The Chairman. All right, you are excused. We will suspend until
1.30 o’clock this afternoon.

[Noon recess.]

District 2.
The international UE is divided into districts. District 2

is a unit of the organization that has jurisdiction over New
England. This District has its main office at 10 Tremont
Street in Boston. The District elects its own officers and
carries on the day-to-day duties assigned to it in New
England. Since 1943, Paul E. Seymour has uninterruptedly
been the President of this District which includes Massa-
chusetts.

The interest of the Commission naturally centered itself
on District 2. International Representatives and Field
Organizers are assigned by the national office to work in
the District. We have discussed their activities in Massa-
chusetts previously in this report. Attention is now di-
rected to the local office, headed by President Seymour,
its District Representative, Gerard P. Steinberg, and
several of its minor officials.

Paul E. Seymour.

Paul E. Seymour is president of District 2 of the United
Electrical Radio and Machine Workers of America. He is
at present a resident of 224 South Street, Jamaica Plain.
He was born July 12, 1906, in Cambridge. He attended
grammar schools in Cambridge and Boston and was gradu-
ated from Boston College High School in the class of 1923.
He then attended Boston College for two years. After
leaving college he spent several years in the Merchant
Marine. He worked for the Western Electric Company
in Kerny, New Jersey, from 1929 to 1931. He returned to
Boston, and after doing some hotel work became an in-
surance broker. He followed this business from 1936 to
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1941. He entered the employ of the General Electric
Company in Lynn in March, 1941, in the office of the
Scheduling Department.

It was while he was working for the General Electric
Company that he first entered the United Electrical, Radio
and Machine Workers of America as a member of Local 201.
He became a steward of that Local in 1941 and was elected
to the Executive Board in 1942. He was also appointed
Assistant Business Agent that year.

In October, 1943, Mr. Seymour was elected President of
District 2 of the United Electrical, Radio and Machine
Workers of America. He has uninterruptedly been its
President up to the present time.

The sworn testimony of Paul Seymour strains credulity.
He voluntarily waived all constitutional privileges at the
beginning of his testimony. His declared opposition to
Communism is positive. His failure to see Communism
encompassing him is unbelievable. The incongruity cannot
be intellectually reconciled. He solicited the appointment
of Gerard Steinberg as his district representative. He
could not intelligently not have known that Mr. Steinberg
was a Communist. He has and still does harbor Alex
Leith as the publicity director of District 2. It is impossible
to believe that he could not have known of the Communist
background of Mr. Leith. The organizers of District 2
have, almost without exception, been Communists for
years. They and their backgrounds are individually treated
elsewhere in this report. Mr. Seymour’s lack of knowledge
of that background defies sound judgment.

We quote below his testimony in executive session on
March 30, 1955, setting forth Mr. Seymour’s position on
Communism:

Q. [By Mr. Brbsnahan.] As a labor leader, the President of Dis-
trict 2, are you opposed to an international conspiracy that has for one
of its purposes the overthrow of this government?

Mr. Mahony. I assume you mean by that other than constitutional
means?

Q. By force and violence. A. lam opposed to any one or any thing
that may be an agent of a foreign power that is dedicated to the overthrow
of this government by force or violence or any other means other than
constitutional.
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Q. Have you heard allegations that the Communist Party of the
United States was a branch of the Communist Party of the World, Soviet
Russia? A. I have heard that it was.

Q. Have you made any investigation into the fact whether it was or
not? A. I don’t know that it is.

Q. I asked you, have you mad any investigation into the fact as tc
whether or not it was? A. I didn’t make any personal investigation

Q. Did you come to any conclusion? A. 5
Q. What conclusion did you come to? A. I came to the conclusion

that whether it was the Communist Party or any other party, that if,
as I say, they are agents of a foreign power dedicated to the overthrow of
this government by force and violence, I am opposed to it.

Q. Did you come to a conclusion that the Communist Party has for
one of its purposes the overthrow of this govermnent? A. I don’t know
whether that is a conclusion, Mr. Bresnahan. I accept that there were
people convicted who are or were or whatever allegedly Communists.
And the conviction, I believe, was that they conspired to teach the over-
throw of the govermnent by force and violence. I believe that was the
case of those eleven or nine or something.

Q. Did you come to an opinion as to whether or not the Communist
Party of the United States was a coherent part of the Communist Party
of Soviet Russia, the Communist Party of the world? A. I have nevei

I have no way of knowing that it is.
Q. Did you have any responsibility, first, as an ordinary citizen

A. Yes, sir.
Q. To investigate it? A. To investigate whether it is a part of an

international conspiracy?
Q. Yes. A. Yes, I believe I should have an obligation
Q. You should have? A. I should have the obligation as any other

citizen.
Q. You should have more of an obligation as President of District 2,

which has been charged with being Communist dominated. A. Mr.
Bresnahan, on the question of this union being Communist-dominated,
that is a question I have raised in my mind several times. I know that

Q. I am going to ask you to answer the question. You said as a
citizen you had the obligation to find it out. Now I ask you did you
have a greater obligation as President of the District of the UE? A. Yes.

Q. Did you come to the same conclusion as President that the Com-
munist Party of the United States was engaged in an international con-
spiracy which advocated the overthrow of this government by force and
arms? A. Well I mean, excuse me could I have that question
again?

[The question is read.]

[Witness confers with counsel
A. In order, Mr. Bresnahan
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Mr. Mahony. The question, a
the same as President as it was as

I understand it is, was your opinion
an individual citizen.

Mr. Cashman". Could we keep rur voices up, gentlemen
Mr. Mahony. What I said to

question to be, was his opinion the
was as an individual citizen. Am I

the client was, that I understood the
i same as President of the union as it
right in tha
A. Yes.Mr. Brbsnahan. That is right

The Witness. I would recoi md his dischargi
Q. Then you feel there is no ]

A Known Communists?
ace in your union for Communists

Q. For Communists. A. And .gain, I repeat
icer?Q. For Communists? A. As ol

Q As officers? A. I feel that
afficers as Communists, yes.

there is no place in any union for

Q. All right, now. And that is 1
an international conspiracy, is that

ecause a Communist is a member of
right? A. Yes.

Q. Under rigid discipline, is that right? A. Yes

In that testimony, Mr. Seymour definitely set forth his
stand on Communism.

On the incredulity of his repeated assertions that he
knew nothing concerning the Communist background of
Mr. Leith, we quote below the testimony of Mr. Seymour
in executive session on March 30, 1955. The Communist
background of Mr. Leith is quoted elsewhere in this report.

Q. [By Mr. Brbsnahan.] Did you ever ask Alex Leith whether or
not he was a member of the Communist Party? A. No.

Q. Did you ever ask Alex Leith where he got his name, Alex Leith?
A. No. That is his name.

fact that was a nom de plume as a
A. No, sir, I didn’t.

Q. Were you familiar with thi
columnist for the Daily Workerf

at make any difference to you having
here? A. If I knew what?

Q. If you knew that, would tl
him as a publicity director arounc

Q. That he published a column entitled “Building the Communist
Party”? A. Would I have permitted

Q. Would you do anything about it now? A. Well, I wouldn’t per-
And remember, I said he has onlyMit him to work out of my office.

e months. He is in and out of there
trict but a national staff member.

been there a question of two or thn
loing publicity, not only for the di

Sen. Powers. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Senator Powers
Sen. Powers. Did you hire then
The Witness. I didn’t hire any
Q, [By Mr. Brbsnahan.] You

ff these fellows except one.
had him help you write that, didn’t
A. Yes, sir.you [handing photostat to witness]
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“Anti-Labor Agency Attacks Our Union.
UE locals in New England were advised in a letter from Paul E.

Seymour, District President, that a number of UE staff members
have been subpoenaed to appear before the Massachusetts Com-
mission investigating ‘Communism, subversive activities and related
matters.’ The union leaders are scheduled to appear at closed
sessions Tuesday, Mar. 22.

Charging that the commission headed by Philip Bowker has been
meddling in the affairs of unions, Seymour pointed out that the com-
mission’s latest attacks are timed to disrupt the union’s contract
discussions with firms in Massachusetts, Vermont and Connecticut.

Serves Notice.

He also reminded UE leaders representing 25,000 New England
workers that the Bowker Commission made itself available to HIE
President James B. Carey in 1953 as a sounding board on the eve
of NLRB elections in General Electric plants.

‘We serve notice,’ Seymour concluded that ‘our members are de-
termined to preserve and advance their wages, conditions and con-
tracts against any and all attempts to divide and disrupt us.’

The Commission is patterned after the Un-American Activities
Committee, an agency for strike-breaking and union-busting. The
subpoenaing of UE representatives in Massachusetts is the commis-
sion’s most aggressive act to date and is certain to arouse great in-
dignation among the membership and in labor circles generally.”

Q. Do you know whether or not he has ever been called upon to
testify before a Congressional Committee? A. I believe I had heard
somewhere that he was called upon to testify.

Q. You heard he was called upon to testify as to whether or not he
was a member of the Communist Party, is that right? A. I presume
that is why he was there.

Q. What did he answer? A. I don’t know
Q. You mean to say, Mr. Seymour, as President of District 2, that

you have a man in your office as Publicity Director whom you allowed to
issue statements for you, whom you knew was called before a Congres-
sional Committee in regard to his communist affiliations, and you don’t
know whether he said he was or wasn’t or availed himself of the Fifth
Amendment, is that right? A. You said that I allowed him to issue a
statement in my name?

Q. Well, all right —to co-operate with you on that statement. A.
He co-operated with me on the statement.

Q. You said you knew he was called upon one time to testify before a
Congressional investigating committee? A. Yes.
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Q. You don’t know whether he said he was a Communist? A. I
don’t know what he testified to, actually.

Q. And the Communism in your union is of such little moment to
you, the President, that you don’t even know what they testified to, is
that right? A. Quite a few testified.

Q. All right, and it doesn’t matter to you whether they are or not?
A. Mr. Bresnahan

Q. You are awfully hard to understand. You are one of the hardest
people I have seen to understand, and I would just as soon make it a

matter of record. A. I wish you wouldn’t.
Q. Ido purposely, deliberately, and I stand on it,
Now, let me ask you if you go and ask Alex Leith whether he was called

upon to testify as a free lance writer before a Congressional Committee
and he availed himself of the Fifth Amendment, do you feel that he should
still be your Publicity Director, you, as President of District 2 of the
UE. A. He is not my Publicity Director, Mr. Bresnahan.

Q. Do you want him in your office without an explanation from him?
Sen. Powers. Mr. Chairman, I think that the witness has already

said I may be wrong, but I think the witness already said he would not
allow him to be in his office if he knew he was a Communist? Did you
testify to that, Mr. Seymour?

The Witness. No. I testified, Senator, that to the question if I
knew, and I have no way of personally knowing but if I knew and
evidence was given to me that the District Representative was a Com-
munist, I would not

Sen. Powers. We are talking about Mr. Leith, Alex Leith. I thought
you said —■

The Witness. The question was
Sen. Powers. If you knew he was a contributor to a weekly column

in the Daily Worker, or a daily contributor “Building the Communist
Party”, if you were in possession of these facts, as you are now, would
you have him around your office? I thought that question was asked and
you said No.

The Witness. Yes,

Sen. Powers. Did you answer that way?
The Witness. If I didn’t, I would answer that.
Sen. Powers. If there is any doubt in your mind —go ahead, Mr.

Bresnahan.
Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Supposing you find out he testified be-

fore the House Committee on Communism, that he was called as a free
lance writer and was asked about his Communistic affiliations, and he
took the Fifth Amendment. Would that make any difference to you as
President, and he in your office? A. No, because I believe everybody
has a right not that I would take it but I believe that everybody
has the right to invoke themselves of any constitutional privileges or rights
which they have.
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Q. O.K. If you asked him whether he had ever been a paid employee
of the CommunistParty of New York and he answered that in the affirm-
ative, do you still feel that he should be an officer in the district of which
you are the President? A. He is not an officer.

Q. He is not an officer. Should he be the Publicity Director? A
That if he was a paid employee, you said?

Q. That he had been a paid employee of the Communist Party in
New York? A. Would I want him in my district? No.

Q. Did you ever ask him? A. No, I didn’t
Q. Has it ever occurred to you there might be some obligation on

your part to try to weed out Communists in your union? A. I felt that
my obligation was to the people who elected me and whom I represent.

Q. lam glad you felt an obligation. Did you feel any obligation to
ascertain that there were Communists the charges made against your
union? A. No, I didn’t. I said before that I would never ask anybody
directly that question.

Q. Well, I asked then if you felt any obligation to weed out Com-
munists in your union. If you asked Mr. Leith whether or not he was a
columnist for the Daily Worker, that the column that he ran or edited
and signed was entitled, “Building the Communist Party”, by “The
Recruiter” A. Do you mind if I write this down?

Q. No, I want you to, because I hope before you get through you d<
something about it in your union.

Mr. Mahony. May I ask the date when he was working for the Daily
Worker.'

Mr. Bresnahan. He was working for the Daily Worker in the late
1940

Mr. Mahony. After 194
Q. You ask him was he employed in the Communist Party national

headquarters in New York City as a paid employee.
Sen. Powers. May I ask a question, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman. Yes, Senator Powers.
Sen. Powers. With respect to the witness or the individual about

whom you are now being interrogated Mr. Leith, is it, Mr. Bresnahan,
Alex Leith?

Rep. Tynan. AVhat is his right name, Goldman
Mr. Bresnahan. Alex Goldman.
Sen. Powers. With respect to that particular individual, Mr. Sey-

mour, on assignments that are made by the International office, have you

any control over these assignments coming into your District?
The Witness. If I objected to anybody coming in, if I had reason to

object to anybody coming in, I am sure that my objection would be en-
tertained or sustained.

More than four months elapsed before Mr. Seymour
again appeared as a witness in executive session before this
Commission, on August 8, 1955. His testimony then, on
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the matter of Mr. Leith, reveals the fact that Mr. Seymour
is either incapable or unwilling to stifle Communism in the
ranks of the UE. We quote his further testimony below:

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Let me ask you, did you speak to Mr.
Leith about his past Communist or present Communist connections since
you last appeared as a witnef
Leith about it.

A. No, sir. I didn’t speak to Mr.

Q. Did you ask him whether or
A. Mr. Leith following

not he had ever been a Communist?

Q. Since you were here. Just A
Yes or No.

3s or No, please. A. I can’t answer

Q. I’m going to ask you to answer it Yes or No, and you can explain
it afterwards. Did you, since you were last a witness here in March 30th
until today, speak to Mr. Leith and ask him whether or not he was now
or ever had been a member of the Communist Party? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you, since March 30th since you were here before, speak to
Mr. Leith and ask him whether or not he had ever been a correspondent
for the Daily Worker:' A. No, sir.

Q. Have you done anything
Mr. Mahony. Will you let him r
Q. Go ahead. A. I would like tc
Q. Yes. A. Following my appe

iake the explanation now
if I may, please.
ranee before this Commission on

March 30th, the next day or perhaps the day after, I went to Vermont in
a situation there. I went from there to New York and I spoke to the
President of this union, Mr. Fitzgerald, and I told him when I was before
this Commission that the Commission asked me if I knew Alex Leith, who
formerly went under the name of Goldman. He said that he didn’t know
it. I related to him the fact that it was the first time I had ever heard it.
I asked him if he knew that Leith had been correspondent for the Doily
Worker. He said he didn’t know 7 that

The Chairman. You asked this of Mr. Fitzgerald?
The Witness. That is right, while I was at the national office of this

union. I asked that it be checked that Leith had stated on an application
for employment with this union that his name had at any time been
Goldman. It is my understanding that there was no application for the
reason that when this union or any other union gets into a situation you

Ik around for publicity or a public relations man. Somebody recom-
goes off wherever he goes and then
was no annlication because I was

mends him for an assignment and t
may call him back, and that ther
interested in checking it. I can alsc av

The Chairman. Why were you interested in checking the name
Goldman? Was there a question of identity involved?

The Witness. There was a question that had been raised with me
before this Commission, and, you know, it was a pretty startling question,
if I may say so, being faced with something of that nature and not know-
ing the answer to it. And also the fact, Mr. Chairman, that to the best
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of my knowledge Leith has not been in the district office at 10 Tremont
Street of this union, at least while I was present since March 30th; and
it was thought in my mind that he either be transferred out of, this dis-
trict out of New England at the time or whatever action the national
office wanted to take.

Q. You didn’t ask anybody? A. I think I made myself pretty clear.
Q. Now wait a minute, Mr. Seymour. You either know whether you

asked that he be transferred or not. Did you ask that he be transferred
out of the district of which you are the President? A. Not directly, sir.

Q. Well, that would be a very simple thing to do, wouldn’t it?
A. Except for the fact that at the time the national office wanted to use
his services in another situation that happened to be in this district.

Q. Now if you objected to him here, he would have been removed,
wouldn’t he? A. I believe that any recommendation of that nature
from me would carry a great deal of weight.

Q. And you as the President, having information or seeking in-
formation as to his Communism and not getting it, you from March 30th
until today have never asked that he be removed from your jurisdiction,
District 2, have you? A. Not yet.

Q. Are you going to? A. As far as I’m concerned, Leith will no
longer represent or service any aspect of this union in District 2.

Q. Are you sincere? A. Yes, sir.
Q. What do you mean “will no longer”? Why this instant was your

mind changed? A. It was not at this instant.
Q. You haven’t objected to him being here from March 30, 1955 to

August 8, 1955, and you now tell this Commission that he will not in the
future? A. I did state a little while ago that he was assigned to another
situation that happened to be in this district. He was assigned to do
publicity work in New Britain, Connecticut.

Q. He was down there last week. A. I was there myself, sir
Q. And you were there. And you never have made any objection

to him? A. Mr. Leith handled
Q. No. You never did. That is a fact, isn’t it? A. I made an

objection to the General President of the union. You just don’t go
around kicking people out.

Q. You don’t go around kicking people out. When people raise the
issue of Communism you keep them in, don’t you? A. When you say
when people raise the issue of Communism, I say again I don’t go on
hearsay.

Q. No. Let’s see whether you do or not. A. I don’t go on hearsay.
Q. You are talking about it is run from the bottom. The President

of the district doesn’t dare ask the InternationalPresident, both of whom
are members of Local 201, to take out of the district of which you are
President a former correspondent of the Daily Worker who is handling
your publicity? A. You are not correct, Mr. Bresnahan.

Q. Why didn’t you ask him? A. You are not correct when you say
we didn’t dare do it.
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Q. Why didn’t you? A. Because vve have sometimes certain
tions that we need some help in.

Alex Leith was continuing to act as publicity director of
District 2 when Mr. Seymour was last a witness. He is still
on the International staff representing District 2.

There is now called to your attention the appointment
of Gerard Steinberg as district representative in District 2,
and the part that president Paul Seymour played in his
appointment. The background of Mr. Steinberg is set
forth in another section of this report. He was employed
as district representative when Mr. Seymour was first a
witness before this Commission on March 30, 1955. At a
further appearance here on August 8, 1955, he was still
the only district representative under the supervision of
Mr. Seymour. There is more than reluctance on the part
of Mr. Seymour to rid his division of Communists; there is
bis stout determination to retain them. We quote below
Mr. Seymour’s testimony concerning Mr. Steinberg:

Q. [By Mr. Beesnahan.] What forces do you have direct control
over as President? A. The only forces I have direct control over as
President is one person who is the District Representative and the office
secretary.

Q. And who is the present District Representative? A. His name is
Gerard Steinberg.

Q. All right. Did you appoint Gerard Steinberg? A. I recom-
mended him to the District Executive Board and to our District Council.

Q. When? A. Around the early part of the around November
Ist, if not earlier, in 1951.

Q. So, by the time you recommended Gerard Steinberg, you had been
the President for approximately eight years? A. That is correct, yes

Q. Well now, you had one appointment that you said you made
here, Gerard Steinberg? A. Which I recommended.

Q. Whom you recommended. Did you ever ask Gerard Steinberg
whether or not he was a member of the Communist Party? A. I never
asked anybody that question.

Q. Does it make any difference to you as President of District 2
whether one of your right-hand advisers is a Communist or not? A. All
I know is that he has the same rights as any other member of the union,
the right of free speech and right of political belief, whatever it might
be. I would like to add to that, sir, if I may add something?

Q. Go ahead? A. I judged Mr. Steinberg on the record of the con-
tribution he made to this union as a staff member for several years before
his appointment.
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Q. If you knew he was a member of the Communist Party and was
subject, as you say, to the rigid discipline of the Communist Party, do
you think he would be a proper person to be appointed as District Rep-
resentative, your representative in District 2? A. I have always judged
people on

Q. No, not what you have judged people on. I asked do you believe
that you are fulfilling your obligations to, first, your country, and, sec-
ond, your union? A. Yes.

Q. By appointing a man as the District Representative, your repre-
sentative, who is without finding out whether or not he was a member
of the CommunistParty?

Mr. Cashman. Mr. Chairman, may I ask if counsel will be good
enough to rephrase the question so the first obligation is to God, the
second to the country, and the third to the union?

Q. I will put in God in the beginning. What do you say to that
Mr. Mahony. I suppose that is premised on the fact that he was

known to be a Communist Party member?
Q. Yes, if you knew he was a Communist. A. If I knew he was

definitely a Communist and I would have no way of knowing unless
somebody if I knew personally that he was definitely a Communist,
I would not have recommended his ap

Q. If you knew today he was a C
lintment

Dmmunist, would you recommend
his discharge? A. Yei

Q. Did you ever ask him whether
No, sir, I didn’t.

he was a Communist or not? A

; the President to find out whether
strict Representative? A. I again

Q. Do you think it is important ai

a man is a Communist who is your Di;
say that every member of our union

Q. I don’t care about every member of your unior
Mr. Mahony. May we have the question?question?

[The question is read

Q. Do you? A. Do I think it is important
Q. Yes.

Mr. Steinberg was still the district representative ac-
cording to our last information. He must still be satis-
factory to president Seymour.

It would be a gross repetition to recount here the findings
we have made concerning the field organizers employed in
District 2. With but a single exception, the creditable
evidence before us is that they have all been members of the
Communist Party. The determination of this fact was
simple to arrive at; the evidence was overwhelming. In
addition, thev availed themselves, with but the single
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noted exception, of the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts
Constitution, when asked about their membership in the
Communist Party. Their employment in District 2 was
and still is satisfactory to president Paul Seymour. He
testified before this Commission to the effect that

If I objected to anybody coming in, if I had reason to object to any-
body coming in, I am sure that my objections would be entertained or
sustained.

There was never voiced by Mr. Seymour, before this
Commission, his objection to any field organizer assigned
to his district. There is no doubt by this Commission that
the field organizers are predominately Communists. No
other conclusion can be drawn but that Mr. Seymour is
content to be surrounded and led by Communists. He bows
to the bidding of his Communist superiors.

Gerard P. Steinberg.
Gerard Steinberg is at present employed as District

Representative for District 2of the UE. He was appointed
to that position by President Paul Seymour in November,
1951. His original appointment to aUE position was as a
field organizer in 1943.

Prior to his appearance as a witness in public hearing on
August 2, 1955, this Commission had received creditable
evidence, including the following;

Mr. Steinberg was born in New York City on May 16
Anna Steinberg in Quincy,
10, 1928, and was divorced
he married R-hoda Grew at

1909. He married Alargaret
Massachusetts, on November
in 1941. On May 23, 1942,
Towsar, Maryland.

In 1945 he was a member of the Communist Political
Association in Boston and continued as a member of the
Communist Party at the time of its reorganization. He
was active in Communist Party affairs in Boston with
Richard Linsley and Donald Tormey of the UE staff, and
attended Communist Party meetings with them at 3 Han-
cock Street, Boston. When he moved to Schenectady, he
held Communist Party meetings in his home there.
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We are quoting below from the transcript of the testi-
mony of Mr. Steinberg before this Commission in public
hearing on August 2, 1955;

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Gerard Stein-
berg.

Q. Where do you live? A. 22 Beckert Avenue, Revere.
Q. How long have you been a resident of Revere? A. Close to four

year

Q. Prior to your residence there where did you live? A. For a short
while I lived in New Jersey.

Q. Were you born in Massachusetts? A. No,
Q. Would you tell us about your personal history? Where were you

born? A. I was born in New York City in 1909.
Q. What was your education? A. I graduated from the grammar

school system in New York and attended evening school, high school,
for about three years. That is the extent of my formal education.

Q. And were you in the service? A. No, sir.
Q. When did you enter the employ of the UE? A. In April of 1943.
Q. And where? A. In Massachusetts,
Q. What was your position? A. Field organizer
Q. Who appointed you field organizer? A. The Director of Organi-

zation, James Matles.
Q. Would you tell us what your experience in the UE was following

1943, your appointment? A. Well, from that time until May of 1951
I was assigned to work with various UE locals in Western Massachusetts,
New Hampshire and Vermont, servicing.

Q. What are the duties of a field organizer and what were your duties
in Massachusetts and Vermont? A. To organize the unorganized work-
ers in the plants, to assist local unions in negotiations, contracts, wage
questions, to assist them in the handling of day-to-day problems, griev-
ances, work with local unions in various phases of trade union activity.

Q. And from 1943 to 1951 was your direct superior the field organizer
of the union, the international union? A. I think you are asking me if
the director of organization was my superior?

Q. Yes. A. He is not my direct superior.
Q. Who was your direct superior? A. On one occasion the man

who had the title of international representative in the area, name of
Linsley.

Q. Richard Linsley? A. That is right. And I think that the only
other one I remember is Albert Smith.

Q. Albert Smith? A. That is right.
Q. Now, at some time were you appointed something other than

field organizer in 1951? A. In 1951 I was asked to serve as the District
Representative for New England.
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Q. And who asked you to serve as the District Representative in New
England? A. The District President, Paul Seymour.

Q. Where were you stationed when you were asked? A. At that
time I was employed in a plant in Hackensack, New Jersey.

Q. Were you employed as a field organizer there? A. No, I was
working in the plant as a tool inspector, machine shop inspector.

Q. As I understand it, in April of 1943 you were appointed a field
organizer? A. That is right.

Q. And that appointment was by whom? A. James Matles.
Q. Now, you didn’t continue then to be a field organizer until 1951?

A. I was a field organizer until May Ist of 1951.
Q. What happened on May Ist, 1951? A. Due to an illness, I re-

signed or retired from the national union staff.
Q. So, following your retirement and going to work in a factory of

some kind in New Jersey, Mr. Paul Seymour, the District President,
called you or got in touch with you? A. That is right.

Q. How did he communicate with you? A. By telephone
Q. He telephoned you in New Jersey and asked you to become the

what, in Massachusetts? A. District Representative.
Q. And did you accept? A. I did.
Q. What are the duties of District Representative? A. Well, at that

time the trade unions were operating under the Wage Stabilization laws
of the country, and our locals in New England required the services of a
full time person in attendance in the Wage Stabilization to help process
our petitions. That was the prime duty I was assigned to.

Q. And when in 1951 did Mr. Seymour telephone you? A. Early in
November.

Q. Can you place the date? A. I couldn’t place the exact date. lam
sure it was the first week in November.

Q. How soon after his telephone call did you take up your duties?
A. The 15th of November.

Q. November 15, 1951 at his request you came from New Jersey and
assumed the duties of District Representative? A. That is right.

Q. How long did you continue as District Representative? A. lam
still District Representative.

Q. On the 15th of November, 1951, when you came to Boston at the
request of President Paul Seymour, were you a member of the Communist
Party? A. Before I discuss that question with the Commission

Q. Will you speak a little louder
The Chairman. You may confer with counsel at any time
The Witness. It is difficult for me to make speeches at members of

the Commission. This is a fairly large room and there are a number of
people present and I am not accustomed to make speeches.

The Chairman. Just keep your voice at a proper level. As long a
we can hear, that is enough.

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, may the record show the presence
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or absence of members of the Commission now sitting? I notice, if lam
correct, the Chairman of the Commission is present and Representative
Tynan, but at the moment not Senator Powers. He was here and left.
I think I would like, if I may, to have the record show those present.

The Chairman. You may have the record show that, and our steno-
typist will note the fact.

Mr. Brbsnahan. That Senator Powers has left the room
The Chairman. Temporarily.
Mr. Bresnahan. And may we have the question read':

The question is read.]
A. In that connection, I want to state in light of the Commission’s
denial of the motion by my counsel and in light of the report in which the
Commission expresses creditable evidence with regard to various wit-
nesses that appeared here and in light of the guarantees provided by the
Twelfth Article of the Constitution of Massachusetts which provides that
no person shall be required to answer for any charge without being able
to confront his accuser without right of cross-examination and repre-
sentation by counsel, I will invoke the Twelfth Article of the Constitution
of Massachusetts and refuse to answer that question.

Q. Are you a member of the Communist Party today? A. lam not
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party yesterday? A. In

that connection, Counsel, I want to state beginning with that question
and you can take question by question innumerably all the way back, my
answer will be the same as it was with respect to November 15, 1951.

Witness confers with counsel.]

Q. And in that answer you embrace the privileges of the Twelftl
Article of the Massachusetts Constitution? A. That is right.

Q. For the purpose of the record, whenever you decline to answer
from here in, unless you otherwise state, does your declination include the
privileges of the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitution?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Yes. I would say it appears to be the case.
Q. At any time up to this moment has Paul Seymour, the District

President, ever asked you whether or not you were a member of the
Communist Party? A. To the best of my knowledge he has not. To
the best of my recollection he has not.

Q. Are you hazy on your recollection? A. No. I am just sayin;
No and being careful how I say it. The answer is No.

Q. You appeared before this Commission on March 28, 1955 in execu-
tive session. Up to that time had Mr. Seymour ever inquired as to
whether or not you at any time had ever been a member of the Communist
Party or then were a member of the C ommunist Party?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I just answered that question.
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Q. Well, lam going to specifically ask you this question, seeing you
said to the best of your recollection. A. I also said No.

Q. lam specifically going to ask you to answer this question. Since
March 29, 1955 when you appeared here in executive session until today,
August 2, 1955, has Mr. Paul Seymour, the District President, ever asked
you if you now are or ever were a member of the Communist Party?
A. I already answered that question.

Q. lam going to ask you answer to those specific dates specifically on
it. A. You asked me any time back from today had Mr. Seymour asked
such a question, and I answered “To the best of my recollection, No,”
and finally said No.

Q. Your answer, is it the same for more recent times from March to
August, 1955, is that right?

[Rep. Sala enters hearing room.]

Mr. Rosenberg. May the record show that Representative Sala
entered the room?

The Chairman. The record will show that Representative Sala en-
tered the room and is now participating in the hearing. Will you read
the question, please?

[The question is read
A. I have already answered that question

Q. Prior to when you first entered the employ of the UE in 1943, were
ju employed at the General Electric Company in Massachusetts?

A, Yes. I resigned my position at the General Electric and went t
work for the UE.

Q. That was in 1943? A. April of 194
General Electric? A. At that timeQ. How long did you work for tl

only three months.
Electric were you employed? A. In
ski, Mass.

Q. In what plant of the General
the General Electric plant in Pittsfi

up there? A. Excuse me just aQ. Did you do classified worl
minute.

[Witness confers with coun,

A. I have no way of knowing whether it was classified work or not.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were em-
ployed by General Electric? A. I already answered that.

Q. You decline to answer, embracing the Twelfth Article? A. That
right.
Q. Prior to working for the General Electric did you work for the

Signal Corps of the United States Army?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Yes, Idi
Q. Was that prior to or during the war? A. Well, the specific perioc

was May of 1942 to December of 1942.
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Q. Where were you employed by the Signal Corps? A. In various
places. I was on short time assignment to places like Chicago, Phila-
delphia, North Adams, Newark, New Jersey.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you were so
employed? A. I have already answered that question.

Q. Now, you say Mr. Richard Linsley was one of your immediate
superiors in the UE in Boston when you were acting as field organizer in
1943, is that right? A. That is what I said.

Q. Did you attend Communist Party meetings with Richard Linsley
at 3 Hancock Street in Boston in company with other UE organizers,
including Donald Tormey and Richard Linsley? A. This is a variation
of the question to which I have already answered, and I wish to reply
the same.

Mr. Bkesnahan. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. Have members of the Commission further questions

to ask this witness? Apparently not.
Under our rules, Mr. Witness, you are entitled at this time to make a

free statement, either in writing or verbally, bearing only on the questions
asked and the answers given before the Commission at this hearing. Do
you wish to make such a statement?

The Witness. I want to say briefly that since March of this year
when I first appeared at the executive session, I have given a lot of thought
to the business on hand and last week since being notified of today’s
hearing. As a representative of this union, I would like to make it clear
to the Commission that the questions asked at the executive session and
the questions asked at today’s session so far prove to me that the Com-
mission is not interested in the UE as such and the work the UE and I
and others have done in connection with the UE over the years. It
seems that the report of the Commission recently published will probably
be repeated with a new list of names, mine included, and some mention
of creditable evidence. And I resent and protest very strongly the fact
that the Commission has denied the motion of counsel to face who is
accusing me and what I am accused of and to give me the right to cross-
examine and the right to be confronted with the witness. And I want to
make it clear as a representative of this union and as a citizen that I have
nothing to hide, have done nothing disloyal against the interests of this
country, against the people I represent or against the American people
as a whole. And lam prepared to be confronted by any witness or any
person who alleges any question as to my behavior as an employee or
representative of the union which has a program I believe in and which
I believe at this moment and will continue to believe is the only union
who is doing a proper job in my industry. And that is probably the
reason it is subject

Mr. Bresnahan. Mr. Chairman, in view of the fact he has nothing
to hide now and during the whole tune he has been an organizer, I again
press the question the Commonwealth of Massachusetts having de-
clared membership in the Communist Party to be a crime by law effec-
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tive two days after he took up his present duties as District Representa-
tive on the 15th of November, 1951, membership in the Communist
Party having been declared to be a crime and now having been defined
by the 1 nited States substantially to the same effect since August of last
year I again press the question in the light of what the witness has
said and ask if on the day he came here, November 15, 1951, as District
Representative, that he was a member of the Communist Party?

The Mltness. I have already answered that question, and I want to
say in addition

Mr. Bresnahan. If he says he has already answered it despite the
fact you say you have nothing to hide, are you hiding from us effectively
the information as to whether or not you were a member of the Communist
Party?

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, counsel for the Commission has
talked about an accusation of crime. This, as I understand it and I
think it is perfectly clear, is not a court of competent jurisdiction to
accuse a person of a crime or to say this person is guilty of this crime until
he is found guilty. And I object to the question.

The Chairman. We are not trying anyone for a crime, but it so hap-
pens that a statute was enacted as of a certain date, and our counsel is
merely calling it to the witness’ attention if he didn’t already know about
it. And in the light of it, he is again asking the question previously put.
Does the Commission understand that you again refuse to answer the
question and invoke your Constitutional guarantees?

The Witness. Counsel raised the question again because of the state-
ment that I have nothing to hide. Apparently somebody else has some-
thing to hide or they would appear to make the charge, rather than make
it appear to the general public and my associates that there is a question
as to mv conduct as a citizen of the Commonwealth.

The Chairman. Any other questions'
Mr. Bresnahan. No. But I would like to make the statement that

the Commission will draw its own inference.
The Witness. And release it to the general public without proper

trial.
Mr. Bresnahan. I move that the witness be excused.
The Chairman. The witness is accordingly excused.

Alex Leith.

Alex Leith is a resident at 5 Schuyler Street, Roxbury.
His true name is Alex Goldman. He adopted the name of
Leith when he became a free-lance writer. He was born
on October 24, 1912, at Buffalo, New York. It was in New
Rochelle, New York, that he received his initial schooling,
and he was graduated from New Rochelle High School in
1930. As a young man he had several occupations and odd
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jobs, but mostly followed a writing career. He is at present
employed as publicity man for the UE and lias been work-
ing out of District 2 office in Boston.

This Commission lias received creditable evidence that
Mr. Leith has been a member of the Communist Party and
an active functionary in that party. He testified before
the House Un-American Activities Committee on August
29, 1950, and identified himself as a free-lance writer, but
availed himself, on that occasion, of the Fifth Amendment
regarding his Communist membership and association.

He has been a paid employee of the Communist Party of
New York, engaged in publicity work for that organization.
He has been an instructor of the Communist Party Workers’
School in New York, a member of the staff of the Daily
Worker and has been associated with a number of organ-
izations which are on the subversive list of the Attorney
General of the United States

associated in Massachusetts
Juanita Wojchowski, Walter
athaniel Mills and has con-

■ appearing before this Com-

Mr. Leith has been actively
with Otis Hood, Charles and
O’Brien, Ann Burlak, and N
tinued those associations since
mission on August 2, 1955.

We are quoting from Mr. Le
he gave at that time.

ith’s sworn testimony which

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What
Alex Leith. My given name is Alex C

is your name? A. My name is
loldman.

Q. L-e-i-t-h, is that right? A
man, G-o-l-d-m-a-n.

Yes. And my given name is Gold-

Q. Were do you live, Mr. Leith
first question, some 20 or 25 years a
I started out as a writer and that is
live at 5 Schuyler Street, Roxburv.

A. To finish mv answei to vour

;o I adopted “Leith” as a pen name,
the name bv which lam known. I

Q. When you say you took this
ie plume, by whom were you emj
Alex Leith? A. At the time I was a

given name or this pen name, a nom
loyed when you took the pen name
student, unemployed.

Q. Where were you a student
New Rochelle, New York.

A. New Rochelle High School

Q. Is that where you were born? A. No, I was born in Buffalo
New York, October 24, 1912.

Q. For how long did you live in Buffal
The Chairman. Just a minute. We will have a one-minute rece

[Short
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The Chairman. The Commission will come to order. Will you pro-
ceed, Mr. Counsel?

Q. As I understand it, you were born in Buffalo, October 24, 1912.
How long were you a resident of Buffalo? A. I would say eleven months.

Q. W here did you move to and where did you get your education, and
what was the extent of it? A. We moved from Buffalo, New York to
Milwaukee, \\ isconsin and subsequently to Stevens Point, Wisconsin and
subsequently to New Rochelle. In all of the places 1 had a certain amount
of schooling. I was graduated from the New Rochelle High School.

Q. What year? A. 1930 which was the extent of my formal
schooling.

Q. Following your graduation in 1930, what occupation did you
follow? A. Well, there were the usual minor jobs which are held byschool boys, and then I became a "publicity man. And in that capacity
with the exception of a brief time, three years rather, in the United States
Army during W orld \\ ar 11, I was employed by groups advocating
social reforms.

Q. Will you give us the occupations as a publicity man that you had
prior to going into the Army? A. May I say, Counsel, that procedurally
it would seem, since I have been obviously subpoenaed together with my
associates, that if we would start with my present occupation as you did
with the preceding witness and then work back, which I am glad to take
up with you. I make it as a suggestion.

Q. With all due courtesy to you, I don’t adopt it. I ask you if you will
start with your initial occupation of publicity man in the same order in
which you have told us your career from birth until you graduated in
1930 from high school. You then did odd jobs that a young man does?
A. That is right.

Q. You became a publicity man and did three years in the Army.
Chronologically, I ask you to tell us by whom you were first employed as
a publicity man and the date of it? A. I don’t recall by whom I was
first employed, but I will give you the picture of my employment prior to
my employment by the United Electrical Radio & Machine Workers
Union, which was in the latter part of 1949 or the first part of 1950. I was
employed by a number of groups and unions and among the unions I
recall the AFL Printers Union

Q. Just so we get it, do you have a recollection of whom you first
became a publicity man for? A. I c mid hazard a guess, but it wouldn’t

Q. Give us your best recollection,
it was the Public Housing Conference

A. To the best of my recollection
in New York City.

Q. When approximately was that A. I have no idea. I would say

that would be around 1932 or 1933 but this is guess w
Q. What is your best recollection of from 1932 or 1933, whom were

you next employed by as a publicity man? A. I believe the Welfare
Council of New York.
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Q. Yes. And when would that be to the best of your recollection?
A. Well, to the best of my recollection it would be the middle thirties.

Q. All right. When did you go in the Army? A. October of 1942.
Q. From the middle thirties will you tell us whom you were employed

by from the time you left the Welfare Council of New York until you
entered the Army in 1942? A. I can give them to you withoutexactitude
about dates.

Q. I don’t hold you to the exact date. A. The AFL Printers Union,
as I stated before, for the Furniture Union, International Ladies Garment
Union, The American Amalgamated Clothing Workers Union, the AFL
Bakers, the United Office & Professional Workers of America then in the
CIO, the Gas, Coke and Chemical Division of the United Mine Workers.
I have also worked for

Q. This is all prior to your entrance in the Army? A. Generally so,
yes.

A. After the Army I worked for theQ. Who else prior to the Arm;
Yugoslav Relief.

for whom you worked prior to your
1942? A. That is substantially who

Q. Is that substantially those
entrance in the Army in October,
I worked for. However, may I point that some of the organizations for
whom I worked as a publicity man have since my employment been
listed on the Attorney General’s list. Inasmuch as that is being used as
a black list and gold mine for professional perjurers and others, I am not
going to divulge the names of those organizations.

Q. Would you include in that as a shield for Communists? A. I
don’t understand the question.

Q. You said that it is being used as a blacklist or a list for perjurer
A. The Attorney General’s list.

Q. Would it be fair to include that it is also being used as a shield for
Communists to avail themselves of their constitutional privileges?
A. The counsel can conclude what he wishes.

Q. You made one conclusion you voluntarily offered. Were you a
member of the Communist Party when you belonged to an organization
on the Attorney General’s list, you who are so free

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, he never said he belonged to an
organization on the Attorney General’s list. He said he was employed
by organizations subsequently placed on the list. He never said he was
a member.

The Chairman. I understand counsel is asking a question.
Mr. Bresnahan. I asked was he a member of the Communist Party
would you read my question, please 1

[The question is read.]

Q. I will strike it out and ask were you a member of the Communist
Party when you were employed by organizations which subsequently were
put on the Attorney General’s list? A. May I ask a question?

The Chairman. You mav not. He asked you a question.
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The Witness. I just want to know whether the previous question is
itricken in its entirety.

Q. I have withdrawn the previous question. A. In its entirety?
Q. And now ask this question. Were you a member of the Communist

Party when you were employed by organizations which subsequently
were placed on the Attorney General’s list? A. In view of the fact
that I invoked the Twelfth Amendment about employment by such
organizations, I also invoke the Twelfth Amendment in regard to mem-
bership in the Communist Party or any other organization which may
have been listed by the Attorney General.

Q. Then you told us you entered the Army in October of 1942. For
how long were you a member of the armed forces? A. I was discharged
in October of 1945, honorably discharged.

Q. All right. Then following your discharge from the Army, for whom
did you go to work? A. I recall I think I mentioned the Yugoslav
Relief States for Action, and subsequently in 1949 for the United
Electrical Union.

Q. What date did you get out of the Army in 1945? A. I don’t
know the exact date.

Q. But it was the month of October? A. I would say it was the
middle of October.

Q. What was your first employment after you got out of the Army?
A. As I recall, it was Yugoslav Relief. That is to the best of my recol-
lection.

Q. And in 1949 you were employed by the United Electrical Union?
A. Either the latter part of 1949 or the first part of 1950. lam vague
as to dates.

Q. Have you been continually in the employ of the United Electrical
Union since the latter part of 1949 or 1950? A. As I recall, my first
employment with the United Electrical Union was not on a regular staff
basis but was on assignment. Between assignments I was otherwise en-
gaged, among other things doing some writing of my own.

Q. Who first employed you in any of the assignments in the UE?
A. The Director of Organization, James J. Matles.

Q. And when did you enter the permanent employ and give up your
other assignments? A. Again, to the best of my knowledge, in the
latter part of 1950.

Q. Since late in 1950 until today you have been in the permanent
ploy, full time employment, of the UE? A. That is right

Q. What has your official title been in that period? A. My offici;

title has been Publicity.

Q. For how long have you been assigned to New England or Dis-
trict 2 in Boston? A. To be accurate, 1 would say that while I have
been assigned to District 2 since 1951, I have spent most of my time out-
side of New England.

Q. When you are in New England do you come under the direct
supervision of President Paul Seymour in District 2? ' A. There is
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nothing that formalized, as I understand our relationship, as being under
his supervision.

Q. Do you do the publicity for District 2 when you are here in Boston?
A. It is hard to give a Yes or No answer to that. I sometimes help out
with an article perhaps, but that is about all.

Q. Have you been the publicity director here more or less in fact
luring the entire year 1955? A. Oh, no.

Q. You issued press releases and were the publicity man? A. Public
relations.

Q. Public relations man in March of 1955? A. It is just a question
of refreshing my memory on that. I don’t exactly recall where I was in
March of 1955. Incidentally, maybe while lam trying to recollect I can
correct your definition of my duties in the organization.

Q. I haven’t described them. You tell us what your duties a

A. You referred to me as a publicity director.
Q. You tell us what your position is so we mil have it definite on the

record. A. My duties as a publicity member of the UE staff are not
to originate policies but to reflect in press releases and other public media
through the newspapers, and so forth, policies adopted by our national
conventions and by the membership of our various locals throughout the
country. I am assigned to various areas by the national office where
either because of strike situations, disruptive raids or other special neces-
sities there is a need for a full time liaison with public opinion.

Q. It might become important so lam going to ask if I took down cor-
rectly that you were not to originate policy but to reflect the policies of
the national conventions and of locals throughout the country? A. As
assigned by the national officers of this union and as approved by the
elected leaders of the various locals for whom from time to time I work.

Mi-. Bresnahan. Would you read that answer?
[The answer is read.]

The Witness. “With whom”, not “for whom.” Because 1 am on
the national payroll.

Q. Has there been any change in your duties between March of this
year and today? A. No, only in so far as assignment.

Q. Has your assignment been substantially in District 2 from March
of this year until today? A. No, sir. My assignment in that period
has substantially been in New Britain, Connecticut, where there is or
has been in progress Now I can refresh my memory on the date.

Q. lam delighted. A. a strike in progress since March 28 of this
year.

Q. Does Bridgeport, Connecticut
Heve it does.

come under District 2? A. Ibe

it doeQ. Do you know? A. I believe
Q. Have you any doubt about it'
Q. What, that vou believe it doe!

A. I stand on my former answer
A. Yes.
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Q. Does the President of District 2 have jurisdiction over Bridgeport
Connecticut? A. Yes.

Q. Has there been any change in the policy
The Chairman. What was his answer?
The Witness. Yes.
Mr. Rosenberg. You referred before to New Britain, and are you

referring now to Bridgeport?
Q. Wherever it is, District 2 has jurisdiction over that? A. Ye
Q. And President Seymour is the president of District 2? A. That is

correct.
Q. Has the policy of District 2 changed any from March of 1955 to

today on its publicity as regards Communism in the UE or alleged Com-
munism in the UE? A. I just don’t understand that question.

Q. Well now, lam going to ask to have it repeated and ask you, the
publicity director, to tell me what
question.

ambiguous or confusing about ther

[The question is read.]

A. Not to my knowledge

Q. Has President Seymour aske
instant whether or not you were eve
A. He has not.

you from March 29, 1955 until this
a member of the Communist Party?

Q. Has he asked you whether or
Daily Worker! A. He has not.

not you were ever a columnist for the

Q. Has he asked you whether or not you were employed by the Com-
munist Party in New York? A. He has not.

Q. Has he asked you whether you ever published a column signed by
"The Recruiter,” entitled “Building the Communist Party,” which ap-
peared in the Daily Worker! A. He has not.

Q. Has he ever asked you whether you

Mr. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, may I interrupt? May I have that
question about the column called “The Recruiter”?

Mr. Bresnahan. A column called “Building the Communist Party
signed by “The Recruiter.”

Mr. Rosenberg. Is the question addressed to the witness as the
author of that column?

Mr. Bresnahan. That is right
The Witness. Oh, well
Mr. Bresnahan. I asked did Mr. Seymour ever ask you that

[Witness confers with counsel.]

The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, I think the question was had Mr
Seymour ever asked him whether
article. I think that is quite clear

ir not he was the author of such an

The Witness. My answers have been responsive on this line of
questioning. I want the record to show that Mr. Seymour did not query
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me on these matters and that my so saying is not in any way to be con-
strued as being the author of any of these columns, alleged articles, or the
employee of any of these alleged organizations.

Q. All I have simply asked you is if Mr. Seymour asked you from
March to today these questions. A. The answer is he has not.

Q. Has he asked you whether or not you were ever employed at Com-
munist Party national headquarters in New York? A. No.

Q. Has he asked you whether or not you were a member of the IWO?
A. No.

Q. Has he asked you whether or not you wrote magazine articles for
the IWO magazine, Fraternal Outlook? A. He has not.

Q. Has he ever asked you whether or not you were publicity director
for the Bill of Rights Congress? A. No.

Q. Has he asked you whether or not you were publicity director for
the New York Labor Conference for Peace? A. No.

Q. Well now, lam going to ask you, were you ever a correspondent
for the Daily Worker:’ A. To save time, may I say in answer to that
question, which I assume will be applied to that entire series, I am in-
voking my privileges under the Twelfth Article -which, among other
things, states that I must be confronted with evidence, given the right
to face -witnesses, and to be, if there is any alleged wrong doing, tried by
jury.

The Chairman. Does the Commission understand you refuse to an-
swer and invoke as your reason for therefusal the constitutional guarantee
given by the Twelfth Article?

The Witness. All the rights and privileges of the Twelfth Article, a
magnificent article by the way, which includes more than the question of
self-incrimination, but has many guarantees and safeguards for fail-
evidence, fair trial and fair play which I don’t get here.

Q. Then let us make it specific,
employed by the Daily Worker.' A.
answer.

Q. Do you decline to answer that
previous answer.

question? A. On the basis of my

Q. And for the purpose of the rec
so graciously taken into consideration

ird, to save time, which you have
A. I have a strike to get back

to.
Q. When you declined, for the purposes of the record, will your

declination include the Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitution?
A. And the Fifth of theFederal Constitution as well as the First Amend-
ment with its rights of association which are very basic to the organization
of unions.

Q. lam going way back and ask you you can decline if you want
as far back as 1944 were you engaged in the publicity work for the
Communist Party of New York? A. Same answer.

Q. Were you instructor in the Worker School of the Communist
Party in New York? A. Same answer.

I repeat the question. Were you
I refer to my previous extensive
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Q. lleie >ou on the staff of the Daily Worker as far back as 1941?
A. Same answer.

Q. VS eie vou employed at one time in the forties by the Kings CountyCommunist Party? A. Same answer.
Q. Were you the author of a column in the Daily Worker signed byThe Recruiter, entitled “Building the Communist Party”? A. Sameanswer.

Q. You were very indignant about that before. A. I thought I hadexpressed my indignation. So, let’s get on with this.
Q. We will get on, Mr. Leith. Were you employed as publicitydirector of the Bill of Rights Congress?
Mi. Rosenberg. Mr. Chairman, may I justify my comment
The Chairman. You may make a comment.
Mr. Rosenberg. This exemplifies, I submit, the vice of this kind of

questioning. This is something, as I understand it, by somebody called
The Recruiter, an anonymous name. Nobody has come forward to

say that this man is the author; nobody made a charge giving the date,
time, place and particulars. V et, he is subject to that kind of questioning
and foiced not presumed to be innocent, but presumed to be guilty
asked to prove his innocence. I submit that is grounds for the motionthat the evidence be brought forth, give us a chance to examine it and not
produce the anonymous declarations of guilt.

The Chairman. There is nothing anonymous about it if Mr. Bresna
han wishes to give a date to the article.

Mr. Rosenberg. I submit “The Recruiter” —or whatever the al-
leged name of the author of that column is is in the strictest sense
anonymous.

The Chairman. Perhaps Mr. Bresnahan may wish to give us more
information, as the hearing proceeds. I don’t know what he is going to
do. He is conducting this hearing.

Mr. Bresnahan. If it is not true, he can tell us. I merely ask whether
it is a fact or not.

The Witness. Wait a minute. If the remark
Q. lam not going to wait. If you want to conduct the court A

I wasn’t aware this is a court.
Q. It is under the supervision of the Commission and not you, Mr.Leith. A. May I hear the last question, because there is a presumption

that refusal to answer a question is equal to agreeing to a charge of de-
nunciation, which it is not my intention in refusing to answer certain
questions which I find violative of my rights and my privileges under the
Twelfth Article of the Massachusetts Constitution.

Q. Now, Mr. Leith, is it a part of the publicity function of the UE
National to be critical of any investigation of Communist infiltration or
domination in that union? A. As I understand it, it is the national
policy of our union to be critical of any committee or commission which,
under the guise of hunting Communists, is out to destroy unions, as this
Commission did in the case of the insurance agents, or to disrupt unions
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as they did in the ease of the leather workers, or to weaken unions as it
did in the case of the Colonial Provisions workers.

The Chairman. You will be entitled to make a statement of your
own free will at the end of the hearing.

The Witness. This may eliminate the necessity
Q. lam interested in the national policy of the UE. Is it the national

policy of the UE that a state has not the proper authority to inquire into
Communist infiltration or domination in the UE? A. That question,
counsel advises me, is different. 1 would like to consult him.

to thatQ. lam interested in the answer
[Witness confers with counsel

whether the State has the authority,
a question as to the authority of the

A. As for the question as amended,
I am not a lawyer and cannot answe:
state.

slightest about the authority of the
•mation that the State has the au-

Q. I am not asking you in the
State. I would volunteer the infr
thority. lam asking you is it a national policy of the UE to spread the
gospel that the State is meddling in your affairs when it seeks to find out
whether or not there is Communist domination or infiltration in the UE.
A. It is the national policy of this union, as I understand it, to oppose
any system of state or federal license or domination of trade unions,
whether the United Electrical, International Association of Machinists, or
the UAW, the CIO, or any other union you can mention. We are opposed
to it because that is precisely what preceded the rise of Fascism in other
countries, the growth of totalitarianism.

Q. The question is very simple. Will you repeat the question, please?

[The question is read
A. I would say this union is not spreading any such gospel.

Q. That is not the national policy? A. May I answer the questions
as I see the answers? I have answered it.

Q. All right. Well now, I show you a photostat of a press release
author of that press release, weren’t
ate it.

dated March 21, 1955. You were the
you [indicating photostat]? A. Iwr

Q. For the recorc
Mr. Rosenberg. Are you going t
Mr. Bresnahan. Yes.

read it?

DISTRICT COUNCIL 2
UNITED ELECTRICAL, RADIO AND
MACHINE WORKERS OF AMERICA, UI
10 Tremont Street. Boston 8, Massachusetts

March 21, 1955
PRESS RELEASE For release March 22, 1955, 12 noon

Charging that the Massachusetts Commission on Communism is
‘meddling in the affairs of unions’, Paul E. Seymour, UE District 2
President, revealed that eight members of the UE’s Massachusetts
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staff have been subpoenaed to appear before the Commission today
at 10 A.M. Seymour accused the Commission, headed by Philip
Bowker, as having timed its subpoenas ‘to disrupt the union’s con-
tract discussions with several firms in Massachusetts and in other
New England states.’

Noting that UE members at Turner Tanning Machine Company,
Peabody, Mass., have been on strike since January 3, Seymour said
that ‘Knowingly or not, the Cc imission is playing a strikebreaking
role.’

In a letter to I lenting 25,000 New England work-
4 ers, Seymour recalled that the Bowker Commission ‘make itself

vailable to lUE President Jame Carey in 1953 as a sounding board
on the eve of NLRB elections in General Electric plants in Lynn
and Everett

Seymour followed this up with the statement that ‘Whenever the
leaders of the lUE the CIO, prepare for one of their union bust-
ing expeditions, they receive th

UE’s New England District
aid of ‘investigating committees.’
lewspaper, to be distributed today

and tomorrow at plants repre ;nted by the union, will describe the
State Commission’s subpoena if UE representatives in Massa-
chusetts as its ‘most act to date, certain to arouse great

indignation among the UE me
‘We serve notice’ the union

rbership and labor generally
article states, that ‘our members are

determined to preserve and Ivance their wages, conditions and
contracts against any and all ttempts to divide and disrupt us

That is the end of what is Exhibit 1 Leith. Now, is it the national policy
of the UE that an ir uthorized commission or com-
mittee of the government is i ig in the affairs of the union when it
seeks under a mandate of a constitr
is Communist domination or infiltr

tional body to find out whether there
tion in a union? A. I submit you

have gone from a specific stater t about a specific commission into a
question so general that I cannot ar it

Q. Can you answer that? A. Except as I have already answered it
in general terms a few moments ago.

The Chairman. Mr. Counsel, in writing that statement which we
judged that he wrote in view of what has been offered

Mr. Bresnahan. He said he wrote it
following the national policy of theThe Chairman. Did he or was 1

UE?
Mr. Bresnahan. That is what asked hin

ng’ the national policy of the UE?
was reflecting the policy of this

The Chairman. Were you foil
The Witness. In writing tha

union toward this commission
The Chairman. Is it in line with the national policy
The Witness. It is in line with t 3 national policy towards this com-

mission.

Q. When you say “this commission” does that include any comma
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sion authorized by any government to investigate into Communism in
your own union? A. We would have to take that commission by com-
mission from the Un-American Activities Committee which President
Roosevelt called an out-and-out union busting by large corporations.
But to generalize about many commissions, I cannot answer except in
the general manner which I already resorted to.

Q. So, is it the national policy of the UE that this investigation by
this particular Massachusetts Commission is meddling in your affairs?
A. I would assume that is, based upon

Rep. Tynan. Assume what?
Mr. Bresnahan. Pie hasn’t quite finished
Q. Based upon what? A. Based upon resolutions adopted from

time to time by the national conventions of our unions. I don’t know if
there has been one on this commission, but by analogy there wr as.

Rep. Tynan. I thought you made a statement earlier that you knew
the policies because of your position in the union, that you knew and took
your orders from your top men and knew the policies. Now you say you
assume, and yet you put out a piece of information like that. Did you
know what you were doing when you wrote that?

The Witness. Absolutely,
Rep. Tynan. Did you take your orders from the top when you

wrote that?
The Witness. If you moderate your voice, lam about to answer the

question.
Rep. Tynan. Well, answer it
The Witness. The opening statement says, “Charging that the

Massachusetts Commission on Communism is meddling in the affairs of
unions, Paul E. Seymour revealed, etc.” That is the authority for issuing
the statement. Obviously, Paul E. Seymour as President of the District
asked that such a statement be drawn up and it be submitted for his
approval, which it was.

Rep. Tynan. Did you not also say earlier, Mr. Leith, that in writing
these releases, they came from the national organization and were ap-
proved by the district or somebody on the lower level?

The Witness. No, sir
Rep. Tynan, Would you refresh my memory on that?
Mr. Bresnahan. That is substantially what I think he said.
Rep. Tynan. That is all.
Q. As publicity man, do you have anything to do with the editing or

publishing of the UE 201 News? A. What is the date of your exhibit
there?

Q. Any date. A. The answer is No. I can see it
Q. You edited it at some date, or didn’t you? A. In 1951 I assisted

and in 1952 in the editing of the UE 201 News.
Q. Did you do it in 1955? A. No, sir.
Q. You didn’t do it in June, 1955? A. No, sir.
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Q. Or in March of 1955? A. No, sir, I was in New Britain
Q. Did you have anything to do with the publications issuing from

New Bedford? A. No, sir.
Q. At any time? A. At no time.
Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions at this time.
The Chairman. Have any members of the Commission any further

questions?
Rep. Tynan. I would like a one-minute recess and ask that counsel

come up here.
The Chairman. We will take a one-minute rece

[Short recess.]

The Chairman. The Commission will come to order. Have you any
further questions, Mr. Counsel?

Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions of this witnes
The Chairman. Have the members of the Commission? You arc

entitled to make a free statement either in writing or verbally in respect
to questions asked of you and your answers given

The Witness. I would like to make a very brief statement. As I
said in my testimony, as a publicity or public relations representative for
this union, I was an employee of the union and did not in that sense
originate policies. It was a job. However, a job that I am very proud
of because of the record of this union.

I don’t know whether you gentlemen know it, but some twenty years
ago when this union set out to organize electrical workers on an industrial
basis without discrimination as to race, sex, color, creed or political
opinion, the electrical industry was a bad place to be working.

Mr. Bresnahan. Now, if it please the Commission, that is nothing
concerning which he has been interrogated

The Witness. May I point out to the Commission and to counsel
that I was subpoenaed here as a representative of a union. I think that
my estimate of this union, my activities with regard to this union, are
very germane to this inquiry. There have been many questions addressed
to me which would tend to distort the reputation of this union and the
character of my activities as one of the representatives of this union. I
said I would be brief, and I could be very brief indeed without inter-
ruptions. Let me conclude. There was no seniority, no job security —-

Mr. Bresnahan. I object to this. It has nothing at all to do with
the questions asked of him directed to Communist activity either by
himself in the HE or before he was a member of it

The Chairman. Will you confine your remarks to the questions and
answers you gave'

The Witness. Well then, let me refer to an answer to a series of
questions just for the purpose of underlining it. and those were answers
which said in part that it was my profound conviction that this commis-
sion is reflecting the aspirations of corporations to break unions, not just
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nine. And I pointed out some other unions whose members had been
lubpoenaed here at times when they were in critical disputes with their
employers, and that the procedures of this commission are violative of

the provisions which are set forth in the Twelfth Article of this Com-
monwealth, and that this Commission is trampling on that Article, with
its splendid guarantees of being able to be confronted with witnesses
when accused of crimes. And may I also state that in invoking the
Twelfth Article, that I also like its final paragraph which states, “And

the legislature shall not make any law that shall subject any person to a
capital or infamous punishment without trial by jury.”

Mr. Bresnahan. May I ask the witness then, was that substantially
the same stand you took in August, 1950, when you testified before the
House Committee on Un-American Activities and availed yourself of
the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States?

The Witness. Yes, sir.
The Chairman. Mr. Leith, isn’t it a rare occasion when union and

management aren’t in some sort of negotiations?
The Witness. Yes.
The Chairman. Any further questions?
Rep. Tynan. I would like to make this observation to Mr. Leith on

his statement. The only time we get this union busting cry is from
those who may be questioned. I haven’t heard anything from any other
labor leaders except people up on union busting. We ask very few ques-
tions on the union itself. We only ask about Communist

The Chairman. The witness is accordingly excused. And we will
recess until the hour of 1.30 this afternoon

John M. Banderra.

John M. Banderra, 726 Church Street, New Bedford,
Massachusetts, was born on September 16, 1907. He
attended grade school in New Bedford. He served in the
United States Army from July, 1943, to September, 1945.
He is a member of Local 277 of the United Electrical Radio
& Machine Workers of America and was a member of that
Local when he went into the army. Pie has served as
president of that Local and outlines that service in his
testimony.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Banderra first joined the Communist Party in 1943,
and that he has held several offices in that party. On the
occasion of his entrance into the army the Communist
Party of New Bedford gave him a farewell party. He
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resumed his Communist activities following his return from
the service. He was closely associated in the Communist
Party with Joseph Figuerido, Mary Figueredo, Douglas
Perry, Don Tormey and Maude DeHaze.

We quote below from his t(
of this Commission on August

sstimony at a public hearing
3, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Beesnahan.] What i;
Q. tVhere do Amu live? A. New
Q. Where in New Bedford? A. 1

s your name? A. John Banderra.
Bedford, Massachusetts.
'26 Church Street

Q. IV
Bedford.

you born and whe: A. September 16, 1907, in New

Q. Will you tell us what your ei ucation is? A. Public schools in
New Bedford

Q. How long? A. I left school w
seven months old.

len I was about fourteen years and

Q. And you are married? A. Yes, s ii.

Q. Were you in the Army? A Yes.
Q. When? A. Early part of Aug

tember, 1945, and I was honorably dis
;ust, 1943, until some time in Sep-
icharged.

Q. All right. At some time did you become a member of the DE?
A. Yes.

Q. When? A. I will give you the best I can on that. I know we
tried to organize the place, and during the process of organizing and the
time we got the first contract, I joined the union. Perhaps some time in
between.

Q. Approximately when was that?
in the Army? A. Before I was in the

Q. All right. Now have you beer
you were in the Army up until today?

Was it before or after you were
Army.

, member of the UE just before
A. Yes.

Q. What offices have you held in the UE? A. President of Local
277.

Q. When were you President of Local 277? A. The first time I
was elected, around perhaps September or August. That may not be
correct. Sometime the latter part of 1941. And I held that term as
President until July 30, I think, in 1943, prior to going into the Army.

Q. Then when you got out of the Army have you been elected to ar
office in the UE? A. Yes.

Q. What offices have you held in the UE since your discharge from
the Army? A. President of Local 277,

Q. When'?
Mr. Rosenberg. Does the record show that the Commission sittin

consists of the Chairman and Rep. Randall?
The Chairman. It dc
A. I was drafted President, I believe it was, in March, 1946, and

took office in April, 1946, to the best of my knowledge.
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Q. Was that for a term of a year? A. Yes.
Q. What happened after that? A. I ran for President again for

re-election and was re-elected again for another year.
Q. Then after that what? A. Then I ran again and was re-elected

again. That would make it from ’47 to ’4B.
Q. Have you held office during the fifties? A. Yes.
Q. When? A. 1950, and then I didn’t hold it in ’5l and I didn’t

hold it in ’52. I didn’t run those two years. I ran again, I believe it was,
in 1953. Now I may be wrong. I think it was in ’53, and I held that
term of office from April 1, 1953 until March 31, 1954.

Q. You are not now in office? A. No,
Q. When you joined the UE, were you a member of the Communist

Party?

The Chairman. We will suspend this hearing for ten minutes at
least until another member arrives from the House. Mr, Randall has to
attend on a bill on which he is offering an amendment. They have just
sent for him, so we will suspend for ten minutes.

[Short recess

Q. You now hold no office? A. That is right
Q. Your last office was your last term as President, sometime in 1954?
A. Yes.
Q. Now when you joined the UE back in the early forties, were you

a member of the Communist Party?

Rep. Sala enters hearing room.]

A. On that there I want to take advantage of my constitutional rights
and use the Twelfth Article. I will not read it because you are familiar
with it.

Q. Who is the organizer now in New Bedford associated with the
local? A. I believe Tony Rodrigues.

Q. Did you know him in the Communist Party? A. Same answer
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party the entire time you

were a member of the United States Army? A. Same answer.
Q. Were you given a farewell party by the Communist Party of New

Bedford when you entered the United States Army?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Well, I will take the Twelfth on that.
Q. Did you know Donald Tormey in the Communist Party? A.

Well, the Twelfth on that. Same answer.
Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. Have you any questions, Representative?
Rep. Sala. No.
The Chairman. This witness is allowed to make a statement, a vol-

untary statement bearing on the questions and answers given at this
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hearing, and it can be made either in writing or verbally at this time if
you desire. You are under no compulsion to make a statement, however.

The Witness. No statement.
The Chairman. If you will sign the papers for a witness fee, you are

then excused.

Raymond B. A ustin.
Raymond B. Austin resides at 129 Jackson Street, Lynn.

He was born in Lynn on June 8, 1906, and attended grade
school in Lynn and Lynn English High School. He has
been employed for the past twenty-eight years by the
United Shoe Machinery Company in Beverly. He was
originally married in 1925 and that marriage ended in
divorce. He is now married to Marjorie Gammon.

Mr. Austin has been a member of Local 271 since 1941
and was vice president of that Local in 1943.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Austin has been a member of the Communist Party
and was active in recruiting and promotional duties. As a
resident of 26 Apple Street, Lynn, many Communist Party
meetings were held in his home. In attendance at these
meetings were Ann Burlak, Nathaniel Mills, Donald Tormey
and Leo Gaudreau. When Donald Tormey was entering
the service, Mr. Austin had a going away party for him in
the Austin home. He was active in distributing literature
for the Communist Party and was in attendance at the
Paul Robeson concert at Symphony Hall.

We quote below from Mr. Austin’s testimony at a public
hearing of this Commission on August 3, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] What is your name? A. Raymond B
Austin.

Q. Where do you live? A. 129 Jackson Street, Lynn
Rep. Randall. Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman. Rep. Randall
Rep. Randall. You have talked to our counsel about waiving any

private hearing, is that so, sir?
The Witness. Through my counsel, yi

Rep. Randall. It is your wish that we hold this open public hearing
now, is that right?

The Witness. Y
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Mr. Bresnahan. That is as I understood it.
Rep. Randall. 1 just wanted to get it on the record
Q. Will you tell us where and when you were born? A. I w

in Lynn, 1906.
Q. What was your education? A. I went through the Lynn High

School.
Q. Which one? A. Englisi
Q. What year? A. 1924.
Q. Following your graduation what has been your occupation? A.

I worked one year for the J. B. Blood Company, two years for the General
Electric and twenty-eight for the United Shoe Machinery Corporation.

Q. At some time did you join the UE? A. Yes.
Q. When did you join the UE? A. In 1941.
Q. And are you still a member of the UE? A. Yes
Q. Have you held offices in the UE? A. I was Vice-President of

Local 271 in 1943, I believe.
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you joined

the UE? A. I decline to answer that and invoke my privileges under
the Constitution.

Q. Are you a member of the Communist Party now? A. Same
answer.

Q. Have you held Communist Party meetings in your home, 129
Jackson Street, Lynn? A. Same answer.

Q. Have you held Communist Party meetings in your home at which
time there were present Ann Burlak, Nathaniel Mills, Don Tormey and
Leo Gaudreau? A. Same answer.

Q. Did you have any part in arrar ;ing the concert which Paul Robeson
I think No.

? A. Yes.
was the artist in Symphony Hall? A.

Q. Did you know Stanley Beecher
Q. Did you ever attend any Comr unist Party meetings with Stanley

Beecher? A. I invoke the privilege.
Q. Have you ever attended Comr lunist Partv meetings at the home

of Donald Tormey? A. I invoke my privileges
Mr. Bhbsnahan. I have no further questions
The Chairman. Do members of the Commission have any questions

of this witness? Rep. Randall has a question.
Q. [By Rep. Randall.l You said that you joined the UE when, si

A. In’4l.
Q. And you said you worked 28 years for United Shoe, is that correct

A. Yes.
Q. Are you still a member of the UE? A. Yes.
Q. Do you hold any official position with them? A. No,
Q. You don’t hold any? A. No.
Q. Did you ever hold any? A. I answered that I have been Vice-

President of the local in 1943.
Q. That is the only office you ever held? A. Yes
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Q. 4ou probably answered this, but I just don’t remember. Are
you a member of the Communist Party today? A. I invoke the privi-
lege on that, sir.

Rep. Randall. I have no further questic
The Chairman. As you are undoubtedly aware, you are now entitled

to make a voluntary statement if vou wish either in writing: or orally.if you wish either in writing or orally
fhe Witness. I have no statement to make

The Chairman. All right. If you will sign the paper, you are en-
titled to a fee for your appearance.

Leo Gnudreau.

Leo Gaudreau is a resident at 11 Marlborough Street,
Salem, Massachusetts. He was born on August 4, 1904, at
Salem, Massachusetts. His education consisted of high
school and trade school, the latter in Beverly.

Mr. Gaudreau has been employed as a machinist in the
United Shoe Machinery Company in Beverly since 1933.
He joined Local 271 of the United Electrical Radio and
Machine Workers of America around 1940 and at different
times has held the position of secretary of that Local.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Gaudreau first joined the Communist Party in 1936.
He has recruited members into the Communist Party.
When the Communist Political Association was established
during the war he became a member of that organization
and returned to the Communist Party following its dis-
solution. He has been an active solicitor of funds and
subscriptions for the Daily Worker. In 1954 he was an
active member of the Committee for the Bill of Rights. He
was closely associated in the Communist Party with Fannie
Hartman, Ann Burlak and Emanuel Blum.

We are quoting below from his sworn testimony at a
public hearing of this Commission on August 2, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Bresxahak.] What is your name? A. Leo Gaudreau,
G-a-u-d-r-e-a-u.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Gaudreau? A. 11 Marlborough Street,
Salem.

Q, What is your business? A. Business? You mean where I wort
Q. Where are you employed? A. Machine operator.
O Where? A. United Shoe Machinery Corporation
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Q. Are you a member of the UE? A. That is right.
Q. And what local? A. 271.
Q. Where were you born and what was your education, Mr. Gaudreau?

A. I was born in Salem. My education I graduated from grammar
school, spent some time in high school and completed a course in the
Beverly Trade School, which, incidentally, is not a reform school, which
the name sometimes implies to some people.

[Sen. Bowker returns to hearing room.]

Q. When were you born? A. August 19, 1904.
Q. When did you complete your training at the trade school? A.

You are going too far back. I don’t know —3O years ago.
Q. What trade did you learn at the school? A. Machinist.
Q. When did you first put your machinist education to work? A

1933.
Q. Where? A. United Shoe.
Q. Have you always worked then at the United Shoe since then

uninterruptedly. A. Yes.
Q. When did you join the UE? A. Well, a technicality either

1940 or 1942 in that period.
Q. And have you continued to be a member of the UE since 1940 or

1942? A. That is right.
Q. And have you held any offices in the UE? A. Yes
Q. What offices? A. Secretary.
Q. And when were you secretary? A. Well, I was secretary four

different years between oh, say, roughly 1942 and 1951, probably
four or five times I was elected secretary.

Q. Would that be for four or five different years? A. Different
years.

Q. All in the forties? A. No. I guess it ran over into the fifties,
Q. Into the fifties. At some time did you join the Communist Party?

A. Well, I don’t know —I am going to save you a lot of time by not
going through this. If I had been here first I would have. I invoke my
privileges and rights here underArticle 12.

Q. And you refuse to answer that question? A. That is right, on
the strength of the whole Article.

Rep. Tynan. Did the witness say if he had been on first he would
have?

The Witness. lam trying to save a little time. I said if I had been
on first, I would go all through, I would explain the reasons, the nature of
the Article, and so forth. But I won’t do it in order to expedite things a
little bit.

Rep. Tynan. I understand
Q. Are you the Leo Gaudreau, the author of a letter published in the

Daily Worker on March 28, 1943, which read in part as follows:
“I am joining the Communist Party because I am convinced it is

a hundred per cent win-the-war, pro-labor organization.”
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Did you write such a letter as that? A. lam not responsible for what
newspaper men write in the papers.

Q. That is absolutely true. But I ask you did you write such a letter?
A. I never wrote such a letter, no.

Q. If that letter appeared in the Daily Worker, that was not a letter
you wrote? A. That is right.

Q. W ere you a member of the Communist Party on March 28, 1943?
A. I invoke my rights under Article 12.

Q. In the forties were you a member of the Salem Branch of the
Communist Party? A. Article 12.

Q. Did you join the Communist Political Association in 1944 and
1945 when the Communist Party was dissolved and the Communist
Political Association was formed? A. Same answer.

Q. After the expulsion of Browder and the dissolution of the Com-
munist Political Association, did you become again a member of the
Communist Party? A. The same answer.

Q. Have you been a fund raiser on the North Shore for the Com-
munist Party? A. Same answer.

Q. Have you been a fund raiser for the Daily Workerf A. Same
answer. May I— I don’t know if you want my help or not.

Q. I would like it. A. Anything to do with my political affiliations,
whether by inference or otherwise, I will save you a lot of time by telling
you that I will take recourse to Article 12, whether it is Communist,
Democrat, Republican or whatnot.

Q. Might I ask you this? Did you resign your position or not run
for re-election in the UE when it became necessary for officers to sign
affidavits under the Taft-Hartley Act? A. I did. I resigned my posi-
tion, yes.

Q. Was the resignation of your position contemporary with the law
making it necessary for an officer of a labor union to file an affidavit that
he was not a member of the Communist Party?

Mr. Rosenberg. The Labor Management Relations Act was in 1947.
If you are speaking of a resignation in 1950, I think the question answers
itself.

Q. I see. Did you resign as secretary or as an officer at the time it
became necessary for you to sign an anti-communist affidavit? A. Yes,
I resigned.

Q. Were you a member of the Massachusetts Committee for the Bill
of Rights? A. I think your question is a little bit unfair unless you
allow me some clarification.

Q. Go ahead. I would be glad to. A. The reason I resigned was I
didn’t want to sign an affidavit. There had been some criticism against
the affidavit by some very high-placed people, and I was just a little bit
afraid that even a non-Communist, if he signed an affidavit, could by
the testimony of some disgruntled or rival union leader or what have
you, dissatisfied person we all have enemies, I guess making state-
ments just out of the air, accusing another person of being a Communist,
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that I would have been involved in
penalty for signing an affidavit.

eh a tiling and been subject to the

Q. Well, when you A. I hope you understand what I mean now
Q. Let’s see if I do. When you resigned at the time of your resigna-

tion were you a member of the Communist Party? A. I already an-
swered that.

Mr. Brbsnahan. I have no further questions.
The Chairman. Any questions of the witness by any member of the

Commission?
Rep. Sala. No.
Rep. Tynan. N
The Chairman. Under our rules, sir, you are entitled to make a

statement, either verbally or in writing at this time, bearing solely on the
questions and answers that have been put.

The Witness. I would like to answer
Mr. Bresnahan. Before he does, could I ask one further question
Q. [By Mr. Bresnahan.] Are you a member of the Progressive

Party? A. I will invoke Article 12 on that.
Q. Were you in attendance at a meeting of the Progressive Party in

the Community Church in May?
advertised meetings.

A. I was. I go to a lot of public

Q. At which the speakers were Florence Luscomb, Carl Marzani?
A. lam not too familiar with the people who were there

Q. lam only asking about the speakers. A. That is what lam an-
swering. lam not too familiar. The names were mentioned, but they

escape me.

Q. You don’t even remember Miss Luscomb? A. Are you inferring
I know everybody? You have a smile on your face.

Q. The speakers wouldn’t feel very flattered. A. I wouldn’t feel
flattered if I spoke and somebody didn’t recollect me, but I assume it
happens all the time.

Mr. Bhesnahan. That is all.
The Chairman. Will you make your statement?
The Witness. lam a little bit apprehensive of making a statement.
The Chairman. You don’t have to.
The Witness. I would like to.
The Chairman. All right.
The Witness. But it seems as though it is impossible to make a

statement without being interrupted
The Chairman. You may finish your statement provided it is within

the scope of what you have been asked.
The Witness. I think it is germane to what has been going on.

There seems to be some kind of inference that there has been Communist
domination in the UE. I gathered this is what this conference is about
here, and I would like to make a statement bordering on that if I may.

The Chairman. You want to tell us something about it?
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The Witness. Yes. I will start out in 1936 here. “Quoting from
the Record of a Fighting Union” and that is as far as I will go with
this, that the UE was born March 22, 1936, “Dedicated to the principles
of democracy established at UE constitutional convention in Buffalo,
New York.”

I have been in the union since 1942. I have been a delegate to national
conventions and district conventions and active in my own local. And
the only thing I ever saw is what it said here, “Dedicated to the principles
of democracy.” That is the only thing I ever saw in my union on a
national, district or local basis. I won’tgo too deep in the national affairs,
but on a local basis I have seen my local on every issue and there was no
domination by any outside people, whether Republican, Democrat, Fra-

ternal Organization, Communist Party or anybody else. And I think it
is an insult to the members of my union to make any such inference,
because if there is anybody in that union they don’t want in office that
is doing something contrary to their wishes, they have the right and
privilege to appear and vote on every issue at their own election. They
elect union officers every year and if there is anybody they don’t want.
they can throw him out and elect somebody they do want, which they
have been doing since 1932. And every issue adopted by that union, the
constitution and by-laws, its negotiations with the companies, the dues
that shall be paid and anything else at all concerning that union wa;

voted on and approved by the members of my union
That is all I have to say, sir. May Ibe excused
The Chairman. You are excused. If you wish to sign a paper in

order to obtain a fee for your appearance.
The Witness. It will help a little.
The Chairman. I don’t think it is very much.
The Witness. What lam losing is a lot.

[Witness signs voucher.]

Mr. Bresnahan. Might we suspend until tomorrow?
The Chairman. We will suspend until 10.30 tomorrow morning.

Philip Lefavour.
Philip Lefavour is a resident at 37 South Terrace Street,

Beverly, Massachusetts. He was born on April 11, 1909,
i in Peabody, Massachusetts. He attended high school and

trade school in Beverly and was graduated in 1933 from
Suffolk Law School with an LL.B. His occupation is
machinist and toolmaker and he is employed by the United
Shoe Machinery Company in Beverly.

He served in the United States Navy, was a member of
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Beverly Local 271 of the United Electrical Radio and
Machine Workers of America, and has held the offices of
business agent and president of that Local.

This Commission has received creditable evidence that
Mr. Lefavour joined the Communist Party in 1936. He has
held several offices in that party. He was president of the
North Shore Branch of the Communist Party in 1947. He
was active in the New England Citizens Concerned for
Peace, the Civil Rights Congress, Progressive Party, Boston
Committee to Secure Clemency for the Rosenbergs. He
addressed the Minute Women for Peace and was the author
of “A Yankee Toolmaker Abroad,” a pamphlet which is
referred to in his testimony. He has also been a fund raiser
for the Daily Worker. We are quoting below from his
testimony before this Commission in public hearing, on
August 2, 1955.

Q. [By Mr. Bbesnahan.] What is your name? A. Philip Lefavour.
Q. Where do you live? A. 37 South Terrace, Beverly, Mass.
Q. Would you tell us where you were born and where you were edu-

cated? A. I was bom in Peabody. Do you want the date?
Q. Date, please. A. April 11, 1909.
Q. And your education. A. Primary schools, Somerset, Pawtucket,

Attleboro, Marlborough, Salem and Beverly. A year and a half of high
School in Beverly and co-operative trade school in Beverly, and Suffolk
Law School.

[Sen. Bowker enters hearing room

Q. Did you get an LL.B. from Suffolk Law? A. I did
Q. What year? A. I think it was 1933.
Q. Are you a member of the bar? A. lam not
Q, What has been your occupation since 1933? A. Machinist and

toolmaker.
Q. Where have you worked? A. Wait a minute. And it was two

years, a year and a half, as business agent.
Q. Business agent of what? A. Local 271.
Q. That is Local 271 of the UE? A. That is right.
Q. What years were you business agent? A. From October, 1942

until December of 1943.
Mr. Rosenberg. Excuse me. May the record show the Chairman

has re-entered the room?
The Chairman. After responding to a roll call, sir.
Mr. Bresnahan. The official stenographer notes on the record who

are sitting, who leaving and when they return.
Q. Now, have you held any other office in the UE except business
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agent in the years in which you have served? A. One year as President
of the local.

Q. When was that? A. 1951. And on the executive board for, I
would say, 1947, 1948, 1949 and 1950, and then again in 1952.

Q. And are you still a member of that local? A. I am.
Q. Are you still employed in Beverly? A. Yes.
Q. Where? A. The United Shoe Machinery.
Q. How long have you been in the employ of the United Shoe? A.

Deducting these times I have given, I will give an overall time.
Q. Aou first went to work for the United Shoe when? A. September

1946.
Q. When did you first join the UE? A. 1940.
Q. Now, it was in 1951 that you were President of that local? A.

That is right.
Q. In 1951 did you write this book (indicating pamphlet)? A. I did.
Q. “A Yankee Toolmaker Abroad.” [lndicating.] A. I did, yes.
Q. In 1951 when you were the President of Local 271 did you visit

Russia?
The Witness. Mr. Chairman, I see you have one of these booklets,

but I would like to offer this for the consideration of the committee,
pointing out the only error I have found in it which should be corrected.
I mean it might mislead you. That should be, “On Monday, April 23”
(indicating pamphlet].

Q. On the first page —it is really page number 5 it appears “May
23” and that should be “April 23”? A. April.

Q. 1951. A. And I wrote this to report on the trip that covered
three countries, France, Czechoslovakia, and Russia.

Q. And who paid for the printing of that book? A. I have to look
at the book. As far as I know, this committee here [indicating pamphlet].

Q. What is the committee there? A. The American Committee to
Survey Labor Conditions in Europe.

Q. Now, when you say “as far as you know,” where did you get the
money from? Who handed the money to you for the trip? A. The trip
was paid for; the tickets were paid for. I picked the reservations up.

Q. By whom? A. This committee.
Q. Were you a member of this committee? A. I was not.
Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party when you made that

trip? A. Mr. Bresnahan, for the same reasons that previous witnesses
have not ventured to answer that question, I am going to decline to
answer it on the basis of Article 25 for all the reasons enumerated in
Article 12.

Q. All right
[Sen Bowker leaves the hearing room.]

Mr. Rosenberg. May the record show the Chairman has tempo-
rarily left?

Mr. Bresnahan. It will.
Q. Now, let me read you page 16:
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re t

Did

unde

Mr

Russia Today

We arrived in Moscow and were met by a sizable delegation of
union people from the All-Unior Central Council of Trade Unions

AUCCTU). They had their c; iera men on hand as is the custom
country. They took us to thehen meeting delegations fro:
rtered until we left MoscowNational Hotel where we were

After taking us to dinner we had an informal session with the union
ces we would like to go andpeople at the hotel and discuss-

things we would like to see in orde they might arrange a schedulet
the union headquarters and at-for us. The next day we went

iod on the structure and organiza-tended a lecture and question pe
we were confronted with an organtion of the trade unions. Ag:

ization similar to the one in Cz-
-ever, have been operating muchThe Soviet trade unions

longer and seem to be better organized. They have 67 different
unions in different industries and in different states. Eleven union;
leal with teachers and instruct The remaining 56 unions are
organized on an industrial basis and cover the various industries

The members of the unions conduct all the elections; elections are
by secret ballot; any member is eligible to run for office. The gen-
eral committee and shop committees in each shop are elected for a
year, and there is a central committee for each union elected for two
years. There are thirty million union members; 96% of the total
workers in the country, 4% of t
this part of the discussion we rais
The thinking not only in Russia
Slovakia is opposed to the closed
principle. However, in the Sovii

workers are non-members. In
the question of the closed shop.

but also in France and Czecho-
hop. They do not believe in the
t trade unions there seems to bevi

at is the distribution of benefitsan incentive for joining, and tl
under the social security plan. The non-member only collects about
one-half of what the union member collects. Collective bargaining
in the smaller industries is on a local basis by the members and a
committee, the committees outlining for the committee the terms
that they desire. In the larger industries, local provisions are nego-
tiated on a local basis and any basic policies are negotiated through
a national committee. People taking office in the trade unions re-
ceive a salary equal to the wages they received in the shop. Re-
questing an example of the number of full-time officers and employees
in the unions, the miners’ union was cited. With a membership of
one million, there are 35 full-time officers and employees.”
you write that? A. Yes, I wrote it.

Did you find as a result of your personal survey that unionism
;r the Soviets was far advanced over ours? A. Well, I think you
aking a lot for granted when you ask if unionism is far advanced over
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Q. I would take it from that, it was quite advanced. A. Yes, but
you wall see here that the next day we went to the union headquarters
and attended a lecture and question period. This material here is the
result of the question and lecture

Q. By whom? A. By the de
Q. Who were the delegation of

reriod
gation and the trade union people,
he trade union people? A. I didn’t

say a delegation of trade I said by the delegation I was
.vith and the Soviet trade union pi }ple. We had a question and answer

period
Q. I am going to ask you wl i you came back did you advocate

is you found operative and beneficialAmerican trade unions follow policie
in the Soviet? A. This is the only thing I wrote when I came b:

Q. Did you find we were fart ier advanced in unionism or was the
mid aspire? A. As I told you, Mr.
jstion and answered period. To make

Soviet the beacon to which we sh
Bresnahan, this is a result of a qtt
an intelligent and complete survey
never make recommendations on
period. This is the setup in theorj
find out in the short stay I had ther
if we should sit down here and go c

to make recommendations I would
the basis of a question and answer

How it worked, I couldn’t possibly
I mean, I assume this would be like

■ver our union’s constitution and some
of our contracts. We tell you that is what we get, but when you get out
in the field and try to make it effective, you bump into a lot of problems
in the administration of it that I don’t know anything about.

Q. Did you report that to the UE (indicating booklet) on your trip?
A. I made no specific report to the UE on the trip.

Q. Was this book furnished to UE members? A. Not that I know
of.

Q. Where was it furnished? Where was it distributed? A. The
book was put out for five cents, and anyone that sent for it could have
me

Q. That was in 1951? A. 1951
Q. Did you join the Communist artv back in 1936?

[Witness confers with counsel

A. Mr. Bresnahan, I give you the
Q. In the interest of time, your

same answer on that on
answer when you decline, do you
3 12? A. Article 12 and Article 25.
A. Yes, I know Leo.

leeline under the provisions of Artie!
Q. Do you know I.eo Gaudreau?
Q. Is he here today? A. Yes, h
Q. Is he a member of the UE?
Q. Did he induce you to join the

A. Yes
; Communist Party in 1936 in Bev-
with a different hat, Mr. Bresnahan■rly? A. That is the same question

Q. That is, you decline to answer A. Yi
Q, Were you a member of the Joint Anti-Fascist Refugee Committee

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I don’t rightly know, so I thir I had better declirn
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Q. It is not what you had better do; you have a right to. A. I will
do that.

Q. Were you the President of the Communist Party of the North
Shore in the forties? A. That is the same question, Mr. Bresnahan.
Same answer. Q. When you were elected President of Local 271, were
you a member of the Communist Party? A. Same answer.

Q. When you joined the UE, were you a member of the Communist
Party? A. Same answer.

Q. And I don’t know if I asked you. are you today a member of the
Communist Party? A. lam not.

Q. Were you a member of the Communist Party yesterday?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. Well, I wouldn’t say I was not yesterday. I answered the same
question the last part of March. lam not going to go back. I will give
the same answer.

Q. You testified before this Commission on March 30th. lam going
to ask you were you a member of the Communist Party on March 29th?

[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I will go to March 29th and say I was not, and that is as far back
as I am going.

Q. I do ask you on the 28th of March were you a member of the
Communist Party, and I understand your answer is you refuse to answer
on the basis of the Constitution of Massachusetts, including the Twelfth
Article? A. Yes. I feel I have to draw a line. The 28th will lead to
the 27th, the 26th, the 25th, and so forth.

Q. Your answer to the 28th is? A. Article 25, Article 12.
Q. Were you a member of the New England Citizens Concerned for

Peace? A. I will give the same answer on that.
Q. All right. Did you address meetings of the Minute Women for

Peace here in Massachusetts? A. Same answer.
Q. Were you a participant in the Boston Committee to Secure Clem-

ency in the Rosenberg case? A. Same answer on that.
Q. Have you raised funds for the Daihj Worker? A. Same answer

on that.
Q. Well now, since March when you testified before us, have you

attended meetings of the Progressive Party here in Boston?
[Witness confers with counsel.]

A. I would like to answer the question, but I really don’t have any
recollection.

Q. Are you a member of the Progressive Party? A. I have been.
I don't know if I am currently.

Q. There was a meeting of the Progressive Party at the Community
Church on the 11th of May this year. Were you in attendance at that?
A. I was at that.



1956.] HOUSE No. 450. 179

u

Q. Were the speakers at that Florence Luscomb, Edwin B. Goodell
Jr. and Carl Marzani? A. I can remember Miss Luscomb.

Q. Was Carl Marzani a speaker there? A. I don’t recall.
Q. Do you remember Carl Marzani being connected with the UE?

A. No, the only thing I know is I read his book.
Q. You read his book? A. I read his book.
Mr. Bresnahan. I have no further questions.
Rep. Tynan. The witness may make a statement either orally or

written, relative, but only relative, to the questions and answers in thii
hearing.

The Witness. Well, to start with, Mr. Chairman, a summons was
issued to me. And by the way, I present this booklet to the Commission
and I would like to have you rule on it.

Mr. Bresnahan. I would like it marked as Lefavour Exhibit 1
Rep. Tynan. Is that admitted as evidence?
Mr. Bresnahan. Yes

Toolmaker Abroad”, marked[Booklet entitled “A Yanke
Lefavour Exhibit I.”]

The Witness. The summons by
requested testimony regarding subver

the Commission to me originally
live activities and related subjects.

I am bound to think that this was merely an excuse to compel the attend-
ance of selected individuals and once the individual was before the com-

mittee they departed from this thing and made a personal program de-
signed to discredit and slander the individual before them. During the
closed session I don’t recall a single question relating to subversive activi-
ties. The main stress by the Commission and, principally, its counsel,
was directed at me personally. I recall that the counsel made what I
consider was an obvious attempt to distort this 1951 report I made on

the trip [indicating Exhibit I]. This report was seriously made by my-
self and it covered observations made in three countries. That was
France, Czechoslovakia and Russia. I believe that in an attempt to
make the report appear in the brightest possible shade of red he could,
Mr. Bresnahan confined himself to the question of did I make a trip to
Russia. He omitted any reference to France and Czechoslovakia. And
I believe he did so designedly. I declined to answer the question at that
time because I did not believe a fair appraisal could be made of the
report or my intention in making it unless the whole matter was discussed
in full. And I further believe that in evaluating this report which I have
submitted today that it should be compared to reports made on similar
subjects prior to my trip by James Carey and subsequently by Marshall
McDuffie, who ran a series in Collier’s Magazine, and more recently by
W. R. Hearst, Jr. I will admit these reporters covered much greater
areas than I was able to, but where my report and theirs have a common
ground, I think, Mr. Bresnahan will either have to give my report a
passing mark or have to conclude that the reporters I have mentioned
are of questionable veracity.
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Mr. Bresnahan. Mr. Chairman, if he states there were no questions
asked him regarding subversion, let me read you some there were the
last time.

“When was the last time that you were an office holder of any
lice which now the holder has to sign a Taft-Hartley affidavit?”

im the executive sessionRep. Tynan. Are you reading fr
Mr. Bresnahan. Y

“A. When I was filling out the unexpired term of the President
in 1951. That was the 1950 term that started. It expired in 1951,

Q. Was the Taft-Hartley Law in existence at that time
Yes, sir.

Q. Did you sign a Taft-Hartley affidavit at that time? A. Yes,
Q. Were you then a member of the Communist Party?

[Witness confers with counsel
A. I will take the Twelfth Article c >n that

asked him, I would like now to ask,
ffidavit in 1950, were you a member

That being so, if no questions were
when you signed the Taft-Hartley

you answered the Twelfth Article
ou signed the Taft-Hartley affidavit
isident in 1950 or 1951 were you a

of the Communist Party, to whicl
when asked on March 30th if when
in filling out the expired term of Pi
member of the Communist Party at

The Witness. Mr. Chairman, I
re time you signed the affidavit?

the counsel raised this que1

tion due to a remark I made in my tatement which I haven’t finished
yet.

Mr. Bresnahan. That is right

this as evidence of a question on
get information on whether or not

The Witness. And he introduce
subversive activity. I would like t
holding a union office is a subversive activity, whether signing an affidavit
is a subversive activity, or whether taking advantage of the State Consti-
tution is a subversive activity.

Rep. Tynan. You are not here to ask questions. If you don’t care
to answer the question, you know what your rights are. You are the one
that asked the question that he asked you nothing relating to subversive
activity. Mr. Counsel immediately turned around and said, “Did I ask
you this,” and quoted.

Mr. Bresnahan. May the witness be ordered to answer the question
which I now repeat specifically? When you signed a Taft-Hartley affi-
davit in 1950 or 1951 to fill out an expired term as President, were you a
member of the Communist Party the instant you signed it?

The Witness. I will take the 25th and the 24th and the 12th Article
on that question. And if I may be permitted to say so, I don’t think
there is anything subversive in the question he asked.

Mr. Bresnahan. If the witness has finished his statement
The Witness. I have not finished my statement
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There is apparently some inference to be drawn about the fact that I
have held office in my Local, and p
drawn that the Local is under the

isibly the inference is going to be
imination of individuals. I think

that if this Commission looks into the affairs of my local, they will find
the membership for 14 years, since its existence, has maintained complete
control of that local at all times. The complexion of the executive board,
the makeup of the off

Mr. Bresnahan. I am going t suggest that this has nothing to do
,sked, and if he has no further state-with the questions that have been

ment on questions which have bi ;n asked or evidence that has been
adduced, I ask he be excused.

Mr. Rosenberg. I object to that And I think it is perfectly obvious
that questions about whether this man was a Communist when he was a
union officer and this man’s reply is a perfectly germane statement in the
light of this Commission’s report of the Communist domination in the
union. And I submit it is a perfectly proper statement for the witnei
to be making, and it is entirely germane

Rep. Tynan. I think a portion was germane but a portion was not
The witness is

UE and Internal Investigations—The Bridgeport Cas
of the leading international

y attempt is made within the
The attitude and policy (

officers of the UE, when any
union itself to rid it of Comm
in the Bridgeport case. In 1£
Connecticut, expelled twenty
grounds that they were Comm

The zeal and celerity with w
rushed to the crushing of thif
inquiry was started at the tor

munists, is strikingly apparent
1947, Local 203 at Bridgeport,
y-six of its members on the

mists.

rich the international officers
action is illuminating. No

to the existence of Com-
munism in the local. Not a question was there raised as to
its wisdom. The concern to shield the Communists was
instant. This desire has been continuously manifest. The
UE has historically opposed the position, held by the great
body of American trade unions, that members of a party
whose first loyalty is to a foreign power are traitors to
American principles and unworthy of responsibility in an
American union.

We here review the Bridgeport case by digesting the
sworn testimony of Joseph Julianelle, Business Agent, and
Michael M. Berescik, President of that local in 1947, as it
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was given on July 24, 1947, before the Committee on Un-
American Activitie

A group of members in the fall of 1946, alarmed by the
aggression of Communists and the success of their propa-
ganda with the local, organized a slate of candidates who
ran for office on the avowed platform that they would clean
out Communists and Communism from within its structure.
They were successful. The local was comprised of 6,000
members. The apathy of members had been noticeable,
“very few people came to the meetings, and consequently
a small majority of 15, 18 or 20 . . . kept steam rollering
anything they wanted through. . .

Michael Berescik, who headed the anti-Communist slate,
was elected by a vote of 2,622 to 1,497. Joseph Julianelle
became the Business Agent. “We campaigned and we
had an open campaign on an anti-Communist slate, if
you will. We stated quite openly and frankly that if elected
to office within the local we would clean out the Com-
munists from Local 203, and further we would do what we
could as a part of the United Electrical, Radio and Machine
Workers of America to do so, within the International
Union.

“After being elected to office there naturally was terrific
pressure on the officers of the local to do this job they had
pledged to do, and that was to clean out the known Com-
munist members of our local. So in our first meeting of the
executive board after the election was held, which was on
January 13, Michael Berescik took issue on the seating of
Josephine Willard, a known Communist in the city of
Bridgeport. She was at that time a member of the execu-
tive board of our local. She was not permitted to be seated
by a vote of the Executive Board. Mr. Berescik, I repeat,
took issue on her seating, and was supported by the majority
of the Executive Board at that time. So we started to do
the job we had pledged ourselves to do, starting with
Josephine Willard.” [Mr. Julianelle.]

“Then the regular meeting of the local was held on
January 19. . . . At that meeting the Commies did a
pretty good job of coming down with their supporters.
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They were going to order the Executive Board to seat Mrs.
55 illard. They failed to do so and miserably, because the
motion made at that meeting and passed by the member-
ship was to support the Executive Board in its position in
not seating Mrs. sVillard because of her known membership
in the Communist Party.” [Mr. Julianelle.]

Mr. Julianelle corrected the date of the meeting from
January 19 to February 2, and continued to the effect that
the estimated attendance at the meeting was 1,300, and
“55rell, after the motion was adopted, the officers of the
local, empowered as they were to take action, sat in special
meeting, right after the meeting of the membership. . .

.

We got up a list of known Communists and their supporters.
Incidentally we spent some time carefully going over the
list, because actually about 50 or 60 members of our local
could have been accused of either Communist membership
or Communist support. 5Vc were very careful to pick out
the so-called energetic or vigorous members of the party
and supporters. They numbered 26.”

There was sent to each of the 26 a letter dated February
4, 1947, as follows;

“In accordance with membership action at a special meeting of this
body Sunday, February 2, 1947, you are hereby informed of your expul-
sion as a member of our local. The power to expel has been vested in the
hands of our officers by an overwhelming majority vote of those attending
the meeting on the motion ‘that this membership empower the officers of
the local to suspend or expel in accordance with the national CIO policy
and our local constitution and bylaws a Communist or member who
supports the doctrine of communism.’ Effective at once, therefore, you
have no membership rights and will be removed automatically from our
check-off list.”

A letter was sent also on February 4 to Julius Emspak,
informing him of the expulsion of the members for cause.

On February 5 the following telegram from Albert J.
Fitzgerald, General President of the UE-CIO was received,
addressed to Michael Berescik and Joseph Julianelle;

“You are hereby directed to cease at once the unconstitutional expul-
sion of members of local 203 and to withdraw and revoke immediately

all expulsions you have issued in violation of the international constitu-
tion of the UE. The International office of this union has taken steps this
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morning to protect the jobs and contract rights of members threatened
bv your arbitrary and unconstitutional actions.”

The local officers took no action after receipt of the
telegram of 5, but Mr. Julianelie further testified
that on February 10 they were sitting in session at an
executive board meeting and “while we were in session, a
newspaper reporter called me up and told me he had been
telephoned by a representative of the New York Times
that the international Executive Board and a member of
that Board is here today had taken action to revoke
the charter of Local 203. Now, that amazed us because
prior to that bit of information we had no knowledge
whatsoever that the international would move as rapidly
and as arbitrarily as they did. .

.

Then, also following that, I got a telephone call from a
female member of my local, who told me that they were
distributing leaflets at the factory gates. This was about
10.30. The leaflet, of which I have a copy here, and whicl
I can submit for evidence had this statement, pointing out
that the charter of the local had been revoked, the inter-
national was taking over to protect the interests and privi-
leges of members, and all that sort of stuff. I repeat, we
had no knowledge, in any way. It all hit us just that way.
Everything had been prearranged carefully, which I can
support by court testimony. We were advised of that. We,
of course, then dismissed the regular order of business that
we were engaged in, and we started to talk about what we
were going to do. Well, we naturally figured the first step
that would be taken, at 9 o’clock the next morning, would
be for the International to try to seize the lands and proper-
ties of local 203. We were determined then, and we are
determined now, that that wouldn’t and will not happen.
So we delegated three of the officers: Michael Berescik,
the president; Patrick O’Boyle, the treasurer; and John
Buckle, the financial secretary to go down at the bank the
first thing in the morning and withdraw funds from the
bank, which amounted to several thousands of dollars.
The following morning just that happened. Anyway, they
went down to the bank and saw these representatives of
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the UE talking with some members of the bank and ap-
parently discussing the funds of the local. Incidentally,
they had a letter from Julius Emspak, a sort of an order,
if you will, requesting the transfer of funds from local 203
to the international union. ... So Michael Berescik, who
knows what to do, stepped into the picture immediately
and protested the transfer of funds from the local to the
international union. Then there was this talk about law-
yers, and what not. Mike acting in an emergency and
having that power to do so, as president of the local, im-
mediately engaged counsel a man by the name of James
O’Connell, in Bridgeport. As a result of his efforts, we
were able to withdraw the funds and the international had
to go back to their office and report to the UE in New York,
I suppose, that they had failed to accomplish their mission.

“Now, in the morning, that same morning, after they
took this licking at the bank, Air. Smith came down to the
union hall to try to force his way in. The object was to
throw me out and take over the local the functions and
the administration of the local. In the meantime, the legal
machinery of the UE was at work. They went to a Judge
Mellitz and they sought a temporary injunction against the
officers of local 203 restraining them from performing their
duties. Judge Alellitz refused to grant the temporary in-
junction. He set a date for a hearing 2 days later. When
that hearing was held, we find that Judge Alellitz couldn’t
serve and a Judge Cornell took his place.

“Now to support what I said, that the international had
carefully prepared the revocation of charter several days in
advance, at least several days in advance of the meeting of
the international general executive board, which is the only
body next to that of the general convention that can take
such action, I present the testimony of Mr. Emspak him-
self —• sworn testimony, included in a copy or transcript
of those proceedings which I have here. This is the
local’s property. We purchased this. The question asked
by Mr. O’Connell, the attorney for local 203, was:

And the complaint in this action which is quite a volu
ment ... is mimeographed and is dated Bridgeport, ( i Febn
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ary 10, 1947. This complaint Mr. Emspak, was drawn up, of course,
after the meeting of the executive board, was it not? ”

And the answer was ‘No.
‘ It was drawnup prior to the meeting?

The answer;

‘The general officers prior to the board meeting discussed naturally,
the problem that we considered we had here in Bridgeport and on the
basis of the discussions among ourselves and the recommendation that we
were prepared to make to the executive board, we requested our legal
department to draw up the necessary papers.’

Q. ‘When did you have that conference?’ A. ‘Which one?
Q. ‘The one that you directed your legal board to draw up these

papers.’ A. ‘Oh, that must have been either the 6th or 7th, somewhere
in there.’

So it is clear from the testimony of Julius Emspak himself
that the three officers of this union Fitzgerald, Matles
and Emspak several days at least before the executive
board met, drew up the necessary papers which were re-
quired to revoke the charter of local 203.”

As a witness, Michael Berescik, when questioned about
the occurrences in Bridgeport on February 10, made the
following sworn statements;

“At the time we took this action against the Communist members,
Mr. Smith was brought all the way from California. He set up a union
office about a block away from ours and issued leaflets and various other
things to disrupt and create confusion a point on which he is a master.
Seven or eight organizers were brought into town to help him at, as I
figure it, 180 a week. The pay roll was increased within the city of
Bridgeport. The so-called organizing the unorganized just became a
high-sounding slogan because here we had unorganized in the town a
half-dozen shops that are yet to be organized. They forgot about them.
They were primarily interested in doing a so-called ax job on the local
officers of local 203.

The entire organization supplied funds to print literature in the name
of the international union. The international union financed the fight
in the courts because certainly other members had been expelled from
local 203 over the period of years and the international union never
lifted a finger. But because Mrs. Willard and a few more people who
subscribed to the Communist ideology were thrown out, the international
union took us to court, during the most trying time when we were
n negotiations. To sum it up, the international union has done every-
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thing in its power to impede our program to make local 203 a real, bona
fide labor union.

Because we did what we did, I was told at a GeneralElectric conference
board meeting held in the Hotel Shelton on Lexington Avenue in New
York City, in the presence of some hundred delegates, by the interna-
tional president, Albert Fitzgerald, that the international union, including
himself, would do everything in his power to smash Joe Julianelle, and
everything we stood for which is strong language coming from a fellow
whose position as international president is extremely shaky.”

Concerning Albert Smith, Mr. Berescik testified as follows
“We have been told by Albert Smith, whom I suspect has more power

in district 2 today than the international president or the district presi-
dent, that if they can’t beat us in the courts they will tear down local
203, get rid of us, and rebuild it.”

As a witness before this Commission, President Paul E.
Seymour of District 2 testified that he attended the meeting
of the International Executive Board on February 10,
1946, and voted in favor of revoking the charter of Local 203.

In the Superior Court hearing at Bridgeport, in an action
brought by the International UE, seeking a permanent in-
junction to prevent the officers of Local 203 from functioning
and a counter action by the local to declare void the Inter-
national’s order revoking its charter, Julius Emspak ap-
peared as a witness. He was then and still is the general
secretary-treasurer of the International. He has been
identified a number of times as a Communist. It was he,
President Fitzgerald and James Matles who caused to be
drawn the order of revocation on which the Executive
Board later acted. A portion of his testimony in the trial
of the action before Judge Cornell is devastatingly reveal-
able of the urgency of the International to nurture Com-
munism. We quote it below. The questioner is Judge
Cornell; the witness Julius Emspak.

Q. Would you consider a Communist, I don’t mean in a political
sense, but a Communist in the sense of one who advocates the overthrow
of the government by violence, to be a member in good standing? A.
The policy of the organization. .

.
.

Q. Never mind, I am asking you now, would you consider such a
person to be a member in good standing? A. A question of that charac-
ter, I would be guided by the policy of the organization.
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organization consider such a person
of the organization, as set forth in
,t any person guilty of an act against

Q. And would the policy of the
in good standing? A. The policy
several conventions, which states th:
the government of the United Stat
member or hold office.

against the union cannot be

on who was advocating the over-
id States, as a Communist, to be

Q. Would you consider that a pen
throw of the government of the Unit<
an act which would indicate that he wi

have just referred to? A. I don’t get
I what?

is welcome, under the policies you
your question, your Honor, would

not, within the meaning of theQ. Would you consider an act or
policy you have just stated, if one were an out-and-out Communist and
advocated the overthrow of the government of the United States, would
that be an act within the meaning of the policy you have just described?
A. If the government proceeded against him, obviously, we would.

Q. Oh, not until he is found guilty, is that it, in a court of law? A.
Well, it is not our function, as we see it, at least, to determine the guilt
or non-guilt.

Q. lam not speaking about his guilt or non-guilt. Suppose he admits
that he is this, that or the other, he admitted, you say A. Admitted
what?

Q. Admits that he is a Communist, in the sense that he is in favor
of the overthrow of the constitutional government in this country, and
substituting the dictatorship, we will say, of the proletariat, he admits

now whether you would consider, or
organization, he would be considered

to having those ideas. I want to I
whether, within the policy of your
a member in good standing of the loc
I think the policy of the organizatic

il, admitting those things. A. Well,
a is clear on that.
my question. I asked you what it
I don’t remember the exact formula-
jf the convention.

Q. Well, you haven’t answered
is? A. I stated that any person
tion they are in the proceedings

;t evading. If the local body, know-
lation of that kind, and acted on it

Q. Well, never mind, you are ji
ing its own membership, had infor
from their own knowledge, would you say that their conduct was such
that it would be claimed that they had violated the constitution of the
International Union if they expelled them? A. \es, your Honor,
because

Q. That is all I want to kr

The outcome of the court action was a ruling that the
action of the International in revoking the charter was

invalid, and the International was ordered to restore charter
rights to the local and refrain from interfering with the
actions and duties of its officers. Our investigation dis-
closed that the twenty-six members were not reinstated
and their expulsion stood.
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We have dwelt at this length on the Bridgeport case for
several reasons. The}'- are:

First, because it occurred in District 2, in which Massa-
chusetts is included, and because the International Presi-
dent, Albert Fitzgerald, and the District President, Paul
Seymour, are residents of Massachusetts.

Second, because the UE Communists always prate that
the individual members are always in control; and

Third, because it demonstrates the iron hand with which
the International officers seek to combat any force that
would stamp out Communism.

The Bridgeport case high-lights these facts; The cardinal
sin is to identify Communists within its ranks. The un-
forgivable offence is to impede Communism. An attempt
to rid the International of Communism is instantly met,
to paraphrase the words of President Fitzgerald to Mr.
Julianelle, with a determination to “do everything in its
power to smash one who attempts to stamp out Commu-
nism, and everything that one stands for.”

UE and Government Investigations

Nothing seems to arouse the ire of the UE officialdom
greater than the mere suggestion that it clean its house of
Communists. Any investigation is castigated as a “witch
hunt;” its purposes are branded as “union busting,” an
attempt to create a “police state,” a “meddling in the
affairs of unions.” This Commission was so charged when
there was a mere announcement that it intended to investi-
gate the UE. Fortunately, the UE cannot prevent a govern-
ment body such as this Commission from searching and
attempting to stamp out the sinister evil of Communism
wherever it rears its head. We think an excellent refutation
of the constant cry of the UE denouncing such investiga-
tions as this is contained in the column of Cornelius Dalton
in the Boston Traveler of March 24, 1955, which we quote
below:

“If there is a prize for arrogance, this week’s award ought to go to
Paul E. Seymour, regional president of the independent United Electrical
Workers Union.
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The Massachusetts Commission on Communism, Seymour says, has
no right to investigate Communists if they happen to work for the
UE. He does not put it that bluntly, but his meaning is inescapable.

Seymour’s statement was prompted by the fact which he himself
disclosed that eight UE staff members were called in by the commis-
sion for questioning in executive session Tuesday.

He characterized the Commission’s action ‘meddling in the affairs of
unions.’

One of those summonsed by the Commission was Donald Tormey, a
UE international representative and for years a top Red agent in the
labor movement in this area.

Herbert A. Philbrick, the former FBI undercover man, recounting a
speech made by Tormey at the 1945 state convention of the Communist
party, said: ‘He waved the red flag of disruption, confusion and civil
strife with the intimation that now was the time, following Marxist prin-
ciples, to turn the imperialist war into a civil war and pave the way for
revolution.’

An inquiry by a legislative commission into Tormey’s activities as a
secret Communist is not ‘meddling in the affairs of unions.’

UE members the vast majority of whom are non-Communists are
or ought to be concerned about Communist meddling in union affairs.

Julius Emspak, UE general secretary, and James J. Matles, director
of organization, have been identified as secret Communists and ducked
behind the Fifth Amendment when questioned. Locally, UE organizers
have even included open Reds, like Dave Bennett, one-time secretary-
treasurer of the Massachusetts Communist party.

Jack Davis, a former Communist and UE organizer in Springfield and
New York State, has testified that UE staff meetings were usually fol-
lowed by another meeting, generally attended by the same people, at
which a Communist party functionary presided.

These meetings, he said, took up ‘the matters of the Communist party
as they applied to the UE, the business of recruiting members of the UE
into the Communist party . . . the question of carrying out the party
program in the day-to-day work of the UE organizer . .

.

.’

The UE, expelled by the CIO several years ago, has promoted Com-
munist propaganda books and has followed the Communist line. During
the Stalin-Hitler pact, for example, President Roosevelt was denounced
as a ‘warmonger’; when Russia was attacked by Germany, he became
‘a great democratic leader.’

When Emspak was questioned about this by a Congressional committee,
he said: ‘The fact that the line followed by the UE News coincided with
the Communist party line is purely coincident’.”
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The powers in control of the national office of the UE
have consistently distributed straight Communist propa-
ganda and used the name of the Union to back Communist
policies. A good test of Communist domination of an
organization is to establish the amount of identifiable Com-
munist propaganda and policy it seeks to spread and
support. We present here two clear examples of the spread
of Communist doctrine and of strict adherence to the
Communist line by the UE. The first is an example of
Communist propaganda disseminated by the UE News,
prior to and following the time of our entrance into World
War 11. The second is the “Teachers Propaganda Kits”
distributed in 1953 by the UE.

This Commission appreciates fully that the great bulk of
the dues-paying members of UE are true, loyal American
citizens. It is their money which publishes and pays for
the UE News. It is their money which prepared, bought
and distributed the “Teachers Propaganda Kits.” It is
their money that was prostituted to furthering the Com-
munist line.

UE News.

Week in, week out the UE Neivs was a faithful, diligent,
persistent and active propaganda agency of the Communist
Party during that critical period of world and American
history concerning which Mr. Emspak was questioned.
That fact glares. The explanation of Julius Emspak
that “the fact that the line followed by the UE News coin-
cided with the Communist Party line is purely coincident,”
—is self-evident nonsense. The rank and file membership
of the union, who were and are good Americans, were and
are supporting an organ whose editors were and are dedi-
cated to a foreign power. There is no apparent change
today in their purposes. Mr. Emspak is still in power. As
long as he and James Matles, with Albert Fitzgerald as
their willing stooge, are the triumvirate controlling the
union’s destinies, there is little prospect that there will he

UE Communist Propaganda.
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any change. The change will come only when the great
body of true Americans, who constitute the UE, exercise
their duty as well as their prerogative and elect leaders
loyal to the United States.

An almost infallible test as to the true loyalty of an
organization’s leaders, is their adherence to the Communist
line. And the truest index of that line are the positions
taken on international affairs prior to World War II: on
the Hitler-Stalin pact of August, 1939; on the outbreak of
the war in September, 1939; on the invasion of Russia by
Hitler’s troops in June, 1941; and on the post-war issues
that arose after V-E Day.

We are quoting below portions of the testimony of Julius
Emspak before the Committee on Un-American Activities
of the House of Representatives on December 5, 1949.
The research of that Committee, as it was presented in
question form by its counsel
thorough and accurate.

Frank S. Tavernier, Jr., is

It is quoted below
name, pleas'Mr. Tavenner. What is your fu

Mr. Emspak. Julius Emspak.
Mr. Tavenner. Are you represe:
Mr. Emspak. Represented? No.

;ed here by counsel
He is with me. He is not represent

mg

,nied by counselMr. Taven Are you accoi P-
Mr. Emspak. V
Mr. Tavenner. Will counsel identify himself for the record?
Mr. Scribner. David Scribne:
Mr. Tavenner. When and where were you born, Mr. Emspak?
Mr. Emspak. August 6, 1904, Schnectady, N. Y.Ichnectady, N. A

Nt addresMr. Tavenner. What is your pi-

Tuckahoe 7, N. A
sent occupation?

Mr. Emspak. 49 Cliff Side Drive
Mr. Taveknbe. What is your pr

nited Electrical,Radio and MachineMr. Emspak. General secretary, I
Workers of America

nember of the executive committeeMr. Tavenner. Are yon also a

if that organization

Mr. Emspak. Ex officio; yes.
Mr. Tavbnner. How.lone have you been an official of the UE?
Mr. Emspak. Since its inception.
Mr. Tavenner. And that is how long ago'And that is how
Mr. Emspak. Since April 1, 1936. or lor 2 days either way
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Mr. Tavenner. Does the UE have an official publication?
Mr. Emspak. Yes.
Mr. Tavenner. What is the name of it?
Mr. Emspak. UE News.
Mr. Tavenner. Where is it published?
Mr. Emspak. New York.
Mr. Tavenner. How is it financed?
Mr. Emspak. Dues of the membership.
Mr. Tavenner. Collected through the union?
Mr. Emspak. Local unions.
Mr. Tavenner. And paid by
Mr. Emspak. Paid by the individual members of the local union.
Mr. Tavenner, And the local union
Mr. Emspak. Transmits a portion of that to the general office.
Mr. Tavenner. And the general office pays for the financing of the

paper?
Mr. Emspak. Yes.
Mr. Tavenner. How is the editor of that paper selected?
Mr. Emspak. Officially lam the editor.
Mr. Tavenner. You are at the present tune?
Mr. Emspak. Yea.
Mr. Tavenner. How long have you been editor?
Mr. Emspak. Since we set up the union.
Mr. Tavenner. How were you selected?
Mr. Emspak. By the executive board. The constitution provides

that one of the paid officers be designated editor.
Mr. Tavenner. Is the editorial policy of the paper controlled and

directed by the executive board?
Mr. Emspak. The basic editorial policy is controlled by convention

decision.
Mr. Tavenner, Does the executive board function also in that con-

nection?
Mr. Emspak, The function of the executive board is to carry out the

affairs of the union between conventions on the basis of the policy de-
cisions of the convention.

Mr. Tavenner. You have already testified that from the inception
of the organization of UE News you have been its editor. I will make
several rather long statements as a basis for questions which I would like
to ask you.

Before August 1939 the Comintern and its affiliated Communist
Parties attacked Hitler as a warmonger and nazism as barbarism. The
American Communist Party and affiliates of the Soviet Communist
Party demanded international boycotts and blockades.

A review of UE News for the period mentioned reveals it had the same
attitude as the Communist Party toward Hitlerism. For instance, the
UE News, in its first issue of 1939, praised the idea of an embargo on
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Germany, and on January 14 UE News carried a critical story on forced
labor in Germany. On March 25 it reviewed Hitler’s promises of non-
aggression and deplored the rape of Czechoslovakia. But in August,
1939, the Hitler-Stalin pact was signed, and Commissar Molotov on that
occasion remarked that; “Facism, after all, is a matter of taste.”

A week after the signing of the pact, World War II began when the
Nazis invaded Poland. The American Communist Party line quickly
reversed itself, along with the Communist Parties of all other countries,
and, until June 22, 1941, the Communist press was filled with attacks
on American and British leaders. The war was denounced as an im-
perialist war, and President Roosevelt became a warmonger. Aid to
Britain and the other countries fighting Hitler were violently opposed,
as were proposed amendments to the neutrality law which would allow
England to purchase munitions.

The UE News, like the Communist Party, reversed its sentiments con-
cerning the Hitler government and quickly took the position that the war
was a profiteers’ war. The UE News said that

Labor in America, watching the sorry sight, is watchful lest our
own tones involve us in the conflict

On September 30, 1939, the UE News, in a full-page editorial entitled
‘‘Let’s Do Our Fighting Here” declared that

The war that is going on is no exception to the rule that wars are
fought for money. American labor wants no part of this fishy war.

For the rest of the year 1939 the UE News praised the fight of the so-
called isolationists in Congress, and on November 11, 1939, attacked
Congress for making the United States “the arsenal of the world.” The
administration was condemned by the UE News as “bomb peddlers.”

Mr. Emspak, could you explain why the UE News, of which you were
editor at the time, followed the line of the Communist Party and expressed
the same views as the Communist Parties of the world both before and
after the signing of the Hitler-Stalin pact?

Mr. Emspak. UE News followed the line expressed by the member-
ship at its conventions, and the line to the best interest of the working
people. I think any time we can do anything at all to fight fascism and
war, we are helping the people. The fact that the line followed by UE
News coincided with the Communist Party line is purely coincident.
AVhenever we can do anything to help the laboring people, we do it.

Mr. Tavenner. So it was a coincidence that the policy of the UE
News coincided with the Communist Party line?

Mr. Emspak. The policy of UE News is determined by the member-
ship at the conventions.

Mr. Tavenner. Mr. Emspak, in 1940 the Communist Party’s anti-
war and isolationist line was continued and intensified. President Roose-
velt was vilified as a warmonger and dupe of British imperialism.
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Throughout the United States the Communist Party held “peace rallies”
and “keep America out of war” meetings. There were marches on
Washington and numerous petition campaigns. Lend-lease was de-
nounced as were moves to modify the Neutrality Act. Aid to Britain of
any kind was opposed. One piece of propaganda, a pamphlet entitled
“The Yanks Are Not Coming” which was written by a west coast Com-
munist was of particular interest to the Communist Party.

A review of the UE News for the same period reflects that, like the
Communist Party, it attacked President Roosevelt as a warmonger and
charged that “the forgotten man has yielded to the man in uniform as
the chief object of concern of the national administration.”

On January 20, UE News said that “national defense is a gag.” Also
on January 20, 1940, UE officials in district 6 signed a proclamation de-
claring that “The Yanks are positively not coming.”

Throughout the year, in numerous stories and editorials, the UE News
denounced United States foreign policy and aid to the allies. On Feb-
ruary 24, 1940, UE News devoted a full page to the Communistpamphlet
“The Yanks Are Not Coming,” and, like the Communist Party, praised
the pamphlet as a history-making publication.

On June 8, 1940, James MacLeish, president of District 4 of the UE,
issued a statement which claimed that

A war hysteria is being developed with terrific speed in the United
States. The entire Federal administration, including the President,
is giving leadership to this campaign.

The UE News, on July 20, 1940, attacked the Selective Service Act and
on September 21, 1940, demanded its repeal.

Mr. Emspak, can you explain how it was that the UE News during
the year 1940 followed the program of the Communist Party without
deviation in its attitude toward the Second World War?

Mr, Emspak. UE News did not follow the line of the Communist
Party, Mr. Chairman. UE News followed the line the membership de-
veloped for themselves in the UE.

Mr. Tavenner. Was it the Communist membership in the UE that
developed that policy which was the same as the policy of the Communist
Party?

Mr. Emspak. We have no political tests in our organization. A mem-
ber expresses any views he wants to, and one member does not make a
decision.

Mr. Tavenner. In 1940 the CommunistParty also violently opposed
the President’s plan to lend United States arms to England and his pro-
posal to transfer the group of over-age destroyers to Britain in return for
Atlantic bases.

During 1940, while the Hitler-Stalin pact was still in effect, very little
criticism of Hitler and Nazism was contained in the Communist press.
The Communist Party and the Daily Worker repeatedly attacked Sidney
Hillman and his work in the Office of Production Management and the
War Production Board.
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In 1940 the Communist Party was fanatically opposed to President
Roosevelt and ran its own Presidential candidate, Earl Browder. On
April 8 and 9, 1940, Germany invaded Norway and Denmark. The Com-
munists defended this invasion on the ground that Norway and Denmark
were provoking Hitler. On June 15, 1940, Russia invaded Latvia, Estonia
and Lithuania, and occupied these Baltic countries. The Communist
Parties throughout the world hailed the invasion of the three countries
by the Soviets as a great military victory for Stalin.

On September 27, 1940, Germany, Italy and Japan signed the Axis
Pact. The Communist line was that this pact was justified because of
the imperialist designs of England and the United States.

During the same period, the UE News opposed the transfer of over-
age destroyers to England, particularly in its issue of September 14, 1940.
On December 28, 1940, it attacked the President’s proposal to lend Eng-
land a quantity of American arms. During 1940 the UE News reflected
the Daily Worker and the Communist press, printing no more than one
or two small items speaking harshly about Hitler and Nazism.

On October 19, 1940, the UE News attacked Sidney Hillman’s work in
the national-defense agencies, despite the fact that Hillman at the time
was the president of another CIO union. Throughout the year 1940 the
UE News attacked the President, despite its endorsement of the previous
year of the third term. During the same year, like the Daily Worker,
it failed to criticize the German invasion of Norway and Denmark.
Strangely, there was no comment from the UE officials or from the
UE News on the Soviet occupation of the Baltic countries. UE News
and the UE officials at no time during the year 1940 criticized the forma-
tion of the Fascist Axis which was created on September 27, 1940.

Mr. Emspak, could you explain how the UE Neius adhered to the same
line as the Communist Party, changing each time the Communist Party
changed?

Mr. Emspak. Of course, I denied that it adhered to it. I told you
before, and repeat again, that whatever appears in that paper, whatever
appeared then or now, appears as a result of whatever the basic policy
of the union as such is. It certainly is not an organ of the Communist
Party, nor are your attempts to prove it so by these long statements
going to succeed, because it just isn’t so.

Mr. Tavennbr. The most active Communist front during the first
7 months of 1939 was the American League for Peace and Democracy.
However, when the Hitler-Stalin Pact was signed in August, 1939, the
American League for Peace and Democracy, of which I believe you were
a member, was dissolved promptly.

Immediately thereafter the Communists created the American Peace
Mobilization, and the White House was picketed with signs declaring
“The Yanks Are Not Coming,’’ and the American-Peace Mobilization
sent numerous delegations to Washington to exert pressure on Congress-
men who agreed with President Roosevelt on aid to England and the
Allies.
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Mr. Emspak, officials of the HE were prominent in the American League
for Peace and Democracy, and when the League was dissolved these
officials promptly switched to the new Communist creation called the
American Peace Mobilization.

Can you explain why the UE in this particular instance followed the
same line as the Communist Party?

Mr. Emspak. Well, Mr. Chairman, I just don’t get this. I do, of
course, in a very real way, but basically you are asking the same recurring
question as to whether the UE News was an organ of the Communist
Party, which it isn’t. It reflects the views of the UE membership, and
that is that.

Mr. Tavennbr. In other words, you contend there was no influence
or pressure brought to have the editorial policy of the UE News follow
the Communist Party line, though it did follow it?

Mr. Emspak. Not only do I contend it, I assert it didn’t.
Mr. Tavennbr. In 1941 the Communist Party line regarding the

Second World War was a continuation of its 1940 position. The national-
defense program was constantly condemned, aid to England was vio-
lently opposed, and the Communist Party and its front organizations
lobbied against lend-lease, against the loan of arms to England, and
every other move in and out of Congress designed to assist England and
stop the Nazi world conquest.

The UE News on January 11, 1941, attacked the President’s message
defense funds and aid to the Allies,
on page 4, carried an article in which
serving as a member of the National

to Congress asking for increased
Also on January 11, the UE News
you attacked Signey Hillman for
Defense Advisory Committee.

•ws devoted a full page to the AmericaOn January 25, 1941, the UE N
Peace Mobilization, which had you as a member of its national council

The American Peace Mobilization, even on the very day that Hitler
.attacked Russia, was picketing the White House. On June 17, 1941,
just 5 days before Hitler’s invasion of Russia, James MacLeish, president
of District No. 4 of the UE, attacked the Defense Mediation Board, and
on June 7, 1941, on page 3 of the UE Neivs, District No. 6, Council of
the United Electrical Workers, declared:

“It is becoming clearer every day that the heat is on to wind up
a drive to push us into war, being conducted by big business inter-
ests who stand to profit and by the administration of Franklin D.
Roosevelt and the Republican and Democratic Parties.”

Mr. Emspak, can you explain how it was that you and your organiza-
tion’s newspaper, the UE News, followed the Communist Party line
which I have outlined in my question?

Mr. Emspak. UE News did not follow the Communist Party line.
UE News is not the organ of a foreign power. UE News is a trade-union
paper governed by the policies of the membership of the union.

Mr. Tavennbr. Also prior to the date of the attack by Germany
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upon Russia, the Communists in the United States were in favor of
strikes in defense industries. For instance, when Wyndham Mortimer,
a known Communist, .called a strike at the crucial North American
Aviation plant at Inglewood, Calif., the Communist Party and its press
gave it their full support. The President eventually ordered Govern-
ment seizure of this important defense plant; and, as a result, the Com-
munist press said that this move was outright fascism and meant the
end of civil liberties in this country.

Despite the fact that Phil Murray instructed the strikers to return to
work, the UE supported the North American strike. On June 14, 1941,
the UE News condemned government intervention and declared, edi-
torially:

“As war fever reaches a new high, more and more openly the
forces of the Government are being turned to the suppression of the
people’s democratic liberties for the announced purpose of ‘defend-
ing democracy.”’

You, yourself, proclaimed that the government action
“has parallel only in the blackest pages of history in this country.”

Mr. Eraspak, again I ask you how it was that you and the organ of
your organization supported the Communists in the North American
Aviation strike?

Mr. Emspak. We supported the North American Aviation strike,
but we didn’t support the Communists. I said then, and I repeat again
what I said then about the use of troops in a labor dispute. Our country
was not at war. It was 2 years before our country was at war.

Mr. Tavennee. On June 22, 1941, Hitler invaded Russia, and the
Communist Party, within the space of 2 hours, completely reversed the
party line. The war they had been calling an “imperalist” war became a
“people’s” war and a “great democratic crusade.” Hitler, for whom the
Communists had no harsh words for the past year and a half, became a
raving beast. The President, who was reviled as a warmonger on June 21,
on June 22, became a great Democratic leader. The Communist opposi-
tion to aid for England and the Allies was transformed into a tremendous
campaign for all-out assistance to every nation lined up against Hitler.
The class struggle was suspended by the Comintern, and Earl Browder
publicly declared that he was willing to work with J. P. Morgan and the
National Association of Manufacturers.

Mr. Emspak, the line of the UE News and of its officials after the in-
vasion of Russia by Plitler was changed to the same line as that of the
Communist Party. For instance, Local 1224, in the first issue of UE
News following the invasion of Russia, passed a resolution demanding im-
mediate aid to the Soviet Union. District 4, in the July 5, 1941, issue of
UE News, went on record demanding that “the Soviet Union, Great
Britain, and all others sincerely fighting the Facist Axis be accorded the



1956.1 HOUSE No. 450. 199

fullest assistance to avail themselves of our industrial or material re-
sources.”

On July 10 in UE News, District No. 1 council announced that it
“supports without reservation all-out aid for Britain, China, and the
Soviet Union.”

Also, the Communist Party said that nothing must interfere with war
production. Strikes were outlawed, and Earl Browder said he could see
no reason why the wartime amity between labor and employers could not
continue.

The UE on July 20, 1941, proposed that President Roosevelt should
“immediately call a national conference of labor, agriculture, Govern-
ment and industry.”

Mr. Emspak, can you explain how it was that prior to the attack by
Germany upon Russia the UE supported strikes in defense plants the
same as the Communist Party, whereas after the attack by Hitler upon
Russia the UE, the same as the Communist Party, opposed strikes in
defense industries?

Mr. Emspak. The UE didn’t take any position on strikes as such until
after Pearl Harbor. Then we made a commitment to our Government on
strikes, and I was a party at the meeting of the industry-labor conference
that worked out that agreement.

Mr. Tavenneh. After the attack by Germany upon Russia, the Com-
munist Party uttered hardly a word of criticism of President Roosevelt,
who, until June 22, was branded an enemy of the working class and a
destroyer of peace.

On October 25 the UE News printed a three-column story asking for
complete repeal of the Neutrality Act which had been advocated some
time before by President Roosevelt and opposed by both the Communist
Party and the UE News.

Mr 1. Emspak, can you explain why this shift in the sentiment of the
UE occurred regarding the repeal of the Neutrality Act?

Mr. Emspak. Whatever the position of the Union was at the time
I suppose.

Mr. Tavenneh. On October 25, 1941, the UE News devoted a whole
page to a plan developed by Joseph Selly and the American Communica-
tions Association to keep spies out of the country. Can you explain why
it is that when this committee is trying to keep spies out of the country
the UE refers to its efforts as “Red baiting”?

Mr. Emspak. Because that is what it is. It is union-busting. It is
anti-people. It is everything that is bad in this country. It is more than
“Red baiting.” It is the first step of fascism.

Mr. Tavenneh. Do you feel that we should permit spies to come in
this country?

Mr. Emspak. No, I don’t, and you know I don’t.
Mr. Tavenneh. In the latter part of the year 1941 the Communist

Party from time to time admitted thatEngland and her allies had actually
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been fighting fascism before Russia was invaded. However, prior to
Russia’s entry into the war, England was engaged in fighting an
“imperalist” war, according to the CommunistParty line. I think I have
pointed out that the UE also followed this line.

In September, 1941, the UE convention went on record and said that
England was worthy of securing aid from the United States, and one of
the resolutions adopted at the convention stated that “the tremendous
sacrifices being made by the British, Russian, Chinese and other peoples
in this resistance to Hitlerism are sacrifices made on our behalf as well as
their own, and contribute directly to the defense of our country.” This
resolution asked that all possible aid be given to Great Britain, the Soviet
Union, China and other nations resisting Hitlerism.

Mr. Emspak, can you explain why it was that the United Electrical
Workers’ convention adopted such a resolution as this, whereas prior to
the Russian invasion by Germany the UE was opposed to aiding Britain
and its allies?

Mr. Emspak. I suppose the people changed their minds
Mr. Moulder. I didn’t hear your answer.
Mr. Emspak. I said I suppose the people changed their minds. We

had a convention. There was a big “hash-over”, I suppose, and they
came to a certain decision, and that is that.

There is no apparent change today in UE leadership
purposes. Mr. Emspak is still in power. As long as he
and James Matles, with Albert Fitzgerald as their willing
stooge, are the triumvirate who control the union’s destinies,
there is little prospect that there will be any change. The
change will come only when the great body of true, loyal
Americans who constitute the UE, elect leaders whose
pronounced Americanism is unquestioned.

The zeal and thoroughness of the UE to spread the Com-
munist line is apparent upon an examination of the Teachers’
Propaganda Kits which the International Union spread
throughout the country in 1953. A very clear summary
and explanation of the Kit was contained in the 7th Report
of the Senate Fact-finding Committee on Un-American
Activities for the State of California in 1953.

We are quoting below an article which appeared in that
report and which is self explanatory;

Teachers' Propaganda Kits.
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Teachers’ Propaganda Kits, 1953 Model.
About two months prior to the publication of this report teachers

throughout the United States, both in the primary schools and in the
institutions of higher learning, were flooded with bundles of propaganda
material issued by an independent union, The United Electrical, Radio
and Machine Workers of America. This organization, expelled from the
CIO because it was found to be Communist-dominated, has its head-
quarters at 11 East 51st Street in the City of New York. Its general
president is Alfred J. Fitzgerald, its general secretarj'-treasurer is Julius
Emspak, and its director of organization is James J. Matles. The union
has a membership of approximately 350,000 members. The letter which
accompanied these so-called “Teachers’ Kits,” was signed by Mr. Emspak
and addressed to, “Dear Friend.” The letter was as follows:

“We are sending you our 1953 edition of the Teachers’ Kit which
contains various materials available to you through the educational
department of our union. We feel that these materials may be used
as possible aids in bringing the union point of view to teachers and
students.

During recent years we have had many requests from teachers for
basic materials concerning our union. The material we enclose has
been chosen because we believe it best answers some of the many
questions asked by teachers and pupils alike. What position does
the union take on prices, taxes, civil liberties and women in industry?
What is the attitude of the union to the Government economic
policies? Are the statistics presented by the Government on cost-
of-living accurate?

Our members —• consisting of more than 300,000 men and women
throughout the Nation have a keen interest in our schools and
are aware of mutual problems confronting both teachers and factory
workers. It is well known, for example, thsft many teachers in the
Nation receive less in compensation than the least skilled workers
in our plants, with consequent bad effects in the entire educational
system

We feel that the material we are enclosing and the discussions
that may grow from its use are of great importance in explaining to
your students the important role of organized labor. Undoubtedly
much material reaches you from various organizations, and the UE
feels that teachers and students alike will benefit by reading material
about a labor union by a labor union

We hope you will call this Teachers’ Kit to the attention of your
colleagues and friends in the school and community organizations
in which you participate. Please feel free to write us if you have
any special requests or suggestions.

Sincerely yours.

Signed Julius Emspak,
General Secretary-Treasurer
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This Teachers’ Kit included in a package with the fore-
going letter the following items

1. Excerpts from resolutions passed at the 17th national conven-
tion of the union, urging its members to “check anti-labor trend in
public education,” and stating that kits are being sent to “as many
teachers as we can reach.”

2. A broadside offering teachers the use of four 16 mm. motion
picture films free of charge. The films are entitled, INDUSTRIES
DISINHERITED; THE GREAT SWINDLE; OUR UNION;
and, DEADLINE FOR ACTION. A blank is provided, giving
spaces for the name of the teacher and the address of the school to
which the films are to be sent.

3. A 1953 calendar, being a hang-up type of calendar with a
propaganda picture above each successive calendar page. Examples
of the propaganda material contained in this item include a cartoon
of a young couple standing timidly before a marriage license window,
and recoiling from the clerk who is demanding: “Are you now or
have you ever been a member of the Communist Party?” Another
cartoon shows a speaker about to take the rostrum at a Fourth of
July celebration, and being cautioned, “Don’t be afraid to mention
the Declaration of Independence just don’t quote it.” Another
cartoon shows two men engaged in decorating a church for Christmas
services. One man is standing on a ladder hanging up a large sign
whichreads: “Peace on Earth. The other man warns him, “Better
say that’s a quote from the Bible or it might be mistaken for Com-
munist propaganda.

4. A booklet entitled, ONE STEP LEADS TO ANOTHER.
The front cover of this item shows a workman reading a newspaper,
and being watched by a shark with its mouth open. The successive
six pages are arranged like a cartoon strip. Each page depicts the
apathetic workman reading his morning papers. The headlines state
successively: “Order Rods Jailed; Aliens Deported; Mob Lynch-
ings Reported; Plan Attacks Jews, Catholics; Sentence Top Labor
Leaders.” In each instance the workman is disinterested. Then
the booklet declares: “It happened.” The workman is next shown
locked in a jail cell. He peers through the bars complaining, “Hey

all I did was to ask for a raise!” The uniformed guard turns in
the corridor to glare at him, snarling: “Communist!”

5. Another item comprises a 20-page booklet for the kiddies
called “Chug-chug,” the story of a toy train. Here is the class
struggle concept disguised under a thick sugar-coating for juvenile
consumption. Briefly, it tells the story, profusely illustrated, of a
poor worker’s family ■— mother and two little kiddies, Donnie and
his sister, Susan.

On page 1, these two embryonic Marxists are shown peering
lovingly at little Chug-chug, an electric train running on a circular
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track in a toy store. It peers back just as lovingly at the children
through the toy shop window. Obviously, Donnie, Susan and Chug-
chug wT ere simply made for each other. The kids then do the natural
thing. They ask Chug-chug to come home with them, but on the
next page the toy train replies sadly, “I cannot come, I cost too
much.”

Well, Donnie and Susan take their problem to Pop, who just
happens to be employed at starvation wages in a non-union factory.
He patiently explains to the kiddies that he has to pay rent, buy
food and clothes, and he just doesn’t have enough money left over
to buy Chug-chug. But these are persistent kids, wTho do not give
up easily. They keep pestering Daddy for Chug-chug, until he and
his co-workers manage to unionize the factory. At once the wages
are raised, the deal is made at the toy shop, the kids get Chug-chug,
and everyone lives happily ever after.

The class-struggle theme, which readers of this report who have
also read the section containing excerpts from the Communist Mani-
festo should now thoroughly understand, is unobtrusively slipped in
when, on page 15, Donnie asks: “But if everybody joins the union,
who is there left on the other side?” and Susan chimes in, “Yes, who
is on the other side?” Daddy then explains, “On the union side are
working people, and on the other side are the bosses and bankers.”

On the same page, above this dialectic conversation, is a cartoon
showing three members of “The other side.” They are depicted as
bloated members of the bourgeoisie attired in evening clothes, wear-
ing silk hats, smoking cigars, and lounging happily with their kind
of Chug-chug, a pile of money bags.

’ Kit is a 23-page booklet entitled,
also constitutes propaganda fodder
ans, only in this booklet they are

Another item in the Teachers
“Who Does the Work?” which
for America’s Donnies and Sus
called Johnny and Nancy.

hows Pop leaving for work, where-The first picture in this item
upon these curious youngsters ask, “Mommie, why do people work?”
Mother then takes over for the ensuing 19 pages, assisted by as
many cartoons depicting the proletarian workers as toiling (none
too happily) at a variety of jobs. Then, on page 16, Johnny asks,
“Does everybody work?” Here is where mother really gets in her
lick. “No,” she declares, “there are some people who don’t work
for a living. Some people live from the work of others and do noth-
ing useful.” Mother is assisted in making herself crystal clear on
this matter by the accompanying cartoons of four members of the
bourgeoisie the familiar rich, bloated exploiters of the down-
trodden, toiling masses. On page 18, the first pair are shown in a

sumptuous office, fully equipped with a stock market ticker, a

carved desk, a seltzer bottle and glasses and a profit chart that in-
dicates how easily one could make a fortune by doing nothing.
One of these plump gentlemen is seated with his feet on the desk,
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reading the Wall Street Journal. The others stand near-by, smoking
cigars and gazing happily at the profit chart on the wall. On the
next page another pair of the idle bourgeoisie are shown lounging on
their private beach under the palms. Their corpulent forms are
stuffed into bathing trunks, and the setting includes the customary
props, cigars, liquor and stock market reports.

6. The next item is a folder which attacks the Smith Act under
the terms of which scores of Communist leaders and members of
the National Committee of the Communist Party of the United
States have been convicted. The act is called the “thought control
bill,” and the 350,000 members of the union are urged to work for
its repeal.

7. The next item is called the “U.E. Steward,” Volume 6, No. 1,
January, 1953. This 22-page booklet is the regular monthly publi-
cation of the union. This particular issue, included in the Teachers’
Kit, urges repeal of the McCarran Immigration Act, discusses a
California meeting with representatives of the United Mine, Mill
and Smelter Workers (also expelled from the CIO because found to
be Communist-controlled) and urges aid for Messrs. Matles and
Emspak, who are said to have run afoul of the vested interests be-
cause of their alleged red activities.

8. The next item in the Teachers’ Kit is called “Frame-up!” In
it the entire judicial process of our country is attacked nine cases
being termed deliberately framed and instigated by big business for
the purpose of exploiting the works. Here, again, is played the fa-
miliar somber air of the Marxian class-struggle. In connection with
the Harry Bridges case this folder says; “Harry Bridges. He organ-
ized the longshoremen and fought for their welfare. After charges
against him had not been proved in three previous frame-ups, he was
framed again in 1950 and sentenced to five to seven years in prison.”

These examples of current Communist propaganda flooding our edu-
cational institutions again prompts the committee to point out that
whereas excerpts from the Communist Manifesto, and quoted material
from other official Communist publications do not make for particularly
easy or spicy reading, nevertheless, a familiarity with such documentary
data provides one with the equipment necessary for the detection of subtle
Party propaganda. Thus, in the first children’s booklet dealing with the
desire of Donnie and Susan for the toy train, we find an example of the
class-struggle concept which forms a basic part of the Communist Mani-
festo; in the second juvenile propaganda booklet dealing with Johnny
and Nancy, we find the class-struggle developed, and accompanied by
the Marxian concept of surplus value also set forth in the Communist
Manifesto. It cannot be emphasized too much that until one is familiar
with the ideology, historical development, international aspects and cur-
rent organization of the Communist apparatus, he is simply not ade-
quately equipped to understand current propaganda and Party activities.
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The committee feels that such basic information must first be made avail-
able to the Legislature and the people in understandable form, and then
illustrated with practical, current examples of how the American Com-
munist Party uses these basic doctrines of Marx in sugar-coated form for
the purposes of propagandizing and recruiting new members.

It should hardly be necessary to add that a union of electrical, radio and
machine workers, completely Communist-dominated, at the top, whose
350,000 members are strategically placed in sensitive positions through-
out the country, is a menace to the American way of fife.

In April, May and June of last year, several former members of the
Communist Party who were also officers of the United Electrical, Radio
and Machine Workers of America, appeared as witnesses before the
United States Senate Subcommittee on Internal Security. They all testi-
fied that to their positive knowledge the union was completely Communist-
controlled at the top, and their testimony was contrasted with the now
familiar pattern followed by other union members who refused to answer
any questions concerning their Communist affiliations and activities on
the ground that their answers would tend to subject them to a criminal
prosecution.

A price which dues-paying members of the UE pay for
having a Communist-dominated union is the forfeiture of
the right to have their union recognized as their collective
bargaining agent in any plant in which work is being done
for the Atomic Energy Commission. Thousands of loyal
American electricians are thus stigmatized because of their
Communist and Communist-directed leaders. It is a high
price to pay.

Included in a report in 1948 by a committee appointed
by President Truman to make recommendations concerning
national safety and labor relations with the Atomic Energy
Commission was this statement:

“That, fully recognizing and safeguarding the primary responsibility
for sound and stable relations at each government-owned or privately
operated atomic energy installation, provision be made for bringing to
bear upon the settlement of critical disputes all available experience and
responsibility of individuals at very highest levels of management and
labor.”

On September 27, 1948, in accordance with that recom-
mendation, David E. Lilienthal, Chairman of the United

UE and Atomic Energy Commission.
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States Atomic Energy Commission, sent to Charles E.
Wilson, President of the General Electric Company, a
letter containing these paragraphs:

“It is noted that UE officers have failed to comply with the section
of the Labor Management Relations Act, 1947, which provides for filing
of affidavits that they are not members of the Communist Party or
affiliated 'with such Party. In addition, information is available, much of
it a matter of open public record, of alleged Communist affiliation or
association of various officers of UE. It appears that some of these UE
officers are in a position within this union whereby they exercise adminis-
trative, negotiating, or disciplinary authority over General Electric
Company employees engaged in atomic energy work at Schenectady. The
failure to file non-Communist affidavits and the information concerning
alleged Communist affiliation of these officers of UE, when taken to-
gether, present a very serious question as to whether representation of
atomic energy workers at Schenectady by a union in which such officers
occupy important positions is consistent with that full and unqualified
adherence and loyalty to the interests of the United States that the
security of the Nation and the policy of the Atomic Energy Act of 1946
require.

The Commission’s policy, as you know, is that questions relating to a
contractor’s labor policy should be resolved and handled directly by the
contractor. However, in view of the Company’s position respecting UE,
as stated above, and of the obligation of the Commission in matters per-
taining to national security, the Atomic Energy Commission as a first
step toward improving the situation directs as follows: The General
Electric Company not recognize United Electrical, Radio and Machine
Workers of America, CIO, at the new Knolls II Atomic Power Laboratory,
Schenectady, New York. The Commission will communicate with you
with respect to other steps that may need to be taken.”

On September 30, 1948, Albert J. Fitzgerald, General
President of the UE, sent a letter to Chairman Lilienthal
containing these statements

“There is absolutely no justifiab
your part unless it was to assist tl
dential campaign.

purpose in this flare of publicity on
Administration in the current presi-

lc

Ie

The Union denounces the utterly
cerning the loyalty of this union

false and groundless insinuations con-
and its members in connection with

atomic energy plants. The twelve-year record of the UE officers and
members in service to the welfare of our country and its working people
repudiates these smears. Only a combination of cheap political maneu-
vering and outright government-company anti-union collaboration could
produce such unjustified action as you have taken.
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The federal Constitution protects the American people from such
arbitrary actions by Government officials. Even the Atomic Energy
Commission is not above the law of the land. This Union will take every
available step to protect the constitution and contractual rights of the
members of the Union from the unwarranted and illegal action of the
Commission.”

An answering letter from ( ihairman Lilienthal to Presi-
-1948, included the following:dent Fitzgerald on October 6,

“It should be borne in mind that
reflection upon the individual membe

those instructions are in no way a
rs of UE. The many thousands of

persons, including individual members of the United Electrical Workers
Union, who are employed on restricted atomic energy work are required
to furnish detailed personal information including information concerning
their affiliations. They are subject to investigation by the Federal
Bureau of Investigation and to a determination by the Commission that
their participation in the atomic energy program will not adversely affect
the common defense and security.

The Commission believes that those union officers exercising adminis-
trative, negotiating, and disciplinary authority over workers employed
on atomic energy projects are themselves participants in the atomic energy
program and should be subject to a comparable scrutiny from the security
standpoint.

As was stated in the instructions for General Electric, the Commission’s
action was based upon the information available much of it of open
public record of alleged Communist affiliation or association of various
officers of UE taken together with the failure of UE officers to file non-
Communist affidavits under the Labor Management Relations Act, 1947.
As was further stated these circumstances present a very serious question
as to whether representation of the atomic energy workers at Schenectady
by a union in which such officers occupy important positions is consistent
with that full and unqualified adherence and loyalty to the interests of
the United States that the security of the nation and the policy of the
Atomic Energy Act of 1946 require.

Because of this very serious question, and because of the fact that men
were soon to begin work at the newly constructed Knolls Atomic Power
Laboratory, the Commission concluded that a proper discharge of its
grave responsibilities to the nation required it to instruct the General
Electric Company not to recognize UE as the bargaining representative
of employees at this new atomic energy installation

As was stated to the General Electric Company, the instructions
already issued by the Commission are a first step in improving the situa-
tion at Schenectady. Unless the serious question concerning various of the
officers of UE should be cleared up satisfactorily, the Commission intends
to take such further steps as may be necessary to assure that those officers
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of UE shall not exercise administrative, negotiating and disciplinary
authority over General Electric Company employees engaged in atomic
energy work at Schenectady.

The assertions in your letter do not even begin to answer the serious
question that has been raised concerning the absence in various of the
UE officers of the requisite adherence and loyalty to the interests of the
United States. If the officers of UE desire, the Commission will afford
them every opportunity to participate in a fuller exploration of this issue.
It should be understood, however, that the AEG would expect the UE
officers to be prepared to give full and candid statements concerning
present or past affiliations of any kind with the Communist Party or
Communist-dominated organizations. In addition, the same personnel
data will be requested of the UE officers as has been furnished by em-
ployees and by various officers of other unions who represent employees in
the atomic energy program.”

Failing to receive an answer to his letter of October 6,
Chairman Lilienthal addressed to President Fitzgerald a
further letter on October 22, 1948, in which appeared;

“In the review of the situation at AEC installations other than Oak
Ridge, however, a serious question wras found to exist in respect to alleged
communist affiliation or association of various officers of the United Elec-
trical, Radio and Machine Workers of America. This union, under its
overall contract with General Electric, has acted as representative of
certain atomic energy workers in Schenectady and its officers, therefore,
have been in a position to exercise administrative, negotiating and dis-
ciplinary authority over such workers.

Because of the existence of this serious question, we directed the
General Electric Company not to extend recognition to UE for any em-
ployees at the new Knolls Atomic Power Laboratory which is about to
be put into operation.

The Commission took the position that if the officers of UE are to
exercise administrative, negotiating and disciplinary authority over
workers employed on the atomic energy work at Schenectady, these
officers should be subject to the same scrutiny as other union officers who
are participating in the program.

In my letter of October 6, the Commission proffered to the officers of
UE an opportunity to participate in a resolution of this matter. Such
participation, as indicated in that letter, would necessitate the furnishing
by the officers of UE of the same personal data as has been furnished by
all employees engaged in atomic energy work and by various officers of
other unions, including full and complete statements as to their associa-
tions and affiliations.

The Commission requests that it be informed by you, whether in view
of the lapse of time (about two weeks) since the Commission’s letter of
October 6, it should be assumed that the officers of UE do not desire to
avail themselves of the offer proffered to them in that letter.”
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There then was sent on October 26, 1948, an eight page
letter from President Fitzgerald to Chairman Lilienthal in
which the UE not only failed to accept the offer proffered
to it by the Atomic Energy Commission, but bombastically
flayed the Atomic Energy Commission and the General
Electric Company as being in a conspiracy against the
union. Among other things the letter set forth:

“[you] seek to excuse the program you have evolved, in collaboration
with GE upon the basis of newspaper gossip, the lies of self-seekers and
degenerate professional witnesses and the politically motivated antics of
a pair of Taft-Hartley Congressmen.

We will fight this attempt to establish in the United States govern-
ment-dominated company unionism modeled after the Nazi labor front.

While it is obvious that you and your associates have already formed a
pre-judgment of our case, and are proceeding according to a plan you have
worked out in collaboration with the General Electric Company, we
nevertheless call upon you to rescind your previous order to the General
Electric Company and restrain yourself from further unwarranted inter-
ference in our affairs at the company’s behest.

We regard this case as so flagrant an example of government-corpora-
tion conspiracy for the unlawful violation of a contract, and so serious an
attempt to destroy the independence of our Union that we are taking the
case to the courts of the United States. There we shall attempt to apply
the standards of justice and rules of evidence which you profess to admire,
but fail to practice, in an effort to substitute consideration of the actual
and incontrovertible record of this Union for the hearsay trash upon
which you have based your present course of action. We shall also at-
tempt under the same rules and procedures to expose your conspiracy
with the General Electric Company against this Union. We hope also
that out of this action the people of the United States may come to learn
how it has happened that the secrets of atomic power have been turned
over to a corporation with the record of the General Electric Company.”

There then followed this letter dated November 1, 1948,
from Chairman Lilienthal to Charles E. Wilson, President
of the General Electric Company:

A.TOMIC EnergyUnite
Washington 25, D. November 1, 1945.

Dear Mr. Wilson; Under date of September 27, 1948, the Atomic
Energy Commission directed that the General Electric Company not
recognize the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America,
CIO (UE), as the bargaining representative of any persons to be employed

Mr. Charles E. Wilson, President, General Electric Company, 670
Lexington Avenue, at Fifty-first Street, New York 22, N. Y.
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by it at the new Knolls Atomic Power Laboratory, Schenectady, New
York. This direction was based upon information concerning alleged

iliation or association of various officers of UE. The pcC
tior within UE by these officers are such that they exercise

inistrative, negotiating, or disciplinary authority within the Unionor disci
over General Electric Company employees engaged at other atomic

here UE is the recognized bargainingenergy facilities at Schenectadv v

agent

when taken tcPhis information when taken together with the failure of these off
to file non-Communist affidavits u ader the Labor Management Relations
Act, led the Commission t

,t Schenectadv
bv

to the int
ests of the United States that the security of the nation and the policy of
the Atomic Energy Act of

Under dates of October 6 and October 22, 1948, the Atomic Ene
Comrr Mr. Albert J. Fit raid, General President of the UE,
in connection with the Commission’s direction to the General Elect
Company. The Commission concluded, however', that unless this ve
serious question should be cleared up satisfactorily the Commission
intended to take such further steps as may be necessary to assure that
these officers do not exercise administrative, negotiating or d
authority over General Electric Company employees engaged in atomiid in at
energy work, at Schenectady. Tb Commission offered the officers of
UE every opportunity to participat a fuller exploration of this issue.

On October 26, 1948, Mr. Fit replied to the Commission’s letter
of October 6 and October 22, 1948. From this reply it appears that t
officers of UE do not intend to av
tunity to participate in a fuller exp
it appears that the officers do not
facts concerning their loyalty an
party organizations, as in our vie
officers of unions who have wide i
personnel.

themselves of this proffered oppo
ation of this question. In particular

intend to answer questions or submit
1 their associations with Communist
w they must do, in their capacity of
.uthority over atomic energy activity

Accordingly the Atomic Energy Commission now directs that General
Electric Company withdraw and withhold recognition from the United
Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America, CIO, in respect t
any employees of General Electric Company engaged on work at AEC-
owned or AEC-leased installations in the Schenectady area or engaged
on atomic work which is defined as classified by the Atomic Energy Con
mission and being performed by the General Electric Company.

A reappraisal of the situation w
of time after you have taken the
directive. You will thereafter be
may be necessary.

ill be made within a reasonable period
necessary action to comply with this
advised as to any further steps that

We wish to emphasize that thii action, while made necessary by the
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refusal of these particular union officers to accept obligations as to loyalty
investigations (which their own members engaged in classified atomic
energy work have all accepted), is in no wise a reflection on the member-
ship of this union, employees of your company, who have been investigated
and cleared. Further, we take th 3 opportunity again to make it clear

ict to General Electric Company ex-that the Commission does not object to General Electric Company ex-
tending recognition as bargaining agent for atomic energy workers to any
labor organization whose officers have met the requisite standards in re-
spect to full and unqualified adherence and loyalty to the interests of the
United States.

Sincerely yours,
United States Atomic Energy Commission

David E. Lilienthal, Chairman.”

That directive still stands. The authority of the Atomic
Energy Commission has been upheld by the courts. UE
Communist leaders continue their power over the union.
Loyal American workmen continue to pay dues to support

Ie right of representation in
an industry so vital to the

them, and deny themselves th
the entire atomic industry,
safety of these United States.

CIO Resolution fok UE Expulsion.

The UE was formerly a member of the Independent
Organizations. It had become apparent to the UE that it
was no longer going to be tolerated as a member of the CIO
family. Armed with this knowledge it withdrew volun-
tarily. The CIO, however, at the 1949 Convention, adopted
a resolution of expulsion. We quote belowr the Resolution:

“Resolution of the 1949 CIO Convention on the Expulsion of thi

United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America.

We can no longer tolerate within the family of CIO the Communist
Party masquerading as a labor union. The time has come when the CIO
must strip the mask from these false leaders whose only purpose is to
deceive and betray the workers. So long as the agents of the Communist

the benefits of affiliation with the
lis betrayal under the protection of

Party in the lab'
CIO, they will co

at enjo;
titmu n

the CIO,the good
The false cry of these mis-leaders of labor for unity and autonomy d

not de
animationTv tr.
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In the name of autonomy they seek to justify their blind and slavish
willingness to act as puppets for the Soviet dictatorship and its foreign
policy with all its twists and turns from the Nazi-Soviet Pact to the
abuse of the veto in the UN, the Cominform attack upon the Marshall
Plan, EGA, the Atlantic Treaty and arms aid to free nations.

Now that they are at the end of the trail, these Communist agent cry
out against “raiding and secession.” What they call raiding and seces-
sion is simply a movement of workers throwing off their yoke of domina-
tion. These workers seek refuge from a gang of men who are without
principle other than a debased loyalty to a foreign power.

Their masters have long decreed the creation of a new labor federation
into which they hope to ensnare the labor unions they think they control.
This has already taken place in many countries of the world. It will
not happen in America.

When they saw that their attempt to use UERMWA to subvert the
CIO was failing, they resorted to the typical Communist tactic of system-
atic character assassination against the National CIO, our President,
Philip Murray, and all affiliated unions and officers who opposed the
Cominform policy.

Their program of vilification reveals the degradation of men who have
surrendered the right and lost the ability to think for themselves. It
brands them as unfit to associate with decent men and women in free
democratic trade unions.

The CIO is a voluntary association of free trade unions dedicated by
its constitution to the protection and extension of our democratic insti-
tutions, civil liberties, and human rights. Free unions are voluntary
associations of free men, held together by common loyalties and the ele-
ments of decency and honesty. We will fight with conviction and vigor
against all enemies within or without the CIO who would trample or seek
to destroy these sacred principles.

The certificate of affiliation of the CIO is a symbol of trust, democracy,
brotherhood and loyalty in the never-ending struggle of working men and
women for a better life. There is no place in the CIO for any organiza-
tion whose leaders pervert its certificate of affiliation into an instrument
that would betray the American workers into totalitarian bondage.

By the actions of its leadership, by their disloyalty to the CIO, and their
dedication to the purposes and program of the Communist Party, con-
trary to the overwhelming sentiment of the rank and file membership who
are loyal Americans and loyal CIO members, the leadership of the United
Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America have rendered their
union unworthy of and unqualified for this certificate of affiliation.

The UERMWA has been selected by the Communist Party as its labor
base from which it can operate to betray the economic, political, and
social welfare of the CIO, its affiliates and the general membership. The
program of the UERMWA leadership that has gradually unfolded is but
an echo of the Cominform. At the signal of the Cominform, the Com-
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munist Party threw off its mask and assumed its true role as a fifth
column. Its agents in the labor unions followed the Communist Party
line, the UERMWA leadership abandoned any pretense of loyalty to the
CIO and its program. The record is clear that wherever the needs of the
Communist Party in the Soviet Union dictated, the leadership of the
UERMWA was always willing to sacrifice the needs of the workers. The
evidence, known to every CIO member is overwhelming;

1. The CIO along with the American people support the Marshall plan
as a humane policy of physical and human rehabilitation and reconstruc-
tion to stop the spread of totalitarianism and strengthen the forces of
democracy.

The Soviet Union, The Communist Party and their highly placed
agents in the UERMWA unite in denouncing the Marshall plan and vilify
the CIO and the American people for theirhumanity.

2. The CIO along with the American people support the Atlantic
Pact to prevent any further expansion of the Soviet Union’s rule by force
and terror.

The Soviet Union, the Communist Party and the UERMWA leader-
ship attack the Atlantic Pact as war-mongering but are eloquently silent
about the fact that the Soviet Union has the largest standing army in
the world.

3. In the field of political action, the UERMWA leadership, crying
aloud for unity and autonomy, joined with Wall Street and other forces
of reaction in a desperate attempt to defeat liberalism and democracy in
the United States. Against the desire and interest of the American labor
movement, the UERMWA leadership joined with the Communist Party
in creating the misnamed Progressive Party. In unity with Wall Street
they did their utmost to divide the labor and liberal forces in an attempt
to elect a reactionary national administration that could ride rough shod
over the needs of the American people.

4. In their official organ, the UE News, on May 16, 1949, they
maliciously charged that the ClO’s hard fight to repeal the Taft-Hartley
Act was a sellout. At its recent convention, the UERMWA leadership
procured the adoption of a resolution charging the CIO with carrying
out a program to further the policies of Big Business.

5. In cynical and outright defiance of the CIO, the UERMWA leader-
ship secretly arranged a merger with the United Farm Equipment and
Metal Workers of America, which had loudly proclaimed its demand for
independence when ordered by the CIO Executive Board to merge with
the UAW. This merger of FE and UERMWA was the first step in the
long-range plans of the Communist Party to establish a Communist-
dominated labor federation in America.

6. In the midst of the most important struggle ever to take place
between labor and entrenched greed, the UERMWA leadership has once
more made common cause with the House of Morgan and the steel trust
by shamelessly attacking the United Steelworkers of America and their
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President, Philip Murray at a time when this great CIO union is en-
gaged in a heroic struggle to obtain pensions and a health program for
its million members. While the UERMWA leaders continue their cam-
paign to sabotage the steel strike and slander Philip Murray, they hypo-
critically call for financial support for the striker!

The final stage in the UERMWA leadership’s program for leaving
the CIO and establishing a Communist-dominated labor federation was
reached on October 7, 1949, when the officers of the UERMWA served

if the CIO. In that ultimatum theyan ultimatum upon the President
its policies, that CIO subordinatebrazenly demanded that the CIO char

Ident Murray plead guilty to falseitself to the UERMWA, and that I
capita paymentsand defamatory charges under t

carried out the presentto the CIO. This threat has r
during the period that this Con-leadership of the UERMWA whic

a press conference November 1, 1949vention was in session, announced a
that UERMWA was withholding further per capita payments from the
CIO until and unless the terms of their ultimatum are mett.

lectrical and allied industries wantWe believe that the workers in
Iples of the CIO and of our demo-and need a union devoted to the princi

cratic society. Their desire for such a
manipulations of the group that has

union has been frustrated by the
aneuvered the UERMWA into

opposition to the CIO on orders of the Communist Party

Ar aw therefore be it resolved that
1. This Convention finds that the Certificate of Affiliation heretofore

granted to the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of America
has fallen into the control of a group devoted primarily to the principles
of the Communist Party and opposed to the constitution and democratic
objectives of the CIO, and in particular to the following declaration in
the Preamble of the Constitution of the CIO;

‘ln the achievement of this task we turn to the people because we
have faith in them; and wr e oppose all those who ■would violate this
American emphasis of respect for human dignity, all those who would
use power to exploit the people in the interest of alien loyalties.’

and, in conformance with the provisions of Article 111, Section 6 of our
Constitution, this convention hereby expels the United Electrical, Radio
and Machine Workers of America from the Congress of Industrial Organ-
izations and withdraws the said Certificate of Affiliation.

2. This Convention recognizes that the overwhelming majority of the
membership of the United Electrical, Radio and Machine Workers of
America are not members of the Communist Party, and further recog-
nizes the desire of the working men and women in the electrical and
allied industries for a free and autonomous union affiliated with the CIO
and devoted to the constitutional principles and policies of the CIO.

3. This Convention hereby authorizes and directs the Executive Board
immediately to issue a Certificate of Affiliation to a suitable organization



1956.1 HOUSE No. 450. 215

covering electrical and allied workers which will genuinely represent the
desires and interest of the men and women in those industries.

4. This Convention calls upon the working men and women in the
electrical and allied industries to join in the building of a strong autono-
mous union affiliated with the CTO chat will fight on a sound trade union
basis for the interest of its memt
and which will join wholeheartedly

as workers and American citizens
ith the CIO in its struggle to obtain

Df collective bareainir including higher wages and better
working conditions, to safeguard t and promote the

the workers of Ar and■ica, and
and libertititutions anc

Convention calls upon the CIO to support
ith all their strength the determination of the electrical workers to fr

themselves from Communist domination and to create a strong aggiessiv
and democratic union affiliated with the CIO

With the full support of the CIO, the organized workers in the electrical
and allied industries will van their campaign for freedom from the degra-

tion of automatic obedience to a foreign dictat
A victory here for democratic unionism will strengthen the constant
ive of all American labor against economic monopoly and against all

those forces which would deny to American working men and women
the economic security and the democratic liberties which belong to all
America!

We salute the rank and file members of the UERMWA as the way i;
>ened for them to walk out of the shadows of Communist conspiracy

louble-talk, division, and betrayal, into the sunlight of democracy to be
enjoyed in the CIO and cherished and nade equally available to all men
and women who prize freedom, hone sty and loyalty to their ideals and
their union brothers and sister

In this cause and with this faith, we of the family of CIO shall defeat
our open and our secret enemies; we shall grow stronger in numbers and
in moral stature. Thereby the mission of the CIO, as stated at its found-
ing shall be realized in happy men and women, secure in their jobs, in
their homes and in their trust in one another.”

Conclusion.

This report has detailed the manner in which the Com-
ind directed the affairs ofmumst Party has dominated

the UE
iplished by the industry andThe result has been accor

zeal of Communist leaders wi
the control of the internatioi

10 have been able to maintain
al body and place their com-

rades or fellow travelers in key positi
demonstrates that the workers themselves, the vIt d
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majority of loyal Americans who are its members, have
permitted agents of a foreign power to direct their destinies

The Commission again urges vigilance and action. It
expresses the hope that its investigation and report will be
of assistance to the Legislature and to the union members in
crushing such Communist control; and, once rid of Com-
munism, that its members never again permit it to be re-
captured.
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